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INVITATION NOTICE
To the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

The Board of Directors of Vietham Maritime Corporation — JSC ("the
Corporation™) respectfully announces and cordially invites esteemed
shareholders to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“the
Meeting™) of the Corporation:

1. Time: Half-day, starting at 08:30 AM on June 5, 2025

2. Venue: 3rd Floor Auditorium, Ocean Park Building, No. 1 Dao Duy Anh
Street, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City

3. Participants: Shareholders listed in the shareholder register of the
Corporation, finalized by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation as of May 6, 2025

4. Agenda: According to the Meeting Program (available on the
Corporation’s website at http://www.vimc.co)

5. Documents: Meeting materials are published on the Corporation’s website
at http://www.vimc.co

6. Method of Attendance and Voting: Shareholders/authorized
representatives attend the Meeting in person and vote via electronic means

7. Proxy Attendance: In case of proxy attendance, shareholders are
requested to submit the Authorization Letter to the Corporation before
12:00 PM on June 4, 2025

For more information, please contact the Investor Relations Department:

Ms. Tran Phuong Lan — 0904698696

Hanoi, Date 14 Month 5 2025
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A Toa nha Ocean Park T (84) 24 35770825~29 F  (84) 24 35770852/60
S61Ddao Duy Anh - Béng Ba - Ha Noi E info@vimc.co W wwwyvimc.co



http://www.vimc.co/
http://www.vimc.co/

S VIMIC

Ty £ T 180 O i LS50 M

AGENDA

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC (VIMC)

Time: Half day, from 08:30 AM on June 5, 2025

Venue: 3rd Floor Conference Hall, Ocean Park Building,

No. 1 Dao Duy Anh Street, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City
Format: In-person meeting

Time

Content

08h00 - 08h30

Reception of delegates/shareholders, verification of shareholder
eligibility

08h30 - 08h45

Announcement of shareholder eligibility verification results

08h45 - 09h00

Opening of the General Meeting, introduction of delegates

09h00 - 09h15

Approval of the Meeting Rules and Regulations

09h15 - 09h25

Introduction of the Presidium of the Meeting; Introduction of the
Secretariat; Approval of the Vote Counting Committee

09h25 - 10h45

Trinh bay cac ndi dung nghi su:
1.Report of the Board of Directors (BoD) on 2024 operations, 2020-2025
term review, orientation for the 2025-2030 term, and business plan for 2025.

2.Report of the Supervisory Board (SB) on the appraisal of financial
statements, business results, and performance of the BoD and CEO of VIMC
in 2024.

3. Self-assessment report of the SB and Supervisors on performance in 2024,
2020-2025 term review, 2025-2030 orientation, and activity plan for 2025.

4. Audited financial statements of VIMC for the year 2024.
5.Proposal on profit distribution and dividend payment for 2024.
6. Business and investment plan of VIMC for 2025.

7.Remuneration fund implemented in 2024 and remuneration and salary plan
for the BoD and SB in 2025.

8. Selection of the audit firm for the 2025 financial statements of VIMC.
9.Election of members to the BoD and SB for the 2025-2030 term.
10. Approval of the registration for change of VIMC’s legal representative.

10h45 - 11h00

Discussion and voting on the presented matters

11h00 — 11h05

Report on the vote counting results

11h05 — 11h25

Approval of the Meeting Minutes and Resolution

11h30

Closing of the General Meeting
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2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

5" June 2025
VOTING SLIP
SharehOlder™s MAIMIE: ......couiiiieiiet ettt ettt et e st e st e aee et e et e e seesseesnaeeneeenseenseeseens
ID/Passport/Business Registration Certificate No: ...........c........ ,Issuedon .......... ) SO
Number of Shares Owned and/or Represented: ........ccoocvveiieiieiienieniice e shares
Total Number of Voting Ballots:........c..ccieiiiiiiiiieiieieeiecieesee ettt Ballots
VOTING ITEMS

1. Report of the Board of Directors (“BOD”) on VIMC’s performance in 2024, the 2020-2025
term, strategic directions for the 2025-2030 term, and the business plan for 2025.

[ ] Agree [ ] Disagree [ I No opinion

2. Report of the Supervisory Board (“SB”) on the review of the Financial Statements, business
results, and the performance of the Board of Directors and the General Director of VIMC in
2024.

| ] Agree [ ] Disagree || No opinion

3. Self-assessment report on the performance of the Supervisory Board and Supervisors in 2024,
the 2020-2025 term, and orientations for the 2025-2030 term, including the 2025 action plan:

| ] Agree [ ] Disagree [ I No opinion
4. The audited financial statements of VIMC for the year 2024:

] Agree [ ] Disagree [ ] No opinion
5. Profit distribution and dividend payment plan for the year 2024 of VIMC:

[ ] Agree [ ] Disagree [ INo opinion
6. The business production and investment plan of VIMC for the year 2025:

[ ] Agree [ ] Disagree [ I No opinion

7. Salary and remuneration fund executed in 2024 and planned for 2025 for the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board:

[ | Agree [ ] Disagree [ ] No opinion
8. Selection of the auditing firm to conduct the audit of VIMC’s 2025 financial statements:

[ ] Agree [ ] Disagree [ I No opinion
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9. Approval for the registration of changes in the legal representatives of VIMC:

| ] Agree

Note:

The voting ballot is used by shareholders
to exercise their voting rights in
accordance with Point d, Clause 6,
Article 19 of VIMC’s  Charter.
Shareholders/representatives cast their
vote by marking an “x” in one (01) of the
three (03) empty boxes for each agenda
item to be approved.

|| Disagree

[ 1 No opinion

Ha Noi, Date Month 2025
Shareholder/Shareholder’s Representative

(Signature and full name)
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SVIMC

POWER OF ATTORNEY
To attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company

To: Vietnam Marinetime Corporation — JSC (VIMC)

Principal:
NAME OF SHATCNOLACT: ... et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeraes

ID/Passport/Business Registration NUMDET: .........cccceviieiieciieciieiiesieeieeieeee s , issued on........
AAIES: .ttt h e ea e b bt et bt n et e h et et ent et eteennan

POSTEION: ...ttt b et b ettt et ettt et b et aeeheeanen
L@ a3 1S) ] 111 o USRS shares

AUTHORIZED TO:

Authorized Person:

1A LY, 3RS PTR
ID/Passport/Business Registration Number: ............cccceeveenienienieeieenen. ,issuedon...../..../........
PP PPPR PP
AAIESS ettt et a e bt a et bt ate bt n e et e bt et e bt e st eteeteennas
Number of shares aUthOTIZEd: ........c..ooiuiiiiiiiiie e shares
([T WOTAS .ottt st ettt et et eesseeaseesseebeesteesssesnseenseensens shares)

On behalf of the Authorizing Party, to attend the Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024 (“the Meeting”) of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC and to vote on
matters within the authority of the Meeting.

This Power of Attorney is valid from the date of signing until the conclusion of the
Meeting or until it is revoked by a written notice sent to the Meeting’s Organizing Committee
before the opening time.

The authorized person attending the Meeting is not allowed to delegate this authority to a
third party.

The Authorizing Party assumes full legal responsibility for this authorization and commits
not to raise any complaints thereafter.

Ha Noi, Date Month 2025

Authorized Party Authorizing Party
(Signature and full name) (Signature and full name)
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION- JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Number: /NQ-HHVN Hanoi, June 2025
DRAFT

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
On the 2024 Operational Results, 2020-2025 Term; Operational
Directions for the 2025-2030 Term, and 2025 Operational Plan

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

- Based on the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock
Company (VIMC) and relevant legal regulations, the VIMC Board of Directors
(BOD) respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the 2024
Operational Results, the 2020-2025 Term, and the Operational Orientation for
the 2025-2030 Term, along with the 2025 Operational Plan as follows:

1. 2024 OPERATIONAL RESULTS OF THE BOD

1. Operational Status of the BOD in 2024

- The BOD of the Corporation consists of 05 members, including the
Chairman of the BOD, a BOD member cum General Director, and 03 other
BOD members. There were no changes in BOD membership in 2024.

- The BOD operates on the principles of collectivity and majority decision-
making, effectively fulfilling its rights and obligations as stipulated by the
Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal corporate governance regulations, the
BOD’s operational regulations, and other relevant provisions. It has performed
well in supervising the Executive Board’s management activities. The BOD
works with a high sense of responsibility and transparency in corporate
governance, fulfilling its role effectively and proposing numerous solutions
while making timely and sound decisions.

- The BOD collaborates with the VIMC Supervisory Board to strengthen
monitoring, management, and direction functions in implementing the plans and
tasks set by the General Meeting of Shareholders, ensuring compliance with
legal regulations and VIMC’s Charter.

- The BOD creates favorable conditions for the Supervisory Board to
perform its duties, providing complete information and documents related to
BOD activities and inviting them to attend all BOD meetings and other
necessary meetings. Timely feedback from the Supervisory Board regarding
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VIMC’s and the BOD’s operations is acknowledged and promptly incorporated
into the issuance of Resolutions, Decisions, and implementation processes.

* BOD Meetings, Resolutions, and Decisions:

- BOD meetings were convened and conducted in accordance with the
procedures stipulated by the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, and internal
corporate governance regulations. The Supervisory Board and the Standing
Committee of the Party Committee were invited to attend as per coordination
regulations. Meeting invitations, dossiers, and documents were fully provided to
BOD members, the Supervisory Board, and the Party Committee’s Standing
Committee for reference and study as required. Meeting agendas
comprehensively covered topics related to VIMC’s operations, complied with
current regulations, and were actively discussed, thoroughly evaluated, and
carefully deliberated by BOD members to propose the best directions and
solutions for VIMC. Minutes of BOD meetings were fully recorded, ensuring
compliance with legal formalities.

- The Resolutions and Decisions issued by the BOD during meetings align
with legal regulations, the Charter, VIMC’s internal management regulations,
and the General Meeting of Shareholders’ resolutions, as well as the approved
business strategies and plans.

- Additionally, the BOD holds meetings, exchanges discussions, and
participates in briefings with the Executive Board, as well as meetings/sessions
with subsidiaries. It chairs/co-chairs important meetings and conferences related
to VIMC’s business operations and governance to ensure timely updates and
flexible, appropriate direction.

- In 2024, the BOD held 05 meetings, with 100% attendance from all
members. Outside of meetings, the BOD sought written consensus from
members to issue Resolutions and Decisions approving matters under its
authority. In 2024, the BOD issued 213 Resolutions and 83 Decisions.

* Performance Results of Individual BOD Members

- In 2024, BOD members were assigned specific tasks under Decision No.
62/Qb-HHVN dated February 09, 2021, on the Assignment of Duties to VIMC
BOD Members, based on the principle of leveraging each member’s strengths to
foster democracy and collective intelligence for the most effective fulfillment of
the BOD’s responsibilities. Throughout the term, BOD members proactively
performed their duties, fully participated, and voted on matters within their
authority. They collaborated well in leading, directing, and managing the
Corporation, achieving high consensus and unity within the BOD regarding
decisions on the Corporation’s goals, strategies, orientations, and key tasks.
BOD members monitored, supervised, and urged the Executive Board to
implement resolutions from the General Meeting of Shareholders, the BOD, and
higher authorities, while actively exchanging, discussing, and providing input in
their assigned fields.



- In 2024, the BOD’s action plan was issued under Resolution No. 10/NQ-
HHVN dated January 10, 2024. By year-end, most tasks had been completed.
Some unfinished items due to objective reasons were carried forward to the next
year.

- Specific duties of each BOD member under Decision No. 62/QD-HHVN
dated February 09, 2021, are as follows:

1.1Mr. Lé Anh Son — Chairman of the BOD

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member
and Chairman as stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal
corporate governance regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully
completes tasks assigned by the BOD regarding his areas of responsibility and
supervises the operations of assigned units/departments.

- Oversees overall operations, organizes the implementation of the BOD’s
duties and authorities, and represents the BOD in handling daily management
and operational matters in accordance with the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter,
BOD’s operational regulations, and related legal documents.

- Areas of responsibility: Directly oversees, directs, and supervises:

+ Strategy development, long-term development plans, and annual business
plans.

+ Enterprise restructuring, organizational structure, and personnel management.
+ Emulation, rewards, and disciplinary actions.

+ Finance and accounting.

+ Inspection, auditing, internal control, complaints, denunciations, and anti-
corruption/waste prevention.

+ Innovation and IT management.

+ Shareholder relations and communications.

+ Coordination with the Party Committee, Trade Union, and other corporate
organizations.

1.2Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — BOD Member, General Director

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions (in addition to performing the rights
and duties of the General Director). Successfully completes tasks assigned by
the BOD and supervises assigned units.

- Directly manages VIMC’s business operations in line with the objectives
and plans approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders and implements
resolutions/decisions issued by the BOD.

1.3Mr. Nguyén Dinh Chung — BOD Member

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully completes tasks assigned
by the BOD and supervises assigned units/departments.
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- Areas of responsibility: Monitors, supervises, and strengthens direction on
matters under the BOD’s authority related to port operations and maritime
services.
1.4 Mr. B Tién Birc — BOD Member
- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully completes tasks assigned
by the BOD and supervises assigned units/departments.
- Areas of responsibility:
+ Monitors and strengthens direction on issues related to internal management
regulations.
+ Oversees enterprise bankruptcy procedures and maritime legal compliance.
+ Assists the Chairman in inspection, auditing, complaint resolution, and anti-
corruption efforts.
1.4Mr. P6 Hung Duong — BOD Member
- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully completes tasks assigned
by the BOD and supervises assigned units/departments.
- Areas of responsibility: Monitors, supervises, and strengthens direction on
matters under the BOD’s authority related to maritime transportation operations.
Implementation Status of Inspection/Audit Recommendations
(1) Compliance with the Committee for State Capital Management (UBQLYV)
Recommendations

o Performed under Document No. 2714/UBQLV-CNHT (Nov 20, 2024) on

2023 financial supervision results and Document No. 2783/BC-UBQLV

(Nov 28, 2024) on the H1/2024 financial supervision report for VIMC and

its subsidiaries. VIMC is diligently implementing the recommendations.
(2) Compliance with the Ministry of Finance’s Recommendations

o Based on Inspection Conclusion No. 1134/KL-TTr (Dec 6, 2019) by
the Ministry of Finance regarding compliance with financial, accounting,
and tax laws, VIMC submitted periodic reports to UBQLV and the

Ministry of Finance.

o AsofH1/2024 (Report No. 404/BC-NDD, Aug 15, 2024):
o 9/12 recommendations completed.
o 3/12 pending, including:

+ Vietnam Ocean Shipping JSC (VOSCO) must finalize settlement
documents with Bach Pang Shipbuilding Co. and Nam Triéu Shipbuilding
Co. (builders of Lucky Star, Blue Star, and Vosco Sunrise vessels).

+ VOSCO, Vinaship JSC, and VIMC must resolve outstanding debts
related to the Vinashin Atlantic vessel (per the tripartite agreement dated Nov 1,



2010) and recover receivables from Vinashin Ocean Transport Co. for repairs to
the Green Sea vessel.

+ Hai Phong Port JSC and Saigon Port JSC must clarify land-use plans
at Saigon Port and resolve unpaid land lease fees (VND 40.2 billion and VND
19.7 billion, respectively).

(3) Compliance with the Government Inspectorate’s Recommendations
o Per UBQLV’s Directive No. 2881/UBQLV-CNHT (Dec 12, 2024) on

implementing Conclusion No. 419/KL-TTCP regarding SOE
restructuring and land-use conversion (2011-2021):

o 1/5 pending issue: Finalizing equitization settlements for Hai Phong
Port Co. and Saigon Port Co.

o 1/2 pending recommendation: Saigon Port JSC must recover VND
4.515 billion in late payment penalties from Trung Thuy Lancaster Co. for a
land transfer project at 430 Nguyén T4t Thanh, District 4, Ho Chi Minh City.
2. Results of the Implementation of the Tasks Assigned by the 2024 General
Meeting of Shareholders
2.1 The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

In 2024, the global situation continued to evolve in a complex and
unpredictable manner. Following difficulties caused by weather conditions and
external factors, business and production activities showed positive changes and
regained growth momentum similar to the pre-pandemic period. Exports
remained a highlight, with most key export categories achieving high growth.
As a result, demand for cargo transportation via seaports increased significantly,
creating opportunities for businesses in the sector. Ocean freight rates
experienced growth due to the recovery in demand and external factors such as
regional conflicts and drought conditions at the Panama Canal.

However, Vietnam's maritime industry is facing intense competition from
international enterprises, especially in the context of Vietnam’s entry into the
EU-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement (EVFTA). Clearly recognizing the
challenges and difficulties, the Board of Directors closely followed the contents
of Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024, assigned by the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board developed an Action
Program, implemented focused and decisive directions with specific solutions,
and achieved the following results:

(i) Business Plan Targets
The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC set the following
targets:
o Total revenue: VND 2,415 billion
o Pre-tax profit: VND 935 billion
The actual results achieved in 2024 were as follows:



o Parent company: Revenue reached VND 3,155 billion (131% of the 2024
target). Pre-tax profit reached VND 1,353 billion (145% of the 2024
target).

« Consolidated figures: Revenue reached VND 19,235 billion (143% of the
2024 target). Pre-tax profit reached VND 3,153 billion (115% of the 2024
target).

(ii) Investment Activities
The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC set the following
investment targets:

« Total investment capital for 2024 projects: VND 436.7 billion, including
VND 199.6 billion for ongoing projects and VND 237.1 billion for new
projects.

« Total financial investment capital: VND 1,208 billion.

« Investment in two bulk carriers with a total capacity of 38,000 DWT and
total investment of USD 72.6 million.

o Increase the charter capital of contributed-capital enterprises, reduce
VIMC’s ownership ratio in 7 enterprises.

« Divest or reduce capital in 9 contributed-capital enterprises (3 ongoing
cases, 4 as per the 2024 plan, and capital contribution through stock value
in 2 enterprises).

Implementation results in 2024:

The parent company carried out investment activities totaling VND 151.4
billion (equivalent to 35% of the plan). The main reason for not fully achieving
the investment target was due to policy and regulatory obstacles related to
bidding procedures. As a result, the parent company was unable to implement
the investment project for 2 bulk carriers (approximately VND 178 billion) and
some other projects remained incomplete as planned.

Regarding Capital Investment Plans:

In 2024, VIMC carried out capital investments in enterprises as follows:

(1) Completed the capital contribution to establish VIMC Container
Transport Joint Stock Company (VIMC Lines). At the same time, VIMC
finalized the procedures for contributing capital to VIMC Lines in cash and
assets (a batch of container shells, investment capital in VIMC Dinh Vu and
Vimadeco) in accordance with regulations.

(i1)) Invested in establishing VIMC - Aries Maritime Services Joint
Venture Company Limited.

At the VIMC-wide level, the total planned investment capital for 2024
was VND 4,471 billion. The actual investment reached VND 3,077 billion (69%
of the plan). In 2024, VIMC's investment activities were actively promoted, with
key projects largely progressing as scheduled, specifically:

Port Operations Sector:



(1) Project for Construction of Container Terminals No. 3 and No. 4 at Hai
Phong International Gateway Port (Lach Huyen Port area, Hai Phong City): As
of the reporting date, Terminal No. 3 of Lach Huyen Port has been officially
launched. It is expected to commence operations in Q2/2025 and be fully
completed within 2025.

(i1) Project for the International Transshipment Port in Can Gio District,
Ho Chi Minh City: In 2024, VIMC coordinated closely with Saigon Port and
relevant ministries to supplement the project documentation. On January 16,
2025, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 148/QD-TTg approving the
investment policy for the Can Gio International Transshipment Port Project.
VIMC/Saigon Port is continuing to coordinate with partners to complete
investment preparation procedures and has been selected as the project’s
investor, aiming to commence construction in 2025.

(i11) Lien Chieu Port Construction Project in Da Nang: VIMC cooperated
with Da Nang Port to initiate investment proposal procedures and accelerated
cooperation with international partners to develop a plan aligned with the new
investment direction of the Da Nang City People's Committee.

Logistics Sector:

Efforts were ramped up to develop logistics infrastructure projects in
various regions, with several important milestones achieved, such as the
approval of investment policy for the Ninh Giang Inland Waterway Port Project,
and the launch of Dong Pho Moi Dry Port (ICD Lao Cai) in Lao Cai Province.

Maritime Transport Sector:

With a strategic focus on fleet rejuvenation and development of modern,
high-specification vessels, including container ships, maritime transport
enterprises invested in several new vessels after many years of limited fleet
development. Alongside vessel disposal, this marks significant progress. Going
forward, VIMC will continue investing in rejuvenating and expanding its
container fleet to lay the foundation for integrated logistics services
development.

Capital Increase in Subsidiaries and Affiliates:

VIMC completed charter capital increases for Vinaship JSC and Vietnam
Sea Transport and Chartering JSC. Procedures are underway to increase charter
capital in other subsidiaries and affiliates as planned.

Capital Divestment:

VIMC completed divestment from Sesco in February 2024 and plans to
continue divestment procedures from Transvina, Vinabridge, and SHC.

(i11) Development of VIMC’s Medium- and Long-Term Strategy and Plan

Based on the Restructuring Plan for the 2021-2025 period approved by
the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, and additional amendments
approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting, VIMC developed an action plan
to implement the outlined contents. Simultaneously, VIMC formulated its
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Development Strategy for 2021-2030, with a vision to 2035, and its 5-year
Business and Investment Plan for 2021-2025, as approved by Resolution No.
349/NQ-HHVN dated August 18, 2023, and Resolution No. 323/NQ-HHVN
dated June 7, 2024, of the Board of Directors.

To implement this, VIMC’s Board of Directors established a Steering
Committee and strategic planning teams, and coordinated with international
consultants to formulate solutions and deploy the approved Development
Strategy.

(iv) Profit Distribution

Implemented in strict accordance with the 2024 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders’ resolution.

(v) Selection of Independent Auditor

UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. was selected as the independent
auditor for VIMC's 2024 financial statements, ensuring quality and cost-
effectiveness in compliance with legal regulations and shareholder-approved
criteria.

(vi) Implementation of 2024 Salary and Remuneration Fund for the Board
of Directors

Salaries, allowances, and operational costs for the Board of Directors
were executed in accordance with the 2024 AGM resolution and VIMC’s
internal regulations. In 2024, the total remuneration and salaries for Board
members amounted to VND 6,609 million. Specific expenses are disclosed in
the audited 2024 financial statements of VIMC.

2.2 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on July 22, 2024

Following Resolution No. 380/NQ-DHDCD issued by the Extraordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders on July 22, 2024, the Board of Directors of
VIMC issued Resolution No. 381/NQ-HHVN dated July 23, 2024, and directed
the implementation of the approved contents, specifically:

(1) Added new business lines to VIMC's scope of operations;

(i1)) Amended and supplemented VIMC's Charter;

(ii1) Added new items to VIMC’s 2024 investment portfolio.

The CEO organized the implementation in compliance with current legal
regulations.

II. SUMMARY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ACTIVITIES
FOR THE 2020-2025 TERM

The 2020-2025 period has been marked by unprecedented and highly
challenging developments for the global economy. The COVID-19 pandemic,
which broke out in early 2020, caused a major shock, disrupting global supply
chains and severely impacting production, trade, and service activities.
Widespread lockdowns and social distancing measures pushed many economies
into recession.



Vietnam demonstrated remarkable resilience during the COVID-19
pandemic, maintaining positive economic growth in 2020 and recovering
strongly in the following years. The Government took decisive actions to control
the pandemic, support businesses and citizens, and promote trade and
investment. Politically, Vietnam maintained stability, creating favorable
conditions for economic development. Continued international integration and
participation in free trade agreements (FTAs) opened up many new
opportunities for trade and investment.

However, Vietnam was not immune to the negative impacts of the global
economic context, especially supply chain disruptions and rising inflation. The
maritime sector faced similar challenges from global factors. Nevertheless, with
its geographical advantages and the growth of import-export activities,
Vietnam's maritime industry maintained its growth momentum. Vietnamese
seaports continued to receive upgrades, and maritime transport capacity was
improved.

It can be said that the 2020-2025 term saw the VIMC Board of Directors
operating in a complex environment, heavily affected by external factors.
Evaluating the Board’s performance requires consideration of these difficulties
and opportunities, as well as VIMC’s responsiveness and adaptability to market
fluctuations.

1. Operations of the Board of Directors during the 2020-2025 Term

On August 13, 2020, VIMC held its inaugural General Meeting of
Shareholders (GMS), officially converting its business model from a one-
member limited liability company to a joint stock company. At this first GMS, a
Board of Directors consisting of 5 members was elected, including the Chairman
of the Board, the General Director (also a Board member), and three other Board
members. There were no changes in Board composition throughout the 2020—
2025 term.

The Board operated on the principle of collective decision-making, voting
by majority, and fulfilled its functions, rights, and obligations in accordance
with the Law on Enterprises, VIMC’s Charter, internal corporate governance
regulations, the Board’s operational regulations, and other relevant legal
provisions and company policies. The Board worked with a high sense of
responsibility and transparency in managing a listed company, fulfilling its role
effectively, proposing many solutions, and making timely, sound decisions.

The Board also worked in coordination with VIMC’s Supervisory Board
to enhance oversight, management, and direction in fulfilling the goals set by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, while ensuring compliance with legal
regulations and VIMC’s Charter.

2. Business Performance Results for the 2020-2025 Period

During the 2020-2025 term, the VIMC Board of Directors clearly
recognized the challenges and difficulties and closely adhered to the annual
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resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board developed action
programs, provided strong direction, and implemented appropriate business
solutions, achieving the following results:

Revenue (VND billion) Profit before tax (VND billion)
Actual / Actual /
Year Panned Actual Planned Panned Actual Planned
2020
- 0 -
(August 631,88 653,12 103% 55,5 1.117.26
December)
2021 1.368 1.824 133% 0,983 230 234%
2022 1.691 2417 143% 240 653 272%
2023 2.024 2.067 102% 310 357 115%
2024 2415 3.156.6 130% 935 1.353,5 144%

In 2020, VIMC operated under the joint-stock company (JSC) model for the first
time, facing numerous difficulties and challenges. The recorded loss of VND
1,117.36 billion was due to adjustments and the inclusion of cost factors related
to asset allocations and provisions for outstanding assets and debts from the
previous period as a state-owned enterprise, in accordance with equitization
regulations. In subsequent years, with the close direction of the state ownership
representative agency and relevant authorities, and the decisive leadership of the
Board of Directors and Executive Board, VIMC consistently achieved and
surpassed business targets, with continuous growth in revenue and profit. By
2023, VIMC had fully cleared accumulated losses and was able to pay dividends
to shareholders.
3. Investment Performance for the 2020-2025 Period
After a long period of limited development investment due to resource
constraints and a focus on restructuring, VIMC—thanks to improved business
results—has now oriented its development strategy towards expanding port and
logistics infrastructure, with a focus on deep-water ports and international
transshipment ports. The company is also investing in fleet modernization and
technological innovation to support business operations and contribute to the
successful implementation of Vietnam’s Sustainable Maritime Economic
Development Strategy to 2030, with a vision to 2045.
3.1. Investment in Port Infrastructure
With a strategic focus on developing port infrastructure at new locations,
building ports capable of handling large vessels, and upgrading existing
infrastructure to enhance capacity, VIMC has implemented key projects:
o (i) Upgrading and expanding Berth No.l at Quy Nhon Port: Completed
and operational as of January 2025.
« (i1) Construction of Berths 3 and 4 at Lach Huyen Port: On April 1, 2025,
Berth No.3 was officially inaugurated. Expected to begin operations in Q2
2024 and be fully completed by the end of 2025.
10



o (iii) Proposal for the Can Gio International Transshipment Port: On
January 16, 2025, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 148/QD-TTg
approving the investment policy. VIMC/Saigon Port is coordinating with
partners to complete investment preparations, aiming to break ground in
2025.

o (iv) Proposal to invest in two initial berths at Lien Chieu Port: Currently
in negotiation with partners for joint investment.

3.2. Investment in Maritime Transport

To rejuvenate its fleet and develop a modern, high-tech container fleet, VIMC
and its subsidiaries have recently acquired several new vessels after many years
without investment. This was accompanied by the disposal of outdated vessels.
Going forward, VIMC will continue investing in fleet renewal and container
ships to create a foundation for integrated logistics services.

3.3. Investment in Maritime Services

To develop an integrated logistics service chain, VIMC has focused on
expanding ICDs (Inland Container Depots) in key economic zones:

« (1) Ninh Giang Inland Waterway Port Project (Hai Duong): Approved for
investment and selected as the investor.

« (i1) Logistics Service Center in Hoa Vang District, Da Nang City: Project
has broken ground.

« (iii) Research and development of logistics centers and ICDs in key areas
such as Binh Dinh, Tay Ninh, Lach Huyen (Hai Phong), etc.

4. Corporate Governance Reform

Alongside its transition to a new operating model, VIMC has adopted advanced
and modern governance methods. Its development strategy was advised by
international consultancy Roland Berger, implementing best international
practices such as:

« Strong decentralization and delegation of authority,

« Flexible yet centralized business management centered on customer
needs,

« Continuous improvement (Kaizen),

« Transparent, competitive recruitment and appointment processes,

« Attractive salary and bonus policies to attract talent,

« Strong IT applications, etc.

VIMC’s governance model follows the "123 Principle":

« 1 SYSTEM: A unified, efficient, flexible business system adaptable to
change, with consistent standards applied across all subsidiaries.

« 2 CENTERS: (1) Customer-centric; (2) People-centric. These principles
underpin the company’s cultural foundation.

« 3 STRATEGIES:

1. Develop and expand deep-water ports,
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2. Build and grow the container fleet and maritime/logistics services
based on digital technology,

3. Establish an efficient resource management system.
III. ORIENTATION FOR THE 2025-2030 TERM
In the 2025-2030 term, the VIMC Board of Directors will continue
implementing the company’s development strategy for 2021-2030, with a vision
to 2035. Key strategic directions include:
1. Strong Investment in Port Infrastructure, Logistics, and Fleet
Development

« Focus on port and logistics infrastructure projects, including deep-water
ports, international transshipment ports, and ICDs in key economic zones.

o Invest in new-generation ships with advanced technical features,
especially container ships.

2. Build a Flexible, Customer-Oriented Business Model to Accelerate
Breakthroughs

« Develop integrated service packages combining port operations, shipping,
and automated logistics with seamless connectivity.

o Promote multimodal transport and tech-based logistics services to
improve efficiency, reduce logistics costs, and add value for customers.

« Deploy a CRM system to enhance customer management and expand into
new markets. Innovate service style to increase responsiveness.

« Standardize operational procedures to boost productivity and optimize
costs. Integrate advanced management technologies like ERP to control
costs and increase transparency.

« Continue resolving outstanding financial issues, restructure debts of
subsidiaries, and propose mechanisms to reduce guarantee obligations and
improve financial health.

« Review and optimize capital, assets, and land resources across the group
to create an efficient internal support mechanism that boosts revenue,
reduces costs, and maximizes shareholder value.

3. Focused Corporate Restructuring to Streamline Operations

VIMC will continue strategic restructuring, prioritizing underperforming
subsidiaries, addressing long-standing issues, and building a streamlined,
flexible operating model suitable for the new development phase (2025-2030).
4. Expand International Cooperation in Business and Investment

o Seek and connect with experienced, capable, and financially strong
partners and strategic investors for key VIMC projects (e.g., ports,
container fleet, logistics chains).

« Strengthen cooperation with major global and regional ports and shipping
lines to develop international routes and logistics services integrated with
VIMC’s port system.
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5. Promote Technology Transfer, Digital Transformation, and Green
Transition

« Apply automation technologies, core software solutions, 0T, blockchain,
cloud computing, etc., to fully digitize and optimize operations.

« Build a big data warehouse to ensure accurate, timely system-wide data.

o Apply Al technologies to leverage data and support (semi)automated
business operations, opening new business models.

o Use renewable energy, reduce carbon emissions, and comply with
international sustainability standards.

6. Enhance Human Resource Quality and Corporate Culture

« Develop high-quality human resources through comprehensive reform in
recruitment, talent attraction, training, succession planning, and
competitive compensation.

o Foster a strong corporate culture that reflects VIMC’s identity and
promotes a positive working environment, boosting performance and
adaptability in a fast-changing market.

I1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS' OPERATIONAL PLAN FOR 2025

The year 2025 is a particularly important and pivotal year, marking the
conclusion of the implementation of the 5-year Business and Investment Plan
for the 2021-2025 period and the VIMC Restructuring Scheme for 2021-2025.
The VIMC Board of Directors sets forth the following operational plan:

1. Finance / Customers

Achieve at least 100% of the approved financial targets through the

following solutions:

« Enhance efficiency in market development and terminal/yard operations;
promote the container cargo handling chain; optimize dry bulk fleet
operations.

« Expand revenue and profit growth surrounding core business activities:
promote integrated logistics, container cargo, agricultural products, and
steel.

« Control fleet and container handling costs at ports.

« Invest in expanding capacity for the seaport system, container fleet, dry
bulk and oil tanker fleets.

2. Learning and Development / Internal Processes

Promote sustainable growth in 2025 and beyond through the following

measures:

o Establish an environment that fosters sustainable growth in 2025: a
culture of discipline and efficiency.

o Define the 2025 Transformation Actions and the 2025-2035 Transition
Roadmap.

This concludes the 2024 Performance Report, the Summary of Operations for

the 2020-2025 Term, the Strategic Directions for the 2025-2030 Term, and the
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Board of Directors’ Operational Plan for 2025, respectfully submitted to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for review and approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above; CHAIRMAN

- Supervisory Board;

- Member of BOD;

- Office, Internal Audit Dept;
- Save: Office, COB, GS.
HTO02
Le Anh Son
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION - JSC Independence - Freedom — Happiness

No: /BC-DHDCD Ha Noi, .../.../2025

DRAFT SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT

ON THE MONITORING RESULTS OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES, SUPERVISION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
THE GENERAL DIRECTOR OF VIETNAM MARITIME
CORPORATION - JSC IN 2024

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Based on the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Based on the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019, and
Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024,
Based on Government Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020,
detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Securities Law;
Based on Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, of the
Ministry of Finance guiding certain provisions on corporate governance
applicable to public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;
Based on the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company
(VIMC);
Based on the internal corporate governance regulations of VIMC;
Based on the operating regulations of VIMC’s Supervisory Board;
Based on Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 20, 2024, of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC,;
Based on the separate and consolidated financial statements of 2024 of the
Corporation, audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.;
The Supervisory Board of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock
Company (VIMC) respectfully reports to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) on the results of its supervision and inspection of VIMC’s
business operations, and the activities of the Board of Directors and the General
Director of VIMC as follows:
PART I. INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION RESULTS
I. Operational Characteristics of VIMC

Vietnam Maritime Corporation (VIMC) operates under Business Registration
Certificate No. 0100104595, originally issued by the Hanoi Department of
Planning and Investment on July 7, 2010, with the 8th amendment dated May



24, 2024. Since August 18, 2020, the Corporation officially transitioned to
operate under a joint stock company model.

o Charter Capital as of December 31, 2024: VND 12,005,880 million,
equivalent to 1,200,588,000 shares.

« Paid-in Capital as of December 31, 2024: VND 12,005,880,000,000 (of
which, state capital in VIMC 1s VND 11,942,133 million, controlling 99.469%
of charter capital. According to Official Dispatch No. 1661/VPCP-DMDN dated
February 28, 2025, from the Government Office on transferring the state capital
ownership representation rights, VIMC is under the management of the Ministry
of Finance as the state capital owner representative).

« VIMC’s shares, under the ticker symbol MVN, have been registered for
trading on the UPCoM market since October 18, 2018.

Governance Structure:
« Board of Directors:
o Mr. Lé Anh Son — Chairman
o Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — Member
o Mr. Bd Tién Btrc — Member
o Mr. Nguyén Dinh Chung — Member
o Mr. D6 Hung Duong — Member
« Executive Board:
o Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — General Director
o Mr. Pham Anh Tuin — Deputy General Director
o Mr. Lé Quang Trung — Deputy General Director
o Mr. Nguyén Ngoc Anh — Deputy General Director
o Supervisory Board:
o Mr. Luong Pinh Minh — Head
o Mr. Pham Cao Nhué — Member
o Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha — Member

« Legal Representative: Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — General Director
Businesss Activities:

VIMC’s core activities include maritime transportation services, seaport
services, and maritime services.

Organizational Structure:
VIMC consists of the Head Office and 6 dependent accounting units, namely:

« VIMC Shipping Company;

« VIMC Haiphong Warehouse Company;

« VIMC Maritime Human Resources Company;

« VIMC Specialized Maritime Project Management Board;

« VIMC Branch in Haiphong;

o VIMC Branch in Ho Chi Minh City.



As of December 31, 2024, VIMC has invested capital contributions in 35
enterprises with a total contributed capital of VND 10,932.45 million,
categorized as follows:

« By Control Rights:
(1) 18 subsidiaries with contributed capital of VND 10,511.44 million. The
number of subsidiaries decreased by one compared to the beginning of 2024 due
to divestment from Maritime Development JSC and VIMC Dinh Vu Port JSC,
converting the capital contribution to VIMC Container Transport JSC with
99.956% control.
(i1) 13 joint ventures and associates with contributed capital of VND 403,834
million.
(ii1) 4 other investments with contributed capital of VND 17,179.3 million.

« By Business Sector:

o Seaport sector: 14 companies with capital contribution of VND
9,414,928 million.

o Maritime transport sector: 9 companies with capital contribution of
VND 1,184,854 million.

o Maritime services sector: 6 companies with capital contribution of
VND 284,595 million.

o Other sectors: 6 companies with capital contribution of VND 48,075
million.

II. Results of Supervising the Activities of the Board of Directors
(BOD)
. On April 20, 2024, the Board of Directors successfully convened the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2024. The meeting issued
Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 20, 2024, assigning the BOD and
the Supervisory Board (BKS) of the Corporation to implement the resolution.
. The VIMC Board of Directors consists of 5 members, including one
member who concurrently serves as the General Director and 4 full-time
members. From the start of the term on August 13, 2020, through the end of
2024, there have been no changes in the BOD membership. The Board has
operated in accordance with its functions, duties, and powers as stipulated in
VIMC’s Charter, internal governance regulations, and current laws.

. The Supervisory Board has monitored the governance activities of the
BOD, participated in BOD meetings, and reviewed the Board’s resolutions,
decisions, and internal regulations issued by the BOD.

. Building on the effectiveness achieved in 2023 under Resolution No.
11/NQ-HHVN, early in 2024 the BOD convened and issued Resolution No.
10/NQ-HHVN on January 10, 2024, regarding the 2024 Action Program of the
BOD of VIMC. The program’s objectives are to continue implementing the
tasks stated in the Dai Lai Action Declaration and uphold the principle of “1
SYSTEM, 2 CENTERS, 3 STRATEGIES” to concretize tasks, continue
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innovating operational methods, proactively adapt, and act decisively and
efficiently, in line with the Government’s 2024 operational theme: “Discipline
and responsibility; Proactive and timely; Accelerate innovation; Sustainable
efficiency.” This serves as the guiding principle for the Board’s directives and
organizational implementation throughout 2024. The plan is based on approved
long-term strategies including:
(1) The VIMC Restructuring Scheme 2021-2025;
(i) The Development  Strategy 2021-2030, vision to  2035;
(ii1) The 5-year Business and Investment Plan 2021-2025.

o  Throughout 2024, the BOD closely followed the business plan approved
by the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders and directed the Executive Board
accordingly. The BOD operated as a full-time body, making collective
decisions, and delegating specific responsibilities to members according to
operational areas.

o The Board maintained close oversight of the Executive Board’s
management based on the achievement of targets and timelines set in Resolution
No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024, and Resolution No. 10/NQ-HHVN.
The supervision covered four key areas: Financial management, Customer
relations, Internal processes, and Learning & Development. The Board regularly
organized reviews to evaluate progress and propose directions for upcoming
periods to ensure fulfillment of the planned objectives.

« In 2024, the BOD proactively adapted to changes in the business
environment and maximized VIMC’s potential. To enhance operational
efficiency, VIMC focused on expanding market share, building infrastructure,
technology, and human resources foundations for new market/customer
development. The Board ensured continuous market monitoring to secure
revenue and profit effectiveness, strengthened investments with emphasis on key
projects in port infrastructure, logistics, and fleet development.

o«  The Board pushed for strong corporate governance reforms, applying
advanced and modern governance principles aligned with international best
practices; vigorously adopting information technology; developing high-quality
human resources; and increasing cohesion among VIMC’s subsidiaries to build
a comprehensive service chain. This was done with a proactive approach to
integration, joint ventures, and linkages based on the Development Strategy
2021-2030 with vision to 2035, the Business and Investment Plan, and the
VIMC Restructuring Scheme 2021-2025.

o« In 2024, the BOD held 5 meetings and many consultations with the
Executive Board and subsidiaries. It received 219 proposals from the Executive
Board and issued 213 Resolutions and 83 Decisions, focusing on business
operations, debt restructuring, capacity improvement in two joint venture ports
(SSIT, CICT), restructuring Saigon Port linked with container and bulk cargo
operations at joint venture ports, restructuring and financial control of
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underperforming enterprises, investment projects at Lach Huyén Berths 3 & 4
(Hai Phong Port), Quy Nhon Port Berth 1, speeding up procedures for deep-
water port projects at Can Gio and Lién Chiéu, amending and strengthening
internal regulations, personnel work, procurement, asset liquidation, and voting
guidance for subsidiaries at their shareholder meetings.

o« In 2024, all BOD members actively performed their assigned duties,
attended meetings fully, contributed opinions, and voted on matters within their
authority. The Board members cooperated well in leadership, direction, and
management of the Corporation, achieving strong consensus and unity on
decisions regarding key policies, strategies, orientations, and important
corporate tasks.

II1. Results of Supervising the Activities of the General Director

The Executive Board consists of 4 members: 1 General Director and 3
Deputy General Directors. The Executive Board promptly issued Decision No.
02/Qb-HHVN dated January 2, 2024, on the assignment of tasks between the
General Director and the Deputy General Directors.

The Supervisory Board monitors the Executive Board through supervision
and inspection of the implementation of the 2024 Business Plan, as approved by
the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders and by Resolution No. 10/NQ-
HHVN dated January 10, 2024, of the Board of Directors. Supervision of the
Executive Board is conducted regularly during briefings and by participating in
meetings between the Executive Board and subsidiary units. The Executive
Board has strictly implemented the Board of Directors’ resolutions and
decisions, directing relevant departments to carry out full and timely execution.
It always complies with the directives of the Board of Directors, internal
regulations, the Corporation’s Charter, and applicable laws.

In 2024, the Executive Board received and implemented 223 resolutions
(including 10 from 2023 carried over). Among these, 215 have been completed,
and 8 resolutions are still in progress and will continue into 2025. These include:

(1) Resolution No. 345/NQ-HHVN dated September 24, 2021, on the
Digital Transformation Strategy Implementation Program for 2021-2025, vision
to 2030.

(2) Resolution No. 283/NQ-HHVN dated May 14, 2024, regarding the
divestment plan of the Corporation’s capital at Vietnam Container Handling
Company Limited (VNB). The Corporation announced the auction of its
contributed capital at VNB on December 6, 2024, with the auction expected to
be held on December 27, 2024. However, the external auction sale was
unsuccessful. At the Board of Directors meeting No. 120/NQ-HHVN dated
April 10, 2025, the Board requested the Corporation’s capital representative at
Vinabridge to: "Add the following agenda at the 2025 Members’ Council
meeting: Assess business and investment needs; research and develop a plan to
increase charter capital, including considering reducing the Corporation’s
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ownership ratio at Vinabridge to 36%. Report the capital increase plan to the
Corporation."

(3) Six resolutions are in progress following their timelines, such as
Resolution No. 323/NQ-HHVN dated June 7, 2024, on the Development
Strategy 2021-2030, vision 2035; and the 5-year Business and Investment Plan
2021-2025.

(4) Resolution No. 411/NQ-HHVN dated August 28, 2024, on organizing
activities to celebrate the 30th anniversary of the Corporation’s establishment
(April 29, 1995 — April 29, 2025).

(5) Resolution No. 431/NQ-HHVN dated September 13, 2024,
authorizing approval of the final settlement of the completed project “New
construction of 12,500 DWT dry cargo vessel Vinalines Freedom No. 1/KH2006
(code HL15).”

(6) Resolution No. 465/NQ-HHVN on approving the capital divestment
plan of the Corporation at Transport and Trading Service Joint Stock Company.

(7) Resolution No. 546/NQ-HHVN dated December 20, 2024, from the
Board meeting on December 19, 2024, on evaluating Party members in 2024.

(8) Resolution No. 559/NQ-HHVN dated December 27, 2024, on the
2025 Business and Investment Plan of the Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC.

Continuing to strengthen control over the effectiveness of 2024 business
activities both at the Corporation and its subsidiaries, the Executive Board
closely monitored completion of regulations, rules, and procedures suitable to
practical conditions. The Board delegated more authority to lower levels while
ensuring compliance with the law, and regularly updated, developed, and
amended internal regulations for submission to the Board of Directors. As of
December 31, 2024, VIMC has 80 active internal regulations, including 5 issued
by the Corporation’s Party Committee, 1 by the Supervisory Board, 46 under the
Board of Directors’ authority, and 28 under the General Director’s authority.
The internal regulatory system is regularly reviewed and updated annually based
on the “VIMC Internal Regulations Issuance Plan” issued by the Board.

To improve efficiency, ensure quality, and minimize risks in business and
management operations from the parent company to subsidiaries, development
of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) is actively promoted, organized
through contests and innovation registrations. In 2024, ... SOPs were issued
focusing on four groups: Business and customer processes, Core business
operations, Resource management and development, and Risk management and
compliance assurance.

he General Director and Executive Board strictly comply with relevant
laws, follow the Board’s directives, internal regulations, and the Corporation’s
Charter in corporate governance and business management. The Executive
Board has effectively fulfilled its operational management role aligned with the
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Board’s objectives and guidance. Based on the 2024 Action Program, the
Executive Board promptly implements measures to resolve difficulties in
business activities, decisively assigns and directs the Deputy General Directors
and specialized units to concretize the action plans.

Ensuring compliance with state regulations on labor, working
environment conditions, collective labor agreements, and other employee rights.

Regarding shareholders, VIMC has essentially fulfilled disclosure
obligations to shareholders, partners, and stakeholders according to the
Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 and related documents. However, in 2024,
there were delays in disclosing information related to the transfer of VIMC’s
capital contribution from Vimadeco to VIMC Lines.

Unit: Billion dong

2024 Comparision (%)
Actual
Actual Actual202
Content 2023 Plan Actual 4/ 2024/
Plan2024 | ‘rctual
2023
Output (million 5.62 3.8 5.27 139% 94%
tons)
Total revenue 2.067,26 2.415 3.156,7 131% 153%
- Net revenue
from sales and 1.468,72 1.640,92 112%
services
- Financial 546,6 540,45 99%
income
- Other income 51,94 975,33 1.878%
Total expenses 1.709,98 1.480 1.803,2 122% 105%
Profit before tax 357,28 935 1.353,54 145% 379%

The main revenue of the Parent Company’s business activities primarily

comes from the maritime transportation sector, partly from building leasing,
financial activities (dividends/profit sharing from investee companies), and
several other activities.

Specifically:

- The Parent Company’s total revenue in 2024 was VND 3,156,702 million,
an increase of 31% compared to the plan and 53% compared to the same period
last year. Among this:



Net revenue in 2024 reached VND 1,640,919 million, up 12% compared
to the previous year, mainly due to the Company expanding into coal trading
services. The revenue structure is as follows:

- Transportation: VND 1,081,135 million, accounting for 65.9% of total
revenue, but decreased by 15.5% compared to the same period;

- Office and warehouse leasing: VND 142,620 million, accounting for
8.7%, increased by 13.7%;

- Coal trading: VND 401,034 million, contributing significantly to revenue
with an increase of 849.6%;

- Port operations and maritime services: VND 7,636 million, down 37.9%;

- Other services: VND 8,494 million, down 13.5%.

Financial revenue was VND 540,455 million, slightly down 1.1%
compared to the previous year, mainly due to a 22.4% decrease in dividends and
profit sharing (equivalent to VND 93,549 million) and a 14.8% decrease in
interest income from deposits and loans (equivalent to VND 13,867 million).
Additionally, VIMC recorded gains of VND 29,503 million from divestment
activities during the year.

- Other income in 2024 was VND 975,328 million, a significant increase of
1,778% (equivalent to VND 923,390 million) compared to the same period last
year, mainly from interest debt relief at VDB under Government Decree
78/2023/ND-CP dated November 7, 2023, amounting to VND 377,745 million,
and gains from revaluation differences of contributed capital assets totaling
VND 468,537 million.

- Total expenses in 2024 were VND 1,803,166 million, up 5% compared to
the same period last year. Specifically:

- Cost of goods sold was VND 1,448,034 million, up 5%. While net
revenue from sales and services increased by 12%, gross profit in 2024
increased by 20% compared to the previous year.

- Administrative expenses were VND 222,773 million, up 7% (equivalent
to VND 14,109 million) compared to last year, mainly due to increases in
outsourced service costs by 26% (VND 4,371 million), other cash expenses by
21% (VND 7,688 million), and labor costs by 8% (VND 10,684 million).
Meanwhile, depreciation expenses decreased by 8% (VND 1,054 million) due to
some fixed assets being fully depreciated. Additionally, there was a reversal of
provision amounting to VND 5,955 million in 2024 (compared to a provision
expense of VND 3,394 million last year).

- Financial expenses were VND 107,309 million, up 21.2% (equivalent to
VND 18,796 million) compared to last year. This increase was mainly due to
interest expenses rising by 10.4% (VND 2,204 million) because of penalty
interest on VDB loans (although the penalty interest was fully eliminated under
Decree 78/2023/ND-CP, effective November 7, 2023), and foreign exchange
losses increasing sharply by 251.8% (VND 53,210 million). Furthermore,
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provisions for financial investment losses decreased by 80.6% (VND 35,999
million) due to reassessment and re-provision of investments in VIMC Hau
Giang, Vinabridge, Transvina, SP-PSA, and VIMC Dinh Vu.

- Profit before tax in 2024 was VND 1,353,536 million, 3.8 times higher
than the previous year and 45% above the annual plan (mainly due to interest
debt relief of VND 377,745 million and revaluation gains of contributed capital
of VND 468,537 million). Among this, the General Office’s business activities
made a profit of VND 1,042,340 million, and VIMC Maritime Transport
Company earned VND 309,342 million.

According to the above business results, the Parent Company in 2024 has
completed and exceeded the assigned targets in both revenue and profit before
tax.

(2) Consolidated Business Results:

So sanh
Actu | Actu
INDICATOR UNIT | Plan 2024 | Actual | a] al
2024 | 2024/ | 2024/
Plan | Plan
2023 | 2024
Sea transport volume Thousan 19.398,
p d tons 15,887.4 3 93% | 122%
Thousan 145.270
Cargo throughput volume dtons | 123,748.4 9| 127% | 117%
Total revenue of the Billion 25.879,
corporation VND 18.599,0 6| 138% | 139%
. Billion
Consolidated revenue VND 13.4472 | 19.375 | 139% | 144%
Shippin Billion
pping VND 5.042,5 | 9.732.2 | 161% | 193%
. Billion
Port Operation VND 6.7413 | 7.937.7 | 122% | 118%
Logistics Billion
g VND 13973 | 1.543.4 | 100% | 110%
Internal revenue elimination (1.216,1
(583,6) )| 149% | 208%
Total pre-tax profit of the
corporation 3.609,3 | 4.901,5 | 190% | 136%
. Billion
Consolidated pre-tax profit VND 2.736,0 | 3.152,7 | 148% | 115%
Shiopin Billion
pping VND 813.6 | 823.6 | 262% | 101%
) Billion
Port Operation VND 1.556.1 | 1.9733 | 112% | 127%
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Billion
VND 42,7 74,71 110% | 175%

Logistics

* Sea Transport Volume: 19.4 million tons, equivalent to 93% of the same
period last year and 122% of the 2024 target.

- Volume decreased by 7% year-on-year due to the disposal of 13 out of 57
vessels in 2024, while only one vessel was added. In addition, 14 ships
underwent scheduled dry-docking and repairs.

- Despite this, the volume still exceeded the plan by 22% thanks to VIMC’s
strong directive measures encouraging subsidiaries to intensify chartering
activities. Volume from chartered-in vessels reached 2.2 million tons.

* Port Throughput Volume: 145 million tons, equivalent to 126% of the same
period last year and 117% of the 2024 target.

Container throughput reached 6.2 million TEUs, 127% of the same period and
119% of the plan.

The strong growth in the Port Segment outpaced the national average due to:

- Consistent implementation of synchronized measures to maintain and
expand markets and market share.

- Capitalizing on regional port congestion while actively boosting
marketing and customer care efforts, which led to the addition of multiple new
container services.

- Most ports recorded growth in throughput compared to both 2023 and the
2024 plan. Strategic cargo types such as containers, animal feed, steel, wood
chips, and wood pellets saw strong growth at Saigon, Da Nang, Quy Nhon ports,
and especially at joint-venture ports, which achieved 38% growth.

- Hai Phong Port’s container throughput remained flat year-on-year and
reached only 96% of the 2024 target due to a shift in shipping services to Nam
Dinh Vu Port after the latter completed its channel dredging to 8.5 meters. Hai
Phong Port has yet to receive dredging approval.

* Revenue: VND 18,208 billion, 130% year-on-year and 135% of the 2024
target.

Breakdown:

Consolidated revenue from the Sea Transport Segment exceeded the plan by
VND 4,155 billion, including:

- VIMC Shipping: +VND 83 billion (commercial revenue up VND 312
billion, revenue from restructuring up VND 104 billion, vessel disposal revenue
down VND 359 billion).

- Vosco: +VND 3,280 billion (commercial revenue up VND 2,355 billion;
other revenue up VND 500 billion; operational revenue up VND 317 billion;
vessel sales up VND 156 billion).

- Bisco: +VND 238 billion from operational revenue.

- From July 2024, VIMC Lines’ revenue of VND 479 billion was included
in the consolidated results.
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Consolidated revenue from the Port Segment exceeded the plan by VND 617
billion, with key contributors including:

- Hai Phong Port: +VND 472 billion (increase in operational revenue and a
one-time compensation of VND 202 billion for the relocation of Hoang Dieu
Port).

- Da Nang Port: +VND 90 billion.

- Saigon Port: +VND 85 billion (higher operational and financial revenue).
- Expanded non-stevedoring services including logistics and alternative
import/export methods significantly contributed to revenue and profit growth:
Da Nang Port (VND 230 billion), Nghe Tinh Port (VND 25 billion), Cam Ranh
Port (VND 49 billion). Hai Phong Port provided logistics services for 19% of
container throughput at Tan Vu Port, and Quy Nhon Port’s forwarding services
exceeded 1,000 TEU:.

Consolidated revenue from the Maritime Services Segment exceeded the plan by
VND 53 billion as all units met or surpassed revenue targets. An additional
VND 37 billion was recorded from the Cai Lan Port Logistics Service Project by
VIMC Logistics.

However, operations in this segment remain challenging:

- Core businesses continue to decline with no significant breakthroughs in
new service development.

- Warehouse and vehicle fleets, as well as logistics infrastructure, remain
underdeveloped in both capacity and service quality.

- Logistics revenue remains limited, heavily reliant on outsourced services.
- Customer base lacks diversity and is dependent on legacy clients. Low-
margin services and inefficiencies persist, especially in fleet operations and bad
debts.

- Limited capital restricts investments in capacity and service upgrades;
outsourcing continues to form a major part of service delivery.

- There is still no complete supply chain connection across North—Central—
South (transport—ports—services) due to the lack of specialized fleet development
and logistics infrastructure investment.

- Maritime service units are not well integrated within the VIMC
ecosystem, hindering the development of a competitive end-to-end logistics
service chain.

* Profit: VND 3,510 billion, 165% year-on-year and 128% of the 2024 target.
Breakdown:

« Consolidated profit of the Sea Transport Segment fell short of the plan by
VND 8.8 billion due to lower-than-expected vessel disposal profits at
VIMC Shipping (VND 103 billion realized vs. VND 462 billion planned).

« Consolidated profit of the Port Segment exceeded the plan by VND 357
billion:

o Hai Phong Port: +VND 260 billion
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o Quy Nhon Port: +VND 45 billion
o Saigon Port: +VND 23 billion
o Da Nang Port: +VND 10 billion
« Consolidated profit of the Maritime Services Segment exceeded the plan
by VND 20 billion, primarily due to VIMC Logistics. Vosa’s profit fell
short by VND 8 billion due to a VND 15 billion provision expense.
2. Monitoring Results on the Implementation of Resolution No. 229/NQ-
DHDCD dated April 20, 2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders
2.1 Implementation of 2023 Profit Distribution
In accordance with Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024, of
the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, on May 7, 2024, the Board
of Directors (BOD) of VIMC issued Resolution No. 272/NQ-HHVN on
implementing the AGM resolution of the Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC,
which stipulated the 2023 profit distribution plan as follows:
Total after-tax profit allocated: VND 140,250.98 million, of which:
- Development Investment Fund: VND 42,075.29 million
- Bonus and Welfare Fund: VND 50,673 million (including 55% to the
Bonus Fund: VND 27,870 million, and 45% to the Welfare Fund: VND
22,802.85 million. VIMC has allocated these funds to dependent units according
to the CEO's decision No. ...)
- Management Bonus Fund: VND 1,176.12 million
- Dividend payment: On July 16, 2024, the BOD issued Resolution No.
372/NQ-HHVN on the 2023 dividend payout. The dividend was declared at
0.39%, equivalent to VND 46,326.57 million, paid to shareholders on October
10, 2024 (State shareholders received VND 46,080.59 million; other
shareholders received VND 246 million).
2.2 Asset Liquidation Plan
Ship Sales:
According to the 2024 ship sale plan, VIMC proposed to sell 5 vessels: Green,
Glory, and Galaxy. The liquidation of Tay Son 1 and Tay Son 2 has been halted.
As of now, the plan has not been fully completed. In 2024, VIMC successfully
liquidated the Green vessel as planned, with revenue of VND 103 billion. The
Galaxy vessel (renamed Pai An) will be sold in 2025, and the Glory vessel has
not yet been liquidated.
Other Asset Liquidation:
10 cars no longer in use were liquidated, generating VND 1.08 billion in
revenue.
2.3 Investment Plan
According to the 2024 investment plan approved by the AGM, the total capital
is VND 436.7 billion, including VND 199.6 billion for ongoing projects and
VND 237.1 billion for new investments.
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In 2024, the parent company carried out investments totaling VND 151.4 billion
(35% of the plan). The main reason for the low execution rate was the regulatory
bottlenecks related to state-owned enterprise investments in maritime vessels,
which prevented implementation of the dry bulk ship investment project
(planned VND 177.8 billion).

All key projects of VIMC in 2024 were actively promoted, with the following
results:

(i) Construction of Container Terminals No. 3 and No. 4 at Lach Huyen,
Hai Phong International Gateway Port:

As of the reporting date, total disbursed capital reached VND 2,635 billion out
of a total investment of VND 6,946 billion (37.9%). This is a key project, and
VIMC/Hai Phong Port prioritized resources to expedite progress. The company
accelerated construction packages, equipment installation, and port
announcement procedures to ensure the project enters operation in Q1/2025 and
is fully completed within 2025.

(i1) Can Gio International Transshipment Port Project in Ho Chi Minh
City:

In 2024, VIMC coordinated with Saigon Port and relevant ministries to finalize
project documentation. Most regulatory procedures related to the investment
approval have been resolved. Specifically:

o On May 22, 2024, the Prime Minister approved Decision No. 442/QD-
TTg to revise the national seaport system planning for 2021-2030, with a
vision to 2050.

o As of December 6, 2024, the Ministry of Planning and Investment
submitted Appraisal Report No. 10120/BCBKHDT to the Prime Minister
for investment policy approval (2nd submission).

In 2025, VIMC and Saigon Port plan to complete pre-investment procedures and
be selected as project investors.

(ii1) Lien Chieu Port Development Project in Da Nang:

In 2024, VIMC strengthened cooperation with international partners to align
with the new investment orientation of Da Nang City People’s Committee.

2.4 Development of VIMC’s Medium- and Long-Term Strategies and Plans
Based on the 2021-2025 Restructuring Plan approved at the 2023 AGM (with
amendments approved in 2024), VIMC developed an action plan to implement
the approved contents. Additionally, in 2024, VIMC updated the Development
Strategy for 2021-2030 with a vision to 2035 and the 2021-2025 Business and
Investment Plan (according to Resolution No. 323/NQ-HHVN dated June 7,
2024).

To implement the plan, VIMC’s BOD established a Steering Committee and
strategy teams, working with international consultants to develop solutions and
implement the approved strategy.

2.5 Capital Investment Activities

13



According to the 2024 Capital Investment Plan approved by the AGM, VIMC
made the following capital investments:

« Completed investment and capital contribution to establish VIMC
Container Transport JSC (VIMC Lines): On May 10, 2024, VIMC
Lines received its business registration certificate. VIMC contributed
capital in cash and assets (container shells, investment value in VIMC
Dinh Vu, Vimadeco). VIMC Lines is currently stabilizing business
operations.

« Capital contribution to establish VIMC - Aries Maritime Services Joint
Venture Co., Ltd.: VIMC has submitted the investment proposal and is
awaiting issuance of the investment certificate and enterprise registration.

2.6 Capital Increase for Subsidiaries

VIMC completed capital increases for Vinaship JSC and Vietnam Sea
Transport and Chartering Company JSC. Procedures are underway to
increase capital at Hai Phong Port JSC, Can Tho Port JSC, etc.

2.7 Divestment

VIMC completed divestment from SESCO in February 2024. It plans to
continue divesting from Transvina, Vinabridge, and SHC.

2.8 Closure of Branches

VIMC developed a plan to shut down VIMC Container Transport Co., Ltd., a
VIMC branch, and submitted it for approval. On September 29, 2023, the BOD
issued Decision No. 378/QD-HHVN to close this branch. VIMC is now
finalizing procedures to settle taxes, cancel the branch’s tax code, and deregister
business operations.

2.9 Enterprise Dissolution

VIMC is continuing dissolution procedures for Vinalines Dong Do Ship Repair
Co., Ltd.

2.10 Bankruptcy Proceedings

Currently, two companies have been declared bankrupt by court decisions: Ca
Mau Company and Falcon Company. Two other companies have filed for
bankruptcy and their cases are being handled by the courts: Vinashinlines and
Maritime Materials Import-Export Company.

2.11 Loan Guarantees

a) Projects with loans guaranteed by VIMC at VDB (Vietnam Development
Bank) as of December 31, 2024:

Pon vi: Triéu d‘éng

No

Vessel Name

Net Value

Outstanding | Overdue . o . of
Principal Principal Outstanding Interest  Interest Rate (%) Credit Contract Collateral

Assets
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lg'litre;iel:;/l I::;:ils ¢ ‘z:,]:rl::ln Overdue ,if::; 15[(:::::;
Debt Date

Total 302.163 302.163 784.872 | 784.872 70.345
1 Inlaco SG 0 0 48.613 48.613 2.198
1 Thanh Thily 13.401 13.401 3,00 3,9 yealrzs T7/2015 851
2 Aquamarine 35.212 35.212 6,60 9,9 yealri T3/2017 1.347
II | Vitranchart 193.517 193.517 374.008 | 374.008 0
1 Vién Pong 3 0 0 15.692 15.692 3,0 3,9 yealrzs T6/2015 0
2 Vién Péng 5 6.860 6.860 28.453 28.453 6,6 9,9 yealrss T1/2020 0
3 VTC Dragon 99.372 99.372 132.165 | 132.165 6,6 9,9 yealrzs T11/2020 0
4 l\)/}"lfocenix 87.285 87.285 197.698 | 197.698 7,8 11,7 yealrzs T11/2021 0

0 9,0 13,5

III | Pong Pd 17.600 17.600 197.646 | 197.646 68.147
1 Dong Ba 17.600,00 17.600,0 65.706 65.706 7,8 11,7 yealrss T6/2021 0
2 Dong Phi 0 0,0 131.940 | 131.940 9 13,5 yealrss T11/2021 68.147
IV | OSTC 91.046 91.046 164.605 | 164.605 0
1 Hong Linh 81.025 81.025 145.792 | 145.792 11,7 13,5 yealr(s) 0
3 Ngoc Son 10.021 10.021 18.813 18.813 3,0 yealr(: 0

2.11. Guarantee Obligations and Intra-Group Lending

a) Guarantee Obligations:
In 2024, VIMC's total guarantee obligations decreased by VND 634 billion,

including:
A reduction of VND 122 billion due to debt repayment;

A reduction of VND 512 billion due to interest/penalty interest write-offs.
The guarantees provided by VIMC to its subsidiaries have significantly declined

compared to previous periods.
To manage guarantees:

VIMC strengthened the monitoring of cash flow and business operations

of guaranteed subsidiaries.

It requested periodic (monthly, quarterly, semi-annual) reports on
outstanding loans, guaranteed liabilities, and payments made on such

loans.
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« VIMC also instructed and supported enterprises in restructuring debts to

reduce VIMC’s guarantee obligations.
For instance:

o The loan guaranteed for Vitranschart at ACB Bank was successfully
restructured, and VIMC’s guarantee obligation was officially released.

o For the remaining shipbuilding-related guarantees at VDB (Vietnam
Development Bank), VIMC and the related enterprises are awaiting
VDB’s debt resolution mechanism to implement debt restructuring and
reduce VIMC’s guarantee obligations.

Specific case of Falcon (Gold Falcon and Diamond Falcon vessels):

The guarantee amounting to VND 334.46 billion for Vietnam Oil and Gas

Transportation JSC (Falcon) at VDB has been removed from VIMC’s

monitoring list. Falcon officially ceased operations on October 18, 2022,

following Bankruptcy Decision No. 1886/2022/QD-TBPS issued by the

People’s Court of Ho Chi Minh City.

However, Clause 5.6 of Article 5 in the decision states:

"If the Vietnam Development Bank (VDB) - SGD II requests the Vietnam

Maritime Corporation (VIMC) to fulfill its debt payment commitment on behalf

of Vietnam Oil and Gas Transportation JSC (as stated in Olfficial Letter No.

211/CV-TCKT dated March 10, 2006), such request will be considered and

resolved in a separate legal case in accordance with the provisions of civil

procedure law (if requested by the involved parties)."

b) Intra-Group Lending:

As of December 31, 2024, VIMC has outstanding loans to four subsidiaries:

1. Can Tho Port JSC — VND 33.58 billion

- Repayment due by end of 2027.

- Initial interest rate: 4.5%/year; 2024 rate: 3.4%/year.

- Future interest rates adjusted per agreement but not exceeding the average

deposit rate of Vietcombank, Vietinbank, BIDV, and Agribank.

- Secured by Can Tho Port’s assets and receivables from economic

contracts, valued at approx. VND 65.73 billion.

2. VIMC Hau Giang One Member Limited Liability Maritime Services Co.,
Ltd. — VND 6.5 billion

- Loan purpose: land use fee payment during land use extension at Song

Hau Industrial Park — Phase 1.

- Interest rate: 6%/year.

- Repayment due by December 31, 2024, or upon receipt of proceeds from

the transfer of a 21-hectare land plot.

- Unsecured loan.

- The company is still in the process of completing procedures for the land

transfer.

3. SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd. — USD 4,950,000
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- Shareholder loan agreement dated August 26, 2008, corresponding to

VIMC’s 15% stake in the company.

- Interest rate: SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate).

- Repayment upon request from PSA Vietnam Pte Ltd.

4. CICT (Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.) — USD
12,620,866.40

- Based on a debt purchase agreement signed between VIMC, SSA

Holdings International, and the original lenders.

- Part of the financial restructuring plan approved at the Extraordinary

General Meeting of Shareholders on July 22, 2024.

Debt Collection Monitoring:

« For Can Tho Port: regular submission of cash flow and repayment plans is
required; the company has been repaying principal on time as per
agreements.

o For SP-PSA: the loan is funded via PSA Vietnam’s capital; after debt
restructuring in 2021, SP-PSA will begin repayments in 2025.

o For VIMC Hau Giang: due to financial difficulties, VIMC (as the 100%
owner) approved loan extension; both parties continue to reconcile
principal and interest regularly.

Conclusion: In 2024, all intra-group loans were closely monitored by VIMC to
ensure timely and full recovery.

2.12. Appointment of Independent Auditor for FY2024

On May 30, 2024, VIMC's Board of Directors issued Official Letter No.
310/HHVN-TKTH, approving the appointment of UHY Auditing and
Consulting Co., Ltd. as the auditor for VIMC’s standalone and consolidated
financial statements for FY2024.

The appointment complies with legal regulations and aligns with the criteria
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, ensuring quality, efficiency,
and cost-effectiveness.

2.13. Approval of 2024 Salary and Remuneration Fund for the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board

o Total headcount as of December 31, 2024: 730 employees, down by 126

from the beginning of the year (856 employees). Breakdown:
o Management: 11
o Technical/Professional: 210
o Operational: 491
o Support staff: 18
« Employee reduction reasons:
o Sale of VIMC Green vessel (reducing 81 seafarers),
o Transfer of 48 employees from VLC Container Center to VIMC
Container Transport JSC,
o Labor restructuring, retirements, resignations.
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Salary Fund for 2024:

- Complied with Decree No.
28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH.

- Full and lawful allocation and disbursement of salaries and remuneration
to employees and managers as per internal regulations.

- On March 31, 2024, the VIMC capital representative submitted Report
No. 82/BC-NDPD to the Commission for the Management of State Capital
(CMSC), proposing:

Final settlement of 2023 salary and remuneration fund, 2024 or and Salary plans
- On April 15, 2024, CMSC approved the proposal via Document No.
689/UBQLV-TCCB.

- Following the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC (Parent
Company), the Board of Directors issued Resolution No. 244/NQ-HHVN dated
April 25, 2024, approving the final 2023 fund settlement and 2024 plan.

- VIMC’s 2024 salary fund covers its head office and four dependent units:
VLC, VMSC, VIMC Hai Phong, and the Project Management Board.

- On April 25, 2024, the General Director issued Official Letter No.
703/HHVN-TCNS, implementing Resolution No. 244/NQ-HHVN regarding the
salary fund for dependent units.

- On December 27, 2024, the VIMC capital representative submitted
Report No. 560/BC-NPD, presenting the 2025 business and investment plan.
Appendices 20 and 21 detailed labor and salary data for 2024, including for
managers, supervisory board, and staff, for CMSC’s approval.

53/2016/ND-CP and Circular No.

Key figure:
- Actual  average monthly salary in  2024: VND 25.19
million/person/month, reaching 109% of the planned level (planned average
salary: VND 23.11 million/person/month), based on actual business
performance.
Average Salary
(million
VND/person/month
No Unit Total Salary Fund (million VND) )
Cash Flow Cash Flow Year
Accounting | Plan 2024 | Accountin | Year 2023 2024
2023 g 2024
1 | VLC 137.719 156.749 17,60 23,04
2 | VMSC 4.218 4.767 11,34 13,70
3 | VIMC HP 1.800 2.305 12,50 14,78
4 | VIMC PMU 4.364 4.067 22,15 22,59
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VIMC head office
5 | including VIMC’s
Trade Union 54.589 61.739 32,04 36,49

Including the salary
fund difference of
VIMC’s Trade Union 3.190 3.291 15,64 15,24

Total Employee
Salary Fund 202.690 236.554 229.626 19,79 25,01

Total Salary Fund of
the Board of

II | Directors, Executive
Board, and
Supervisory Board 9.409 11.880 12.949 77,12 98,10

Board Members’

il Remuneration 185 216 235 15,42 19,62

Total salary and
IV | remuneration fund of
the Parent Company 212.284 248.650 242.811 -

Salary and Remuneration Fund of the Board of Directors (BOD) and
Supervisory Board (SB) in 2024:

The BOD consists of 04 full-time members and 01 part-time member (a
BOD member concurrently serving as the General Director). The SB consists of
03 full-time members.

- Total salary fund: VND 12,949 million; average salary: VND 98.1
million/person/month. Specifically:

o BOD salary fund: VND 10,197.2 million.

o SBsalary fund: VND 2,752.0 million.
- Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 235.44
million/year. Average remuneration: VND 19.62 million/person/month.
- Distribution has been carried out in accordance with VIMC's Regulations
on salary, remuneration, and bonuses for Managers and the Supervisory Board.
V. Financial Statements Audit Results
1. Comments on the Financial Statements
The Supervisory Board has audited VIMC's 2024 Financial Statements and
concurs with the findings, as follows:
- The standalone and consolidated financial statements for 2024 were
audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd., an audit firm approved at
the 2024 Annual General Meeting.

o For the 2024 Standalone Financial Statements:

The auditor made the following emphasis of matter:

“We would like to draw the reader’s attention to the following:

- In Note 12: The Corporation is recording its investment in Quy Nhon Port
JSC under the "Investment in subsidiaries" item (code 251) of the standalone
balance sheet at a value of VND 415.46 billion. This amount was transferred to
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Hop Thanh Investment and Minerals JSC (Hop Thanh Company) under a share
transfer agreement. As of December 31, 2024, the parties are still negotiating
and reviewing Hop Thanh’s legal interest in the investment period in Quy Nhon
Port JSC.
- In Note 35.3: In accordance with Decree No. 126/2017/ND-CP dated
November 16, 2017 of the Government on the equitization of state-owned
enterprises and one-member limited liability companies, at the time of
conversion to a joint-stock company, the Corporation must finalize tax
settlements and other obligations with the tax authority and request approval
from the representative agency of the State owner for the value of State capital,
proceeds from equitization, payments for redundant labor, and equitization
expenses. The Corporation has completed tax finalization. For the remaining
items, dossiers have been submitted and are awaiting approval. As such, data in
the accompanying standalone financial statements may change depending on
decisions from competent authorities.
The above matters do not affect our unqualified audit opinion.”
The Supervisory Board agrees with the auditor’s opinion that:
“In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC
as at December 31, 2024, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime, and relevant legal regulations.”
For the Consolidated Financial Statements:
The auditor expressed a qualified opinion:
1. At Hai Phong Port JSC — a subsidiary of the Corporation:
As of December 31, 2024, Hai Phong Port recorded assets at wharves 04, 05 and
the container yard at Chua Ve Port under "Tangible fixed assets" (code 221) on
the consolidated balance sheet, with an original cost of VND 279.7 billion and a
net book value of VND 142.14 billion. These assets were financed via "Long-
term borrowings and finance leases" (code 338) totaling VND 342.1 billion.
These are assets of the Hai Phong Port upgrading project (Phase II), invested by
the Ministry of Transport using Japanese ODA and counterpart funds from the
Government.
As required by the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port made provisional
payments to the State Budget related to this project, including:

« Depreciation (2014-2018): VND 44.8 billion

o Accrued loan interest: VND 149.3 billion
According to Resolution No. 71/NQ-CHP dated June 12, 2020, Hai Phong Port
stopped depreciating and accruing interest for these assets starting January 1,
2020, pending official management decisions.
On June 8, 2023, Hai Phong Port sent Document No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the
Ministry of Transport proposing continued management and operation of the
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aforementioned assets per the Prime Minister’s instruction in Document No.
2313/TTg-KTN dated December 25, 2013.
The Ministry of Transport responded with Document No. 10882/BGTVT-TC
dated September 28, 2023, proposing amendments in a draft decree to allow the
handover of these maritime infrastructure assets to Hai Phong Port for
management and operation (not lease).
On December 24, 2024, the Government Office issued Notification No. 569/TB-
VPCP stating that transitional provisions would not be included in the new
decree and that the Ministries of Transport and Finance must urgently propose a
solution.
Once officially approved, Hai Phong Port will update its financial statements
accordingly.
On December 27, 2024, following Resolution No. 168/NQ-CHP, Hai Phong
Port’s Board of Directors approved the continuation of depreciation for the said
assets starting from the proposal by the General Director in Report No.
4882/CHP-TCKT dated December 25, 2024.
As of the audit report issuance date, no official decision has been made
regarding management of the aforementioned assets. Therefore, the auditor
could not determine the impact on the consolidated financial statements for the
period from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2024.
Moreover, the Ministry of Finance requires a review of Hai Phong Port’s
equitization process, as the finalization of state capital valuation has not been
approved. Once official decisions are made regarding debt and repayment plans,
necessary adjustments will be made.
The auditor is unable to assess the impact of these matters on the
consolidated financial statements.
2. At Bien Dong Shipping One-Member Co., Ltd. — a subsidiary of the
Corporation (“Bien Dong”):
a. Discrepancy in loan balances with Shipbuilding Industry Finance Co., Ltd.
(VFC):
- According to VFC’s confirmation, loan and interest balances related to
the 1,730 TEU V22 container vessel project exceed Bien Dong’s records by:

o As of 01/01/2024: USD 28,667,314.77 (principal) and USD

59,208,393.37 (interest)
o As of 31/12/2024: USD 28,667,314.77 (principal) and USD
63,541,824.47 (interest)

- Bien Dong had transferred these debts to Bach Dang Shipbuilding Co.,
Ltd. as per a handover agreement dated August 5, 2015.
- The auditor could not obtain sufficient audit evidence for the opening
balances, transactions, and closing balances related to these debts.
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Therefore, the auditor cannot determine whether adjustments are necessary or
what the impact might be on the consolidated financial statements. (See Notes
20 and 24)

b. Recognition of differences in loan obligations assumed from Vietnam Debt
and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC):

-Before 2017, Bien Dong followed guidance in Official Letter No. 751/BTC-
TCDN dated September 17, 2015 from the Ministry of Finance: differences
between original loan values and amounts assumed from DATC were
recognized as increases in State capital.

-From 2018 to 2021: These differences were recognized in the profit and loss
statement in line with Vietnamese Accounting Standards.

From 2022 to 2023: Bien Dong applied multiple guidance documents
including Circular 46/2021/TT-BTC. Differences were again recognized as
increases in State capital.

Had Bien Dong consistently applied the accounting standards, then on the
consolidated balance sheet:

- As of 01/01/2024: "Asset revaluation reserve" (code 416) would decrease
by VND 2,166.24 billion; "Undistributed post-tax profit" (code 421) would
increase by the same amount.

- As of 31/12/2024: Same adjustments as above.

Additional Emphases from the Auditor in the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Pages 7-9):

- Note 1.5 — Group Structure: Quy Nhon Port JSC, a subsidiary, is
consolidated. On the parent company's books, the investment is recorded at
VND 415.46 billion — the amount paid to Hop Thanh per share transfer
agreements. As of 31/12/2024, legal ownership matters are still under
discussion.

- Note 2.1 — Basis of Consolidation: Several subsidiaries and associates
show material uncertainties about their going concern status, yet their financials
are prepared on a going concern basis.

- Note 11 — Financial Investments: Saigon Port JSC, a subsidiary,
contributed 600 meters of wharf (K6—-K10) to Ngoc Vien Dong Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. at a value of VND 300.001 billion, representing a 5.6%
ownership stake.

Saigon Port has not been able to collect the financial statements of Ngoc Vien
Dong Company from 2021 to the present. However, the capital contribution
assets, which consist of more than 600 meters of wharfs from K6 to K10 at the
Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Area, are still being managed, exploited, and operated
by the Company. Ngoc Vien Dong Company commits to bearing all arising
costs related to the management and use of the land associated with the State as
per the Memorandum of Agreement dated August 31, 2017, between Ngoc Vien
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Dong Company and Saigon Port. The General Director Board of the Corporation
assesses that this investment has not suffered any impairment in value.

- As presented in Note 17 — Construction in Progress, the “Construction
Investment Project of Cai Cui Port Phase I” was initiated in 2002 with an initial
estimated investment of VND 230.3 billion; the “Construction Investment
Project of Cai Cui Port Phase II” was started in 2009 with an initial estimated
investment of VND 829.8 billion. The investments in these two projects have
been prolonged beyond the initial schedule and are still incomplete. Can Tho
Port Joint Stock Company — a subsidiary of the Corporation — is continuing to
invest in order to complete and put the project components into business
operation.

- As stated in Note 19 — Taxes and Payables to the State:

Saigon Port has provisionally calculated the payable costs related to land
lease fees at the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Area up to the time the Company
signed an agreement with Ngoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment
Limited Liability Company (“Ngoc Vien Dong”) (the project investor of the
Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Area) according to the Investment Policy Decision
No. 6815/QD-UBND dated December 29, 2016, issued by the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. At the date of preparing the consolidated
financial statements, Saigon Port is still working with the tax authorities
regarding the basis for calculating the land lease fees payable.

Saigon Port has provisionally paid land lease fees and land taxes for the
period from 2015 to 2020 at Tan Thuan Port 1, Tan Thuan Port 2 (Tan Thuan
Dong) following the notification from the Tax Department of District 7 — Ho
Chi Minh City. As of the date of preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the Company continues to work with the District 7 Tax Department and relevant
authorities regarding the basis for these land lease payments.

- As presented in Notes 22(3) and 22(4) — Other Payables and Accruals:
Saigon Port has received advance capital from the State Budget and Ngoc Vien
Dong Urban Development Investment Limited Liability Company to invest in
the construction project of Saigon — Hiep Phuoc Port, managed by Saigon —
Hiep Phuoc Port Joint Stock Company — a subsidiary of Saigon Port. This
project is still under construction.

- In Notes 22(6) — Other Payables and Accruals and 24(1) — Loans and
Financial Leases, the Hau Giang Shipbuilding Plant Project of Hau Giang
Maritime Service One Member Limited Liability Company has been
permanently suspended according to the Prime Minister’s official letter No.
403/TTg-KTN dated March 29, 2012. Regarding the capital invested in this
project, the Company is recognizing restructuring interest rates pursuant to
Government Resolution 107/NQ-CP dated October 10, 2017. However, the
lenders/financiers including Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Finance Company
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Limited (VFC) and Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC) have not
yet restructured the debt as prescribed in the Resolution.
- As stated in Notes 24(2) — Loans and Financial Leases and Note 7 —
Receivables from Loans: As of December 31, 2024, the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements reflect a receivable from SP-PSA International
Port Limited Liability Company ("SP-PSA") with a principal amount of USD
4,950,000 (at the parent company — Corporation) and USD 11,880,000 (at
Saigon Port), and also reflect a loan to PSA Vietnam Pte., Ltd (“PSA Vietnam”)
with the same amount under the shareholder loan agreement dated August 26,
2008, corresponding to a 15% ownership ratio of the Corporation and 36% of
Saigon Port Joint Stock Company in SP-PSA International Port LLC. At the
time of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation and
Saigon Port are still negotiating with the parties to finalize a contract appendix
and the basis for calculating interest receivables and payables accordingly.
- As noted in Note 37.3 — Other Information, under the provisions of
Decree No. 126/2017/ND-CP dated November 16, 2017, on the conversion of
state-owned enterprises and one-member limited liability companies wholly
owned by the State into joint-stock companies, at the official time of conversion,
the Corporation must complete tax finalization, payables to the State Budget
with the tax authorities, and submit for approval the valuation of the State
capital at the official conversion time, finalize proceeds from equitization, pay
severance benefits for redundant employees, and equitization expenses. The
Corporation has completed tax finalization. For the remaining contents, the
Corporation has completed dossiers and is submitting them to competent
authorities for approval. Therefore, the figures in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements may change according to the opinions of the
relevant authorities.
Except for the issues mentioned above, the Supervisory Board agrees with the
opinion of the UHY audit firm regarding the Corporation's consolidated
financial statements for 2024: “Based on our audit results, except for the effect
described in the section ‘Basis for Qualified Audit Opinion,” the consolidated
financial statements fairly and reasonably present, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Vietnam Maritime Corporation as of
December 31, 2024, as well as the consolidated business results and cash flows
for the financial year ended December 31, 2024, in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime, and relevant
legal regulations for the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements.”

2. Evaluation of some financial indicators

2.1. At the Parent Company level
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Based on the data from the 2024 audited separate financial statements of
the Corporation, the Supervisory Board has prepared the following summary
table:

*Assets and Equity situation as of December 31, 2024:

Unit: Million dong

1/1/2024 31/12/2024

Indicator Value Ratio (%) Value Ratio

(%)
Total assets 13.777.616 100 | 14.412.914 100
Current assets 2.511.356 18,2 2.222.671 15,4
Non-current assets 11.266.260 81,8 12.190.243 84,6
Total liabilities and equity 13.777.616 100 | 14.412.914 100
Liabilities 1.631.485 11,8 1.011.422 7,0
Current liabilities 1.469.927 10,7 832.935 5,8
Non-current liabilities 161.558 1,2 178.487 1,2
Owner’s equity 12.146.131 88,2 | 13.401.492 93,0
Contributed capital 12.005.880 87,1 | 12.005.880 83,3
Development investment fund 0,0 42.075 0,3
i?ﬂ;f;b“ted retained |45 257 10| 1.353.537 9.4

Assessment of the appropriateness of the asset and capital structure:

- Total assets as of December 31, 2024, amounted to VND 14,412,915
million, an increase of VND 635,298 million, equivalent to a 4.6% increase
compared to the beginning of the year.

Current assets totaled VND 2,222,671 million, accounting for 15.4% of
total assets, a decrease of VND 288,685 million compared to the beginning of the
year.

Non-current assets totaled VND 12,190,243 million, accounting for 84.6% of
total assets, an increase of VND 923,983 million compared to the beginning of the
year.

- The main asset structure is as follows:

Long-term financial investments amounted to VND 10,671,792 million,
representing 74.0% of total assets. This is the value of VIMC’s equity investments
in enterprises, revalued at the time of determining the enterprise value for the
parent company’s equitization.

Fixed assets amounted to VND 944,114 million, accounting for 6.6% of
total assets. The largest asset in this category is the parent company’s fleet, with
an original cost of VND 5,491,924 million and a net book value of VND
4,888,581 million as of December 31, 2024.
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Held-to-maturity investments were VND 1,324,907 million, accounting for
9.2% of total assets.

Cash and cash equivalents totaled VND 322,931 million, representing 2.2%
of total assets.
- Capital structure as of December 31, 2024, included:

Liabilities of VND 1,011,422 million, accounting for 7% of total capital;

Owner’s equity of VND 13,401,492 million, accounting for 93% of total
capital (with contributed capital of VND 12,005,880 million and undistributed
post-tax profit of VND 1,353,537 million). Since 2021, VIMC has been profitable
and has fully offset the losses incurred in 2020. As of December 31, 2024,
owner’s equity exceeds the owner’s invested capital.

Some basic financial indicators for 2024

Indicator Unit 01/01/2024 31/12/2024
Liquidity Ratios:

OYgrall solvency (Total payment Lan 844 1425
ability)

Cq@ent ratio (Current payment Lan 171 2,67
ability)

lef:k ratio (Quick payment Lan 171 2.67
ability)

Debt Ratios:

Total liabilities / Total assets % 11,8 7,0
Total liabilities / Owner’s equity % 13,4 7,5
Profitability Ratios: 2023 2024
Net profit after tax / Net revenue % 243 82,5
Net profit after tax / Total assets o

(ROA) Yo 2,6 9,4
Net profit after tax / Owner’s o

equity (ROE) % 2,9 10,1

The liquidity ratios of VIMC as of December 31, 2024, all recorded significant

growth compared to the beginning of the year:

o The overall solvency increased sharply from 8.44 times to 14.25 times,
indicating that VIMC has a strong ability to ensure payment of both short-

term and long-term debts.

o The current ratio and quick ratio both increased from 1.71 times to 2.67
times, demonstrating an improved capacity to pay off short-term

liabilities.
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The debt ratios of VIMC decreased compared to the beginning of the year,
reflecting the company’s proactive repayment of debts, which led to a decline in
total liabilities and simultaneously helped increase owner’s equity.
In the past three years, VIMC has focused on repaying principal and interest to
the Vietnam Development Bank (VDB), and as of December 31, 2024, the
company has fully completed the repayment of principal debt.
Profitability ratios of VIMC in 2024 increased significantly compared to the
previous year. This increase was mainly due to more efficient business
operations, resulting in higher profits.
Regarding receivables management:
a. Situation of accounts receivable:

Unit: Million dong

At 01/01/2024 At 31/12/2024
Indicator Value Ratio (%) Value ltf,l/t 1)0
(1]
I. Short-term receivables 273.883 59,3 365.712 40,8
Short-term receivables from
customers 127.491 27,6 222972 249
Short-term advances to suppliers 61.406 13,3 73.091 8,2
Short-term loans receivable 13.216 2.9 13.216 1,5
Other short-term receivables 363.047 78,7 339.784 37,9
PI’OXI.ISlOIl for doubtful short-term (292.706) 63,4 (284.780) 318
receivables
Missing assets pending handling 1.429 0,3 1.429 0,2
I1. Long-term receivables 187.600 40,7 531.071 59,2
Long-term loans receivable
153331 33,2 471.101 52,5
Other long-term receivables
34,305 7,4 59.970 6,7
Provision for doubtful long-term 0.0 0
receivables (36) ’
Total receivables (=1 + II) 461.483 896.783

The total receivables as of December 31, 2024, amounted to VND

896,783 million, an increase of VND 435,300 million, equivalent to a 94.3%
rise compared to the beginning of the year. Among these, short-term receivables
were VND 365,712 million, up 33.5% (equivalent to VND 91,829 million)
compared to the start of the year, mainly due to an increase in other receivables.
Long-term receivables amounted to VND 531,071 million, increasing by
183.1% from the beginning of the year, due to an increase in long-term loan
receivables.
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The total bad debts as of December 31, 2024, of VIMC was VND 297,407
million. VIMC has provisioned VND 284,780 million for doubtful receivables
in accordance with Circular No. 48/2019/TT-BTC dated August 8, 2019, issued
by the Ministry of Finance. The provision mainly covers receivables from
Vinalines Nha Trang (VND 104,165 million), Bach Dang Shipbuilding
Company (VND 49,239 million), Vosco (VND 70,704 million), and Denmar
Company (VND 16,658 million).

b. Situation of payables:
Unit: Million dong

Tai 01/01/2024 Tai 31/12/2024
Unit: Ratio .
Million dong Indicator Value (%) Value Ratio (%)
I. Short-term payables 1.469.926 90,1 832.935 82,4
Short-term payables to suppliers 120.658 7,4 77.415 7,7
Short-term advances from customers 2.937 0,2 22.165 2,2
Taxes and amounts payable to the 298 0.1 993 0.1
State
Payables to employees 64.790 4,0 79.638 7,9
Short-term accrued expenses 23.767 1,5 5.845 0,6
Short-term unearned revenue 4.204 0,3 3.236 0,3
S'ho.rt.-t.erm loans and financial lease 240.671 14,8 i 0.0
liabilities
Other short-term payables 1.011.976 62,0 620.649 61,4
Bonus and welfare funds 25 0,0 23.064 2
I1. Long-term payables 161558 9,9 178.487 17,6
Other long-term payables 40.679 2,5 52.010 5,1
Ifon.g.-t.erm loans and financial lease 120.879 7.4 126.477 12,5
liabilities
Total payables (I + II) 1.631.484 100,0 1.011.423 100,0

The total liabilities as of December 31, 2024, amounted to VND
1,011,423 million, a decrease of VND 620,061 million, equivalent to a 38%
reduction compared to the beginning of the year. Among them:

Short-term liabilities: VND 832,935 million, accounting for 82.4% of
total liabilities, decreased by VND 636,991 million compared to the beginning
of the year. Within the short-term liabilities structure: payables to suppliers
amounted to VND 77,415 million, payables to employees amounted to VND
79,638 million, and other short-term payables were VND 620,649 million
(mainly interest payable to VDB of VND 492,078 million), ...

Long-term liabilities: VND 178,487 million. Among these, long-term
loans and borrowings were VND 126,477 million (loan from PSA Vietnam).
2.2. Consolidate
Unit: Million dong
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1/1/2024 31/12/2024
Indicator Value |Ratio(%)| Value | Ratio (%)
Total Assets 27.537.463 100 | 30.424.971 100
Short-term Assets 11.965.376 43,5 | 13.250.276 43,6
Long-term Assets 15.572.087 524 17.174.694 56,4
Total — Liabilities and | . 557 o3 100 | 30.424.971 100
Equity
Liabilities 12.168.959 442 | 13.008.273 42,8
Short-term Liabilities 7.417.142 30,9 8.099.991 26,6
Long-term Liabilities 4.751.817 16,8 4.908.282 16,1
Owner’s Equity 15.368.504 52,3 | 17.416.698 57,2
Contributed Capital of the | 5 5 ¢cq 44.6| 12.005.880 39.5
Owner
Undistributed After-tax (239.781) 596.829 2.0
Profit

- VIMC’s consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2024, amounted to
VND 30,424,971 million, an increase of VND 2,887,508 million compared to
the beginning of the year. The main asset components are as follows:

Fixed assets totaled VND 9,100,520 million, accounting for 29.9% of
total assets—the largest component—including high-value items such as the
shipping fleet, port systems, warehouses, equipment, and vehicles.

Short-term financial investments were VND 5,138,580 million, making
up 16.9% of total assets. These are time deposits with terms from 6 months to
under 12 months.

- Capital sources as of December 31, 2024, increased by VND 2,887,508
million compared to the beginning of the year, including:

Liabilities of VND 13,008,273 million, accounting for 42.8% of total
capital.

Owner’s equity of VND 17,416,698 million, representing 57.2% of total
capital, including VND 12,005,880 million in contributed capital and VND
596,829 million in undistributed after-tax profit.

Key financial indicators and operating efficiency:

Indicator Unit | 01/01/2024 31/12/2024
1. Liquidity Ratios:
+ Current ratio Lan 1,6 1,6
+ Quick ratio Lan 1,5 1,6
2. Quick ratio
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+ Debt to Total Assets % 442 42.8
+ Debt to Equity % 79,2 74,7
3. Debt to Equityloi

- Net Profit after Tax / Net Revenue % 13,3 15,5
- Net Profit after Tax / Owner’s Equit % 11,1 18,1
- Net Profit after Tax / Total Asset % 6,2 8,6

VI. Implementation Status of Recommendations from Inspections,
Examinations, and Audits by Competent State Authorities
1. Implementation of the State Audit Office of Vietnam (SAV)
Recommendations
Implementation status of the SAV’s recommendations on the audit of
financial statements and activities related to the management and use of state
capital and assets in 2021:
In 2023, VIMC continued to send official letters No. 4994/HHVN-TCKT
dated March 31, 2023, and No. 2134/HHVN-TCKT dated December 28, 2023,
to the SAV - Sector VI to report on the implementation of the recommendations
stated in Notification No. 759/TB-KTNN dated December 14, 2022, and other
audit result notifications of the SAV at 11 audited units regarding the audit of
financial statements and activities related to the management and use of state
capital and assets in 2021 to date. Specifically:
1.1. Regarding the recommendation to adjust accounting data and 2021 financial
statements:
VIMC and its subsidiaries have completed the adjustments in accounting books
and re-prepared the 2021 financial statements.
1.2. Regarding the financial handling recommendation requiring VND 56,194
million to be paid to the State Budget:
VIMC and its subsidiaries have completed the required payments.
1.3. Regarding recommendations for strengthening financial and accounting
management, including:
« Use of cash and cash equivalents;
« Receivables management;
« Payables management;
+ Fixed assets management and utilization;
« Salary and salary-related deductions management;
« Revenue and expenditure management;
« Fulfillment of obligations to the State Budget;
o Procurement management of materials, goods, assets, and outsourced
services;
« Inventory management;
« Financial investment management.
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VIMC has issued official documents to urge compliance, has regularly
supervised, and requested the relevant companies to report their implementation
results.

1.4. Regarding the Issues Identified in the Audit Report:

The Corporation has implemented corrective actions as per the Meeting
Minutes dated March 27, 2023, regarding the review and implementation of the
conclusions stated in Notice No. 759/TB-KTNN dated December 14, 2022, and
Notice No. 1133/TB-KTNN dated December 27, 2022, issued by the State Audit
Office of Vietnam (SAV).

As of the current reporting period, the Corporation has basically
implemented the recommendations of the SAV.

2. Implementation of Recommendations by the Commission for the
Management of State Capital at Enterprises (CMSC)

VIMC’s Board of Supervisors (BOS):

In response to Official Letter No. 2128/UBQLV-CNHT dated September
19, 2024 regarding comments on the H1/2024 Financial Supervision Report of
VIMC, the BOS issued Official Letter No. 1579/BC-HHVN.BKS dated
September 30, 2024.

Following Official Letter No. 953/UBQLV-CNHT dated May 17, 2024
regarding comments on the 2023 Financial Supervision Report, the BOS issued
Official Letter No. 852/HHVN-BKS dated May 24, 2024.

State Capital Representative at VIMC:

In implementation of Official Letter No. 2881/UBQLV-CNHT dated
December 12, 2024, regarding the implementation of Conclusion No.
419/KLTTCP dated November 13, 2024 by the Government Inspectorate,
VIMC held a review meeting as per Plan No. 553/KH-HHVN dated December
23, 2024, and issued meeting minutes on December 26, 2024.

In response to Official Letter No. 2714/UBQLV-CNHT dated November
20, 2024, on financial supervision results for 2023, VIMC, as well as six other
relevant enterprises (including: the parent company, Saigon Port JSC, Hai Phong
Port JSC, Da Nang Port JSC, Vietnam Maritime Agency JSC, SP-PSA, SSIT,
and CMIT), have implemented the recommendations stated in the letter and are
in the process of finalizing the report to the State Capital Owner on the
implementation status.

3. Implementation of Recommendations from Other Competent Government
Authorities (Inspection, Audit, Supervision)

VIMC has directed its departments and subsidiaries to implement the
recommendations made by various government inspection, audit, and
supervisory bodies. Specifically:

Hanoi Tax Department:

Based on Decision No. 42947/QD-CTHN-TTKT1 dated July 26, 2024,
VIMC underwent a tax audit.
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Following the Tax Audit Minutes dated December 31, 2024, the final
conclusion was issued under Conclusion No. 69902/KL-CTHN-TTKT1, and the
penalty decision was issued as Decision No. 69903/QD-CTHN-TTKTI-
XPVPHC on the same day.

The total amount payable to the State Budget was VND 4,078,180,313,
consisting of:

Ineligible land rental reduction for 2021: VND 1,295,136,216

Administrative penalty for incorrect VAT declaration: VND 510,618,444

Underpaid VAT: VND 2,059,289,219

Late payment interest as of December 30, 2024: VND 213,136,434

VIMC has fully settled the above-mentioned amount by January 10, 2025,
and implemented measures to recover amounts from individuals responsible for
issuing invalid invoices.

Ministry of Finance (MoF):

In accordance with Conclusion No. 1134/KL-TTr dated December 6,
2019 by the Ministry of Finance Inspectorate regarding compliance with
financial, accounting, and tax regulations, VIMC previously reported progress
via:

Official Letter No. 406)HHVN-TCKT dated February 28, 2020

Official Letter No. 1772/HHVN-TCKT dated October 31, 2023

Report No. 404/BC-NDD dated August 15, 2024 on H1/2024 financial
supervision

As of now:

09 out of 12 recommendations have been completed, and

03 out of 12 are in progress, specifically:

1. Requesting Vietnam Shipping JSC (Vosco) to finalize settlement with
Bach Dang Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. and Nam Trieu Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
regarding the construction of Lucky Star, Blue Star, and Vosco Sunrise.

ii. Addressing long-standing debts related to the Vinashin Atlantic vessel
and the Green Sea vessel’s repair costs.

ii1. Resolving issues at Hai Phong and Saigon Ports concerning land use
plans and proper land rental calculation in accordance with the Law on Tax
Administration (temporary booking of VND 40.2 billion at Saigon Port and
VND 19.7 billion at Hai Phong Port remains unresolved).

Government Inspectorate:

Per Official Letter No. 2881/UBQLV-CNHT dated December 12, 2024,
regarding Conclusion No. 419/KL-TTCP on the restructuring of SOEs and land
repurposing from business use to residential development during 2011-2021 at
the Ministry of Transport:

VIMC has implemented 4/5 items, and

1/5 is ongoing: finalization of equitization at Hai Phong Port LLC and
Saigon Port LLC.
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1/2 additional recommendations is ongoing: instructing Saigon Port to
collect VND 4,515 million in late payment penalties from Trung Thuy Lancaster
Co., Ltd. related to project transfer at 430 Nguyen Tat Thanh, District 4, HCMC.

Following Official Letter No. 1420/TTr-P5 dated November 29, 2023,
from the Ministry of Transport on the implementation of Conclusion No.
1566/KL-TTCP dated September 17, 2018, concerning the equitization of Quy
Nhon Port:

VIMC has completed 5/6 recommendations, and

1 recommendation is still being implemented.

The Board of Supervisors (BOS) will continue monitoring and urging the
completion of pending recommendations and will report the status to
shareholders at the upcoming Annual General Meeting.

VII. Assessment of Coordination among the Board of Directors, the Chief
Executive Officer, and the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board maintained close coordination with the Board of
Directors, the CEO, and the Executive Management Team in performing its
assigned functions and duties. The Board of Directors and the CEO created
favorable conditions for the Supervisory Board to carry out its responsibilities
effectively. The Supervisory Board was provided with complete and timely
information and documents related to the Corporation’s operations, and was
invited to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors as well as other relevant
meetings.

Most of the Supervisory Board’s timely comments and recommendations
regarding the operations of the Board of Directors, the CEO, and the Executive
Management Team were acknowledged and reflected promptly during the
formulation and implementation of resolutions and decisions.

The effective coordination among the Board of Directors, the CEO, and
the Supervisory Board contributed significantly to improving the efficiency of
capital and asset utilization, as well as enhancing the effectiveness of inspection,
supervision, and risk management within the Corporation.

VIII. Report on Transactions Related to Members of the Board of
Directors, the CEO, and Other Executives

In 2024, the Corporation did not enter into any contracts or transactions
involving members of the Board of Directors, the CEO, or other key executives.
PART II. PROPOSALS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD

To successfully accomplish the tasks set for 2025 and to enhance the
operational efficiency of the Corporation, the Supervisory Board respectfully
submits the following proposals and recommendations:

Finalization of Equitization
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It is respectfully recommended that the Ministry of Finance expedite the
approval of the financial settlement at the official time of conversion of the
Parent Company — the Corporation — into a joint stock company, to serve as the
basis for the handover between the state-owned enterprise and the joint stock
company.

Strengthening Financial Management and Investment Efficiency

The Board of Directors of VIMC is requested to continue implementing
strict financial control measures and improving business performance,
particularly in affiliated companies showing signs of financial insecurity.

Proactively divest from enterprises in accordance with the divestment
plan, at appropriate times to maximize efficiency.

Several VIMC subsidiaries have large outstanding receivables and value-
added tax (VAT) credit balances, resulting in capital being tied up and reduced
capital utilization efficiency. It is recommended that the Board of Directors
direct and implement effective debt recovery measures and take steps to reduce
excessive VAT credit balances.

Implementation of Audit and Inspection Recommendations

The Board of Directors and Executive Management of VIMC are
requested to continue implementing and reporting on the progress of compliance
with recommendations made by the State Audit Office, the Government
Inspectorate, the Ministry of Finance Inspectorate, and other competent state
inspection agencies.

This is the 2024 supervisory report by the Supervisory Board, respectfully
submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for review and
approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY
- As above; BOARD

- VIMC BOD; HEAD OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
- Members of the Supervisory Board

implementation);

- Save: Office of the BOS, Office.
Luong Dinh Minh
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION - JSC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
No: /TTr-DPHDCD Ha Noi, .../.../2025
DRAFT

SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT
ON THE PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES BY THE SUPERVISOR
AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2024, ORIENTATION FOR
ACTIVITIES IN 2025

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam National Shipping Lines — JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to:

« Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

« Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019; Law
No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

e Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of several articles of the Law
on Securities;

o Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the Ministry
of Finance guiding several regulations on corporate governance applicable
to public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

o The Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC;

o The internal corporate governance regulations;

« The operating regulations of the Supervisory Board of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — JSC;

o Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024 of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC;

The Supervisory Board (“SB”) of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC
hereby reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the activities of the
Supervisory Board in 2024 and directions for activities in 2025, as follows:

1. Activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024
1.1. Composition of the Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board for the 2020-2025 term consists of 03 members:
1. Mr. Luong Dinh Minh — Head of the Supervisory Board
2. Mr. Pham Cao Nhue — Member of the Supervisory Board



3. Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha - Member of the Supervisory Board
Since the beginning of the term, there have been no personnel changes in
the Supervisory Board.

1.2. Performance of duties in 2024
As assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Supervisory Board has
carried out monitoring of the activities of the Board of Directors (BOD), the
Executive Board, and reviewed the production and business activities of VIMC.
During its inspections and supervision, the Supervisory Board maintained
honesty, prudence, professional ethics, and did not obstruct business operations
of VIMC or its subsidiaries.

o In 2024, the Supervisory Board held 09 meetings, with at least one meeting
per quarter as required by the Company Charter. The SB also regularly
exchanged and assessed issues related to the management and operations of
VIMC to support its control responsibilities.

o Monitored the implementation of VIMC’s 2024 business and service plan
targets through reports and regular monthly, quarterly, and annual meetings with
the Executive Board.

o Supervised compliance with the 2024 General Meeting’s Resolutions, the
VIMC Charter, State laws, internal regulations, resolutions, and decisions of the
BOD and Executive Board.

o Prepared reports as requested by the major shareholder — the State Capital
Management Committee (CMSC), such as opinions on periodic reports from the
State capital representative at VIMC, comments on financial supervision reports
for 2023 and the first half of 2024.

o Supervised financial indicators; preservation and development of capital;
investment projects and their efficiency; implementation of financial regimes,
profit distribution, and use of funds.

o Supervised the implementation of directives/recommendations from the
Owner (CMSC), and from inspection, audit, tax authorities, and other competent
agencies, including conclusions from the Ministry of Finance Inspectorate and
the Government Inspectorate.

o Oversaw implementation progress of the VIMC Restructuring Scheme for
2021-2025, Development Strategy to 2030 with vision to 2035, and the 5-year
Production & Investment Plan 2021-2025, ensuring compliance with approved
timelines.

« Based on supervision and inspection, the SB provided recommendations to the
BOD and Executive Board to enhance control, minimize risks, ensure legal and
internal compliance, and improve operational effectiveness for VIMC and
certain subsidiaries (as per the 2024 AGM-approved plan).

« Contributed to revising, supplementing, and reviewing the internal governance
documentation system of VIMC.



« Through reviewing proposals from the Executive Board, BOD resolutions, and
internal regulations, and attending BOD meetings and working sessions between
the Executive Board and subsidiaries, the SB offered opinions to support BOD
and management decision-making.

« Additionally, the SB appraised the 2023 audited financial statements and the
unaudited financial statements for the first half of 2024; monitored asset
inventory in compliance with the Accounting Law (noting that the Inventory
Committee has yet to complete the reporting and processing of results as of 0:00
January 1, 2024); appraised the salary fund plans for management and staff at
the Parent Company; inspected business performance, cost and debt
management in certain dependent units.

In 2024, the SB participated in 12 audit-supervision missions: 5 led by the
SB and 7 with SB members participating in Executive Board-led missions. SB-
led teams included collaboration with professional departments from VIMC’s
Office, improving both the quality and depth of audits. Observations and
recommendations helped audited units make timely business decisions.
Specifically:

(1) 5 missions led by the SB (approved by the 2024 AGM): VIMADECO,
VIMC Logistics JSC, Cam Ranh Port JSC, Da Nang Port JSC, Bien Dong
Shipping LLC, and indirect supervision of Vietnam Container Operation Co.,
Ltd.

(2) 7 joint missions with the Executive Board per Official Letter No.
304/HHVN-KTNB dated March 11, 2024, at: Saigon Port, Hai Phong Port, Can
Tho Port, Nam Can Port, Hau Giang Maritime Services, CPI, and VOSA.

The Supervisory Board has strictly followed its 2024 work plan approved by
the General Meeting, in accordance with the resolutions and actual conditions,
and exercised its rights and responsibilities under the Enterprise Law and VIMC
Charter. It maintained strong coordination with the BOD, CEO, and Executive
Board, fulfilling all required supervision reports. SB members acted with
independence, prudence, and commitment to the interests of shareholders and
VIMC.

1.3. Evaluation of SB members' performance
. All members performed with high responsibility, demonstrated
professional capacity, conducted independent and objective inspections, and
reported on the truthfulness and compliance of financial statements and business
activities.
. Regularly exchanged and provided candid feedback to the BOD and
Executive Board when detecting errors or risks.
. Complied with all legal regulations, the Charter, and SB operating
regulations.



. Carried out all assigned tasks seriously, objectively, and effectively
through teamwork and independent work.
. Actively contributed valuable input to the BOD/Executive Board,
successfully completing 2024 assignments.
1.4. Salaries, remuneration, and operating expenses of the SB in 2024
Salaries and remuneration for SB members were paid in accordance with
company policy and in compliance with the Company Charter and Enterprise
Law No. 59/2020/QH14. In 2024, all three SB members worked full-time, thus
no remuneration was incurred. Total salary paid to SB members was VND 2,854
million.
SB operating expenses were in accordance with the internal spending
regulations of VIMC.
2. ORIENTATIONS FOR ACTIVITIES IN 2025

In accordance with the rights and responsibilities of the Supervisory Board as
stipulated in the Law on Enterprises, the Charter of VIMC, and the tasks
assigned by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Supervisory
Board has developed a detailed activity plan for 2025 to be submitted to the
General Meeting for approval. The plan focuses on the following key
supervisory and inspection activities:
. Prepare a report evaluating the 2020-2025 term and set out directions for
the 2025-2030 term.
. Monitor the implementation of 2025 business and production targets
assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
. Supervise the phased implementation of VIMC’s Restructuring Plan for
the 2021-2025 period; the Development Strategy for 2021-2030 with a vision to
2035; and the 5-year Business and Investment Plan for 2021-2025, ensuring
adherence to approved timelines and objectives.

. Examine and evaluate VIMC’s quarterly, semi-annual, and annual
financial statements for 2025.
. Monitor financial indicators; the preservation and development of capital;

the execution and efficiency of investment projects; and the implementation of
financial policies, profit distribution, and use of funds.

. Inspect compliance with State laws, regimes, and policies. Review the
progress in developing internal corporate regulations, policies, and procedures.
. Supervise the legality, rationality, transparency, and prudence of the

Board of Directors and the CEO in exercising ownership rights and managing
business operations.

. Work with capital representatives at companies where VIMC holds stakes
and with the Supervisory Boards of those units to assess business performance,
internal control systems, and supervision practices.



. Monitor compliance with the Charter of VIMC and adherence to State
legal regulations, as well as the directives of the Board of Directors and CEO.

. Evaluate the performance of the Corporation’s internal control system.
Propose recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the internal control
framework.

. Monitor the performance of the Internal Audit Department to strengthen
internal oversight at the Company.
. Participate in inspection and supervision teams of the Supervisory Board.

According to the 2025 plan, inspections will focus on VIMC’s capital
representatives at the following companies: Vietnam Shipping Joint Stock
Company; Vinaship Joint Stock Company; Hai Phong Port Joint Stock
Company; Nghe Tinh Port Joint Stock Company; Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock
Company; and VIMC Lines.

. Collaborate with inspection and supervision teams of the Executive Board
and Internal Audit Department to review business operations at VIMC’s
member companies.

. Coordinate with relevant authorities and inspection teams to supervise
business management at the Corporation and follow up on the implementation
of conclusions and recommendations from audits, inspections, and other
regulatory bodies.

. Carry out other tasks of the Supervisory Board as prescribed by the
current Law on Enterprises.

. Stay updated on newly issued policies and regulations, and participate in
training courses to enhance professional qualifications.

(Detailed 2025 activity plan attached to this report)

This concludes the self-assessment report on the performance of the
Supervisory Board and its members in 2024, along with the proposed
orientations for 2025. The Supervisory Board respectfully submits this report to
the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As stated above; SUPERVISORY

- Members of the Board of Directors; HEAD OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORY
- Supervisory Board;

- Archives: Office, BOS Dept.

Luong Dinh Minh



2025 ACTIVITY PLAN
OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC

No

Content / Task

Content / Task

Content / Task

Content /
Task

Content / Task

Regular Duties

Monitor the implementation of the 2025 business
targets assigned by the 2025 General Meeting of
Shareholders’ Resolution.

VIMC

Regular

2025

Monitor the implementation of business targets, term-
based plans, and the 5-year plan for 2021-2025.

VIMC

Regular

2025

Attend meetings as required by the Supervisory
Board’s responsibilities.

2025

Prepare and submit periodic reports in accordance
with regulations.

2025

Evaluate the performance of the Corporation’s
internal control system and make recommendations to
enhance its effectiveness.

VIMC

Regular

2025

Supervise the performance of the Internal Audit
Department to strengthen oversight at the company.

VIMC Internal
Audit

Regular

2025




Examine and monitor the legality, rationality, Regular
honesty, and prudence of the Board of Directors and
the General Director in executing ownership rights BOD, Executive
7 : . : 2025
and managing business operations. Board
Supervise the management and administration of Regular
business operations by the Board of Directors and BOD. E ti
8 Executive Board of VIMC in accordance with the law | g . 4 xecutive 2025
and VIMC’s Charter.
Monitor financial indicators; preservation and Regular
development of capital; implementation and
9 effectiveness of investment projects; compliance with | VIMC 2025
financial regulations, profit distribution, and use of
funds for 2024 and 2025.
Inspect and supervise the implementation of Regular
10 conclu’s1ons and recpmmendatlgns made by the VIMC 2025
owner’s representative, inspection bodies, and
auditors at VIMC.
Perform other duties as prescribed in the VIMC Regular
11 Supervisory Board’s Operating Regulations, the VIMC 2025
Charter, and the current Enterprise Law.
B
| Thematic Supervision — Q1 2025
Supervise the inventory of assets and the handling of Participate in direct .
. . . According to
inventory results as of 00:00 on January 1, 2025. inventory counting; -5
Head office, . the unit’s
1 . Inventory minutes; Report .
VIMC shipping . inventory
on post-inventory .
. schedule:
handling results.
Appraise the actual salary fund for managers and Approval through the
) employees at the Parent Company in 2024 and the Head office General Director’s March 2025

planned salary fund for 2025.

proposal; Resolution of
the Board of Directors.




Review and provide feedback on VIMC’s audited

Approval through audited

. . ) After th S t fi ial
financial statements for the 2024 fiscal year financial statements, audit LT e cpatate - lnancia
: . . . audited 2024 | statements include the
(including both the separate and consolidated | Parent Company minutes, management . s
3 . : : financial Corporation’s  Office
financial statements). — Corporation letters, audit contracts, )
statements are | and its  dependent
and related . : :
: issued accounting units.
documentation.
11 First Quarter of 2025
Approval through
financial statements, After the
. : . Parent C rts from th ital dited 2024
Appraise the separate Q1 2025 Financial Statements arent L-ompany Feports trom the capita audited -
1 — Corporation and | representative, and reports financial
of VIMC. A L
subsidiaries from the Corporation’s statements are
Supervisory Board at the issued
units.
L . The Board of
Inspect the organization and management of business Supervisors shall
operations; evaluate the internal control system; conduct inspections or
assess financial management, financial condition, and Direct inspection at the collaborate with
b accounting o.rganlzatlon;. chepk compliance with Vinaship subsidiaries May 2025 relevant
VIMC’s decisions and directives and the performance departments/divisions
of duties and responsibilities by VIMC’s capital within VIMC's
representatives at subsidiaries. management
[ Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024. framework
[
Inspection of the organization and management of Direct 1111)sp§§t19n at the g he . Board 5 Oljl[
business operations; assessment of the internal Subsidiaries up;r VISOTS - sha
control system; evaluation of financial management, COZ ZC[ imspections 02
financial situation, and organization of accounting COZ aborate wit
3 work; inspection of compliance with decisions and Nghe Tinh Port June 2025 relevant

directives of VIMC and the performance of rights and
obligations of VIMC'’s capital representative at the
unit.

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024.

departments/divisions
within VIMC's
management
framework




Inspection of the organization and management of
business operations; assessment of the internal
control system; evaluation of financial management,
financial situation, and organization of accounting

Direct inspection at the
subsidiaries

The Board of
Supervisors shall
conduct inspections or
collaborate with

4 work; inspection of compliance with decisions and Haiphong Port June 2025 d elevan% .
directives of VIMC and the performance of rights and depar tmen ts/% dzvz./vz ons
obligations of VIMC'’s capital representative at the within VIMC's
unit. management
Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024. Jramework

111 Third Quarter of 2025
Inspection and evaluation of the Corporation’s
pomaton, gy Ssysen (i
£ pects: p evaluation based on BOS of VIMC shall
1 management; access control management; computer | Head office July 2025
. . records, documents, and perform
network security; management of business software
o reports.

usage; data backup and storage activities;

implementation status of IT-related projects, etc.).

Inspection of the organization and management of

business  operations; evaluation of financial

) management, capital preservation and development; | VIMC branch in | Kiém tra truc tiép tai don Tulv 2025 BOS of VIMC shall
compliance with directives from VIMC. Haiphong vi Y perform
Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first half
of 2025.

Inspection of the organization and management of
business operations; evaluation of financial
management, capital preservation and development; . . .

3 compliance with directives from VIMC. VIMC. Direct inspection at the July 2025 BOS of VIMC shall

warehousing subsidiaries perform

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first half
of 2025.




Appraisal of VIMC’s 2025 semi-annual financial

Parent Company

Approval through
financial statements,
reports from the capital

After the Q2 2023

4 — Corporation and | representative, and reports | August 2025 | Financial Report was
statements. S . .
subsidiaries from the Corporation’s issued
Supervisory Board at the
units.
Inspection of the organization and management of The Board of
business operations; assessment of the internal Supervisors shall
control system; evaluation of financial management, conduct inspections or
financial situation, and organization of accounting . . . collaborate with
5 work; inspection of compliance with VIMC’s Quy Nhon Port Direct inspection at the September | clevant
decisions and directives and the performance of rights subsidiaries 2025 departments/divisions
and obligations of VIMC’s capital representative at within VIMC's
the unlt.. - - management
Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first half framework
of 2025. '
v Q.IV 2025
Direct inspection at the " i
Inspection of the organization and management of subsidiaries gu; ervis Oio “ i aoljl[
business operations; assessment of the internal condu C; in‘sp ecti on‘s or
control system; evaluation of financial management, collaborate with
1 financial position, and the organization of accounting Vosco October 2025 | relevant

activities; inspection of compliance with VIMC’s
decisions and directives, and the performance of
rights and obligations of VIMC’s capital

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first
half of 2025.

departments/divisions
within VIMC's
management

framework




Direct inspection at the

Inspection of the organization and management of subsidiaries

business operations; assessment of the internal The Board of

control system; evaluation of financial management, Supervisors joined the
b ﬁnz‘m.c?al p'osmon3 and the orge}nlzatlop of accounting VIMC Lines November inspection team of

activities; inspection of compliance with VIMC’s 2025 VIMC's Board of

decisions and directives, and the performance of Directors

rights and obligations of VIMC’s capital

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first

half of 2025.

Approval through
financial statements,
Parent Company reports from the capital November following the issuance
3 Appraisal of VIMC’s 2025 Q3 financial statements. — Corporation and | representative, and reports of the Q3 2025
e L 2025 . .
subsidiaries from the Corporation’s Financial Report
Supervisory Board at the
units.
Review of components of

Evaluation of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s | Parent Company the internal control December !Evaluatlon of  the
4 . . system at the Parent internal control

internal control system. — Corporation 2025 , .

Company of the system's operations
Corporation.
Note:

The inspection timeline in this plan is tentative; the specific schedule will depend on arrangements and
coordination with the relevant departments.




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION - JSC Independence - Freedom — Happiness
No: /TTr-bHDBCD Ha Noi, .../.../2025
DRAFT SUBMISSION

Approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements
To: General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC

Pursuant to Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/6/2020;

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/2019;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31/12/2020, detailing the
implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31/12/2020 of the
Ministry of Finance guiding corporate governance applicable to public companies
under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (“VIMC”);

Pursuant to internal corporate governance regulations of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation - JSC,

Pursuant to audited separate and consolidated financial statements by UHY
Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

The Board of Directors of VIMC respectfully submits to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the following contents:

1. Separate Financial Statements 2024

Separate Financial Statements 2024 were audited by UHY Auditing and
Consulting Co., Ltd. The auditor’s opinion is as follows:

“In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation - JSC as of December 31, 2024, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, and applicable legal
regulations”.

Summary of key indicators from the 2024 audited separate financial
statements:

Currency units: VND



A | Balance sheet At 31/12/2024 At 31/12/2023

I | Assets 14.412.914.827.217 | 13.777.616.310.724
1 | Current assets 2.222.671.378.674 | 2.511.356.461.711
2 | Non — current assets 12.190.243.448.543 | 11.266.259.849.013
IT | Equity 14.412.914.827.217 | 13.777.616.310.724

p—

Liabilities

832.935.182.928

1.631.485.332.118

2 | Owners’ equity

13.401.492.275.760

12.126.130.978.606

B | Income Statement

2024

2023

Gross profit from goods sold and
services rendered

192.885.296.483

87.655.450.723

Net revenue from goods sold and
services rendered

393.406.540.554

316.318.324.070

Accounting profit before tax

1.353.536.982.178

357.283.201.651

4 | Net profit after tax

1.353.536.982.178

357.283.201.651

C | Cash Flow Statement

2024

2023

1 | Net profit before tax

1.353.536.982.178

357.283.201.651

Cash flows from operating

205.778.519.391

2.929.683.033

end of the year

activities

4 | Cash flows from investing (97.957.522.738) | 392.017.304.702
activities

5 | Cash flows from financing (286.998.125.997) | (66.812.514.027)
activities

¢ | Netincrease/(decrease) incashand | 159 177 129344 | 329.034.473.708
cash equivalents

7 | Cashand cash equivalents at the 480.875.972.938 | 149.475.735.653
beginning of the year

g | Cashand cash equivalents at the 322.930.807.932 |  480.875.972.938

2. Consolidated Financial Statements 2024
Consolidated Financial Statements 2024 were audited by UHY Auditing and

Consulting Co., Ltd.

The Independent Audit Report states:
“1. Hai Phong Port - a subsidiary of the Corporation




At 31/12/2024, Hai Phong recorded under the item “Tangible fixed assets”
(code 221) on the consolidated balance sheet for the assets related to berths No. 04,
05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Port, with a total original cost of VND 279.7
billion and a net book value of VND 142.14 billion The funding source for the
formation of these assets is recorded under the line item “Long-term borrowings and
finance lease liabilities” (Code 338) on the balance sheet, with a corresponding
amount of VND 342.1 billion. These assets are part of the Phase Il Project for
Renovation and Upgrading of Hai Phong Port, which was invested by the Ministry
of Transport, financed through Japanese ODA loans and counterpart funds from the
Government of Vietnam.

As required by the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port has temporarily paid
into the State Budget several amounts related to the aforementioned project,
including: depreciation of the assets associated with Berths No. 04, 05 and the
container yard at Chua Ve Port for the period from 2014 to December 31, 2018,
totaling VND 44.8 billion, and provisionally accrued interest expenses totaling VND
149.3 billion.

In accordance with Resolution No. 71/NQ-CHP dated June 12, 2020 of the
Board of Directors, Hai Phong Port has ceased depreciation and discontinued the
recognition of interest expenses from January 1, 2020 for the assets related to Berths
No. 04, 05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal, pending official approval of
the asset management plan for these assets. At 8/6/2023, Hai Phong Port has issued
Official Letter No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the Ministry of Transport, proposing a plan
to continue being assigned the management and operation of Berths No. 04, 05 and
the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal, in accordance with the guidance set out in
the Prime Minister’s Olfficial Dispatch No. 2313/TTg-KTN dated 25/12/201. The
Ministry of Transport issued Official Letter No. 10882/BGTVT-TC dated 28/9/2023
to the Ministry of Finance, providing comments on the draft Decree on the
management, use, and operation of maritime infrastructure assets (intended to
replace Decree No. 43/2018/ND-CP dated 12/3/2018). In this letter, the Ministry of
Transport proposed to include additional provisions in the transitional clauses of the
Decree, so that, if the proposal is approved, it would resolve the issue of asset
management by allowing Hai Phong Port to be assigned the management and
operation of Berths No. 4 and 5 at Chua Ve Port (instead of leasing the assets). At
24/12/2024, the Government Office issued Notification No. 569/TB-VPCP on the
conclusion regarding the reception and explanation of comments from Government
members on the draft Decree regulating the management, use, and operation of
inland waterway infrastructure assets. Accordingly, the Deputy Prime Minister
agreed not to include transitional provisions in the Decree regarding maritime
infrastructure assets formed from State capital, and assigned the Ministry of



Transport and the Ministry of Finance to urgently report on the proposed resolution
plan. Upon official approval by the competent authorities of the management and
operation plan for Berths No. 4 and 5, the container yard at Chua Ve Port, and the
equipment package, Hai Phong Port will be responsible for updating the relevant
data in its financial statements. At 27/12/2024, pursuant to Resolution No. 168/NQ-
CHP, the Board of Directors of Hai Phong Port approved the policy to resume
depreciation for Berths No. 04, 05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal, in
accordance with the proposal of the General Director presented in Report No.
4882/CHP-TCKT dated 25/12/2024.

As of the issuance date of this audit report, no decision has been made by the
competent state authority regarding the form of management for Berths No. 04, 05
and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal of Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company.

In addition, the Ministry of Finance has requested a review of the equitization
process of Hai Phong Port, given that the finalization dossier for the valuation of
State capital at the time of equitization has not yet been approved by the competent
authorities. Upon official approval by the regulatory bodies of the debt financing
and repayment plan, Hai Phong Port will make the necessary adjustments (if any) to
its financial statements.”

2. Bien Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company - a subsidiary

of the Corporation

- Regarding the discrepancy in loan principal balances and outstanding
borrowings payable to Shipbuilding Industry One Member Limited Liability
Company

As disclosed in Notes 20 and 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
according to the independent confirmation received from Shipbuilding Industry One
Member Limited Liability Company ("VFC"), the outstanding loan principal and
interest receivable from Bien Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability
Company ("Bien Dong") related to the 1,730 TEU Container Vessel V22 Project
exceeded the figures recorded in Bien Dong’s accounting books at 01/01/2024 by
USD 28,667,314.77 and USD 59,208,393.37, respectively; and at 31/12/2024 by
USD 28,667,314.77 and USD 63,541,824.47, respectively. The discrepancy is
attributable to Bien Dong having transferred the principal and interest payable to
VFC to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company ("Bach
Dang") pursuant to the handover minutes signed with Bach Dang at 05/08/2015.
Based on the audit procedures performed, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence regarding the beginning balances, movements during the
vear, and ending balances of these borrowings and related interest expenses.



Accordingly, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments might be
necessary to these items or the potential impact, if any, on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements (refer to Note 20).

- Regarding the recognition of the discrepancy between the principal and
interest payable to credit institutions and the amount of debt acknowledged by the
Company with Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC)

Prior to 2017, Bien Dong applied the guidance under Official Letter No.
751/BTC-TCDN dated 17/9/2015 issued by the Ministry of Finance (“Official Letter
7517) regarding the accounting treatment of the difference between the book value
of debts and the amount of debt acknowledged with the Vietnam Debt and Asset
Trading Corporation (DATC). Accordingly, the difference between the amount of
debt recognized by Bien Dong with DATC and the principal and interest payable to
credit institutions was recorded as an increase in the State capital at Bien Dong.

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong adopted the applicable provisions of the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime. Accordingly, the difference between the
amount of debt acknowledged by Bien Dong with DATC and the principal and
interest payable to credit institutions was recognized in the income statement for the
year.

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applied the guidance under Circular No.
46/2021/TT-BTC dated 23/6/2021, Official Letter No. 751/BTC-TCDN dated
17/9/20135, Official Letter No. 5883/BTC-TCDN dated 08/5/2017, and Official Letter
No. 1440/BTC-TCDN dated 08/02/2021 issued by the Ministry of Finance.
Accordingly, the difference between the amount of debt acknowledged by the
Company with the Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC) and the
principal and interest payable to credit institutions was recognized as an increase in
the State capital at Bien Dong.

If Bien Dong had consistently applied the provisions of the Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting Regime in recognizing these items, the "Asset Revaluation
Reserve" (Code 416) on the consolidated balance sheet as at 01/01/2024 would have
decreased by VND 2,166.24 billion, and the "Undistributed Post-Tax Profit" (Code
421) would have increased by the corresponding amount. Similarly, as at December
31, 2024, the "Asset Revaluation Reserve" (Code 416) would have decreased by VND
2,166.24 billion, and the "Undistributed Post-Tax Profit" (Code 421) would have
increased accordingly.”

Regarding the qualified opinion related to the accounting treatment at Hai
Phong Port Joint Stock Company: this matter arises from objective circumstances,
as the handling plan for the assets of Berths No. 4 and 5 and the container yard at
Chua Ve Port has not yet been approved by the competent authorities. This issue



has been disclosed in the Company's financial statements since its conversion to
a joint stock company (from 01/07/2014).

Regarding the qualified opinion related to the accounting treatment at Bien
Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company: the auditor did not
express a qualified opinion on Bien Dong's accounting records. The qualification
relates solely to the inconsistency in accounting policy application across different
years during the equitization process and the implementation of the restructuring
plan for conversion into a joint stock company. The current accounting practices
of Bien Dong remain compliant with the relevant legal regulations.

A summary of selected indicators from the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year 2024 is as follows:

Currency units: VND

A | Balance sheet At 31/12/2024 At 31/12/2023

I | Assets 30.424.970.632.989 | 27.535.428.729.284

1 | Current assets 13.250.276.250.627 | 11.963.612.942.094

2 | Non — current assets 17.174.694.382.362 | 15.571.815.787.190

I | Equity 30.424.970.632.989 | 27.535.428.729.284

1 | Liabilities 13.008.273.019.746 | 12.169.113.677.699

2 | Owners’ equity 17.416.697.613.243 | 15.366.315.051.585

B | Income Statement 2024 2023

fit f 1

| Gross profit from goods soldand 1, ¢4 305 701 188 | 2.403.014.876.794
services rendered

o | Share ofprofitorloss of associates | )5 15 h4g 035 | 153.835.939.153
and joint ventures

3 | Netrevenue from goods soldand |, Jo0 47 18 078 | 1.780.363.893 364
services rendered

4 | Accounting profit before tax 3.152.648.526.287 | 2.126.014.151.227

5 | Net profit after tax 2.629.828.754.343 | 1.701.819.140.313

C | Cash Flow Statement 2024 2023

1 | Net profit before tax 3.152.648.526.287 | 2.126.014.151.227

, | Cash flows from operating 2.798.128.629.518 | 2.066.041.757.855
activities

4 | Cash flows from investing (2.206.074.606.952) | (1.244.736.019.469)
activities

5 | Cash flows from financing (124.661.281.820) | (417.919.181.174)
activities




¢ | Netincrease/(decrease) in cashand | 47 305 740747 | 403.386.557.212
cash equivalents

, | Cash and cash equivalents at the 2.771.448.217.598 | 2.384.234.648.554
beginning of the year

g | Cashand cash equivalents at the 3.255.012.146.283 | 2.771.448.217.598
end of the year

The Board of Directors proposes that the General Meeting of Shareholders
in 2025 approve the Standalone Financial Statements and the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year 2024 that have been audited.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As stated above; DIRECTORS CHAIRMAN
- Members of the Board of Directors;
- Supervisory Board;
- Archives: Office, Finance &
Accounting Dept.
Le Anh Son
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da Districs, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Corporation”) presents this report together with its Consolidated Financial Statements
fior the fiseal vear ended as at 31 December 2024,

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

Members of the Board of Management, the Board of General Directors and the Board of Supervisors

of the Corporation who held office during the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this report are as fallows:

Boartd of Management

Mr. Le Anh Son Chairman

Mr. Mguyen Canh Tinh Member

Mr. Do Tien Duc Member

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung Member

Mr. Do Hung Duong Member

eneral

Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh General Directo

Mr. Pham Anh Tuan Deputy General Dirsctor

Mr. Le Quang Trung Deputy General Director

Mr. Nguven Ngoc Anh Deputy General Director
Legal )

The legs! representative of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and to the
date of this report is Mr. Npguyen Canh Tinh - General Director.

Board of Su rs

Mr. Loong Diinh Minh Chiel Supervisor

Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha Member

Mr. Pham Cao Nhue Member

Chi uniant

Mr. Le Duy Duong Head of Finance and Accounting Department
AUDITORS

The auditers of UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited have audited the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Corporation for the fiscal vear ended 31 December 2024

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of General Directars confirms that, there have been no significant events ocourring after

the balance sheet date which would require adjustments to or disclosures 1o be made in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Fhuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT'D)

THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors of the Corperation & responsible for preparing the annual
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
a5 of 31 December 2024, consolidated results of operations and consolidated cash flows of the
Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2024, In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the Board of General Directors 18 required fo:

» Design and implement an effective infernal control system 10 mitigate the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud or errors in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

s Comply with Viemamess accounting standards, the Vietnamese accounting system for
enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting;

»  Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,

» Make judgmenis and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material
departurcs disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements;

s Prepare the consolidated financial stetements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
ta presume that the Corporation will continue its operation.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept,
which discloses, with reascnable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and
to ensure that the consolidated finencial statements comply with Vietnamese accounting standards,
the Vietnamese Corporate accounting system and the relevant statutory requirements. It is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irmegularities.

The Bosrd of General Directors confirms that the Corporation has complied with the above
requirements in preparing these consclidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of General Direciors has approved the attached Consolidated Financial Statements. These
statements provide & true and fair view, in all material respects, of the consolidzted financial
position of the Corporation as at 31 December 2024, as well as its consolidated income statement
and its consclidated cash flow for the fizcal year ended as at 31 December 2024, in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Viemamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal
regulations on the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financ izl Statements.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of Genersl Directors commits that the Company has fully complied with its regulatory
disclosure obligations as stipufated in Circular No, 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020
issued by the Ministry of Finance on information disclosure in the securities market; Decree No.
155/2020/ND-CP dated 31 December 2020 issued by the Government and Circular No.
1162020/ TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 issoed by the Ministry of Finance, which provide
%:’ ines on corporate governance applied to public companies | —

grard on behalf of Board of General Directors,
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“—General Director

Hanol, 03 March 2025
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Uw AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED

gt OFTiCa

No: 1442025/ UHY- BCKT

INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT
i tha Corsolidated Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company
For the fiscal year ended as ai 31 December 2024

To:  Shareholders, Board of Geaeral Directors and Board of Management
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company

We have audited the sccompanying Comsclidated Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Corporation™) as prepared on (3
March 2025 and sct out on page 10 to 68, which comprise the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 1]
December 2024, the Consclidated Income Starement, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Board of General Directors' responsibility

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for the preparation aad fair
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Stetements in accordance with the Vietnamess
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and related legel regulations on
the preparation and presentstion of Consclidsted Financial Statements and for such internal control
a5 the Bogrd of General Directors determines necessary to ensurc that the Consolidated Financial
Statements are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Anditors® responsibility

Char responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our
sudit. We conducted our audit in sceordance with Vietmamese Standards on Auditing. Thost
standards require that we comply with cthical requiremnents and plan and perform the audit to cbtain
reasnnable assurmnce hout whether the consofidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The selected procedures depend on the suditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemecnt of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. ‘When assessing these risks, the auditor considers the
Coporation’s internal contro] relevant to the true and fair preparation and fair presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriete [or the
actual situatien, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivensss of the
Coporation's internal control. The audit also includes evaluating the appropristeness of accounting
policiea used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of General
Directars, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis.

We belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficieat and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (CONT'I)}

Basis for Qualified Opinion

I At Port of Hai Phong Jeint Stock Company — A subsidiary of the Corporation (“Hai
Phong Port")

Asof 31 December 2024, Hai Phong Port recognized assats related to Berths Ne. 04 and No. 05 and
the Chua Ve Port container yard under the item "Tangible Fixed Assets" (code 221) on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. These assets had a total historical cost of YND 272.7 billion and a net
carmving amount of VNI 142.14 billion, The sources of funding for these assets are recorded under
"Leng-term Borrowings and Finance Lease Liasbilities” (code 338) on the Consolidated Balance
Sheel, with a corresponding value of VIND 342.1 billion. These assets belong to Phase II of the Hai
Phong Port Renovation and Upgrading Project, which was invested by Ministry of Transport using
Japanese ODA loans and the Government’s counterpart funding.

At the request of the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port has temporarily remitted certain amounts
related to the aforementioned project into the State Budget, these include: Depreciation of asscis
relsted to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard for the period from 2014 to
3] December 2018, totaling VND 44.8 billion, provisionally aceruwed interest expenses on loans
amounting to VIND 1493 billion.

In accordance with Resolution Mo, TI/NQ-CHP dated 12 June 2020 of the Board of Directors, Hai
Phong Port hes suspended depreciation and ceased recognizing inlerest expenses from 1 lanuary
2020 for assets related to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard, pending
official approval of the management plan for these assels,

On § June 2023, the Company issued Document No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the Ministry of Transpert,
proposing the continued assignment of Hai Phong Port to manzage and operate Berths No. 04 and
No. 05 and the Chus Ve Port container yard, in line with the provisions of Decument No, 2313 T g-
KTN dated 25 December 2013 issued by the Prime Minister.

On 28 September 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Document No. 10882 BGTVI-TC 1o the
Ministry of Finance for consultation on the drafi Decree regulating the managcmend, use, and
exploitation of maritime infrastructure assets (intended to replace Decree Ne. 43/2018/ND-CP dated
12 March 2018). In this document, the Ministry of Trensport propesed adding transitional provisions
to the Decree to ensure that, if the proposal is approved, it would establish a management framework
for these assets, meaning that Berths No.4 and Berths No.5 at Chua Ve Port weuld be transferred to
Hai Phong Port for management and operation (not for lease).

On 24 December 2024, the Government Office issued Notification No, 569/TB-VPCP regarding the
conclusions on feedback and explanations from Govemment Members conceming the Decree on the
management, use, and exploitation of inland warerway infrastructire assels. Accordingly, the
Deputy Prime Minister agreed that the Decree should not include provisions for transitional
handling of meritime infrastructure assets formed from state capital and assigned the Minisiry of
Transport and the Ministry of Finance to urgently report an a handling plan.

Upon afficial approval from the relevant authorities regerding the management and operation plan
for Berths Nod and Berths No.5, the Chua Ve Port container vard, and the equipment package, Hai
Phong Port will be responsible for updating the financial report data accordingly.

Oin 27 December 2024, pursuant to Resolution No. 168/MNQ-CHP, the Board of Management of Hai
Phong Port approved the resumption of depreciation for Berths No.4 and Berths No.3, and the Chua
Ve Port container yard, as proposed by the General Director of Hai Phong Port in Report Mo.
ABRZ/CHP-TCKT dated 25 December 2024.

5




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)
Rasis for Qualified Opinion (Cont’d)

As of the issuance date of this audit repart, there has been no decision from the state management
authorities regarding the management framework for Berths No.4 and Berths No.5 and the Chua Ve
Port container yard of Hai Phong Port. Therefore, we do not have sufficient basis to determine the
costs related to the use of Berths No. 04, 05, and the container yard at Chua Ve Port of Hai Phong
Port from 01 January 2020 to 31 December 2024,

2. Additionally, the Ministry of Finance also requested to a re-examination of the equitization of Hai
Phong Port (given that the final settlement documents of the value of State capital at the time of
equitization of the Company have not been approved by the relevant authorities), When there is the
official appreval of the equitization settlement of the competent authority about loans and repayment
plans, the Financial Statements of Hai Fhong Port will be adjusted (if applicable).

We have not been able to obtaint the necessary documents to assess the impact of all the above
issues on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements (attached)

2 Af Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited— A subsidiary of the Corporation(Bien Dong)

Differences between the loan principal balance and the loan payable to Vietnan Shipbuilding
Finance Compary LimitediVFC])

According to the independent confirmation letier received fom VEC, the recorded outstanding loan
principal and interest receivable from Bien Dong Shipping One-Member Limited Lisbility Company
(“Bien Dong™) related to the 1730 TEU V22 Container Ship Project are higher than the amounts
recorded in Bien Dong’s books. As of 1 January 2024, these amounts were USD 28.667,314.77 and
USD 59,208,393,37, respectively, and as of 31 December 2024, they were USD 28,667,314.77 and
USD 63,541,824.47, respectively,

The discrepancy arises becausc Bien Dang transferred the principal debt and accrued loan interest
payable to VFC to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One-Member Limited Liability Company (Bach Dang)
according to the handover minuies signed on 5 August 2015, with Bach Dang,

Through the audit procedures performed, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence regarding the opening balance, transactions incurred during the period, and the closing
balance of these loan liabilities and interest expenses payable. Therefore, we are unable to determine
whether any adjustments are necessary for these figures and the potential impact, if any, on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements (refer to Notes No. 20 and No. 24).

The recognition of differences between the principal debt and interest payable to credit institutions
and the debt amount the Company avsumed from Fiemam Debt and Asser Trading Corporation
(DATC)

Befare 2017, Rien Dong applied the guidance from Official Letter No, 751/BTC-TCDN dated 17
September 2015, issued by the Ministry of Finance (Official Letter 751) regarding the accounting
treatment of the difference between the book value of debt and the assumed debt value with DATC.
Accordingly, the difference between the debt amount assumed from DATC and the principal debt
and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded as an increase in the State 's equity in Bien
Dong.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)
Basis for Qualified Opinion (Cent’d)

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong transitioned to epplying the regulations of the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting Systermn, under which the difference between the amount owed to DATC and the
principal and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded in the Income Statement for the
year,

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applied the guidance set out in Circular No, 46/2021/TT-BTC dated
23 June 2021, Official Dispatch No. 75 /BTC-TCDN dated 17 September 17 2013, Official Letter
No. 5§83/BTC-TCON dated 8 May 2017, and Official Letter No. [440WBTC-TCDN dated 8
February 2021, issued by the Ministry of Finance. Accordingly, the difference between the amount
owed 10 DATC and the principal and interest payable 1o credit institutions was recorded as an
increase in the value of the State "s equity in Bien Diong.

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System
in recording these amounts, then in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as ot | January 2024, the item
“Differences upon asset revaluation” (Code 416) decreases while the item “Undistributed eammings™
{Code 421) increases by YND 2,104.86 billion. As at 31 December 1024, the item “Differences
upon asset revaluation™ (Code 416) decreases end the Item “Undistributed earnings” (Code 421)
inicrenses by VND 2,166.26 billion accordingly.

Qualified Opinion

In cur apinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the consolidated financial position of Viemam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company as at
11 December 2024, its consolidated operating results and its cash flows for the year then ended in
aceordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System

and the related legal repulations on the preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial
Stetements.

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following matters disclosed in the Consclidated Financial Statements:

- In Note | 6 — Corporation structure: The financial statements of Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock
Company, a subsidiary of the Corporation, have been consolidated inta the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements, The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation
reflect the investment valee in this subsidiary as VIND 415.46 billion. This is the amount the
Corporation has reimbursed to Hop Thanh Investment and Mineral Joint Stock Company
{(*Hop Thanh™) in accordance with the terms of the share ownership transfer agreement.

As of 31 December 2024, the Corporation and Hop Thanh are still in the process of
diseussions and evalustions regarding the legal investment benefits of Hop Thanh during their
participation in Chiy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company.

- InNote 2.1 - Basis for preparing Consolidated Financial Statements: The financial statements
of certain subsidiarics and associates, which have been consolidated into the Carperation’s
Consolidated Financial Statements, confain significant uncertainties that raise substantial
doubt shout the ability of these companies to continue s going concems. The Financial
Statementz of thess entities have been prepared and presented based on the assumption of
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT (CONT I}

Emphasis of Matter (Cont"d)

- In MNote 11 — Financial Investments, Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port), a
subsidiary of the Corporation, has recorded an investment in the form of contributed capital
hy asscts, specifically a 600-metre-long wharf (K6, K7, KB, K9, and K10} at Nha Rong -
Khanh Hoi Poet, into Ngoe Vien Dong Investment and Development Company Limited
(*Ngoc Vien Dong Company™) with & contributed capital valuve of VND 3040,001,000,000
{equivalent to a 5.6% ownership interest). Saigon Port has not been able 1o obtain the
financial statements of Wgoc Vien Dong Company from 2021 to the date. However, the
contributed assets, comprizing the over 600-metre-long wharf from K6 to K10 at the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi area, remain under the menagement, operation, and commercial use by the
Compary. Ngoc Vien Dong Company has committed to bearing all costs related 1o the
management and land use obligations with the State, as stipulated in the agreement dated 31
August 2017 between Ngoe Vien Dong Company and Saigon Port. The Board of General
Directors of the Corporation assesses that this investment has not suffered any impairment.

- As presented in Note 17 — Construction in Progress, the investment and construction project of
Cai Cui Port Phase [ commenced in 2002 with an initial estimated investment of VMD 230.3
billion. The investment and construction project of Cai Cui Part Phase 11 began in 2009 with
an initial estimated investment of YIND 8298 billion. The implementation of these two
projects has exceeded the initially timline and remains incomplete. Can The Port Joint Stock
Company, & subsidiary of the Carparation, is continuing te invest in order to complete and put
the project components into cperation for business activities.

- Agpresented in Note 19 — Taxes and other payables to the State:

+ Saigon Port has temporarily estimated the remaining land rental fees payable for the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi Port area up to the time the Company signed an agreement with Ngoe
Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Company Limited (Ngoe Vien Dang - the
investor of the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Project) under Investment Policy Decision No.
6815/QD-UBND dated 29 December 2016, issued by the People's Committee of Ho Chi
Minh Citv. As of the date of the consolidsted financial statements, Saigon Port is
continuing to work with the tax authorities to determine the basis for the land rental and
land tex obligations.

+ Saigon Port has made temporary payments for land rental and land tax for the period from
2015 to 2020 at Ten Thuan 1 and Tan Thuan 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Dong), as per the
notification from the District 7 Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh City. As of the date of
the consolidated financial statements, the Company is continuing to liase with the Distriet
7 Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh City and relevant authorities to determine the basis for

these land remial ohligations.

- As presented in Mote 22 (3) and 22 (4) — Other Payables: Saigon Port has received capital
advances from the Siate Budget and Ngoe Vien Dong Urban Development Investment
Company Limited 1o invest in the construction project of Saigon Port — Hiep Phuos, which is
managed by Saigon Hiep Phuoc Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of Saigon Port. As af
now, this project ramains! under construction.

- In Note 22{6) — Other Payables and Note 24{1) — Borrowings and Finance Leases, as of now,
the Hau Gisng Shipyard Project of Hau Giang Maritime Services One Member Limited
Liability Company has been permanently discontinued according to Official Letter No.
403/TTe-KTN dated 29 March 2012 from the Prime Minister. Regarding the funding used for
this project, the Company is recognizing restructuring interest hased on Resolution 107/MNQ-
CP dated 10 October 2017 of the Government. However, the lenders/advance providers,
including Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance Une Member Limited Liability Company (VFC) and
Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), have not vet restructured the debt as per
the aforementioned resolution.



ISDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT (CONT DY

Emphasis of Matter (Cont'd)

In Mote 24 {2) - Borrowings and Finance Lesses and Note 7 — Loan Receivables: As of 31
December 2024, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation reflect a loan
receivable from SP-PSA International Port Co., Lid ("SP-PSA") amounting to LISD 4,950,000
(&l the Parent Company - the Corporation) and USD 11,880,000 {at Saigon Port). At the same
time, the financial staternents alse reflect o loan payable to PSA Viemam Pie., Lid ("PSA
Vietam") for the same amonnts under the Sharcholder Loan Agreement dated 26 August
2008, corresponding to a capital contribution ratic of 15% for the Corporation and 36% for
Suigon Port al SP-PSA Intemational Port Co., lid. As of the preparation date of the
consolidaiad financial statements, the Corporation and Saigon Port are still in discussions with
the relevant parties to fnalize the contract addendum and the basis for calculating the mieres
receivable and pavable accordingly.

A stated in Mote 37.3 — Other Information, aceording o Decree WNe., | 26200 TIND-C1* dated
16 Movember 2017 of the Gavernment on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and one-
member limited Hability companies with 100% state-owned charter capital into joint-stock
companies, at the time of officially converting info a joint-stock company, the Corporation is
required to finalize taxes. obligations payable to the State budget with the tax authorities, and
submit the approval request to the stite ownership representative agency regarding the veilue
of state capital at the time of official conversion. Additionally, the Corporation must sefile the
procesds from eguitization, pay for employes severance benefits, and cover eguitization-
related expenses. The Corporaticn has completed tax finalization. For the remaining mamers,
the Corporation has completed the documentation and is awaiting approval from the
competent suthorities. Therefore, the figures in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements may change based on the apinions of the relevant authorities

s it Trinh Thi Trang
Deputy General Drector Auditor
Auditor’s Practicing Certificate Auditor’s Practicing Certificate
Mo 3660-2021-112-1 Mo 4061-2022-112-1
Fow el of ehaif of
UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Hanoi 03 March 2023
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION = J50C

Ma.1 Dao Dy Anh, Phuong Mai ward,

Form Mo, B 01 = DNMHAN

Far the fiscal year

Deng Da District, Hano ended 31/12/2024
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As ot 3 December 2024
ASSETS Code MNote 3171272024 01012024
(Adjusted)
VNI VNI
CURRENT ASSETS 100 13,250,276,250,627 11,963,612,942,094
Cash and cash equivalents e 4 3255.012,146,283 2.771,448,217,593
Cash 111 |,B67,525,795,183 1,522, 178,429,592
Cash equivalents 112 1,587,486,350,500 1,249,269, Te 8,006
Shari-term investments 120 5,138,580.313,941 5,276,990.271,626
Held-to-maturity imvesmmenis 123 1 5,138,580,323 241 5276900271, 626
Current aceounts receivable 130 3607 375,668,277 2,733,306, 403,113
Shorl-term trade receivables 131 5 1,744,269 850 B2R 1,503,172,355,5337
Shori-term advances o supplicrs 132 & 004, 476,701,248 713497121, 34
Shart-term loan receivables 1315 7 203 AR Q00 0 65,212,000 000
Other shoan-term receivables 13 B 1,114,0BL,771,535 TH3, 375,660,069
Provision for short-1erm doubiful debts 137 9 (363,723,523,135) (346,211,562.598)
Shortage of aisets awaiting resolution 139 4,262 828 BO1 4262 228 801
Toventories 140 14 485,064,150,094 493,411,636,7460
Inventories 141 GE9, 383,741,754 697,865,529,396
Provision fior devalusbion inventories 149 (204,319,590, 800) (204,453 852 630)
Oither current assels 150 764,243,961,132 688,456,413,011
Bhom-term prépaid expenses 151 16 79,824, 461,633 BE.853,920,088
Valued added tax deductibles 152 545.190,547,000 418,142,458,714
Taxes and ather receivables from the 153 19 139,228 952 490 161 460,054,209
Seaze hndped

The accompamying noted are an integral part of these consolidated flnancial statements 1o
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B 01 -DNHN

Nao.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, For the fiscal year
Dong Da Districl, Hanoi ended 3171252024
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'TY)

As at 31 December 2024
ASSETS Code Noie 311252024 B1AI2024

{Adjusied)
VND YND
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 17,174,694,382 362 15,571,815,787,190
Long-term receivabbes 210 1,506,052,730,179 1,123,241,189,041
Long-term trade receivables 211 5 93,509,714,342 102,843,157.875
Long-term advances to suppliers 212 6 24,653,398 581 24,653,398 581
Long-term loan receivables 15 7 1,080, 764,677 466 BR3.211,680,000
Orther long-tenm receivables 216 8 307,034,939,790 112,569, 520,285
Provision for doubtful loag-temm 212 9 - {36,567, 700)
Fized assets 220 9,100,520,65,447 9,019,043 281,010
Tangible fixed assets 21 12 8,401 808,885,120 8.296,680,031.903
= Cost 222 20 942 641,030, 949 A1, 225 381,315 244
= Accumnadated depreciation 223 21360832 145,820 (22,028, 701,283,341}
Finance lease assets , 224 13 45229 712,513 48,144, 234401
- Cost 225 35200437 844 58,290,437 844
- Accumulated depreciation 225 (T3080. 725 331) (10,7 408,203,443)
Intangible fixad assets 297 14 653,481 467,814 674,219,014,706
- Cost 228 934,473,120, 3 G20 D58, 480,079
= Acewmdated amortization 229 (280,9%1,652,199) (255, THR 466, 273)
Investment properties 23 15 417.002,112,6583 456,095,448,911
= Cost 231 B0V, 560,573,617 TO9 T3 E48,418
- Accumulated depreciation 232 (384,558, 460,934) (343,668,399,497)
Long-term assets in progress 40 17 1,528.272,652,993 2,514,340,409,174
Long-term work in progress 241 39,141,592.111 38,037.780,457
Long=tenm ¢construction in progress 242 1,489,131,060,882 2475,400,619,717
Long-term investments 250 1,220,497,150,565 2,619,159,377,540
Investments in joint-ventures, msociates 252 11 1,849 307,819,163 1.641,806,308,629
Other Jong-term investments 253 11 395 572 409,602 411,417,655,941
Provision for long-tenm financial 2 1 (24,333,078,200) (24,064,587,030)
investments
Other long-term assets 260 402,149,670,495 429,936,081,504
Long-term prepayments 261 16 373,585,689,251 400,625,003 848
Deferred income tax assels Za2 IR, 761,981,244 29.3009,157,656
TOTAL ASSETS 270 30,424,570,632,989 ¥7.535,428,729,284

The cocompanying noted are an imegral part of these conselidaied finaecial staiemerts 1




Form No. B 01 - DN/HN
For the fiscal year

VIETNANM MARITIME CORPORATION - .ISC
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward,

Ve

¥u Thi Thanh Duyen

Dong Da District, Hanoi ended 31712/2024
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET [(CONT'D)
Ax art 3] December 2024

HRESDURCES Code Mole 3171272024 012024
(Adjusted)

WD VNI

LIABILITIES 300 13,008,273,019,746 13,169,113,677,699
Cuorreat labilities 310 B099.99] 348,524 TA1T.296,164,057

Ehari-term trade pavable 311 18 1,648, 030,979 T4 172,565,793 665

Shori-term advances from customers iz T7,566,709.514 41,343,194, 352

Taxes and other payvables 1o the State 3iz 19 300.516,290,210 2972 996,021,234

budget

Payable to employees 314 684 237 666 497 SOR 141,572 144

Shori=term acerued expenses 315 20 2,313 842,060,507 2238687385014

Shori-term unsarmed revenws 318 2 25,240 417 363 19997232312

Oither current payebles 3le 22 1,542,820,618,819 1.414,230.911,311

Shor-term loan and finance lease 320 14 1,280,673, 986 345 1.496,350,731,754

chligations

Shart-term provisicns 321 15, 100,000,000 16,01 8,000,000

Bonus and welfare funds 322 142,954 .559.543 126,985 322 271
Long-term liabilities 330 4. 908281 .671,222 4. 751,817,513,642

Leng-term accrued expenses 333 0 13,882,563,322 4310819 982

Long-term unearned revenue 336 21 44.734,415,104 44 662,204,284

Orilser long-term pavables 337 2 2.381,23B8,467 846 2.407,085,935, 506

Long-term loans and finance lease 338 M 1,200 540 KEZT.84] 1,792 085,060, TET

ohligations ’

Dreferred tax linbilitics 341 468 876, 547 104 493 573 493,083
OWNER'S EQUITY 41H) 17,416,697,613,243 1536631 5,051,.585
Capital 410 X5 17,41 6,697,013,243 15,366,531 5,051,585

Share capital 411 | 2,005 880,000,000 12,005 880,000,000

- Cirdlinary shares witk voiing rights illa 12,005, 880, 000, () {2,005, 880, 000, 00

Share premism 412 145,029,557 10.94.5,029 557

Orher capital 414 73,241,144 535 £2 963 939 493

Drifferences upon asset revaluation 416 (3,203,637,830,471) (3,100,407, 830,450)

Exchange rate differences 417 108,499 338 332 40, Toh, 738,752

Investment and development finds 418 2,933,165,394.314 2,086,604.356,714

(iher reaerves 4730 0o 227 803 92 327,504

Undistributed eamings 437 596,878, 553,066 (241,969,536,062)

. Undlistributed sarmings occummdared  421a (424 165891, 752} (1LA04 252 855 370

i the prior year end

- Undistributed earnings of the current 4215 202,004, 444,818 1,162,313,199317

J]':;-l:nnmtm interest 428 4,201,883,756,517 4,571,550,235,856
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 30,424,970,632,580 27,535, 424,720 2184

Hariai, 03 March 2025
Preparer

Fid]
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JOINT

Form No. B 02 — DN/HN

STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 317127204
Dong Da District, Hanod .
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the fiscal vear ended 37 December 2024
Ttems Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VND
Revenue from goods sold and services 01 27 16,969,719.071,136  12,520,166,123,213
Revenue deductions ] 8.470.890.671 5,146,652,716
Met revenoe from goods sold and 10 16,961,248,180.4658  12,815,019,470,487
services rendered
Cost of goods sold 11 28 14,147,885,979,277  10,412.004,593,703
Gross profit from goods sold and n 2.813,362,201,188 2. 403,014.876,794
services rendered
Financial income a1 29 R56,580,652,356 664,610,287,475
Financial expenses 2 a0 616,879,0858,999 257,553,704, 521
= dm which. Inferest expenses a3 372,851 242,087 202,077, 736,231
Profitiloss) in joini-veniures, associetes 24 225,015,248 832 153,835,059, 153
Selling expenses 5 3 138,213,204379 138,049,421,6 12
General and administrative expenses b T v 1.343.354,790,920 1,045,493,993,895
MNet operating profit 3 1,796,420,018,078 1,780,363,893 364
Otther incoms i1 33 1,435,448,737,979 484,846,885,838
Other expenses 32 M 79,220,220, 770 130, 196,627,075
Profitiiloss) from other activities 40 1,356,228.508,209 345,650,157,8463
Aceounting profit before (ax 11 3,152 ,648,526,287 2,126,014,151.227
Current corporale income lax expenie 51 546,070,402 800 427, 040,443,445
Dieferred tax expensai(income) 52 (23,250,630,856) 3,154,567 460
Net profit after tax o0 2520828754343 1,701,819,140.313
Net profit after tax atributable to 61 2021014 444 818 1,162,313.199.317
shareholders of the parent
Net profit after tax of non-controtling 62 608 814,300,515 539,505,540,956
iriterest
Earning Per Share M 33 1,683 0GR
Hanai, 03 March 2023
Preparer Head of Finance and wmm; reral Director
Accounting ]]’Epﬂ.l'lmu
rmna CONG. Tﬁ "

Uﬁv’f

Va Thi Thanh Duyen

HANG HAI
VIET

The aecompanying noted are an Integral part of these consolldated financial siaremenis 13
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT Form No. B 09 — DN/HN

STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
MNo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31272024
Dong Da Distriet, Hanoi
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(T By indirect method)
For the fizcal year ended 31 December 2024
lieins Caode MNote Year 21024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit before tox o1 3,152,648,526,287 2,126,004,151,227
Adjustments for
Depreciation and ameortization of fixed 0z 1,525,135,144,321 1,317.079,939,847
nssets and investment properties
Provisions 03 26,689,582, 157 (246,955,748, 464)
Foreign exchange (gains)losses arisen 04 {55,131,068,6590) (32,704,482,287)
From revaluaiion of monetary accounts
Losses/{profits) From investing activites 03 (1,308 671,609,044) (611,684 B52217)
Interest cxpenses 06 372,851,242,087 202 077,736,231
Othser adjustments 07 26,272 308,883 -
Operating profit before changes in il 3,739, 704, 126,007 2,753,820, 764,337
working capital
Increase/decreace in receivables 19 455, 843,676,906 194,137,602,527
Incrense/decrease in inventories 10 E.277.984,948 167,779,251,249
Inerease/decrease in payshles (not 1 (434,232 237 238) (287,772,2320,054)
including sccrued interest and exrporate
income tax payable)
Increasefdecreass in prepayments 12 36,070,693,052 B4 183,529,075
Interest paid 14 (217.231,080,187) (283,278,203, 05T)
Comporate income Ly paid 15 (569 574,097 308) (377.463,564,339)
Oiher cash inflows from opersting 16 32,320,000 5
activities
Mher cash outflows from operating 17 [220,332,756,659) (197,571,402,253)
activitles
Nt cash flows from operating activities 24 2,798, 128,629,518 2066.041,75T 855
Adjustments for
Purchase and construction of fixed asseis 21 (3,090,639,824, 854 (2, 385.642,111,728)
and other long-term assets
Proceads from disposals of fixed assets 12 B46,150,504 689 95, 187,760,330
and other long-term assets
Loans 1o other entities and payments for 23 (6,805,556, 708, 760) (8,186, 708,335,708)
purchase of debt instrumenis of ather
entities
Collections from borrowers and procesds 24 6,701, 753,928,991 5745,841 396,984
from sabe of debt instroments of ather
antitiea
Eguity invertments in other entities 25 (332,099,938 458) (2,447,862,450)
Praceeds from sales of investments in 26 106,205, 48 450 17.585,790,150
other entities
Interest and dividends received 27 368,021,672,950 471,447,342,944
Net cash fTows from investing activities I (2, 200,0 74,606,952 (1,244, 736,019, 459)

The aecompanying noted are an integral part of these consolidated financial statsmens 14
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JOINT Form No. B 09 - DN/HN

ETOCK COMPANY For the fiscal vear
No.! Dao Duy Anh, Phuoeng Mai ward, ended 31/12/2004
Dong Da District, Hanoi
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONT'T)
(By indirect method)
For the flscal year ended 31 December 2024
[tems Code MNote Year 2024 Year 2023
WD VD

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bomowings 33 470,458 442,708 352.3121.414,30%

Repayments of bomrowings 34 (548,833,154 504) (557,972,094,150)

Finance lease principal repayments 35 - -

Dividends and profits paid 36 (46,326,570,024) {212,268 501,333)
et caxh flows from financing activiiles i (124,661,328 1,820) (AI7 010088, 174)
Met incresse/decrease in cash and cash 20 467392, 740,747 403,386,557,212
equivalents
Cash and cash squivalenis af the 11 4 2771 44821 7598 1,364,234 648,554
beginning of the year

Effect af forelgn exchange differences 61 16,171,187,038 (16,172,98%,168)
Cash and cash equivalents gt theend of 70 4 3,255,012,146,283 2,771,448.217,598
the vear

Hamai, 03 March 2035
and - irector
Preparer ﬁﬂ uﬂiﬂ Hﬂ:ﬁm o0 g Di
h@'&lr
'ﬁl/ | | HANG HA|
M VIET NAM
.:; ETEF‘ _
E SBal1¥ 4
¥u Thi Thanh Dayen Le Duy Duong guven Canh Tinh

The accompanying noted are an integral part of these comsolidated financial stalements 15
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JOINT Form No. B 09 - DN/HN
STOCK COMPANY Far the fiscal year
Mo, Dao Duy Anh, Phioong bai ward, ended 31/12/2024

Dong Da Distriet, Hamod

e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(These morer are on baegrad part of ard showld be read bt corjunc tlor with the eocempanglag finanelal statemenis)

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

L4

GENERAL INFORMATION

STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIF

Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company was established under Decision No.
250/TTg dated 29 March 1995, issued by the Prime Minister. On 29 September 20046, the
Corporation was converted to operate under & Parent Company - Subsidiary Company
model, in accordance with Decision No. 2162006/QD-TTg issued by the Prime Minister,
At the same time, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 2172006/QD-TTg on the
establishment of Vietnam Maritime Corporaticn.

On 25 June 2010, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 985/QD-TTg approving the
transformation Vietnam Maritime Corporation into a onc-member limited liability company
owned by tha State.

As part of the restructring project of Yietnam Maritime Corporation, approved by the Prime
Minister, the Corporation cared out financial setihment and enterprise valaation for
equitization at 31 December 2016, On 08 December 2017, the Minister of Transport issued
Decision No. 3402/QD-BGTVT, amoucing the cnterprise value for the equitization of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Parent Company. On 20 June 2018, the Prime Minister
iszned Decision No. 75 L/QD-TTg, approving the equitization plan for the Corporation. On

1% June 2020, the State Capital Management Commitiee at Enterpriscs issued a Decision Mo,

277/QF-UBQLY, adjusting the charter capital scale and structure based on the results of the
initial public offering of Vietnam Maritime Corporation. The Corporation successfully held
the first General Meeting of Shareholders on 13 August 2020 and officially transitioned into
a Joint Stock Company on 18 August 2020,

The Corpotation operates under the Business Registration Certificate No. 0100104595 first
issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Hanoi City on 07 July 2010. As of
18 August 2020, the Corporation was issued its seventh Business Registration Certificate,
officially transitioning Joint Stock Company with a chater capital of VND
12.0035,880,000,000.

The Corporation’s headquarters is located at Ocean Park Building, No. | Dao Duy Anh,
Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS FIELD

The Corporation's main business activities include constal and ocean freight transportation,
inland waterway and road transportation, and supporting services related to transportation;
port and inland waterway terminal operations; agency services, freight forwarding, logistics,
warchousing, and storage of goods, as well as debt trading,

NORMAL PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS CYCLES

The Corporation’s normal business cycle is within 12 menths.

STATEMENT OF COMPARABILITY IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Comparative figures are based on the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
finencial year ended 31 December 2023 and are fully comparable.

It
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE

MENTS (CONT'D)
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GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT'D

1.
1.5
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CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE

The Ceorporation has subsidiarics whose financial stmatements are consclidated as of 31

December 2024, including:

Mame of subsidiaries

Wiet Mam Chocan
Shipping Agence
Corporation
Vietam Ocean
Shipping J5C

VIMC Logistics J5C
Cam Ranh Port JSC

Vinaship JSC
Port of Hai Fhong J5C

Mghe Tinh Port J5C
Salgon Port ISC

Da MWang Port JSC
Yiemam Container
Operation Co.Lid
Wiemam Hi-Tech
Transporation Co..Lad
Bien Dong Shipping
Co, Ltd

Cai Lan Port Investment
F5C

Hau Giang Maritime
Service One Member
Co.Lid

Can Tho Port J5C

Vinalines Wha Trang JSC
Quy Nhen Port JSC (1)

Cam Ranh Port Maritime
Barvice 15C

Dinty Viu Port Imvestment
and Development J5C
Hai Phong Fort Tugboat
and Transport 1SC

Hoang Diea Port One
hMember Co. Ltd

Hai Phong Port Medical
Center One Member
Co.Lid

Haiphong Port Operations
And Enginecring Training
One Member Co.Lid

Place of
eatablishment

and aparation
Ho Chi Mink
Hai Phong City

Ha M Ciry
Khanh Hea

Hai Phong Ciry
Hai Phong City

Nghe An
Ho Chi Minh

Da Mang City
Hai Fhong City

Ha MNoi City
Ha Mot City
Quang Ninh

Hau Gizng

Can Tho City

Khanh Hoa
Binh Dinh

Khanh Hoa

Hai Phong City
Had Fhong City
Hai Phong City

Hai Phong City

Hal Phong City

Bateof Rateof
imteres  wvolting

rights
5105% 51.05%
51.00%  51.00%
5050%  60.59%
BD.O90%  BD.S0G
51000  51.00%
0256%  92.56%
SLO00%  51.00%
65.45%  65.45%
75.00% T5.00%%
60.00%  A0L00%:
56.00%  56.00%
100.00% 100,008
56.58%  56.5E%
[00.00%  100.00%
00.01% 9RO01%
D1 01.79%
75.01%  7501%
41.26% 51004
47.21%  51.00%
55.54%  60.00%
92.56%  100,00%
92 56% 100.00%
92.56%  100.00%

Principal activities

Maritime servics

Sea transport service

Maritime service
Seaport and terminal
handling service
Sea ransport service
Senport and terminal
handling service
Seaport and rerminal
handling service
Eeaport and terminal
handling service
Seaport service

Sea transporl seryice

Seaport and terminal
handling service
Sea transport service

Seaport and terminal
handling service
Seaport and terminzl
handling service

Scaport and terminal
handling service
Sea transport service
Seaport and terminal
handling service

Seaport and terminal
handling service
Maritime scrvice
Seaport and terminal
handling service
Dich vy khém chita
beéinh

Health care service

17
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JOINT Form No. B 09 — DN/HN

STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
Wo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phueng Mai ward, ended 31112/2024
Dong De District, Hamoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thase mater are am integrnd part af rad showld be read (n confenction with the accompaing frnarciel ratements)

Mo Name of subsidiaries Place of Rate of Rateof Principal activities
estnblishment interes  voling
and speration rights

24 54l Gon Logistics JSC Ho Chi Minh 48.52%  74.13% Maritime service

25 Sai Gon Hiep Phuoc Port Ho Chi Minh 59.26%  00.54% Seaport and terminal
IsC handling service

26 Sai Gon Port Techical Ho Chi Minh 41.44% 6331% Maritime service
Service Commercial 1SC

7 Sai Cran Port Maritime Ho Chi Minh 33.38%  51.00% Maritime service
Service and Trasport JSC

28 Sai Gon Port Stevedoring ~ Hoe Chi Minh 34.51%  52.71% Maritime service
and Senvice IsC

29 VOSCO Manpower Supply  Hai Phong City 51.00%  51.00% Supply manpower
one Member CooLid

30 Hau Giang Port Service Hau Giang 51.00%  51.00% Maritime service
JEC

31 Vinaship Maritime Service  Hai Phong City  51.00%  51.00% Maritime service
Cio, Ltd

32 Quy Nhon Port Logistics  Quy Nhan 75.01%  75.01% Maritime service
Services Co,. Lid

33 VIMC Container Ha Mai 00.56%  99.56% Seaport and terminal
Transport JSC (VIMC handling service
Lines) {ii)

34 Vietnam maritime TP. Hai Phing £1.00%  50.55% Maritime service
development joint stock
company

35 WI18C Dinh Vu Port JSC Hai Phong City 51.00%  50.55% Scaportand terminal

handling service

{i} In September 2015, the Corporation divested its capital in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company
(ONF) under a share transfer contract with Hop Thanh Investment and Mineral Jomt Stock
Company (Hop Thanh). On 27 May 2019, following the Government Inspectorate's conclusion on
the equitization of QNP, the directive of the Permanent Depoty Prime Minister, and guidsnce from
competent authorities, the Corporation signed contract No. 012019/ VNL-HT/CGCP with Hop
Thanh regarding the transfer of ownership of QNP shares. On 29 May 2019, the transfer of
ownership of 30,312,262 shares, equivalent to 75.01%% of QNP's charter capital, to the Corporation
was executed through the Victnam Securities Depository.

According to the contract, the total transfer value includes (1) the transfer amount and (2) the
investor's legitimate interests, as follows:

- The transfer amount (1) was VND 415,156,027,500. This amount was paid by the
Carporation to Hop Thanh on 27 May 2019 and was temperarily recorded as an investment
in QNP on the date of ownership transfer.

- The investor's legitimate interests (2) represent the legal benefits that Hop Thanh is entitled
to during its investment, menagement, and operational period. The two parties agreed that
Hop Thanh would provide the basis and methodology for determining these benefits, which
the Corporation would review and submit to the competent authorities for approval.

1B
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT Form No. B 09 — DNEN

STOCK COMPANY For the fizcal year
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phaong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Diong Da Distriet, Hamai

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
(These Aotes are an iasegro! part of and showld be reed fn cogjuncelan w it the aocompomping fineneial starements)

¥; GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT'D)
15 CORPORATIONS STRUCTURE [CONT'D)

As at 31 December 2024, the parties have not yet determined the value (2) of the legal
benefits that Hop Thaah is entitled during the investment, management and operation
period. Therefore, the Corporation has not yet paid this amount to Hep Thanh and the
investment value has not been recorded in the separate financial statcments

(i) The company was newly established in the year according to the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No, 0110710348 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and [nvestment
on 10 May 2024, with a charter capital of VND 1,015,000,000,000. As of 31 December
2024, all parties have completed their capital eontributions as per the business registration.

2. BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLTDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL YEAR

1 BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 of the
Corporation have been propared based on the consolidstion of the separate financial
statements of the Corporation and the financial statements of its subsidiaries under the
Corperation’s control (the Subsidiaries), which have been prepared for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024. Control is achieved when the Corporation has the ability to
povern the financial and operational policies of the investes companies to obtain benefits
from their activities,

The financial statements of the subsidiaries apply accounting policies consistent with those
of the Carporation. Where necessary, the financial statements of the subsidiaries arc
adjusted to ensure consistency in the accounting policies applied by the Corporation and its
suhsidiaries. The financial statements of some subsidiaries and associates, including Bien
Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company, Cai Lan Port Investment Jnint
Stock Company, Hau Giang Maritime Services One Member Limited Liability Company,
Vinalines Nha Trang Joint Stock Company, and Cai Mep International Port Limited
Liability Company, contain events indicating the presence of significant uncertainty, leading
to substantial doubt about their ability o continue as a going concemn. These concerns arise
from factors such as significant accumulated losses and short-term liabilities exceeding
short-term assets, However, the finaneial statements of these companies have been prepared
under the going corcem assumption for the purpose of conselidation into the Corperation’s
consclidated financial statements. The Corporation’s Board of General Directors believes
that, given the ongoing aggressive restructuring of loan debts and the highly positive
developments in the maritime transportation market, the assumption of going concem for
the preparation of these companies’ financial statements iz appropriate.

Major balances, income, and expenscs, including unrealized pains or losses arising from
intra-group transactions, have been eliminated in the consolidation procsss.

Non-controlling interests represeat the portion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries

that are not held by the Corporation. These are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement and within the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet.

19
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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32

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL YEAR (CONTDY)

APPLICABLE STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING FOLICES

The Carporation applies Corporate Accounting System issued under the Circular No.
200201 4/ TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance, which was
amended and supplemented by Circular No. 532016/ TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by the
Ministry of Finance and follows Circular No. 2022014/TT-BTC, which provides
guidelines for the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statcments.

The Consolidated Financial Statemenis are presented in Vielnamese Dong (WML,
following the historical cost principle and in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on the
preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Carporation begins on 0] January and ends on 31 December. Thess
Consalidated Financial Statements have been prepared for financial yeor ended 31
December 2024,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Carparation in the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements arc as follows:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in eccordance with Vietnamece
Accounting Standards requires the Board of General Directors o make estimates and
assampticns that affect the reported amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date, and the reported amoants of revenues
and expenses during the financial year. Actual operating results may differ from thess
eslimates and assumptions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are converied into Vietnamese Dong (VND) st the actual
exchange rate applicable on the transaction date, Exchange rate differences arising from
these transactions ars recognized as revenue or expense during the financial year.

Monetary itemns denominated in foreign currency at the end of the financial year are
translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the Statement of Financial Position date, as
follows:

- For assets: The buying rate of the Commercial Hank where the Corporation
regularly eonducts transactions

- For liabilities; The selling rate of the Commereial Bank where the Corporation
regularly conducts transactions.

Exchange rate differences arising from the revaluation of year-end balances, after offsetting
increases and decrenses, are recognized as financial income or financial expenses in the
curment yoar,

—
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STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
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Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These mafes are an infegral part of and should be read in corfuncrion with e oooompanyieg fnancial statements)
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35

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’DN)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term investments
with an original maturity of no more than three months from the investment date, that are
highl Tiquid, readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and sabject to an insignificant
risk of value fluctuation.

BUSSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL

Rusiness combinationz are sceounted for using the purchase method. The cost of a business
combination includes the fair value at the exchange date of the exchanged assets, liabilities
ineurred or assumed, and equity instruments. issued by the acquirer in exchange for control
over the nequirce, along with direct costs refated to the business eombination. Identifiable
assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities of the acquiree in & business combination are
recognized at fair value as of the acquisition date.

Goodwill or gain from a bargain purchase is determined as the difference befwesn the cost
of the investment and the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary as of the
acquisition data when the parent company gains cantrol over the subsidiary. Any gain from
a bargain purchase (if applicable) is recognized in the comsolidaied income statement.
Goodwill it amortized on & straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years.
Periodically, the Company assesses goodwill impairment in its subsidiaries. If there is
svidence that goodwill impairment exceeds the annual allocation, the impairment amount is
recognized immediately in the yvear it occurs.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Trading securities are initially recognized at cost including the purchase prices plus any
directly attributable transaction costs (if any), such as brokerage fees, {ransaction foes,
information service fees, taxcs, Jevies, and bank's foes. Adter initial recognition, tradmg
securitics ane measured at cost minus any allowance for impairment. Upon disposal or sale,
the cost of trading securities is determined using the first in first out method or weighted
average method,

Held-to-manurity investments comprise term deposits held to maturity o earn profits
periodically and other held to maturity investments. These investments are initially recorded
at cost including purchase price and related transaction costs. After initial recognition, these
invesiments are recorded at their recoverable amsount, Interest income from held-to-maturity
investmenis after the purchase date is recorded on the income statement on an sccrual basis.
Interest carned before the acquisition date is dedusted from the initial cost ot the time of
purchase.

Investments in subsidfaries, joint vemtures, and associates acquired during the year are
recognized by the acquiring entity based on the acquisition date, acquisition cost, and
accounting procedures in compliance with the accounting standards on "Buginezs
Combinations” and "Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates."

In the Consolidated Financial Statements, investments in joinl ventures and associafes are
aceounted for using equity method. Under the equity method, the investments are initially
recorded in the consolidated halance sheet at cost and subsequently adjusted for changes in
the Corparation’s share of the net assets of the associate after the acquisition date. Goodwill
arising from investments in associates is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
The Corporation does not amortize goodwill but assesses its impairment annuvally to
determine whether a write-down is necessary.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'IY)
35 FINANCIAL INVESTMENT (CONT'D)

For adjustments to the value of investments in joint ventures and associates arising during
the period, the Corporation excludes the portion of preferred dividends attributable lo other
shareholders (if preferred shares are classified as equity); the estimated allocation for reward
and welfare funds of joint ventures and associates; and the profits related to transactions
where the joint venture or associate contributes capital or sells assels to the Corporation
befare determining the Corporation’s ownership share in the profit or loss of the joint
venture or associate for the reporting period. The Corporation then adjusts the value of the
investment corresponding to its ownership share in the profit or loss of the joint venture or
associate and recognizes it immediately in the consalidated income statement.

The financial statements of associates are propared in the same period as the Corporation's
consolidated financial statements and follow aceounting policies consistent with those of the
Corporation. Appropriate adjustments are recorded to ensurc the accounting policies applicd
are consistent with those of the Corporation when necessary.

Equity Investments in other entities comprise investments in equity instruments of other
entities without having control, joint comrol, or significant influence over the investe.
These investments are initially stated at cost. After initial recognition, these investments are
measured af cost minus any devaluation of invesiments .

Provision for devaluation of mvestments is made at the end of the fscal year as follows:

- For trading securities investments; The provision is based on the difference between the
original cost of the investments recorded in the accounting books and their market value
at the time of provision.

- For longterm investments (not classified as trading securities] and where there is no
significant influence over the investee: If the investment is in listed stocks or its fair
value can be reliably determined, the provision is based on the market value of the
stock, If the fair value of the investment cennot be determined at the reporting date, the
provision is based on the financial statements of the investee at the time the provision is
mide.

- For beld-to-maturity investments: If there is clear evidence that part or all of the
investment may not be recoverable, and the loss can be reliably determined, the loss is
recognized as a financial expense for the year and directly deducted from the investmenl

walue,

3.6 RECEIVABLES

Receivables are presented at their carrying amount minus provisions for doubtful debts and
are tracked in detail according to original maturity, remaining term at the reporting date,
debitor, currency type, and other factors based on the Corporaticn’s management needs.

Provisions for doubtful debts are made for each doubtful receivable bated on the estimated
potential loss, Specifically, provisions are allocated for receivables that are past duc as
stated in economic contracts, contract commitments, or debt agreements, where the
company has made multiple collection attempts but has not yet recovered the debt, The
determination of the overdue period for receivables is based on the original payment
deadline in the initial sales contract, withoul considering amy debt extensions between
parties. Provisions are also made for receivables that have not yet reached their due date but
where the debtor has gone bankrupt, is undergoing dissolution procedures, has gone
missing, or has fled. The provisions are reversed when the debt is recoversd.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'DY)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of
inventories includes purchase costs, processing costs, and other directly related expenses
incurred to bring the inventories to their current location and condition. The net realizable
valne is determined as the estimated selling price minus the estimated costs of completion
and the estimaied costs necessary to sell them.

The value of inventories is determined using the weighted average method, Inventorics are
accounted for using the perpetual inventory system. However, et VIMC Shipping Compamny,
a dependent unit of the parcnt company, inventory value {primarily fuel on ships) is
accounted for using the periodic inventory system,

Method for determining the value of work-in-progress at the end of the period: of work-in-
progress are accumulated based on actual costs incurred for each service or project
comsulting item that has not yet been completed. Long-term work-in-progress are
accumulated based on the actual costs incurred for real estate invesmment projects held for
sale,

Provisions for inventory devaluation are made at the end of the accounting period for each
inventory ilem where the cost exceeds the net realizable value. Increases or decreascs in the
provision balance required at the financial year-end are recorded in the cost of goods sold.

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets (tangible and intangible) are initially recorded at historical cost. During their
useful life, tengible and intangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and carry ing amount.

The historical cost of finance lease fixed assets is recognized at the lower of fair value or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, plus any direcily atiributable costs mcurred
in relation to the finance lease (excluding value-added tax). During their useful life, finance
lease fixed assets are recorded at histocical cost, less accumulated depreciation and camrying
amount. Finance lease fixed assets are depreciated over the lease term and charged to

operating expenses to ensure full capital recovery,

Depreciation of fixed assets is applied on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lite
as follows:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Classes of fived assets Useful lives{Year)
Buildings, structures 20~135
Machinery, equipment 05 - 10
Motor vehicles, transmission 06— 20
Office equipment and fumniture 43 -10
Land use rights with definite term 50
Land use rights with indefinite term Nao depreciation
Computer software 03
Other intangible sssets 02-21

INVESTMENT PROFERTIES

Investment properties are recorded at historical cost. For investment properties that wers put
into use and recorded at cost before the determination of equitization value, the historical
cost and accumulated depreciation are recognized based on the valuation results of the
¢quitized parent company — Corporation, as approved and announced by the competent
authority,

For investment properties leased under operating leases, they are recorded &t historical cost,
accumulated depreciation, and net carrying amount. Depreciation is applied using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life as follows:

Classes of flixed assets Useful lives(Year)
Buildings, structures 20 —-25
Land use rights 50
I frastruchsne 47

The conversion of owner-occupied property or inventory into investment properly DCCUrS
only when there is a change in use, such as when the owner ceases 1o use the asset and
begins leasing it to another party under an operating lease or upon the completion of the
construction phase. Similarly, the conversion of investment property into owner-occupied
property or inventory takes place only when there is a chanpe in use, such ss when the
owner starts using the astet for its own operations or begins prepering it for sale. The
conversion of investment property into owner-cecupied property or inventory does not alter
the historical cost or carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress costs include assets such as equipment that is in the process of
being procured and installed but has not yet been put inte use, as well as basic construction
projects that are still under construction and have not been completed or put into use at the
time of closing the hooks for the preparation of the separate financial statements.

These asseis are recorded at historical cost. The historical cost includes Payments for goods
and services to contractors and supplicrs, Belated borrowing costs incurred during the
investment phase, and Other reasonable expenses directly associated with the formation of
the asset, Depreciation for these assets is applied in the zame manner a8 for other assets and
begins when the asset is available for use.
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311 OFERATING LEASE

Operating leases refer to fixed asset leases in which a significant pertion of the risks and
rewards of ownership remains with the Jessor. Payments made under operating lcases arc
recoenized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

312 PREFPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses related to the business operations of multiple financial years are recorded
as prepaid expenses and gradually allocated to the business results over subsequent financial
vears. The value of goodwill and re-evaluated tools and instruments is recognized based on
the enterprise valuation results of the equitized parent company — Corporation, as approved
and announced by the competent authority.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses into production and business
casts for each financial year are based on the nature and extent of each type of expense,
selecting an appropriste sllocation method and criteria.

The Corposation’s prepaid expenses include:

- Prepaid land expenses: These include prepaid land lease payments, including land-
related expenses for which the Corporation has obtained a land use right certificate but
does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible fixed aseet. These costs are
recognized in the income statement using the straight-line method over the term of the
Jand lease contract.

- Tools and instruments: Tools and instruments that have been put into use are allocated
to expenses based on an assessment of the actual situation, with their costs reflected i
the income statement for the year.

- Fixed asset repair costs: One-time repair costs for fixed assets with a significant value
are allocated to expeases based on an assessment of the actual situation, with the costz
reflected in the income statemment for the vear.

- Rental and insurance expenses: These are allocated hased on the prepaid period.

3.13 PAYABLES

Payables are tracked based on payment torms, creditors, foreign cumency type, and cther
factors according to the Corporation's management requirements. Payables are classified as
either short-term or long-term in the consolidated financial statements based on their
remaining maturity #s of the reporting date.

3.14 BOBRROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Loans and finance lease liabilities include various types of bormowings and lease obligations.

These liabilitics are tracked in detail, based on each loan entity, each loan debtor, esch loan
contract and each type of loan asset, the repayment ferm, the original currency (if any).
Loans with the remaining repayment term of more than 12 months from the reporting date
are presented as long-term loans and financial Jease liabilitics. Loans due within the next 12
meonths from the reporting date are classified as short-term loans and finance lease
liabilitics.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognized as production and business expenses in the period in which
they are incurred, except for borrowing costs that are directly atributable to the investment,
construction, or production of qualifying assets that require a substantial period of time
{over 12 months) to be ready for their intended use or sale. These costs are capitalized as
part of the asset's value when the conditions set out in Viemamese Accounting Stendard No,
16 = Bommowing Costs are met,

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, ell loan interest expenses are recorded in
the Consolidated Income Statment.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates of the amount payable for
goods and services used during the period when no invoices are awveilable or when
accounting records and documents are insufficient, including loan interest expenses and
other related costs.

The recording of accrued expenss as production and business expenses during the year shall
be carried out under the matching principle between revenues and cxpenses during the year.
Accrued expenses are seftled with actual expenses incurred. The difference between accrued
and actusl expenses is Teverted.

FROVISION FOR PAYABLES

Provisions for payables are recognized only when the following conditions sre met:

- The Corporation has & present obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event;

=  There is a probable outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation;

- A reliable estimate of the obligation amount ¢an be made.

The recognized value of a provision is the most reascnable estimate of the amount required
to settle the present obligation as of the financial year-end date.

Omly expenses directly relsted to the inftially recognized provision can be offset against that
Provision.

Provisions for payables are recorded as production and business expenses in the financial
vear, If the provision recognized in a prior financial year exceeds the required provision in
the current reporting period, the excess amount is reversed and recognired as a reduction in
production and business expenses for the year.

UNEARNED REYENUES

Uneamed revenoe refers to the amounts prepaid by customers for asset leases covering one
or multiple financial years.

Uneamed revenue is rocognized in sales revenue and service provision according to the
amount allocated appropriately to each financial year,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

OWNER'S EQUITY

Owmer's equity at the end of year is recognized based on the actual contributed capital of the
owner. which is the charter capital of the Corporation approved by the State Capital
Management Committee at Enterprise under Decision No. 277/QD-UBQLY on 18 June
20120,

At Bien Dong One Member Limited Liakility Shipping Company ("Bien Dong")k
According to the guidelines of the Ministry of Finance in Official Letter No. T51/BTC-
TCDN dated 17 September 2015, the difference between the amount of debt Bien Dong
assumed from the Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Carporation (DATC) and the principal
and interest payable to credit institations (incurrad before the creditor conversion) s
recorded a5 an increase in the value of state capital at Bien Dong. This guidance differs from
the Victnamese Accounting Standards (VAS), whith require such differences to be recorded
in the income statement for the year.

Before 2017, Bien Dong applied the guidance from Official Letter No. T51/BTC-TCON
dated 17 September 2015, from the Ministry of Finance ("Official Letter 7517) regarding the
accounting trestment of the difference between the book value of lizhilities and the assumed
debt value with DATC. Accordingly, the difference between the amount of debt assumed by
the compiny from DATC and the principal and interest payable to credit institutions was
recognized as an increase in the value of state capital at Bien Dong.

Erom 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong adopted the Vieinamese Accounting Standards (VAS),
under which the difference berween the amount of debt assumed from DATC and the
principal and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded in the income
statement for the reporting year

Frem 2022 to 2023, Bien Deng applied the guidance from Circular No. 46/2021/TT-BTC
dated 23 June 2021, Official Letter No., 751/BTC-TCDN dated 17 September 2015, Official
Lettar Mo, $883/BTC-TCDN dated & May 2017, and Official Letter No. 1440/BTC-TCDN
dated 8 February 2021 from the Ministry of Finance,

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards
(VAS) in recognizing these amounts, then on the consalidated balance sheet 2s of 1 January
2024, the Revaluation Surplus (Code 416) will decrease by VIND 2,166.24 billion, while the
Undistributed After-Tax Profic (Code 421) will increase by the corresponding amount.
Similarly, as of 31 December 2024, the Revaluation Surplus (Code 416) will decrease by
VND 2,166.24 billion, with a correspanding increase in the Undistributed After-Tax Profit
{Codc 421).

Share premium reflects the difference between the par value, direct costs related to share
issuance, and the actual issuance price of shares (including cases of reissuance of treasury
shares). The premium can be positive (if the issuance price is higher than the par value snd
the direct issmance costs) or negative (if the isssance price is lower than the par value &nd
issuance costs).

Other capital within owner's equity reflects business capital formed from business
results, donations, sponsorships, or asset revaluations (if permitted to increase or
decreass the owner's contributed capital). Revaluation surplus is recognized in cases
such as when there is a government decision to revalue assets, during the
equitization of state-owned enterprises, or in other cases as prescribed by law.
Undistributed after-tax. profit reflects the business results (profit or loss) after corporate
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income tax, as well as the profit distribution or loss treaiment within the
Corporation.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue is recognized when the outcome of a transaction can be measured relisbly. For
services rendered over multiple years, services revenue is recognized using the percentage
of completion method as of the balance sheet date. Sale of services is recagnized when all of
the following conditions are met:

- Revenue can be measured reliably;

- It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company;

- The percentage of completion of services at the balance sheet date can be measured;

- Costs incurred in rendering the services and the estimated costs to complete the zervices
can be measured,

The completed portion of service rendering is determined using the completed work
evaluation method.

Income from interest, royalties, dividends, profit distributions, and other financial income is
recognized when the following two (2) conditions are met:

- There iz a probable inflow of sconomic benefits from the transaction,
- The income amount can be measured reliably.

Dividends and profit distributions are recognized when the Corporation is entitled to receive
dividends or profit distributions from its investments,

Common shares or stock dividends: No income is recognized when the right fo receive
common shares or stock dividends is established. The number of common shares or stock
dividends received is disclosed in the relevant consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE DEDUCTIONS

Revenue deductions from sales and service provisions arising in the year include trade
discounts, sales discounts and sales returns.

Trade discounts, sales discounts and sales returns hat occur within the same perrod as the
sale of products, geods, or services are recognized as a reduction in revenue in the pesiod
they oecur. For cases where the products, goods, or services were sold in previous periods
and revenue deductions arise in a subsequent period, the recognition follows these
principles: If the deduction occurs before the issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, it is recorded as a reduction in revenue in the prior period’s consolidated
financial statements (the reporting period), if the deduction occurs after the issuance of the
consolidated financial statements, it is recorded as a reduction in revenue in the current
period’s financial statements (the subsequent period).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

322 COST OF GOODS S0LD

Cost of goods sold in the perlod s recorded in accordance with the revenue penerated in the
period and ensures compliance with the principle of prudence.

3213 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include the following:

- Expenses or losses related to financial investment activities;

= Bormowing costs;

- Losses from the disposal or transfer of short-tenm scourities, and transaction costs for
selling securities; '

- Provisions for impairment of trading securities, provisions for investment losses in other
entities, foreign exchange losses from currency sales, and foreign exchange rate losses.

These expenses are recorded al their gross amounts incurred during the year and are not

offset against fimancial income.

324 CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Current corporate income Tax (CIT) expense and deferred CIT expense

Current CIT expense is determined based on taxsble income for the period and the
applicable corparate income tax rate for the current financial yeer,

Deferred CIT expense is determined based on deductible lsmporary differences, taxable
temporary differences, and the applicable corporate income tax rate.

Current CIT expense is not offset against deferred CIT expense.

Corporare incame fax rate for ihe current financial year

For the financial vear ending 31 December 2024, the Corporation applies a CIT rate of 20%
for taxable income derived from business and production activities.

Corporate income tax expense includes both current corporate income tax and deferred
corporate income tax.

3.25 BASIC EARNINGSE FER SHARE
Basic camings per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax attributable fo

common shareholders of the Cerporation (after adjustments for allocations fo the Welfare
and Reward Fund and the Executive Reward Fund) by the weighted average number of

comman shares outstanding during the vear.
326 RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered o be related to the Carporation if it has the ability 10 contro] the
Corporation or exercise significant influence ever the Corporation in making finarcial and

operational decisions. Related parties include:

- Enterprises that have the right to control, are directly or indirectly controlled through
one or moré intermediaries, or onder the common control with the Corporation,
including subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint arengement, and associates;

- Individuals who have the right to directly or indirectly vote in the reporting enterprises,
leading to significant influence over these enterprises, key management personnel who
have the authority and responsibility for planning, menaging and costrolling the
Corporation”s activities, including close family members of such individusis;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
RELATED PARTIES (CONT'DY)

- Enterprises owned by aforementioned individuals, where they hold direct or indirect
voting rights or have significant influence over the enterprise.

When assessing each relationship of related parties, the namre of the relationship is
considered, nol merely its legal form.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A sepment is a distinetly identifiable component of the Corporation that is involved in
providing related products or services (business scgment) or providing products or services
within a specific economic environment (geographical segment). Each segment is exposed
to different risks.and returns compared to other segments.

Segment infermation is prepared and presented in accordance with the accounting policies
applied in the preparation and presentation of the Corporation’s consofidated financial
staternents. The purpose is to help users of the finzncial statements gain 3 cloer
understanding and comprehensive assessment of the Corporation’s performance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31/12/2024 017012024

VND VND

Cash on hand 16,561,419,383 14,337,111,932
Demand deposits 1,8S0,964,376,000  1,507,841,317,660
Cash equivalents {*) 1,387,486,350,000  1.249,269,788,006

3,155,012,146,283  1.771,448.11 7,598

(*) Cash equivalents refer to commercial banks with maturities not exceeding three months.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

Short-term

Related pariles

= Internadional Shipping and Labour Cooperation J8C
=Yietnam = lapsm Infermational Transport Co, 180

= Wictnam Horda Logistics Vietnam Ca_Lid

- B3en Dong Logistics J5C

= Vasco Agency and Logisties 15C

= SITC-Dinh Yu Logistics Co. Lid

= HPH Lagistie J5C

-Dong Do - Hal Phong Port Contadier Lines J5C

- Cua Lo Port Tapbaat and Muritime Senvice 150
-8P-554 International Conlainer Services Joint Yenlurs Company
- Cai Mep [mternaticnal Terminal Co.,Lid

- Kaorea Express Sai Gon Ford Co, Lid

-NYK Auto Logistics ( ¥ietNem) Co., Lid

- e Manp Port Tupghoat J8C

= Wighip 15C

= Cai Lan Internationsl Costainer Terminal Limited Liahility
- Domg Do Marene J5C

- Thi Wai General Port JSC

- Baipan Maritime Toint Stsck Company

- ¥inashin Ocean Shipping Co., Lid

- Can Tho Shiphuilding Intrastry and Transport J5C

- 5P - PSA Intermalional Part Co., Lid

= Mogco-Yinalines Ship Repair 150

= ¥igtnom Sen Transport and Chartering JSC

-Hom Can Part Joint Stock Company

Gk i e HEF g g

102024 WA 2024

Amount PFrovision Amnuni Provislon

VMDD VD L] YD

1,744,865 885 828 (254,544,731,67H) 1,503,172 355,537 (241,625,971 142}

Iz EOT 013 547005 058) 1e5,92] 327,083 (4547, 772, 218)
08932411 = 1,904,007 -

124,636,288 - 6037373
1,137,853,872 F H30,194,499

4,655, 791,380 2729489380 .
| {33,307 394 - STRRTSEIT )
- 32,151,600 -

4,543 650314 4,455,304,425 -
Soap8 379 082 5 108,531,636 -
T RS540 - 22 B60.565 -
2,785,844,500 22 522 052,280 .
43,654 666,209 53.3635,974 040 -
403 530 514 - 1 03, 70| 697 -
335,175,057 430443612 -

- - | -

3. 754,770,629 (3,754,779 629 3,754, T 6 (3. 754, TTM9.629)
L R22.051,194 . 1,58 475 (00 -
115, D, i) 025, e, ee -

= 167,404,000 -

24, 000, 00 - = =
703,135,329 {7103, 116,320) THIO01 5K (702003 581}

2 e 112954111 -

- £,000, 000 :

07,00, 300 245,805 831 -
I3, 142, 300 - =
47,000, 500 &
3l
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFPORATION =.J5C
Mo. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form Mo B 0% = DNHN
For the iscal year ended 31/1272024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT I
i Thece noker arr on dnte e por ol md shouie Be read t coniieciion wdh the aecowgpavrimg finomolal sioteseminl

5 TRADES RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(itver parifes

- Denmar Chartering & Trading GmiH

= [MC Invesimani and Trading 18C

- Maersk Lines A/S

- Billion Industrial YViemam Ca., Lid.

= (lcenn Metwork Express Pie Led

- Phuoe Long Port Co., Lid.

< &ni Gon Port Coal J8C

= Mam Tricw Shipping Co,Lid

- Maigai Mitto Logestics Vietmam Co., Lid.

- Mekong Internationnd Trenspor Company

- Sal Gun Port Coal JSC

= Mui Phao Mining Co, [1d

« Horth-East Regionnl Séate Reserve Depanimen
- Dhier trede receivables

Lomg-term

Refated parties

- Cai Mep Imlernational Terminal Co_Lid (*p

327024 01012024

Amouni Provigion Amound Provision
YD YD VD YN
{52, 747,002 815 (248 006 875,720 1 397.25] BB A5 (237,088,100 832
16,658 268,724 (16,638 268 724 16,658, 268,724 (16,658,268, 724)
G0, 597 S0E 042 (60,597 S9% Q41 65437 185 833 (59727257, 172)
10,561,674,714 : 0563, 162,165 -
16,319,008 430 19,726,656 390 -

24,778 805,976 25,766,212 030

TA73, 162,500 8,709,947 634
B, 65T 005 546 . 32427,170,315 -
21,977 044 420 (21,4977 044 220 21,977 044 420 (21,977 044 420
14,116,722 448 - 12218524 5395 g
6,204, 501,642 PL 127,586 306 -
106,934,002 S8.732.114,604 -
23,9010 382470 42 354 561 913 -
' E 20,594,864,484 :
LAV 75982 211 (150,763, 961,634) LOSES58. 147,181 CIAET25629516)
03,599, 714,342 - 102,845,157 875 -
08500, TI4 342 02843 T5T8TS -
93,5090 714,347 s M2, 843,157 875 -

1.838,469,604,170 (254,544, T 167H) 1,606,015,513 412 !ﬁlﬁﬁg!g&]

(*) Receivable from Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Lid. [CMIT) related to infrastructure facility rental fees at Cai Mep Port, This includes a
receivable refated to deferred land rental payments as per the contract agreement for the period from 2013 to 2019, This amount will be paid in 24
installments starting from 30 June 2019, until 31 December 2030, On 30 June 2023, Saigon Port and CMIT signed a temporary payment deferral
apreement with the lessors. Accordingly, the land rental payments deferred under the contract agreement for the period from 2013 to 2019, for the first
four installments, will be further deferred and will commence from 30 June 2025,

e e O
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC
Mo, | Deo Duy Anh, Phuong Mai W
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Form No B 09 - DNHN

Dong Da District, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended 31/1272024

[Thete mates are an integeal poet o ard showdd e read b confasction with g acvompaaping Tnarmcil stalcmesits)

.

ADVANCES TD SUPPLIERS
31122024 0170172024
Amouni Provislon At FProvision
WD VND YIND VHND
Short-term 0i14.476,701,248 (57,530,883, 080 723,497,121,304 (57,539,B83,989)
Refated parties 2.676,105,764 : 500,830,480 -
Construction Consultation JSC for Maritime Building IR0,184,500 500, 830,480 -
Dong Do Marine JSC 2,495,921 264 - - -
Cher parie 91 B0, 505 484 {57,539,883,089) 732 906,290 824 {57, 519,883,989)
Bachdang Shipbuilding Co.,Lad (1) 6,262,562 .000 (49,238 258 319 69,262 562 009 (49239 258,319}
Mitaui E & 8 Co., Ltd 18,086,362 479 - 190,746, 156,888 -
Weam Trieu Shipbuilding Co. Ltd (2) 256,655,705, 7THO 260,255,705,789 -
Huynh Thy Trading Services Co.,Ltd - - 44 988,000,000 .
Others 457,795,965 207 {%,300,625,670) 157,653,836,138 (8,300,625,6707)
Long-term 24,653,395 581 - 14,6553,398,551 -
Real Estee 10 15C 24 653,308,581 . 24,653,398,581 -
—_929.130,099.829 (57.539,8R3,959] T745,150,519,555 {57,530 883 089}
(1) Includes:

= Advance payment related to Contract No. 01/VNL-BD dated November 22, 2010, signed between the Parent Company — Corporation and Bach

Dang Shipbuilding Company for the construction of three vessels: BV-10, BV-11, and BY-132, amcunting to VIND 49,239,258,319. This advance
payment exceeds the finalized settloment value due to the projest termination.

- The remaining amount is an advance payment for the construction of the Lucky Star and Bine Star vessels with Vietnum Sea Transport Joint Stock
Comparny. The parties are currently completing the necessary procedures (o finalize the vessel settlement value.

(Z) Advance payment to Nam Trieu Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company for the construction of the Vosco Sunrise vessel of

Vietmam Sea Transport Joint Stock Company. The two parties are in the process of completing the necessary procedures for the final settiement of
the vessel's value.

i3
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No B 09 - DN/HN
No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi For the fiseal year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

{These noter ore o integrol part of ol showld be read In corfuncrisn with rhe eocompanying fnarclal flatenmenis)
LOAN RECEIVABLES

T

31122024 010172024
Aot Frovision Ampunt Provision
WD YND VNI WD
Short-term 203 L8R DN B0 - 65,212, (118 0 -
Retated pariies 202,068, 004,000 - 63,812,000,000 -
SPSSA International Container Serviees Joint Venure Company (i) 202,040%,000,000 7 53,812, 0410,000 :
ficker partics _ 1, 408,000,000 - 1,404,600, 2040 -
[xkers L4000 L0000 = 1, 400,000,000 .
Long-term 1,080,764,677 466 - RR3, 211,680,000 =
Relared parties 1,080,764 677,400 - FA3.211,680,000 -
SP.884 Internationel Contamer Bervices Jolnt Venturs Compony (i) 337,100,530, 040 - S14, 108,000 000 -
EPPSA Inernationa] Pon Co,Lad (i) 424074, 330, M) - G, D03, ER0, 000 -
Cai Lan Internationnl Comdminer Termimal Co, Lid, (135) J1 8,689,407 466 - = =
e | s N -
(i) Loan under Resalution No. 11%NQ-CSG dated 16 March 2023, issued by the Board of Directors of Saigon Port Joint Stock Comparny
(Saigon Port), a subsidiary of the Corporation, approving the restructuring of the loan debt of Szigon Port-58A International Container
Services Co., Lid, (SSIT) with credit institutions, in accordance with the Loan Agreement Terms and the Sharcholder Financing
Agreement, Specifically, the shareholders agreed to finance the buyout of SSIT's loan and all outstanding debt obligations, with a total
required funding of USD 48,000,000, of which Saigon Pert contributed USD24,000,000 (through a term loan of USD 24,000,000 at an
exchange rate of 23,518 VND/USD). On 23 June 2023, Saigon Port completed the disbursement of VND 564,432,000,000 to SSIT
under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated 28 April 2023, and the SSIT Restructuring Agreement. The loan has a S-year term, an
interest rate of 5.3% per year, and is unsecured.
(ii) Loan to SP-PSA International Port Co., Lid., with a principal amount of USD 4,950,000 (from the Parcot Company — Corporation)

and USD 11,880,000 {from Saigon Port), under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated 26 August 2008, Thig corresponds to a 15%
cquity contribution from the Corporation and 36% from Saigon Port in SP-PSA International Port Co., Lid.. The loan is subject to an
interest rate based on SOFR (Secured Ovemight Financing Rate) and is repayable upon request by PSA Vietnam Pte Lid. (the lender).
At the time of preparing the financial statements, the Corporation and Saigon Port were still in discussions with the parties to finalize
the amendment of the loan agreement and the basis for caleulating accrued interest receivable and payable.

(iif} Receivable from Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (CICT) under the debt purchase agreement signed between

VIMC, §SA Holdings Interational, and the lenders, as part of the CICT financial restructuring plan, which was approved by the
Extraordinary General Mecting of Sharcholders on 22 July 2024,
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - J5C

Form Mo B 09 — DN/HM

Mo. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Doag Da District, Hanel . For the Oscal year ended 311272024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONT'I)
{These noder are aa fmizgrn par of and should be read e sonfuderion with the accampaaping fimancial sarements)
8 OTHER RECEIVABLES
JL12A024 UL 12024
Amount Provizion Amonnt Provisian
YD VD VD YDy
Short-tcrm 1,114,081,771,535 (AT 197,245, TRL) TEINT5,000, 0% (AT 03 086,907
- Advances 23.680,410,730 . 23,006,540,315 =
= Collstersls and deposits 57,862 924,614 [162,556,875) 13,654,904,236 (LEZL556,075)
- Receivables from dividends paid, profits distributed 40,250,966 469 {3,287 420975) 4 BT75 445 211 (3,257,420,975)
- Dweposit and loan imerest receivablo 203 108093 332 (7,733 305,728% oo B2 408,141 (71,713,305,725)
= Payment on perhalf Bl 386,274,300 (56,547 406) 18,563,631,216 (96,597 406)
= Input ¥AT must be collected from Terminal Mo, 2 Project - 12,810,751 466 . [2,810,751 464 -
- Receivables from equitisation 28,719,586,556 - 18,719,686,558 E
= Dher receivables V7.0TL.064,066 (35,917.362,79T) 462,552,292,906 (35,754, 805,922)
4 Bachdang Shipbuilding Co., Lid (i} 52,630,298 044 - S, 103,408 832 .
+ Depreciotion and interest on assets of bridge No,  and Mo, iP4,218.263, 761 - 128263, 76
J o Chuin Fe container yard (5l
b Oithers 330234 104 251 (35917 362 707} 218 140,632 333 (35,754,808, 022
Long-term 307,034,939,790 - 112,569,520, 285 (36,567, 700)
- Collatesals and deposits 164, 590 664 640 - 41 454 350 516 -
= Receivables from compensation costs Tor houses, sirsctuses, T4, 166,933 376 - 51,220, 150,029 -
crops, end temporary residence expenscs
= [khear receivables 63248, 341,765 - 19,894, 575,720 (36,567,700}
1421.116,711,325 (47,197 .243,782) B05.045 180,354 !47.[!71,1!-5.&0'?]
35
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORMORATION - J5C

Form No B 09 — DN/HN

Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Donp Da Distriet, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended 31/122024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These saier dre f ineera pord of and shoakd e read in comfumetian with e aocosgemyteg fimimcial simtemels)
K DTHER RECETVABLES (CONTINUELY)
ST N4 01012024
Amount Provision Amoumt Provision
VND ¥ND YND VYND
In which: Other recelvables are related parties 322,821,129.803 (23852 306,009) 168.251,045,998 (23.872.306,00%)
- Cai Mep International Terminal Co. Ltd 1,655,210,725 - 1.680,469,752 -
= SP-PSA International Port Co, Ltd 2125378977105 54519493 496 -
- Winalines Hoa Lac Lopistic 15C 324,126,585 - 324,126,585
- Nam Can Port JSC 1,310,988 907 (3,310,988,907) 3310,988,907 (3,310, 988,907}
- Oriental Shipping and Trading JSC 6,700,14%,507 {6,602 648,507) 6,651,648,507 {6,622, 648,507
- Can Tho - Thanh Tean Port Co.Lid 154,250,000 . 154,250,000 -
- Vinashin Ocean Shipping Co. Lid 97057412225 (12.532,004,846) B1.375.306,536 {12,532,016,848)
- Can Tho Shiphuilding Intrestry and Tramsport 15C 1,006,551 740 (1,006,651, 749) 1,006,651,749 (1,006,651, 749)
= Khuyen Luong Port J5C - - b6, (40, (00 .
- SP-55A International Container Services Joint Venture Company 121521 L0466
- Dong Do Maritime Joint Stock Company 74,364,000 -
(i) [mplementation of Resolution No317/NQ-CNTT dated 23 Movember 2015, issued by Vietmam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), approving
the reassignment of the debt recipient from SBIC's entrusted capital source at Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability Company,
related to the transfer of the 1,730 TEL - V22 veszel construction investment project from Bien Dong Shipping One Member Co., Ltd, (Bien Dong) o
Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Co., Lid. (Bach Dang).
According to the handover minutes signed on 5 August 2015, Bien Dong transferred this project along with the related loan principal and interest
liakilities to Bach Dang as of 5 August 2015,
The outstanding debt represents the remaining amount receivable from Bach Dang after the transfer of project costs, loan liabilities, and interest
expenses [See Mote 24 — Loans and Finance Lease Liahilities for more details).
(i) The amount paid by Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary, into the State Budget, covering depreciation costs and loan interest for Berths

MNo. 4 and Mo. 5 at Chua Ve Port for the period from 2014 to 31 December 2018, as required by the Ministry of Finance under Official Letter No.
301O/BTC-TTr dated 3 April 2020,
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VIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — J8C
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuoag Mai Wand, Dong Da Dhstrict, Henoi

NOTES T0O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { !_'CDNT'I]]

{Theee nater mre an imegral pard af aod shawld be read in confusction with the secompanyiag fnancial simemwenis)

9.

DOUBTFUL DEBRTS

Short=-term

- Bach Dang Shipbuilding Industry Co.,Ltd
Denmar Chartering & Trading Gmbh
DI Investment and Trade JSC

Yinashin Ocean Shipping Co., Lid

Mam Triew Shipping Co., Ltd

Cai Mep Intemational Terminal Co,, Litd.

=

thers

I.rmu—h:m

Dithers

i
o ey

e - N e LY

Form Mo B 0D — DMN/HMN
For the fiscal yeor ended 31/12/2024

Jifirrned a4
Cost Recoverable Cost Recoverable
value v i
YN VD VNI YD
303,051,586,523 219.378,063, 388 374129 804 547 27 879,734,251
40310 358310 - 40230, 258,319 =
16,658 268, 724 - 16,658,258, 724 -
00, 507,508, %2 - G5 437,185,833 5,709,938 561
23.059,435,641 47,535,304 [ 6,547, 728,353 =
21,977.04d4,420 - 21,977,044 420 =
39.7046,522,031 4,843,939, 048 - -
181,813,458 446 20,436,187.636 204,270,378 270 22,1659 805 590
- - 36,567,700 -
- - 36,567, 700
51 3 29 063 IT41606,432.240 __ME_
i)
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC

Form Mo I 04 — DNHN

No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mal Ward, Dong Da District, Hanod

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These noces are an imtepral part of and showld be reoo i confenction with the mecompray g faanciel stafemerts)

10 INVENTORIES
J1/122624 niMn2024
Cost FProvision Cist Provising
VNI YD YIND VD
- Raw materials 431,641,044,485 - 446,133,145,057 ;
- Tools and supplbes 29,133,777,571 . 71,996,756,796 .
= 'Work in progross 538,137,150 - 11327422 057 -
- Goods (*} 219,070,731, 588 (204,319,590, 8003 215,806,187 804 (204,453 892 6500
= Consignments - - 02 018,182 -
659, 383,741,794 (204,319,590,800) ﬁw,uss,m.:si . (204,453,802, 650)

(*} The goods include two ship engines for 47,500 DWT (HB-02/03) built at Ha Long Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company. with a
total value of VND 210.469,590,800. This project was discontinued following Resolution No. S13/NQ-HPTV dated 6 Muarch 20135, by tho
Corporation's Board of Members. These two ship engines are currently being used by the Corporation as collateral with the Vietnam Developmeant
Bank — Northeast Regional Development Bank Branch under the asset morigage contract No. 2019HBTCTS-NHPT dated 29 August 2019, As of 31
December 2024, the Corparation hae made a provision for the impairment of these two ship engines, amounting to VND 204,319,590.800.

11. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

3171272024 01012024
Cost Fair value Cout Fair value
VND VND VND VND
Held 1o maturity invesments

Short-term 5,138,580,323,941 # 5,138,580,323.941 5776990,271,626  5,276,990,271,626
Term deposits (*) 5,138,580,323,941 5,138,580,323.941 5,276,990,271,626 5.276,990,271,626
5,138,580,323,041 5,138,580,323,941 5,276,990.271,626 __5,276,990.271,626

{*) Term deposits ranging from 3 to 12 months at commercial banks.
38



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -.I8C

Wi, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mal Wand, Dong Da District, Hanaoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'TN)
{These males ave aw infegral et of and should be read o porgansies 1wtk B aeeampeping fissein! sefemems)

11. FINANCIAL INVESMENTS (CONTINUEI)

Inveviment in joinf veniures, axsociotey
Company's nome

- Khuyen lwong Part 15C

- Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Lid.
= Can Tho Shipbuilding and Transportation J5C

- YOBCO Trading ond Service JSC

= Vietnam Sea Transport and Chartering 15C

= Nam Can Port Joint Stock Company

- Thi ¥ai General Port JSC

- Hai Phoag Port Investment Development Service JSC
- Hai Phong Marine Invesment and Trading JSC

- Bepull Bhipping Company

- WOSC0 Apency and Lopisties 1SC

- "Ten Hung Phuc Marifime Sendce 15C

- Transportation and Trading Services JSC

- Drong Do Maoritime Joint Stock Company

- HPH Logisties J5C

= Cua Lo Port Tugbout and Maritime Service JSC

- Sai Gon Port Logistics JSC

- D Mang Port Logistics J&C

= KM Cargg Service Hei Phong Co. L4d

Jepl Ko e g piEny

Form Mo B 09 - DM/HN
For the fiscal vear ended 31/12/2024

J1/A2024 011204

Proportion  Proport Value (1) Proportion  Proportion Yalue (i)

of voting on of of voting  of Interest

rights  Interest rights

% %o VND % Y VND
49.00% A5 005% 3B.B42.478 057 49,00 40.00%% 32 552.T07,5590
S00% 28.34% - 50,005 2B.34% -
A% 3345% . 3345% 33.45% -
A6.45% 23.6%%% 20,308.310,076 45,4505 23.69% 20,328 473,544

43.32% 43.31%% - 44.61%: 4461 %0
49.35%  49.33% - 49.15% 49.15% -
21,0085 13.74%, L 7.000,265.402 21.00% 15.74% 12,940, 195,874
30.52%  28.25% 29,757,030, 562 30.52% 28.25% 31,999.714,54%
A0.53% 38.48% 30,990,342, 254 A0.53% 38485 36,004,561 863
- - = 26.46% 26.46% 6,680,107 925
3600%  18J6% 3219817, 702 36%% 18.36% 2,202 661,742
20.00% 13 .09%% 300,000, 004 20.M1%% 13.00%; F00,G00,000
33.49% 33499 S8, 186,491,199 13, 40%, 33.49% 6, 056,914,581
4B.9T% 48.97% - 48.97% 4R.97% -
38.E]1% 35.91% 14,500,553, (69 JER 1% 3592% 16,164,948.515
36.00%  1836% 6,724,806,131 3I6.00% 18.36% 5,876,541 454
20012% 1R.62% 2627 515,041 20.12% 18.62% 1,678,103 402
4510%  33.81% 26,000,530,784 45.10% 13.83% 25,501,991 538
3600594 33.31% 23,770, 148,807 15.00%: 3320 21,380,249.716
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VIETNAM MARITIME COHPORATION - ISC

Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Daong Da District, Homoi

Form No B 09 - DN/HN
Far the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT™D)
(Thaere motdd are an Integral part of and showd be read” b cogfnnctin with the accoempreping finsacin shriements)

11. FINANCIAL INVEEMENT (CONTINUEL)

Investatent in joint venfures, associales
Company's name

- Semart Legisties Servies Co., Ltd. (Hai Phong)

- Da Mang Port Tughoat JSC

- Bian Dong Lopistics Joint Stock Company

- Bai Gon Ben Tre Trading Service Transport Logistic
= Consiruction Consulting for Maritime Building 15C
- Hal Au Maring Sarvics 15C

- Viship Meritime Transport Joint Stock Company

- Vinalines North-East Joint Stock Company

- International Maritime and Laber Cooperation JSC

= Oriental Shipping and Trading JSC (OSTC)

- BP-88A [nternational Container Services Joint Venture

Company
= Can The - Thanh Tuas Port Co.,Ltd

= Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Lid

- BP-PEA International Port Co, Lid

- Korea Express Sad Gon Port Co,Ltd

= WYK Auio Logistic Vietnam Co Lid

- ¥inalines Dong Do Ship Repair Co., Lid

- BITC Dinh Vu Logistics Co.,Ltd

- Mhat Viet Internationel Transport Joint YWenture Company
- Vinalines Honda Logistic Vietnam Co..Lid

- Vinalines Hoa Lac Logisties Viettam Co. Ltd

= Marine Industry Serviee JSC

.l A E e

31122024 01012024
Proportion  Froporti Value (i) Proportion Froportion Walue (i)
of voting on of of votimg  of Intercst
rights  Interest rights
e i YD Yo i YD
20 (%% 18.51%% 15,495,162 924 = = =
36,0 271 31,792,003,335 36.00% A 29,050,220, 748
21 (% 21.00% - Z1.00% 21.00% -
A0.00% 13.09% - 300085 13.09% 200,000,000
49.00%  49.00% 27,249 691,922 49.00% 40.00% 26,604, 292,318
- - - 26.46% 26.46% 14,641 477,187
37.00% 37.00% - 3700 37.00% -
25.00%  23.04% 25.00% 23, 14% -
In008  36.00% - 36.00% 3n.00% -
A%, DS A9 (Mo - 40.00% 49.00%a -
S0 00 % 36.55% TTOE39 255 571 S0.00%: J6.55% 592,831, 899,157
47, 19%; 46.TH% 4,276 490, TR 47.19% d6.72% 5,853,954 912
S0.00% 45 E2% - S0 45.82% =
S0000% 38 54% 439,181, 278,305 50000 3B.54% 303 380,961,023
50.00% 32.71% 30,591,830,926 50.00% AT 31,808, 526,362
20.00% 10.21% 1955271 059 20,1055 I0.21% 4, 781,572,238
45.56%  45.50% . 43.56% 435.36% -
SO.00%  47.21%  184,849,146,303 50.00% 47.21% 204,276,672,941
S0,0% 50,00 37621 103,451 50.00% 50.00% 37,155,841,198
2212%  12.55% 7,622 Q02 183 2L12% 12.55% B.674.589,576
37 R0%, 21,4400 5,506 276,146 37.89%4 21.05% 5,588,940 381
- . - 20.00% 150K % 13,289 887 592
LB A6 1641, 506,308,633
40
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JSC

Na. | Dao Duy Arh, Phuong Mal Ward, Dong Da District, Hanod

Form No B 09 = DN/HN
For the fiscal vear ended 3 [/1272024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IY)
fThete maies are an integral paret of and should be red in confrasciion with the accompanying fimanacial stafsienis)

11.

FINANCIAL INNESMENT {CGHTINHE'[I}
Invesimeni in other entitics

Company's name

Investment in other entities

- Vicinam Moritime Commersial Joint Stock Bank
- Vien Dong Pearl Urban Development [nvestment
Co,Lid

- QT Intemational Port Joint Stock Company

- Quy Nhon Mew Port J5C

= Oithers

[nvesiment in other entities by welfare fund

- Viemam Maritime Commercial Tofnt Siock Bank
= [thera

31122024 01/012024

Gid ghe Dy phimg T3 1§ Gid gic Diphing TV

VND VND g VND VYND o
389.522,247,319  (23,333,078,200) - 405,417,493,658  (23,064,587,030) -
44 105 028,290 - . 189 45,950, 290 206 = [.18%
300,001, 000,000 - 5.56%  300,001,000,000 - 5.56%
13,594,424.002  (21,B80,635615) 1135%  33,594.424,002 (21,BB0,635615) 11.35%
18,000,000,000 - 16.68%  1£,000,000,000 - 16.68%
(6.268,204,913)  (1452,442,585) - 7,831, 770,447  (1,183,951,415) 0.00%
6,000,162,283  (1,000,000,000) = 6,000,162,283  (1,000,000.000)  0.00%
2,593,162,283 . 2,593, 162,283 - 0.00%
3.407,000,000  (1,000,000,000) 3407000000 _ (1.000,000.000) =
39 01 _(24333,078,200) 411!“1@,94 (24,064.587,030) -

(i} For investments owned by the Corporation before 31 December 2016 (the date of enterprise valuation for equitization), the investment value is
recorded based on the enterpeise valuation results for equitization, as approved and announced by the competent authorities.

(i) Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port), & subsidiary of the Corporation, has rocorded an investment in the form contributed capital by
assets, specifically a 600-meter-long wharf (K6, K7, K8, K9, and K10) at Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port, infto to Npgoe Vien Dong Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (Ngoo Vien Dong), with a contributed capital value of YND 300,001,000,000, equivalent to a 5.6% ownership interest. Saigon
Port has not been able to obtain the financial statements of Mgoe Vien Dong Company from 2021 to the present. However, the contribated assets
remain under munagement, operation, end commercial use by the company, and Ngoc Vien Dong has committed to bearing all cosis related to the
management and land use obligations with the State, in accordance with the Agreement dated 31 August 2017, between Ngee Vien Dong and Saigon
Port. The Board of General Directors of the Corporation sssesses that this investment has not suffered any impainment.

R U = L rDmy
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION = J5C

No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanal

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thawa madis ave an fafegral part of ard Sowld be reod i confraction with the aocompering fTnmecial sipemens)

12. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Form No B 09 - DN/IIN
For the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024

Budldings, Machinery, Vehicles, Mangpemenl Dthers Total
sirueiures edq) i prment Tramsparrtaiionm, equlpment
e uipmeni
YND ¥nb YHND YND VND YND
HISTORICAL COST
010 2034 O e, 304, 0T, 324 3,0RE D24 66T TS 18,380,324 035,204 IA5 558 M7 102 51 168,767,729 31215381 305,244
- Construction investmenl hid | 620 458 242 18, 192,660,668 6,070, 488,978 6,430,951,608 672,118 589 496
compbeted
- Purchase in yanr 2,025,303 982 459,103,494 801 &% 1,715,569 440 14,099,540,705 650,750,000 267,654,658,938
- Ligquidation, disposal {3,182,946,171) (89,679.654,858)  (2,219,707,939,212)  (5,600876,214)  (219,563,636)  (2,318.489,980,091)
- Reclassification 12,693.932,774 3,216,142, 188 {15,250,878,055) (550, 196,393 ) . -
- Handower to Hai Phang (556,024 356,144) {263,479,153) (564,347,647)  (L793.710,479) - (360,545,893,437)
City
- Cithier increasesidecrenses (5, 270,868,47H) (15.287.040,000) (3,005,007.490) B85, 060,763 (1,534,625 895) (23,677,649 205)
22024 9,554, 169,628,529 Eﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁi |5mﬁaalﬁm _H"-'.BILHE-.EN S 065 A28, 198 E‘Ilﬂ!ﬁdl!ﬂ]ﬂ!m
ACCUMULATED DEPRECTATION
010172024 (5,361,439,414,013)  (,178,762,787471)  (15,184,280,735,625)  (155.960,816,55K) (45,257,519,675)  (22,928,701,273.341)
- Drepreciation in year {255,412,426,990)  (177,524,303,109) (998,493,525,377)  (20,795,420,855) (3,637,318,733)  (1,435,863,004,064)
= Handover to Hai Phong, 547 660,673,015 235 678,000 564,347 047 2,793.710,479 - 551,254,409, 208
City
= Ligwidation, disposal 3077 292 545 BO.675,162,225 2.172,260,950,696 5699876214 141 634,664 2270954, 916,744
- Reclassification (10,597 674) (2,415,457,400) 1,061,972,680 | 364,352,396 (2) .
- (hiher increases’decrenses (7,760,952 582) B 568,044 243 1,500,842, 745 (786,03 2,682) 1,534 625,895 1,522 805,624
J1FFL 224 s {5,073, 788,715 332)  (2,260,121,759.511) (14,007 386, 047.234) (170,684, 510,006) {'41’,1]3,.1']‘1‘5{"!! El,!li&.ﬂ-l.l-lﬁ,ﬂ]&]
NMET BOOK VALLE
Q10 2ne 4, 10 BG4 600,311 W6l B75 314 S 10, D, 193 660 T, S98,054, 544 1190 1,248,054 #,296,680,031,202
311272024 4 480 483 W)3, 197 1, 144,026,919 63D, 196, 668 (MG 1737, 536,590 B 446,750 549 A,401, 808,663,120
—_— e T e e e ———

The histarical cost of tangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use as of 31 December 2024, is VND 8,891,181,259 (As at 31
December 2023:VND 6,710,265,079,306).

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets pledged as collateral for borrowings as of 31 December 2024, is VND 1,345,974,699,456 (As at 31 December 2023:
WD 2,047,770,799,867).
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No B09 — DNHN
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Far the fiscal year
Dong Da District, Hanai ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{{Thare notzs are on feregral poe of and should he read in confunciion with the accompenying fraacial staremenis)

13. FINANCIAL LEASE FIXED ASSETS

Buildings, Machinery, Total
structures cguipment
¥YND YD YND
HISTORICAL COST
01012024 32500437844  35,700,000,000 58,290,437.84
3122024 22,500437,844 _ 35,700,000,000 £8,290,437,844
ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATION
01012024 (4,047 453,443)  (6,098,750,000)  (10,1346,203,443)
. Depreciation in year (1,126,521,888)  (1.785,000,000) (2,914,521 888)
31/12/2024 (5,176,975,331) _ (7.883,750,000) (13,060,725331)
NET BOOK VALUE
010172024 18,542 1 249,601,250,000 48,144,234,401
3171272024 17,413,462.513 _ 27,816,250,000 45,229,712,513
14, INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Land use rights  Copyrights and Computer  Other intangible Total
patents Sofrware fized assels
HISTORICAL COST
BT 204 THE A43.574,710 5] ORS00 116.706,184049 14396822511 ¥19,988 480,979
- Purchase i yer . 5619,874213 . 4 610,874,233
- Other decreases {931,663,199) - (413,572,0000 210,000,000 (1,138.235,159)
IAL0T4 T87.551,911,520 351858800 LIL003AST,182 14566822511 _ 934,473,120013
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
01/012024 (156,043 605.067)  (351,R9R,800) (B5066046004) (14307915412) (255768466273
. Amonizaton (14,287,216,193) - (11, 787.037.614) (43,904,760 (28,118,158 567)
- (rihee increase B2 AT 641 - 150,476,839 (165,854,835 B9.5972,641
e _(SGWAISN OSSN PEE3EERE) _(ISITEISIL) (28039650100
NET BOOK VALUE
172024 632,439,968, 752 - 41,730,138,855 ST 674,219,014 W6
2204 617,913,490,001 - 35518830313 _ 49147500 653,481 467814

Cost of fully amorized intangible fixed assets but siill in use as at 31 December 2024, s
YHND75,102,581,270, (As at 31 Decamber 2023; WND 42654, 800,559}
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Form No B09 - DN/HN
For the fiscal year
ended 31/12/2024

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —J5C
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanol

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
((Thiere notes ore an iniegral part of and should b read i sonfunctian with the sccompenying firanslal saiementr)

15 INVESTMENT FROFERTIES

16

OLAE2024 Tner=nse in Decrease in JI/1Z2024
yEar YEAT

YND VYND YrD YND

HISTORICAL COST  799,763,848,418 1,796,725,199 - BOLS560,573,5617

- Land use rights 245,797, 525,808 = - 755797525808

- Bauilding 541,158,775,630 1,796,725,199 - 342955500,829

- Infrastructurs 2,807, 546,960 - 2 B07, 545,980

ACCUMULATED (343,668,390.407)  (40,890,061,437) - (384,558 460, 934)
DEPRECIATI(N

= Land use rights (54,459,720271)  (6,141,28].954) = {60,601,002,263)

- Building (288,491 ,858.726) (33,896.919.171) = {372.3887T7.R97)

- Infrastructure {716,820,500) (B51,860,272) - (1,568.680,772)

NET BOOK VALUE 456,095,448,921 (39,053 .336,138) - 417,002,112,6%3

- Land use rights 301,337,805,537  (6,141,281,904) - 1%5.196,523,543

= Building 252 A66.916,904  (32,100,193,972) - 2I0,566,722.932

= Infrestnsctons 2090, 726,480 (E51,B60,272) 1,238 866,208

Investment propertics primarily include the land use rights at Cai Mep Port, the Intemational
Maritime Trade Information Center Building at Wo. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da,
Hanoi, and the Vimadeco Building at No. 163 Nguyen Van Trot, Phu Nhuan District, Ho

Chi Minh City, which are currently being leased out.

The fair value of these investment properties has not been officially assessed or determined
as of 31 December 2024, However, basad on the rental situation and market prices of these
assets, the Executive Board of General Dircctors believes that the fair value of the
investment properfics exceeds their carrying amount as of the financial year-end.

PREFAID EXPENSE

Short-term

- Insurance expense

= Dispatched tools and supplies

- Fixed asset repair cost

- Others

Long-term

- Good will

- Prepald land rental

- Repair costs awaiting allocation
- Tools ond supplies sxpense awaiting allocation
- Pre-operating expenses

- Others

31122024 01012024
WD Y
79,824,461,633 BB 853,920,088
21,284,996, 584 21,284 996,084
18,423,061,033 18,423 061,033
14,618,279,026 14,618 279,025
25,498, 124,890 34,527,583,345
373,585,689,251 400,626,923,848
1,508 764,474 1,508 764,474
70,522, 864,934 70,522,864,934
226,194, 470,270 226,194 470,270
46,834,233 085 46,834.233,085
5.169,139,803 5,169,139,803
23,266,216,685 50,307,451,282

453,410,150 884 489,480,843,936
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFPORATION = J5C
Ho. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,

Dong Da Diistrict, Hanoi

Form No B09 - DN/HN

For the fiscal year ended 3171272024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT D)
{Thase modes are am Unfegral part o and showld be read én compunsiion with B roeampemiig fimeociel sl ane R

17. LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS

Long-term work in progress

Project of constraction of housing for employees of Sai Gon Port -
Phnse 2

Construction in progress

ROOH

$o+ 4+ o+

Procucement of Mxed assets

Construction in progress

Project of 02 container termirals No. 03, 04 - Lach Huyen gateway
port (1}

Consirucilon project of verds behind whorf Ne, 4.5
Consiruction imvestrrernt profect of Sai Gon - Hiep Phueoe 2]
L Cor Port Phase £ 13)

Cai Cui Port Phase IT (4}

Invesiment profect 1 upgrade wharf No. |

- Ly Nhon Port (3)

(ther prefects

Major repair

M2 01012024
Cost Recoverable Value Coat Rocoverable Valug
VNI VD YN YHND
39.141,592,111 39,141,592,111 34,937, THO 457 38,937, 789457
30,141 502,111 39, 141,592,111 38,937, TRO 45T 38,937, 7RO 457
3,489,131, 060,852 3,4890,131,060,882 2,475 402,619,717 1,475,402,619,717
45,360 004,518 45,365 504,529 | A6, 193,525 1,664,193,525
1,442 803 B12,356 3447 ROF BT 54 2.4T72.414,279,892 2472 414,274,802
3154812 152209 3 IA4 12152209 1618 M5, 587,322 JaI8 005 587 322
- H 116,400 032 255 T A0 212, 855
A0 058,053 243 30 056,053, 743 FI7 008 446 715 37 008 4406775
42,404,035 793 42,404,035,793 59 433,908 642 39,433,908,642
BO4TH25475 B,647 825 475 LELT 525 4TS B.647 R25.473
- - 73,258,538, 517 i e A
2o FE3 745136 2, B85, 745, 1 30 20 5aE 08, Fi6 FAR 08 040 36
U857 343,997 957,343,947 1,124,146 300 1,124, 146,304
A 528, 272,652,9003 3,528,272 652 003 = 2,514,340 409,174 - 2514 340,409,174

L S
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C Form No BO9 - DIN/HN

MNe. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fiscal year ended 3171202024
Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thede mores are av [repen sard of ead shonkd Be read in confimetion with the acoompa)ing (indeeial Eorepeenli)

17.

LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'TY)

(17 Project Information — Construction of container terminals No. 3 and No. 4 at Hai Phong Intematienal Gateway Part {Lach Huyen Port Area), Hai Phong City

Investor: Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company

Purpose: To meet the development schedule of investment and construction projects for cconomic and social infrastructure in Hai Phong City
Location: Lach Huyen Port Area, within Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Economic Zone, Cat Hai District, Hai Phong City

Total investment capital: VD 6,946 billicn

Project implementation and expected completion timeline: From 2020 to 2023

Investment capital sources: Estimated 55% loan financing and 45% equity capital

Project scope: Construction of 02 terminals for ships up to 100,000DWT (nearly 8,000 tew) with & total length of 750m, a width of 50m, Barge and
service termingl with a total kength of 250m (including 50m width of the main berth), 15m wide for ships up to 3,000 DWT (nearly 160 teu); Bank
protection embankment; Systern of storage vards, roads, auxiliary works and technical infrastructure, synchronous equipment (meeting goods output
through 1.0 - 1.1 million tew'year) on an arca of 47 ha ; The main equipment for exploitation: 06 STS cranes on the main wharf; 24 RTGs; 02 RSD
forklifis; 01 empty frklifl; 50 tractors + trailers; 01 repair workshop crane, 08 vehicle scales at the port gate and Terminal Operating System (TOS)
software for port management;

Status of the project as at 31 December 2024: The company has completed 55.41% of the total project volume. Phase | is expected (o be put into operation
in March 2025, with full project completion by the end of 20235,

{2) General information about the project

Ievestor; Baigon — Hiep Phuoe Port Joint Stock Companye;

Address: D10C, D3 Road, Hiep Phuoe Industrial Pack, Nha Be District, Ho Chi Minh City.

Purpose: To facilitate the relocation of the Wha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port of Sai Gon Port in accordance with Official Letter No. 1603/TTg-CN dated 10
October 2006, issued by the Prime Minister, allowing investment in ports along the Saigon River.;

Scale: 36.06 ha;

Total investment capital: YND 2,777 billion;

Status of the project: The project has completed 800 meters of berths, two warchouses, and 118,000 m® of cargo yards. The remaining infrastructure is still
under simultaneous construction and operation, utilizing completed facilities. The expected completion date is May 2025.

On 12 October 2022, the Company submilted Dosument No. 99/SPH-2022 1o the Board of Directors and is waiting for the Board of Directors’ approvial
for the adjusted budget. Accordingly, the adjusted estimated management cost is VIND 56,746, 708,000, As of December 31, 2024, the provisionally

capitalized construction value is VND 1,529 891 772,965, The company is in the process of finalizing documentation to request approval for the
adjustment of investrent cost estimates for the project.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - Form Mo B 09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phvong Mai Ward,

For the fiscal year ended 31/122024

Dong Da Disiriet, Hanol
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DY
{Thers medes are on imbegral par of mad shawld e remd in coryunction with the accomprmivag Tl siafements)

17.

LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'D)

(3} Investor: Can Tho Pert Joint Stock Company

Construction purpose: Land reclamation of 23.4 hectares, enhencing the best exploitation of the potentinl of the central maritime
exchange hub i the Mekong Delta region, creating a driving force to accelerate the cconomic development process, primarily for
Can Tho city.

Construction location: Tan Phu Ward, Cai Rang District, Can Tho City.

Total invesiment: 230.3 billion YND

Start and expected completion date: From 2002 to 2011, currently extended beyond the original schedule.

Project status as of 30/06/2024: The project has been completed and put into operation for an arca of 9.5 hectarcs, The remaining
arca has just been leveled, and a scawall has been built, but necessary infrastructure for port operntions has not been investad in yet,
The company is continuing fo invest to complete the project’s components for business operations.

{4) Investor; Can The Port Joint Stock Company

Construction purpose: Development of Cai Cui Port with a capacity of 4.0 - 4.5 million tons/year, receiving vessels with a capacity
of up to 20,000 DWT, enhancing the best exploitation of the potential of the central maritime exchange hub in the Mekong Delta
region, creating a driving force to accelerate the economic development process, primarily for Can Tho city.

Construction location: Tan Phe Ward, Cai Rang Distrct, Can Tho City,

Total investment: 8298 billion VIND

Start date: From 2009, currently extended bevond the original schedule.

Project status as of 30/06/2024; The project has just carried out land reclamation and completed some small components. The
company is waiting to finalize legal procedures and raise funds to continue the investment and complete the project components for
business operations,
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YIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,

Diong Da District, Hanoi

Form Mo B 079 - DN

For the fiscal yvear ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

(These mover are an dategrod gt of and thoald b read ln confunciion with the sccompanying financind stafdmeatef

18, SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

JUFL2EEY 0112024

Amount Abdlity-10-pay Amount Ability-to-pay

amaunt ansaunl

WM VM VN VMDD

Short-term 1,698, 029,979,726 1,698,029,970,726 1,172,462 471,665 1,180,342 877,611

Related Parties 26, 364 577, 000 26,364, 572,900 23 5000, 740, TG 23,500, 746, TR
= Construction Consultatlon J8C for Maritime Building 2082.029,708 2,082,009 TOE 157,926,462 157,926,462
= Cal Mep Intemations] Termingl Co., Lid 49,500,000 49,500,400 400,758,779 400, TSR, 7T
- Kore Express Soi Gion Port Co_Lid TRT, 722,782 TRT, 722,782 1.418,136,333 1,418,136,333
- 8P~ PSA Intermational Port Co. Ltd 142,441,583 142,441,583 3,217,264 3,217,264
- Da Neng Pari Logistics JSC 3,119,967,702 3,119,967,702 6,506,497,031 6,596,497,041
= & Meng Porl Tughoat 15C 526,865,009 0826, RB65,009 11,286,5944,555 11,286,944.555
- {ni Lan International Contaiper Terminal Coo, Lid 1,575,221 T.RT9 3.575.217.87% 275086810 275.680,815
- HPH Logistics ISC 230,620 463 139620463 16,053,552 16,053,552
- Dong Do Masine J5C 00 677,253 2,004,677,253 529,416,000 529,416,000
= WOSCO Trading nrnd Service 150 S04 464,260 594 464, 360 2AGT TR, 564 2467, 708, 564
- SPEs A [niermational Contginer Services loipl YVenhre 3396, 06,293 3,350, TG, 292 = -
- Cum Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime Service 1SC - = 272,905,190 272,905,190
- Salpon Moritime Joint Steck Company 4l 263 266 G004, 2663, 26el 0,561,000 ik, 531 D
- Marilime Industrind Servics Joint Stock Company 141,096,603 141,096,603 14,845,248 14,845,248
(Mher puriies 1,671,665, 400,426 1,671,665 406 816 1,148,961,724, 560 1,156,842, 130,815
= Halong Shipbuilding Cne Member O Responsibility Co, 32.067,042,734 32067, 142,734 32067 142,734 32,067, 142,734

Lid
= Wiotnam Development Bank . - 186,085 462,583 186,085 462,581
- Wietsam Waterway Construction Joint Stock Corporation

~Brmch O] 16,665,300,635 16,665,309,635 21,828,400,049 23.B28.400,045

- Hai Phong Lifting Bquipment Co., Ltd 30,700,000,000 30, 700,000,000 ' 3
= MITSUIL E&S Co., Lid 534 268317506 534,208,517,506 x =
- Phu Xuan Consulting and Construction JSC 246,886,354, 746 246,386,354,746 7,880,405 946 7,880,405,946
= Hanol Water Project Construction JSC - - 19,724,828, 169 17, 724,828,159
. Bnch Dang Shipbuilding Company Limited 72,506,298,515 TLB06,298,515 72,806, 298.515 T2.806,298,51 5
- Orthers 707,571,983,690 707.571,983,600 808,569, 1 86,873 %16,440,562,819
1,698,000,079,726  1,608,029,079,726  1,172,462,471,065  1,172,46Z,471,663

o e—— m—

48



YIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION —

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 1 Dso Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form Mo B 09 - TN

For the fiscal year ended 31/1272024

...... =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT D)
{Thase mades are an integrad poel of awd shoaded be read o canfuncrion with fhe cocowpanying Seancil siaremens)

13, TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

Tax payables

= Value added tax

= Export, import duties

- Comporate come tax
- Personal income tax

- Land tax, land rental {*}
- Environmental Taxes

- Oiiher faxes

Tax receivables

= Walue added tax

= Corporate income 1ax

= Personal income tax

- Land tax, land rental (*)

- Diher taxes

= Fees, charges & other payables

GNP B B Ay

01/0152024  Amcunt to be paid Amount actually 311252024

in year pakd in year
YND YND VND VND
6,535,342,963 153,437.934,538 148,515,399,706 [ 1,457.877,795
- 637,176,957 637,176,957 -
206, 192355417 543,031, 188,895 £71,835,792,480 187,987,791,842
3,045,473,398 82,634,830,397 T1,208,518,410 14.471,785,385
&, 163, BAT,679 216,957, 826,288 185,753,472 431 01,368,223,516
- 458,107,000 458,107,000 -
6,458,941, 767 79,808,223 995 §2,036,554,003 4,230.611,672

202,996,001,234 __ 1.076,965,200,073 1,060,445,021 097 309.516,290.2110

0L/OL/2024 Amount actually  Amount to be paid 31272024
paid im year in year

VNI VMDD WM VD

5449237851 427 548,046 3.104,943,574 2,771,842,323

B.377, 124,607 110,434,852 243,691,401 B.443 868 058

1442219511 450.431,815 1,054, L B9, 234 E38,460,092

145,989,071 348 35,028, 845,711 53, R44 037,033 127,174, 780,026

| 480,892 4,000,000 5,480,892 -

9,645,191 0,545,191 )

161 1] 36,030,905,615 58,161,987 315 139,128.952,499
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19, TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET (CONT'D)

(*} Inchuding:

- Saigon Port has temporarily estimated the remaining land rental fees payable for the
Mha Rong - Kkanh Ho: Port ares up to the time the Company signed an agresment
with Npoc ¥ien Dong Urban Development Investiment Co., Lid. (Ngoe Vien Dong),
the investor of the Wha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Project, under Investment Policy
Decision No. 6815/QD-UBND dated 29 Decemnber 2016, issued by the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City, The estimated amount is VNI 40,247 523,180,
The company has engaged in multiple cormespondences with the Ho Chi Minh City
Tax Department regarding land rental fees for this area for the period from 01
January 1, 2017 to August 31, 2017. However, a3 of the date of this report, the
company has not yet received a final respomse from the competent authority.

- Saigon Port has made temporary payments for land rentzl and lend tax for the
period from 2015 to 2020 at Tan Thuan 1 and Tan Thuan 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Dong)
ns per the notifications from the District 7 Tax Department, Ho Chi Minh City,
totzling VNI 124 474,343 440, The tax authority applied the office rental unit price
to calculate the land rental fee for the entire leased area. However, in reality, most
of the leased area is used for berths and warchouses, which have lower rental unit
prices than those used by the tax authority, Accordingly, the company has sent
multiple official correspondences to the District 7 Tax Department - Ho Chi Minh
City and other relevan! authorities regarding the determination of area, unil price,
and usage purpose for the leased land based on the mentioned netifications. As of
the date of this report, the company has not yet received a final response from these

authorities.
20. ACCRUED EXPENSES

317122024 Dim2024

YD YND

Ehori-term 2. 313,842 060,507 1,138,687 385,014
- Imtersst expense (%) 2,250,074, 143,398 2,169.977,156,047
- Bhiprepair expense 5,013912.043 6,506,366.832
- Expenses for public works of housing ares 15,389,773,022 15,750,687,210

for employees of Sai Gon Port

= Cost of services rended 6, 798,753,561 5,285528,151
- Land tax peyaple 441,209,387 428 256 60
= Others 36,122,269,096 40.739.3%0,114
Long-term 13,852.563,322 14,310,519,982
- Land tax payskle 13,882,563,322 14,310,819 982

2,327,724,623,829 _ 2,252,998,204,9%

(*) Including payables of Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance Company Limited (VFC) with the balance
as at 31 December 2024, consisting of 2 VND loan totaling VND 728.311,773,798, which ineludes
VWD 317,867,277,106 and USD 16,728,423.67 (as of 1 January 2024, the balance was VNI
314,545,473,772 and USD 16,728,423.67), According to confirmation letters and loan interest
notifications from VFC, the interest receivable by YFC from Bien Dong exceeds the amount
recorded by Bien Dong as of | January 2024, and 31 December 2024, by USD 59,208,393.37 and
USD 63.541,824.47, respectively, This loan interest relates to the principal debt used to finance the
construction of the 1,730 TEU W22 container ship, which was transferred w0 Bach Dang
Shipbuilding One Member Co., Lid (Sec Note 8 — Otker Receivables and Note 24 — Loans and
Finance Lease Liahilities for more details.)
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.y

UNEARNED REVENUES

Short-term

Revenue received in advance for leasing
Premises

Revenue réceived in advance fram sea
transport activities

Revenue recelved in advance from port
operation activities

Crhers

Long-term

Revenue received in advance for leasing
premises

OTHER PAYABLES

Short-term
= Trade union fee
- Bocial insurance
- Health insuranca
= Unemployment insurance
- Paysble on equitization
- Short-term deposit, collateral recoived
- Onher payables
+ Dividend, profli payables
+ Imterest payables 1o Bank and other
s iitutions (1)
+ Paymenis on behol/ of and amount

received o pay shipping lines on behalf of

shipping companies
+ Employees” PIT has mot pet been

finalized

+ Compansation costy for the relocarion af

Hovame Dien Part (2]
Chkars

3127024 DLD12024

YND VNI
25,249,417,363 19,997,232 312
3,642.452,775 4,009,026,154
4,267 032,584 4,792,208 946
10,151,840,748 0,535,048,336
7,188,091,256 1,660,948 £36
44,734 415,104 44,662 ,204,284
44,734.415,104 44,662,204 284
(8983 830.467 ____64.633,936,790
JLN22024 oL'01/2024

VND YD
1,542,820,618,819 1,414,230,911 311
10,041, 2094 294 10,081,222,308
376,559,352 21,280,559
03,893,825 09,258,699
165,345,568 3,728,933
160,235,295, 791 18,100,592 423
18,333,909.476 18329,830,505
1,353,574,320,511 1,367,554,997 484
I5057. 717 824 71587 527,412
P44 405253421 1,037 546,445,550
71,740,688 008 V2 EITA08 1T
6.1011,369.870 5,787,994, 255
020,853,831 .
222 248,476, 46T 180,055,623, 326
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22, OTHER FAYABLES (CONTINUED)
3171272024 010172024
VND VND
Long-term 2,381,238 467,846 2,407,085,935 506
- Lonp-term deposit, collateral received 104,315,719,784 62,170,833,632
= Other payables 2.276,922,748,062 2,344.915,101 874
+ Payabie to Fien Dong Fearl Urban & 500, OO, GO0, 000 850, 000,000,000
Developmen: Tnvestment Co,, {8 In
advances for the relocation and support of
emptovees (3]
+ Payabile to Stare budget in capital 599,000,000,000 599, 000,004,000
adwances for the implementarion of Saigon
- Hiep Phuoe Port congtruction imestmant
orofect (4}
+ Tempararily increaze in the original 487 472200, 784 516,672 201,784
cosi of ship (Lucky Swr, Blue Star, Fosco
Sumriss) (5}
+ Shipbuilding Industry Carporation - 197,025,462, 572 191,025,462, 572
Advanre eapital {6}
(khers 149 725,083,706 I88 217 437,318

3,924,059,086,665 __3.821316,846,817

31/1272024 01/012024
VND VND
Other short-term payables are related 34,875,403,269 29240616326
parties
86 - 884 Part Intermational Container 4 455,468,624 841,043,603
Services Joint Venture Company
SP - PSA Intermational Port Co. Lrd 484,324,024 729,914,777
SITC - Dink Vu Logisties Co. Lid . 190,708
Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime S0.300, 0 -
Sarvices Co., Lid
THi Fai General Port JEC 224 573 B43 Fl4,6406.277
Da Nang Port Logisiics JSC - 5,136,480
Da Nang Port Tugboat JSC 157,426,129 57,318,160
Finashin Vien Duong Transpert Co. Lid 28, 302 905, 649 27,283 346,321
Bien Dong Logisiics Joint Stock Company 60,000,000 -
Maritime Construction Consuliing Joint 92,411,613
Stock Comparny (CAE)
(1) Including:

W ah T

- Interest payable to the Vietnam Development Bank — Can Tho Regional Branch rclated
io a loen agresment for the investment and construction of the Hau Giang Shipyard
amounts to approximately VWD 28.2 hillion. After the debt rescheduling period under
Eesolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the Government, this loan
continues to accrue intsrest at the bank's announced interest rate.
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11,

(2)

(3}

(4]

OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Interest paymble to Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability
Company (VEC), amounting to over YND 26.7 billion, related w a loan agreement for
the investment and constructioa of the Hau Giang Shipyard. This project was part of the
USD 600 million foreign loan-funded project portfolio, as stipulated in Decision No.
1986/QD-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June2007, issued by the Board of Directors of Viemam
Shipbuilding Industry Group (Vinashin), with an interest rate of 9.5% per anoum and a
loan value of YND 28.6 billion. As of now, the Hau Giang Shipyard Project has been
permanently discontinued under Official Letter No, 403/TTg-KTN dated 23 March
2012, issued by the Prime Minister. This foreign loan was restructured under Resolution
Nao. 107/N0-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the Government, with a preferential
interast rate, and the company is currently accruing interest at a rate of 1.2% per annum.
However, the Company and VFC have not yet reached an agreement on the applicable
interest rate for the loan principal from VFC since the issuance of Resolution No.
107/NO-CP. VEC haz not yet implemented the debt restructuring under the resolution
and continues to apply the contractual interest rate of 9.5% per annum to the Company.
Interest payable to the Vietnam Development Bank under loan sgreements for investment
in shipbuilding projects, with a total value of approximately YND 490 billion.

In 2024, Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company (Hai Phong Por), a subsidiary, reccived
over VIND 319 billion from the People’s Committee of Ngo Quyen District to facilitate the
relocation of Hoang Dieu Port, in accordance with Decision No. 3983/QD-UBND and Ne.
3984/0D-UBND dated 22 December 2023, issued by the People's Commitfee of Ngo Cuyen
District, reparding land recovery; Decision No. 3982/QD-UBND dated 22 December 2023,
Decision No. 4274/QD-UBND dated 28 December 2023, Decision Mo 347/0D-UBND
dated 15 March 2024, and Decision No. 245%0D-UBND dated 1 October 2024, issued by
the People’s Committes of Ngo Quyen District, regarding the approval of compensation
plans for Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company. OF this amount, YND 34.4 billion was
allocated for msset relocation compensation. As of 31 December 2024, the remaining
balance of the relocation compensation costs for Hoang Dieu Port is VND 90 bilhon.
Payable to Ngoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Co., Lid (Ngoe Vien Dongh.
This payahle relates to capital advances provided by Ngoc Vien Dong in response to the
capital requirements of Saigon Port Joint Stock Company from 2013 to 2015, as approved
by the Ministry of Transport, for the constrection and operation of Phase 1 of the Saigon -
Hiep Phuoe Port project (now under the management of Saigon Hiep Phuoc Port foint Stock
Compsany, 8 sabsidiary of the Corporation), Under the handover agreement dated 31 August
2017, Ngoe Vien Dong agreed to temporarily return the original condition of the premises to
allow the Compeny to continue managing, operating, and conducting business at the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi area while the construction of Saigon - Hiep Phuoe et remains
incomplete, The Company is responsible for campleting the refocation and assel handling
process, provided that Ngoc Vien Dong completes gll legal procedures related to land use
rights. During this period, the Company will not bear any related land usc costs (effective
from 31 August 2017). Once the relocation process is completed, the seitlement of this
capital advance will be carried out between Saigon Port, the Ministry of Finance, and Ngoc
Yien Dong,

This payable relates 1o an advance received from the State Budget in 2009 and 2010 by
Saigon Port to finance the investment and construction of the Saigon - Hiep Fhuoe Port
project, which is now managed by Saigon Hiep Phuoc Port Joint Stock Company, 8
subsidiary of the Compary. According to Decision No. 46/2010/QD-TTg dated 24 June
2010, issued by the Prime Minister, this capital advance must be repaid to the State Budget
once the construction of the Saigon - Hiep Phuoc Port praject is completed. As of now, the
project remains under construction.
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13,

OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(5) Provision for payable to increase the cost of fixed assets at Vietnam Ccean Shipping Joint

Stock Company. The Company is in the process of finalizing documentation to settle the
cost of the vessels Lucky Star, Blue Star, and Vosco Sunrise, including prepayments made
to Bach Deng Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company and Nam Treu
Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company.

{6) Payable to Victnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC). This payable relates to

funding with intorest received from SBIC for operations during the peried from its
establishment until 2009, spacifically for the investment in the Hau Giang Shipyard Project.
This projest was permansatly discontinued under Official Letter No. 403/TTg-KTN duted
29 March 2012, issued by the Prime Minister. The interest accrued on this debt was
restructured under Resolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the
Government, which stipulated the cancellation of accrued interest. As.of 31 December 2024,
SHIC has not yet implemented the Govemnment's resolution and continoes 10 notify the

Company of interest charges annually.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax linbilities
Jmrand 010152024
YN VNI
Daferred income tax labilitics ansing from 468, 876,542,100 493,673,403, 083

deductible temporary differences

468.876,542,100  493,673,493,083
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14, LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

01/00:2024 Duiriag the vear 31/1212024
Amount Ability-te-pay Increase Decrease Amaount Ability-to-pay
amaunt amount
VD YD YND YND YD VND
Short-term loan 1,496,330,731,754 1,496, 330,731,754 247 K92, 298,150 463 549,043,559 1,280,673, 980,345 1,280,673, 966,345
Shart-term loan £5,441,441,303 83,441,441 303 o6,865,128,033 64.577,218,610 117, 729,150,726 117,729,150,726
Current porion of 1.410,880,290,451 1,410,880, 200451 151,027, 170,117 398,871 624 0409 [,162.944,835619 1,162,944 B35619
lomg-term boan
Long-term lonn 1,792,085,060,7T87 1,792, 085,060,787 665,970,441 7,669 458,505,795,615 1,999,549,682 841 1,999 549,682 R41
Total Eﬂélé?ﬂal alﬂé] 5!‘?%‘?41 ‘Hﬁiﬁlﬂlﬂ 9@@&!7‘1 Jéﬁﬂgﬂ!lﬂﬁ hiﬂﬂamﬂ“
Short-term borrowings
Curreney Imterest rate/year (Guaranice JLN22024
WD
Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance Co.Ld (1) UsD Specified in sach loan agreement Unsecured 50 080,000,000
Vietnam Development Bank YND Spocificd in cach loan agreement Collateral 1,051,839,588,728
ODA due loan (3) LsD Specified In each loan agreement Unsecured 23.523,799.299
Oihers VRO Specified in gach loan agreement Unsecured, Collateral 146,230,598,318

i 573,986,345
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(1)

LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lanp-term horrowings
Currency Interest rateiyear Guurantes 122024
VNI
¥ienam Development Bank VD Specified m ench foan agreement Unzecuresd, Coblsteral 248 406,205 507
Viemam Shiphwibding Finance Co, Ltd {1} s Spesified in ench loan sgrecment Linsecured 46,495,501 428
PSA VielNam PreLtd (2) UsD Specified in each loan agrecment Unsecured 425,459,310,000
Long-ferm DDA Joanm (1) LISD &pecified ineach loan agreement Lmsecumed AR1,315.473,043
D Mang City Investment and Developmen Fuad VHD Specified in cach loan agreement Unsegured 257 872 B00 DDD
Joint Btock Commercial Bask fior Investmenl and
Development of Vietnam - Hanai Branch WHD Specified in each lonn agreement Unzecured, Collatersd 225,541 512,583
(bers D Specilied in each loan agreement Unzecured, Collateral 18457 768 0RO
!!WD!.MQI
Including:

The loan of Bien Pong One Member Limited Liability Shipping Company (Bien Bong) with Shipbuilding Industry One Member Limited Liability
Finance Company (VFC) had a balance s of 31 December 2024, of VN59,080,000,000 D (as of 31 December 2023, it was VND 59,080,000,000).
This loan was used to finance the 1730 TEU V22 Conteiner Shipbuilding Project, which was handed over to Bach Dang One Member Limited Liability
Shipbuilding Comparty (Bach Dang). Specifically, in accordance with Resolution No. 317/NQ-CNTT dated 23 November 2015, issued by the Vietnam
Shipbuilding Industry Corporation, which approved the transfer of debt recipients from the entrusted capital ol the Corparation at the VFC regarding
the reallocation of the 1,730 TEU - V22 new shipbuilding investment project from Bien Dong to Bach Dang, and the handover minutes signed on 3
August 2015, between the Company and Bach Dang, Bien Dong has tansferred this praject, including the principal loan and related interest, 1o Bach
Dang from 5 August 2015,

The loan from VEFC was used (o implement investment projects of Hau Giang One Member Limited Liability Shipyard Company sccarding Lo the list
of projects nsing the $600 million foreign loan fund stipulated in Decision No, 1986/Q0B-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June 2007, of the Board of Directors of
the Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Group. The loan carries an interest rate of 9.5% per year, with a loan term of 10 years from the first disbursement
date and a prace period of 2 years. The initial principal loan balance in VNI was mutually agreed upon by the parties to be converted to USD at
1,870,144.91 USD. This loan is sccured by assets formed from the loan capital. The loan was restructured according to Government Resolution No.
LOT/NQ-CP dated 10 Dctober 2017, As of 31 December, the company has cumalatively paid VFC VND 3.5 billion, equivalent to approximatehy
USD.146,133.96 Through the Vinashin restructuring agreement, all outstanding debt has been agreed upon by creditors to be deferred until 30
Diecemnber 2025, with an inferest rate of 1% per year, which will be calculated at the end of the period.
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24,
(2)

{3}

LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

Loan details:

PSA Vittnam Pte. Lid., Saigon Port Joint Stock Company, and Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC are shareholders contributing capital to SP-PSA
International Port Co., Ltd. The shareholders agreed to provide a loan to SP-PSA Intemational Port Co., Ltd. under a shareholder loan agreement dated
26 August 2008, with a total loan amount of USD 33,000,000, including phase A of USD 28,196,202.53 and phase B of USD 4,803,797.47. P5A
Vietnam Pre. Ltd. advanced the entire loan amount, Vietnam Maritime Corporation and Saigon Port will take on the debt with PSA Vietnam Fre. Lad.,
with a total principal loan amount of USD 16,830,000, correspending 1o their 51% ownership in the company,

Loan Purpose: The loan was used for SP-PSA Intermational Port Co., Ltd. to cover project development costs, design, engineering, procurement of
materials and equipment, construction, operations, instellation, completion, financing, maintenance, marketing, replacement, and repair of a two-berth
container port located in Phu My Town, Tan Thanh District, Ba Ria - Yung Tau Province. This includes a 600-meter berth and several quay cranes.
Loan Interest Rate: The intercst rate applied under the Shareholder Loan Agreement was based on the 6-month LIBOR rate. From 16 December 2023,
PSA has notified that the interest rate will be temporarily caleulated based on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR).

As per the Supplementary Agreement (signed on 26 May 2008, between SP-PSA, its sharcholders, and Calyon), all outstanding debis of SP-PSA
International Port Co., Lid, that were not advanced by shareholders must be repaid immediately upon request by the shareholders or the advancing
shereholders. Furthermore, under the Sharcholder Loan Agreement, all dividends and other distributed amounts (if any, for Vietnam Maritime
Corporation and Saigon Port) under the Joint Venture Agreement or Arficles of Association will be prioritized for repaying the principal loan (and
accrued interest) until the loan is fully setled, At the time of preparing the consolidated financial statements, Vietnam Maritime Corporation and
Salgon Port are still in discussions with relevant parties to finalize the contract addendum and the basis for caleulating receivable and payable inferest,
Including:

The loan balance under Loan Agresment No. 02/2004/TDNN, dated 21 December 2004, signed between the Hai Phong Branch of the Development
Support Fund and Hai Phong Port (now Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company). The loan was taken to invest in equipment for the "Hai Phong Port
Upgrade and Renovation Project - Phase 11" project, [t is an unsecursd loan with an interest rate of 1.3% per year, with the final principal and interest
payment due on 20 August 2029, As of 31 December 2024, the outstanding principal balance in Japanese Yen (JPY) is JPY 784,283,500.00 (equivalent
e VIND 121,509,042,655), of which the current portion of long-term debt due is JPY 156,856, 70000 {equivalent o VNID23,523,799 299),

The recognized debt value related to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal - Hai Phong Port, along with other
allocated costs, was recorded based on Decision No, 4196/QD-BOGTVT, issved on 25 MNovember 2015, by the Ministry of Transport. The total
recognized debt value is VIND 383.3 hillion.

According to Decision Mo, 4196/0B-BGTYT and the Minutes of Inspection and Determination of State Capital Value, along with the settlement of
proceads from the equitization of Hai Phong Port One Member Limited Liability Company at the time of its official transition to a joint-stock
company, which was signed between the Working Group of Vietnam Maritime Corporation and the company’s representatives on 10 Octaber 20186, the
company has temporarily adjusted the value of the aforementioned assets and equipment and recognized the loan valuc at a total amount of YND 383.3
billion (ineluding VMDD 342.1 billion as the settled value of the two besths and VND 412 billion as other allocated costs for the equipment package
within the project). This recognition was retrospectively adjusted by the company as of 1 July 2014 (the date the company officially transitioned into 2
Joint-stock company).
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LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

At present, the borrowing and repeyment plan (including loan term, repayment plan, intcrest rate, and security terms), as well as the currency of the
debt recognition (Vietnamese Dong or Japanese Yen), has not been approved by the relevant State management agencies at the time of debt
recogmition. Therefore, the company has temporarily recorded these loans in Vietnamese Dong and has accrued interest expenses fer the period from 1
July 2014, to 31 December 2019, at an interest rate of 9.5% per year, plus a re-lending cost of 0,2% per year. In 2020, parsuent (o Resolution M,
71/MNQ-CHP dated 12 June 2020, of the Board of Directors of Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company, the company ceased accruing interest expenses
from the beginning of 2020.

In Official Letter No. B715/BTC-PLN dated 23 July 2018, from the Ministry of Finance and Official Letter No. 10582/ VPCP-KTTH dated 1 November
2018, from the Government Office, the Government Office agreed with the Ministry of Finance's proposal to review the basis for recognizing the value
of Berths No. 4 and No, 5, as well as the associated loan conditions. The Government Office also approved the policy of re-lending the equipment costs
under & mechanism similar to that approved by the Prime Minister in Official Letter No. 1596/CP-QHQT dated 235 October 2004. Specifically, the re-
lending interest rate in Japanese Yen is 1.5% per year. Additionally, the Ministry of Finance has required a re-cxamination of the company's
equitization process (since the setilement of State capital value at the time of equitization has not yet been approved by the eompetenl authorities).
Once the Ministry of Finance officially approves the loan end repgyment plan, the company will adjust its financial statements accordingly, if
MECCSSATY.

On 11 MNoversher 2022, the Government Office issned Official Leter No. 7642/VPCP-CN, conveying the directive of Deputy Prime Minister L& Vin
Thinh, requiring the Ministry of Transport (MOT) to lead coordination with the Ministry of Finance and relevant agencies to study and carefully
review the possible solutions for managing and operating Berths No. 4 and No. 5 of Chua Ve Terminal, ensuring that the approach aligns with the
actunl asset conditions, operational management, and relevant legal repulations.

On 28 September 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Official Letter No. 10832/BGTVT-TC to the Ministry of Finance, seeking input an a draft
Decree on the management, use, and operation of maritime infrastructure assets (which will replace Decree Mo, 43201 8/NB-CP dated 12 March
2018), In this proposal, the Ministry of Transport suggested adding provisions in the transitional clauses to allow Hal Fhong Port to manage and
operate Rerths No. 4 and No. 5 (rather than leasing them), should the proposal be approved. On December 24, 2024, the Government Office issued
Notice No. 569 TB-VPCP, summarizing the conclusions of Deputy Prime Minister Tran Hong Ha at a meeting regarding the Government's drafi
decree on the management, use, and opcration of inland waterway infrastructure assets, The Deputy Prime Minister agreed not to include transitional
handling provisions in the decree for maritime infrastructure assets formed from State capital. At the same time, the Minisiry of Transport and the
Ministry of Finance were instructed to urgently report a solution for handling these asscts,
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C Form No. B9 - DN/HN

M. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuorg Mai Ward, For the fiscal vear cnded 31/12/2034
Depe Dia District, Hanoi

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DV
(T Threse ratex are o bregral portof omd should be read i confsaction will the meoompanping fimencial siolements)

25, OWNERS' EQUITY
251 CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY

Cabeguries Contribuled capital ~ Capital surghus  @ber caplial Revalusiien  Forelge eschange [aveatmentand Ofherequity  Heinioed mings  Mon-Conlrolling Tedul
differmeis differenzes.  developmesd fund fuml imferst
#a EssEly
VKD VNI ¥ND VKD ¥uD Vi VD ¥NR YN VD
T LISAMEO000 IDSMSMSEST  BOMBTIONN  (3ISLTBATELISD)  IRS9SI9U399 I SEGIBTASEIN  ULINTSED  (65DMASS0EN)  AZ9IE50790 14,702, 149,755
« Frofil in pesiod . £ . = . . o LIEZIENAN SHSEMOE8S  LTOLEIS D)
. ek Dividdend a . L - : . ; (ESSTANAS) (IREIIIANASL)
« Fuzd spprogestion - . - . . A0CLT R 018 o (RIRAMSMTIN (41503063 398) (160505 168 21T
- Kestveel primcipal F . : S13TL05L 581 5 . L . - BLITERSLERL
wd inenst
« Charges inegely : - g - 1130133930 - . . . e RESR
of msocined
oo puriey
- Dtz - (RSTA 000G : RN 1 (IBNLTIAY  URZEREINRIG  [#RBELTILETO)
e MM&M_@_%&MJ—MM
#141/2024 IL00SE0,0,000  10945M055T  RLMGASROED  (LIGAUTES0AEY  MLTMTIRTE  ZORESEAIATIE  SLIITSM (M1 M6RGHLMD 45T 3E0205856 D566 105,061 585
+ Pyofil in periad . s . 5 . = o IMILMAAMEIN  MARIEI0SL  2AERARETHGE
- Borus & Welline - . - . = BSIRDENTER - [EELYISTILONTY (4D IR0 ETH) [238590E2103)
fond
« ChEnges i aguty . . - - BT TILEMAN - . . . &7, 302, 549,430
o mencisied
POmRRIES
« Dividend . = . ; P It - (RIS (BLTELIIOIN  (1ZRE0R3E%,1M1)
« Divesiment of . . = (IA210,000087) . (13,290,000 S00)
esociried
mfrn.:ih
= D «  [H20RI0000N) (572785 158) [#4] . 41151 {1 (RRISILAY  (HIMGANREEL (2792016074
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B02 = DN/HIN
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fiscal year
Dong Da District, Hanoi = ended 31/12/2024
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These Acter ave an integral part of and phould be read in corjumction with the accompdyibg finesciel satementy)

25 OWNERS' EQUITY (CONT'D)

253  DETAILS OF OWNERS' EQUITY

311212024 01/01/2024
VND  Rate VND __ Hate
- State contribuled capital  11,942,133,000,000 99.47%  11,942,133,000,000 99.47%
- Other shareholders £3,747,000,000 0.53% 63,747,000,000  053%

TSN WY TS @ T

153 EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VIND
Iovestment equity of owners
Equity in beginning of period 12,005, 680,000,000  12,005,880,000,000
Increased equity in period - -
Defuted equity in period & .
Equity in the end of period 12,005,880,000,000  12,005,880,000,000
Dividend distribution (46.326,5T0,024) =
16, OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
31/12/2024 017012024
Forelgn currencies
uUsD 55,796,618.42 54,396,030.11
ELR 2,765.93 B, 11173
IPY 45,593.00 44 D000
BB 5,707,044, 18 101686946
Doubiful deht written-off (VNLY) 47,978,313,903.00 43,713,886,096
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION = J5C

Mo, 1 Dao Doy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dosg Dia District, Hanoi

Form No. B09 - DN/HN
For the fiscal year
ended 317122024

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These notes are an fadgrel pare of and shauld be recd in confmmetion with the accompaning fnamelal simements)

27, REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revanue from sale of gonds

Revenue from randering of services

+ Transporiation

+ Revenue from pori operation services ond
marriiime SRR

+ Office, worahmce fearing

+ Ohrher services

Revenne from construction eontract

18. COST OF GOODS S0LD

Cost of goods s0ld

Cost of services rendered

= Tronspariaiion

- Cogt af goods sold for porf operation
Fervices arad maritime services

- Office, warshouse loasing

- Chthers

Reversal of provision

Cost of construction confract

29, FINANCIAL INCOME

Imterest incoms

Gein from disposal of fingncial investment
Dividends and profits raceived

Forelgn exchange gain on year

Foreign exchange gain on year-end
revilualion of monetary fems

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND
4,307,603,925055 1.813,722.701 028
12,655,666,346,553 10,9490, 775,157 002
{473,051, 148004 4,228 535,778,235
7 68, TOM 404, 664 &, 401, 155,555,584
343,088.353,334 280.119,8339,771
T50,847, 400,951 70,965,083, 412
b, 448, 708 128 15,668,265, 183

IEIHEHFEHIHIS 12,RI0. 166,123,113

Year 1024 Year 2033
VND VND
4,250,969,858,767 1,780, 357,537,601
9,801,007,711,882 B,617.404,367 999
4,029,551, 798,937 3755129468316
5,438 750,403,749 4,572 194,678 506
313,482, 677,004 238,009 545 368
108222 830,192 52616072 059
(134,301,850) (1,445,698,150)
6.042.710.478 14,242 688,103

14,147,885.970.177 10.411.004,553, 703

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
464,476,358,397 472,748,962, 576
62,425,431,766 15,732,043 260
36,214,959,743 39,637.740,510
206,026,148,452 §4,102,445,157
77,501 052,806 43,330,914,952
9,545,701,692 %,068,181,020

_SSESROSI6 66461028775
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B9 — DNHN
Mo, 1 Dap Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fiscal vear
Dong Da District, Hanei B ended 3111272024

NOTES T0 THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Thess pafir are an infégeal part gf cmd showld be read is conjuestion with the aesmpegying flemciz| siefemenfy)

bl 8 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Year 2024 Year 2023
VNI VD
Interest cxpenscs 372,.851,242,087 202.077.736,231
Expenses/Loss from selling stocks, disposal 35,269 320 369,359,063
of fnancial investments
Foreign exchange loss on year 147 479,228,103 44,407, 145,002
Foreign exchange loss on year-end 72,760,084,116 10,626,432,665
revatuation of monetary items
Provisioning and reversal of financial 72322018476 (679,831,836)
IPVEStmEnt Tesarves
Oiver financial expenses 1.420,446,897 A6, 03,306
__ 616879,088,999 257,553, T04,511
31. SELLING EXPENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD VIND
Labour expensas 14,5a0,771 459 13,217,709,003
Deepreciation cxpenses 166,066 567 238,464 483
Expensc of owtsourcing services 95,251,334,263 96,636,380,153
Dther expenses in cash 27535032 088 27.950,868,003

138.313,204 378 |3%1 £42

32, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VHND

Raw materials, 1ools and supplies expenses 32.570,875.837 35,136,303.616
Labour expenses T57.978,711,994 T15362670,35]1
Depreciation expenses 42.774.643 413 3I8,042,833.962
Tuaxes, fees and cherges 32.950,862,532 20,458,207 690
Provision / reversal of provizion expenzes 26,827, 030,643 (125.900,173.9200
Expense of oulsourcing services |43,816,754,698 9] 851, E82,358
Onher experses in cash 306.935.911,.803 270541664838

1,343,354,790, %20 1,045.493.003, 895
33. OTHER INCOME

Year 2024 Year 223
YD YND

Crain from lguidation, disposal of fixed T20.352,855,600 B3.566, 105,871
assels
Loan interest [s writien off, debl struciune 382,276,365, 958 189, 124,024,108
Ineame from compensation for the transler 23,593 058 426 -
of relocated assets al Hoeng Dicu Fort
Income from insurance compensation 8,011,597 1.036 146,967 972,579
Income from reimbursement of the Cai Lan 35,282 863,424 -
progect
Incame from revaluation ol assels Ior 25,201,964 037 -
capital contribution
Others 38,348,124 352 45,1 BE, 782,790

—LASSARTNIITS 484546885538
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Na, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Drang Da Dhatrict, Hanoi

Form No, B09 - DN/IIN

For the fiscal year

ended 31/12/20324

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
[These motes are ot Invegrad poel o amd shauld be read in sonjuncrion with the accompanying finaacial sfefeme i)

34. OTHER EXFENSES

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Met book value and expenses from 3.154.470,854 167,353,247
liquidation, disposal of fixed assets
Depreciation, loan interest and other costs 19,544 026,953 16 483 984, 103
of Hau Giang Shipyard project
Expenses from repairing damaged property - 50,884 282 739
Fines, tax arrears, administrative fincs 19,872,192,501 14 889,819,310
Others 36,649,539 423 56.771,188,576
79,22 T 1391 27975
3s. BASIX EARNING PER SHARE
Year 2024 Year 2023
Net profit afier tax of sharcholders in parent 2,021,014,444. 818 1,162,313,199.317
COMpPANY
Earning alloczted to commaon shares (VIND) 2,021,014 444 818 1,162,313,199.317
Average outstanding commeon shares during the 1, 200,588,000 1,200,588,000
year
Enrning per share (VIND/share) E— ] 268
3n. OPFERATION COST BY NATURE
Year 2014 Year 2023
YND VND
Raw materials, tools and supplics 1,954, 586,181,564 1,842,024 813,008
Labour expenszes 2,544 440 962,974 2543469007 819
Depreciation expenses 1,525, 135,144,321 1,317,079,959 447
Taxes, fees and charges 77,273 557 442 34 830,053,289
Provision / reversal of provision expenses B3,274,790,696 (122,206,205.451)
Expense of outsourcing services 4,142,667 332,614 3.519%.051,120,885
Other expenses in cash 960,415,809, 883 B00.BTT.608,655
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YIETHAM MARITIME CORFORATION = I5C
No. 1 Do Duy Ank, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanol

Form Mo, B9 — DN/HN
For tle fiscal year cnded 3-1.”2."3"_'!3!!

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTE (CONTINUED)
(These motes are an integral pont ofand should be read I confinction with the occompanping financial statemenis)

a7. OTHER INFORMATION

Lih |

SEGMENT REPORTING

For the fiscal year ended 31122024

Transpor sevics Port eperstion  Office, warchouse Sules aeflvibies (ther netivities Total o ail Exception Grrand sl
pebivitles  serviees unid mprlibme lonsing ABEAEEREN
BEFViCRY
VN VD YD VI YAD YNNI YD YND
Med revere from sl 4 464, 530,797.333 T 0EG, 70U, A0 345,058,153,334 4307 600 425953 EFT 256,190 0T V6,746 1,248, TR0R63 = D6, 061,248, [BI 465
of gocds and rendesing
SOTVineE
Profit frem business A5, | 62800, 346 1,247,558, 398,915 31,575,676,330 6,634,067, 163 42,040,058 504 LH13.362,701, 188 - LA13,363, 100, 188
weilvllibes
— — __ ] = ————————
Towl cost af | 54T 389 84T ESH = 14T 389 54T BhE
pequisition of fxed
sy
Unalloceied essels 41,208, 983,470,141 (10 H44.00 4 BIT, 15 TY 30424.570,632,089
Tokal neaxis - - = - ‘]Eﬂﬂlgl (10F44 014,837, 152) _ I0,A424,570,592,589
Unnllecated Babdiles 11,1 ET,904 SB35 {179 TEL 960,540 13,008,273, 019,780
Total linbiltics : = - LLJETIVLIRIIRE (179721 I60601 _ 13008.1T3019,]45
. 64
.l a=88 |5

e
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
Mo, 1 Dao Duy Ash, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No. BO9 - DN/HN

For the fiscal vear ended 31/1272024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)
{Those notes are an brtegral part of and should be read in confunctiod wirh the eocompanying faanclal sialements)
371 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTIN)
Fort he fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2023

Transport sevice Fort eperathon  Dfice, warchouse Sales aclivilies  (Mber achivities Totsl from all Exeeplinn Grand botal

nelivities services amil lensing sugEminls
Taritice sErViced
YD VND VND VNI VNI VYND YN ¥ND
Met revenue fram sads 4,203, 3R, 125,510 401,153,555, 584 290,119,339,771 TRIZTELTOLO2E 86,634,248 505 12,315,009 470.457 - 1281501470457
ol gauds sl reslering
sETvinEs
Frafit from business 472, 188,702,738 1,525,048, ER3,019 51209504402 33365003427 21,200,133 207 2403 014,876,794 = 2 405 014 876,70
mekivities S —
Tzl cost of 07,023,341 337 - 7023 ML A
acguisition of fvcd
FL=TE
Segmenl agsets TG a6A650d6 (1TLASBEISTEL)  I7335428.720.284
Total ssets - e P . LTG50 _ (TIISI8TGH  SISARTH
Sperment llabdlinizs 12,200, 1175 553,676 | 130,061 X35, 977} 12,169, | 13 5TT,659
Total Nabdiities - - - - - - 12,199,175,553,676 {13061 BTSUTT) 12,169,113,677,699
b3
AL R TR e - o i
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - ISC

Ne. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong Da Distriet, Hanol

Form No. B9 - DN/HN

For the fiscal year
ended 31/122024

e e, e e —
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These moter are on fnfegrad part of and thould be read In confunc o witk the acsampaaying faaneial statements)

8 OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)

371 RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the balances with related parties stated in the Notes above, the Corpacation also
has the following transactions with related parties:

Transation with related parties

Revenus from sale of goods
- Dta Mang Port Tughest 153C
= Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Lid

= WOSCO Apency and Logistics J5C

- Internatioral Shipping and Labour
Cocpertion JSC

= Korea Express Sai Gon Port Co,, Lid

= Mhat Viet Intemnational Transport Joint
Venture Company

= Bien Dong Logistics 15C

= Vietnam Sea Transport and Charlering 15C

- Vinalimes Honda Legistics Vies Nam Co.,
Lid

- Dong Do Marine JSC

= (Cai Lan International Cettainer Terminal
20,.Lid

- VOECO Trading and Servics JSC

- Congtrection Consultation JEC for
Maritime Building

- Transportation and Trading Services J5C

- SP-55A [nfemmational Contriner Sandices

Toint Yenture Compary
= BITC Dinh Vu Logistics Co,, Lid

Relatioaship
Associsted company
Associated compary

Associated company
Asgocisted company

Associatad company
Associated company

Associated company
Associated company

Associated company

Associnted company
Asznciated company

Associated compsmny
Associated compary

Associzted company
Asencized compary

Agsocived compamy

Cong ty TNHH THNHH KM Cargo Services Hai Phing

- Cua La Port Tughoat and Maritime

Sarvice ISC
« WY Autologistics) Yietnam) Co, Ltd

- Thi Vai General Port J3C
- Da Mang Port Logistics JSC
- Saigon Maritiree Joint Stock Company

= HFH Logistics ISC
= Quy nhon Por I5C

Agsocizted company
Associsted company

Associated company
Associnted company
Associnted company

Associated company
Associated company

Year 2014 Year 2013
¥ND YRD
E435.020.031 6,520 244 880
B 809,754,005 £9.110.5208,520
13.009. 750081 T853.576.605
1020842 981 A08.BG1. 905
T.EG0.492 8B40 AR34.237. 843
22 GR5526 1.074.654.491
B.501.845.361 5135312752
GGG G J2TLTT
11,040.238.504 B2T5A20.726
214961812 LA6S5.655.799
4,109 572 165 3.225359.785
063.915.532 1.245.443.797

< 2 180,000

- g8 532 3E1
145.188.213.402 77300 790.820
502593 870 1127 27R.926
270,564 659 2R2907.817
56.227.000 2.712.531.900
T23.900. 000 B45. 702 (M)
37.352.831.9450 23002635638
JR5.018.530 442 581830

4. 85091T 135 9.162.183.125
&0, 774,000 53.334.50d
342 585.826.058  I1X.SRLTHI.ETT
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC

Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form MNo. BO9 — DINHN

For the fiscal yvesar
ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These mores are an inegral part ol oad dhowld be read in confuaction with the aecompaniag financil statements)

37, OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'IN

37.1 RELATED PARTIES (CONT'D)

Belationship Year 2024 Year 2023
VNI YD
Furchase of goods and services
= Nhat Viet International Transport Joint Associated company 50500000 161 T7.624.000
Wenture Compimy
= Dong Do Masine ISC Associated company 05801333 1B 454.597.257
= Construction Consultation for Marftime Associsted company 1175655 484 399.535.353
Building 15C
= Orriental Shipping And Trading TSC Associsted company 5271420000  10.873.767.200
= BP-55A International Container Services Associsted company 339436457 1B4.079.535
Tnint Ventore Company
- SP-PSA Infernational Port Co,,Lid Associsted compary 53.776.58%9. 768 2M5T16.TH
- Cai Mep [nterrational Terminal Co., Lad Associated company 11.612.704 851 B51.6B6.595
- VOSO0 Agensy and Logisties 1SC Associsted compary 2103662643  2ATT.BGL904
- WOSO0 Trading and Service J5C Associated company 30,703.888.599 18.481.023.817
- SITC-Dinh Vu Logistiss Co,, Lid Associsted company 106.549.225 :
- Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime Associsted company 54,400,000 [72.400.000
Service 15C
- Korea Express Sai Gon Port Co.,Lid Associated company 0.054.358.747 4.738.148.923
- Thi Vai General Port JSC Associated company 3660399703 1.345 806,000
= D Mang Fort Logistics JSC Associnted company T9.597.995.168 T4.400,278.154
- Da Mang Port Tugboat 1SC Asaocimted company B1.152.772.450 E1.360.715.309
= Bien Dong Logistics J5C Associated compamy - 16.957.000
- Saigon Maritime JSC Assoclatad company [ 54600186 -
- Cai Lan Infernational Contamer Terminal  Associsted company 245274400 409.042.320
Ca.,Led
- HPH Logsties ISC Associated company §32.152.527 214.869.963
= Quy Whon Port 15C Associnted company 31.857.210000  30.091.870.400
- Maritime Industrial Service Joint Stock Assoeiated compamy 255.761.436 114169158
Company
J12.721.442.998  249.010.641.042
Income of key management personnel
Full nzme Relation — Year 1024 Yesar 2023
YD WD
Mr. La Anh San Chairman b.636, 0 3,504 L.305463 29
M. Wguwen Cank Tich  Member of Board of Management 1,427,289,353 1, 435,076,670
and Creneral Director
Mr. Do Tien Duz Member of Board of Management 1,305366,514 1,090,282 922
M, Nguyen Dinh Chung Member of Board of Management I 05, 244 516 L,036,082,271
Mr, Do Hung Duong Member of Board of Managemeni 1,266,520,968 | 018500 419
Mr, Plvam Anh Tumn Depaty Gemeral Director I,234 966,487 QRT,0ET 356
Mr, L Quang Trung Degraty General Director 1,230,466,487 1010387 356
Mr. Npoyen Mgoe Anh Depaty Geneml Director 1,200, T69.519 TEE12. 320
Appained on 01 November 2023
Mir. Luang Dinh Mink  Head of Supervision 1,195,023,753 999,717,917
Mz Pham Thi Nhi Ha ~ Member of Supervisory Board §43,122.935 745,087,791
Mir. Pham Cao Mhus Member of Supervisory Board RIS, 500,190 GREE0ET, T
13,659,385 350  10,382,626,131
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B09 — DIN/HN
Ne. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fizcal year
Dong Da District, Hanoi ended 317122024

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELY}
{These noter are an fnligral part of and showld be read in confunction wirk the aceampaEyiRg fnane i shriemea)]

xS
37.3

OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)
OTHER INFORMATION

According to the provisions of Decree No. 126/2017/NID-CP dated 16 November 2017, of
the Government on the conversion of state-owned entesprises and single-member limited
liability companies wholly owned by state enterprises into joint-stock companics, at the time
of officially converting into a joint-stock company, the Corporation is required to finelize
taxes and other obligations payable to the State budget with the Tax Anthority and request
the representative agency of the state owner to approve the value of state capital at the time
of conversion into & joint-stock company, settle the procesds from equitization, pay
severance benefits for redundant employees, and cover equitization costs. The Corporation
has completed the tax finalization process. For the remaining requirements, the Corporation
has completed the necessary documentation and is submitting it for epproval by the
competent authorities, Therefire, the figures presented in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements may change after approval from the relevant authorities.
COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparetive figures are figures in the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial
Statemenis for the fiscal yesr ended 31 December 2023, which have been andited and
retrospectively adjusted at Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company. The specific indicators are
as follows:

ASSETS Cede  Beforcadjustment  Adjustment  After adjostment

VND Reclassification VNI
CURRENT ASSETS W08 11,965376,076,582 (1,763,134 488) 11963 612,942,094
Sharti-term receivables 130 1738069537600 (1,763,134.488)  2,733306,403,113
Short-term sdvences 1o suppliers 132 723652, 104,304 (154,983,000% 723,497,121,504
Oriber short-term receivables 136 T84,083,811,557 (1,608,151,488) 783,375 660,063
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 00 155TLIETS0913  (171,752,723) 15571 815,787,190
Long-term astets in progress 40 2,514,612,161,8907  (2TL7SLTI3)  2.504.340,409,174
Lang-term construction in progress 242 2475674372440 (271,752,713) 2475 M02,619.717
TOTAL ASSETS T :'-'-'Eﬁ'ﬂﬁlﬂls (2,034 887211 :?ﬂ&ﬁﬁnﬂ,!ﬂ
LIABILITIES W0 12,168,959 809,659 153, 268,000 12,160,113,677,699
Current linhilities 30 TAI742206057 1S3 SGR000 7417296164087
Short-lerm trade payable i 1,172, 462,471,665 103322000  1,172,565,793,665
Other current payables 119 1,414,180365,311 50,546,000 1414230911311
EQUITY 400 1%368,503,8506,7% (1,188, 755211 15266315,051,585
Owners’ equity 410 15,368,503,806,7%6 (1,188,755211) 15,266315,051,585
Undistributed eamings 421 {239,7B0,880,851) (L18B.735211)  (241,565,636,061)
« Undistribraed earmitgy 421a (1 A0Z004.080,168) (2,138,735211) (LA404,282.835379)
securridated fo the prioe pear érd
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 27537 A63,616495 (1,004 887211) 1753541R,719,154

Henol, 03 March 2025

Preparcr Head of Finance and ﬁ@w Director
Accounting Department -+ o
.. .:r‘ﬁ; e
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMFPANY
Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da district, Ha Noi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Victnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “the Corporation™) presents this report together with ils Separate
Financial Statements of the Corporation for the financial year ended 31 December 2024,

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
Members of the Board of Management and the Board of General Directors of the Corporation who

held office during the financial year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report are as
follows;

Board of Management

Mr. Le Anh Son Chaimman
Mr. Neguyen Canh Tinh Member
Mr. Do Tien Buc Member
Mr. Mgwven Dinh Chung Member
Mr, Do Hung Doong Member

Board of General Directors

Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh Creneral Director

Mr, Pham Anh Tuan Deputy General Director
Mr. Le Quang Trung Deputy General Director
Mr. Nguyen Mgoc Anh Deputy General Director
Legal representative

The legal representative of the Corporation for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 and to
the date of this report is Mr, Mzuven Canh Tinh-General Director,

Board of Supervisiors

Mr Luong Dinh Minh Chief supervisor

Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha Member

Mr. Pham Cao MNhuoe hember

Chiel Accountant

Mr. Le Duy Duong Head of Finance and Accounting Department
THE AUDITOR

The auditors of UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited have sudited the Separate
Financial Statements of the Corporation for the financial year ended 31 Dwecember 2024,

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of General Directors confirms that, there have been no significant events occurring after

the balance sheet date which would require adjustments to or disclosures to be made in the Separate
Financial Statcments.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da district, Ha Noi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT'D)
THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESFONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for preparing the annual Separate
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the Corporation for the year. In preparing these Separate Financial Statements, the
Board of General Directors 15 required oo

s Design and implement an effective intemnal control system to mitigate the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Separate Financial
Statements;

s Comply with Vietmamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises
and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting:

Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

Make judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any materal
departures disclosed and explained in the Separate Financial Statements;

s  Prepare the Separate Financial Statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
assurme that the Corporation will continue its operations.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kep,
which discloses, with reasonahle accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and to
ensure that the financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on preparation and presentation of the
financial statements. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board of General Ddrectors confinrms that the Corporation has complied with the above
requirements in preparing these Separate Financial Statemnents.

APPROVING SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of General Directors has approved the attached Separate Financial Statements. These
statements provide a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of the
Corporation as of 31 December 2024, as well as its income statement and cash flows for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting Corporate System, and related legal regulations on the preparation and
presentation of the Separate Financial Statements.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of General Directors commits that the Company has fully complied with its regulatory
disclosure obligations as stipulated in Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020,
issued by the Ministry of Finance on information disclosure in the securities market; Decree No.
55/ 2020/ND-CP dated 31 December 2020, issued by the Government and Circular No.
| 162020/ TT-BTC, dated 31 December 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance, which provides
guidelines on corporate governance applied to public compani

/fﬁ@ . 1 behalf of the Board of General Directors,
s/ TN GG TY N .
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III_* | VIET.M

wgiﬁg%z&’ Canh Tinh
-3 eral Director
Hamol, 03 March 2025
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U‘H AUDITING AND COMSULTING COMPANY LIMITED

s m——

Now 1432025 UHY- BCKT

INDEFENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
£ the Separate Financial Statements of Vietnam Mavritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024
Tao: Shareholders, Board of General Directors and Board of Management
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company
We have asudited the accompanying Scparate Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Corporation™) as prepared on 03
March 2025 and set out on page 06 to 48, which comprise the Separate Balance sheet as at 31
December 2024, the Separate Income Statement, the Separate Cash Flow Statement for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024 and the Notes to the Separste Financial Statements.

The Board of General Directors® responsibility

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the Separate Financlal Statements in sccordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Swstemn and related legal regulations on the
preparation and presentation of Separate Financial Statements, and for such internal control as the
Board of General Directors determines necessary to esure that the Separate Financial Statements that
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or ecror,

Auditors’ responsibilities

Ohur responsibility is to express an opinien on these Separate Financial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in sccordance with Viemamese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtam
reasonahle assurance about whether the Separate Finmancial Statements are free from material
m isstatement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obiain audit evidence abeut the amounts and disclosures
in the Separate Financial Statements. The selected procedures depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Separate Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, When assessing these risks, the auditor considers the Corporation's
internal control relevant to the troe and fair preparation and fair presentation of the Separate
Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal
control. The audit also includes evaluating the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of General Directors, as well as
evaluating the overzll presentation of the Separate Financial Statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the Separate Financial Statements give a true and fair view, m all material respects,
of the separate fingncial position of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company as at 31
December 2024, and its separate operating results and its separate cash flows for the year then ended
in secordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporste Accounting System
and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of the Separate Financial
Statcments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (CONT'D)
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters disclosed in the Separate Financial Statements:

- At Note 12; The Corporation is monitaring the investiment in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company
at the item "Investment in subsidiaries” (Code 251) in the Balane Sheet, with a valug of VND
41546 hillion. This amount represents the value transferred by the Corporation to Hop Thanh
Investment and Mineral Joint Stock Company (Hop Thanh Company ) under the terms  of the share
ownership transfer contract, Af 30 December 2024, the parties are still discussing and evaluating the
legitimate interests of Hop Thanh Company in the period of its investment in Quy Nhon Port Joint
Stock Company.

- AL MNote 35.3: Under Decree 1267201 7VND-CP, dated 16 MNovember 2017 issued by the
Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and single-member limited liability
companies with 100% state-owned charter capital into joini-stock companies, at the time of official
conversion into a joint slock company, the corporation is reguired to finalize taxes and other
pavables 1o the State budget with the tax authority, seek approval from the owner's representative
agency for the State cupital capital valuation, finalize proceeds from equitization and pay allowances
for redundant employees end equitization costs. The Corporation has completed the finalization of
taxes and other payables to the State budget. For the remaining matters, the Corporation has
finalized the necessary documents and is submitting them to the competent authorities for approval.
As n result, the figures in the anached Separate Financial Statements may be subject to change after
receiving official approval from the competent authorities,

Owr opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

L Trinh Thi Trang
Deputy General Director Auditor
Auditor’s Practicing Certificate Aunditor's Practicing Certificate
No, 3660-2021-112-1 No, 4061-2022-112-1

Feor and on behalf of
UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Hanoi, ﬂﬁ.ﬂcﬁ:ﬂ'ﬁ 2025

WA\ O E B S5)




VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION ~ Form No. B 01 - DN

JOINT STOCK COMPANY For financial year ended
MNo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi 31 December 2024
SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 Decemiber 2024
ARSETS Code MNote Y I B 2 ] 0112024

WD VN
CURRENT ASSETS 100 3IIT6TIITHGTS  1,511,356,461,711
Cash and cash egquivalents 110 4 JET030.807.932 4R0,875,972,938
Cash 11 272428 80T 032 400,875,972,938
Cash equivalents 112 S0, S02 0 OO &0, 00, 000, 000
Sheri-term inancial Investments 120 12 1,324,907, 174,250 1,530, A0, D00, 000
Held-to-matufily investments 123 1,324,907,174,250 1,530,400,000,000
Current accounts receivable 130 365.711.524,538 173,BEL 140,312
Shoa-term trade rezeivahles 131 5 222971 ROT AR 13T.401,538,720
Shost-termn advances to suppliers 132 I T30 281,040 61, 405,892,519
Short-term loan receivables 135 7 13.2 1 e{d, D0 13,216,000,000
Other receivables 135 S 330UTRA 19T BED 363, 047 108,705
Prosdsbon for doubiful short-term 137 g (284, TRO,32R,73Y) {2592 705 958 500
Shortage of assets awaiting resolution 139 1k 1 428,566,045 | 428,566,949
Inveniories 140 11 137 A MBS 60T 153,482,119,491
Invennorics i41 341,720 580, 497 337036002, 141
Provisien for devaluation of inventories 49 (204,319,594, 800 {204,453 892 A50)
Diher current asscis 150 T1, 720,682,257 THLTLE219.970
Short-term prepaid expenses izl I& 5876, 143,841 7.463.577,609
Valus-added tx deduestible 152 AT, 756,202,081 7,706,496 024
Taxes and other receivables from State 153 ] 088 446,535 7,455, 146,335
hudget
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS 200 12, 190,243 4dB 543 11,266,259, 849,013
Ll;lng\-l::rm rﬂ::h’nhlﬂ 118 ﬂ],lT],alﬂ-ﬁﬁ 131159‘9,7‘31733
Long-term loan revelvabla 215 ¥ 471,101 ,268,994 153331321528
Dither longderm receivibles 216 B R 060 855872 34 304,989,955
Provision for doubtful long-berm 219 4 - (36,567, 700)
Fiscd asstis 220 741,566,363 ,684 1,036,046,199,031
Tungible fixed assets 221 13 TIZ 970430801 1,024,624 456 869
- Hiztorical cosi 222 o B B R 245,803 260 678
- dvcumilared depreciaeion 223 (5IOEITILOIESZTy (5221288503 809)
Intangible fixed assets 227 14 8595932 883 11,431,743 162
- Histarical cost 28 28,181,758, 628 28, 181738628
- Accumulaied amartization 229 (18555 825 743} (e, T O 6, #1550
Investment properties 230 15 202.548.041,956 131,505,088,170
- Historbcal cost 231 443,576,848,623 442,711,786,623
= Acoummulated depreciation 232 (241,028 B00G66T) (211, 206,698,453
Laotg=term assel in progress 240 21,225.570.819 1,403,757 76,017
Construction in progress 242 21225570, 819 L 403,776,017
Long-term financial investment 250 12 10,671, 792,508,773 B, 790,815 999,914
Imvestment in subsidiaries 23l 10,511, 439,628, 364 G681, 3235395201
Investment in joint-veniures, associates 252 403,834,081, 748 403,834,081,788
Equity investments in other entities 153 17,179,300, 748 ET 079,300,748
Provizion for devaluation of long-term 254 (260,860,502,127) 311517, 777.823)
Orther long-term assets 260 22,059,838,445 18,886,042,098
Lang-term prepaid expenses 261 1& 22039, 838,445 18, 586,042,098
TOTAL ASSETS 70 14,412.914.827.217 _ 13,777.616310,724
he accompanying noted ave an integral part of these Separate Fingncial Statements fi
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YIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — Form No. B01 - DN

JOINT STOCK COMPANY For financial year ended
No.l Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Dia District, Hanoi 31 December 2024
SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

Arx at 31 December 2024
RESOURCES Coda MNote SUTEZ0T4 A 2024

VD WM
LIABILITIES 300 1,001,422,551 457 1,631, 485,332,118
Current liabillties 3 R31.935,182 918 1469, 026,800,480
Short-term trade payables 3l 17 TT.414,834,913 120,657.522.2148
Short-term prepayments from customnes 312 19 22,164,630 361 2.936,761,500
Tax and other pavables to the State budget 313 8 Q27942 745 07,628 4%
Payables 1o employees 314 To63E 465,162 64,750,331 601
Accrued expeanses 315 20 5845 237,358 23,767,395 200
Short-term uneamed revenue 318 3.236,056,3T1 4.203,916,565
Other payables R 21 G20,640 301,249 1,011,976,213 604
Shart-term bareowings and finance leass 320 el - 240,671,555,973
liabilities
Baonus and welfire fund 327 23,063,694, 760 25,483,920
Non-current liabilities 330 178,487 368,519 161,558,512,638
Chhker long-term payables 337 21 52000 018,520 40,679,522,63%8
Long-term borrowings and finance lese EX Y] 22 | 26477 450,000 120,879.000.000
OWNER'S EQUITY 400 13401,4%2,275, 760 12,146,130, 978 640h
Capital 410 23 135,401,492, 375,750 D20 46,1 30,9 T8 66
Share capital a1 | 2,005 B8, 000,000 12,005, 880,000,000
- Ordinary shares with votfng rights 4lla § 2,005, G510 ONND, (O 12,005, B840, M0, 0040
Investment & developenent funds 418 42,075,293,582 =
Retained eamings 421 F352.536, 082,178 JH40 250878606
= Relgingd earmings sccumuiaied 6l the 42ia - (2I7,032,223.045)
end of the previous year
- Rerained earnings of ther civremy period 4215 L3523, 536 082,178 357.283,201,651
TOTAL CAPITAL 440 14412914 827217 13,777,616,310,714
Hanod, 03 March 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and General Director

Accounting Depariment

= ||I L A :
\oa -cYép
Vu Thi Thanh Duyen Le¢ Duy Duong =2 B
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form No. B 02 - DN
For the financial year ended
31 Deember 2024

No.l Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

SEFARATE INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Tiems Code Mote Year 2024 Year 2023
VIND VD
Revenus from sales of goods and om 25 1,640,919 298 307 1, 468,719,468,851
remdering of services
Revenue deductions oz - =
Net revenue from sales of goods and 10 1640919298307 1,468,719,468,85]
rendering of servies
Cost of goods sold 11 26 1.448,034.000 824 1,381.064,01 8,128
Giross revenue from sales of goods and 20 192, 885296 483 H7,655,450,T23
rendering of servies
Financind income 21 7 540455111560 546, 507 80T 046
Finencial expense 2 28 107 300 4TR617 8,513,606 302
In which: faterast expense 23 23,372,339 1400 21 168 824 TH0
Selling expense 25 W 9.851,871,608 20,757,680,927
General and administrative experse 26 30 2X2TTRS1T.269 208.,663,736.470
Net profit from operating activities 30 303,406,540,554 316,318,324,070
Other income 3 31 075,328,607,315 £1.938 641,658
Other expense 3z 32 15,198,165,701 10,973,764,077
Other profit 40 960, 130,441,624 40,964,877,581
Total net profit before tax S0 1,353, 536,982,178 A57,283,201,651
Current corporale incoene (4% expense 51 33 -
Profit after corporate income tax 6 1,353,536,982 178 357,283,201,651
Hanoi, 0F March 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and

W.

Vu Thi Thanh Duyen

Le Duy Duong

'“.El.n
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eral DMrector
Accounting Dtpnﬂmer;wmdd?ﬁ
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The accompanying noted are o imegral part of these Separate Financial Statements
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — I8C
Mo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No. B 03 - DN
For the financial year ended

11 December 2024
SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
{By indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Items Ciode Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Cash Aows from opernting activitics

Frofit before fax ax 1,353,556,982,1 T8 A5 285,201,651
Adjustment for - -

Deprectation and amorizstion of fixed asseis 0z 340,192,919,503 344,539,009 272

and imvesiment properties

{F.eversal of provisions) e’ (58,953 775,107) [11.%51,635951)

Exclange (galns)losses from retrans lation of 04 (E7.062,001,4581) (13,720,683 173)

monetary jtens denominated in foreign cumency

{Profits¥losses from imesting activities {5 (841, 00,0049, 728) (310, 5383,305,368)

[nterest expenos 6 23, 37539 160 21,168 516,790
Experatlvg profit before changes in working 08 7BY, 386,624,535 178, 735470221
cupital

Increase or decresse in receivables {9 (324,770,272.237) 20,584,576,590

[nerease or decresse in inventorics 10 16,215 431 644 108,745 486,531

Encrese o decrexie [ payables (excluding i1 (126,674 387 435) (91037847571

tnterest payable/corporase income tax payeble)

Increme or decrexie |n prepaid expenses iz {1,566,362,579) 11,901 9% 662

Inserest paid 14 (46,312,514,027) {225, 000,000,000
Nt cosle o frarm operating aofivires 20 205, 778,519,391 2,029 683,033
Cush Mows feom investing activities

Purchase ar saratrsction of fived nssets and 21 (211,873 742, 487) (75,680,027, 360)

ather long-term nssets

Procesds from disposal or transfer of fixed assets 22 I05,673,134,000 -

and other lang-term assets

Lowans and purchase of debt instraments from 23 (1,276, 223072,874) {1,%a6,818,482,684)

ather entitiss

Collectlons from bomosers and proceeds from 24 1,176, 7 1000, 00 I,954, 790,166,684

sade of debi instruments of other entities

Equity investments in other entities 25 (340,426,974 000) .

Procesds from sales of investments in ather 26 25,502,5900,000 =

entities

[nterest and dividend received 27 A R676,2X2,623 480,625,648.062
et cash fTow from invesling achivilies J (97,957, 522 7343 e e 11
The accompanying nofed are an imegrol part of these Separate Financial Statements 9
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C

Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form MNo. B 03 - DN

Far the financial year ended

31 December 2024

SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(By indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Items Code MNote Vear 2024 Year 2023

VMDD VD
Cash Nows from Anancing activithe
Repayment of prncipal 34 (240,671 535.973) (66,812.514,027)
Thvidends or profits paid (o osners 3R (46,326 570,024} -
Mer cash [Tow from Anancing actlvities i (286,998, 125,997 (e, 84 2, 514,027)
Met cash Mlows in the period A0 (179,01 T7,125.344) 329034473, T0R
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 60 4 A80,8T5.971,0938 149,475, TA5, 658
Effecs of forcign exchange differences hl 21,231,964,338 2,365,743,577
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 0 4 J22,9M),807,932 4B0.8T5,972,938

vear

Preparer

Vu Thi Thanh Duyen

Head of Finance and
Accounting Department

Hanoi, 03 March 2025

General Director

The eocompamping moted are an infegral part of these Seporaie Finnciol Siienments
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -ISC Form No. B09 - DN
Mo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi For the financial year ended

31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Thede Hores are o infegrad part of and show'd be read in comjencilon with the accompaying francis! siefements)

L.
1.1

12

1.3

1.4

1.5

CENERAL INFORMATION
STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP

Yietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company was established under Decision Mo,
250¢TTg dated 29 April 1995, issued by the Prime Minister. On 29 September 2006, the
Corporation was converted to operate under a Parent Company - Subsidiary Company
model, in accordance with Decision No. 2162006/QD-TTg izsued by the Prime Minister,
At the same time, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 217/2006/QD-TTg on the
establishment of Vietnam Maritime Corporation.

On 25 June 2010, the Prime Minister issued Decision No, 985/QD-TTg approving the
transformation Vietnam Maritime Corporation into a one-member limited liability company
owned by the State.

As part of the restructring project of Vietnam Maritime Corporation, approved by the Prime
Minister, the Corporation carried out financial settlment and enterprise valuation for
equitization at 31 December 2016, On 08 December 2017, the Minister of Transport issued
Decision No. 3402/QD-BGTVT, annoucing the enterprise value for the equitization of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Parent Company. On 20 June 2018, the Prime Minister
issued Decision No. 751/0D-TTg, approving the equitization plan for the Corporation. On

18 June 2020, the State Capital Management Committes at Enterprizes issued a Decision No.

27TQE-UBQLY, adjusting the charter capital scale and structure based on the results of the
initial public offering of Vietnam Maritime Corporation. The Corporation successfully held
the first General Meeting of Shareholders on 13 August 2020 and officially transitioned into
a Joint Stock Company on 18 August 2020,

The Corporation operates under the Business Registration Certificate No. 0100104595, first
issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Hanoi City on 07 July 2010, As of
18 August 2020, the Carporation was issued its seventh Business Registration Certificate,
officially transitioning a Joint Stock Company mode with a charter capital of VND
12,005, 880,000,000,

The Corporation's headguarters is located st Ocean Park Building, No. | Dao Duy Anh,
Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City.

FRINCIPAL BUSINESS FIELDS

The Corporation’s main business activities include coastal and ocean freight transportation,
inland waterway and road transportation, and supporting services related 10 transportation;
port and inland waterway terminal operations; agency services, freight forwarding, logistics,
warchousing, and storage of goods, as well as debt trading,

NORMAL PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS CYCLES
The Corporation’s normal business cvele is within 12 months.
STATEMENT OF COMPARARILITY ON SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comparative figures are based on the audited Separate Financial Statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2023, and are fully comparable.

CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE

Information about subsidiaries and affiliated is presented in Note 12-Notes to Financial
Statements.
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|
1.5

i1

2.3

3.1

CENERAL INFORMATION (CONT DN

CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE (CONT D)

[nformation about subsidiaries and affiliated is presented in Mote |2-Motes to Financial
Statements.

As of the present time, the Corporation has the following dependent accounting units that do nat
have legal stafus:

Name Address Maim business activities

I Branch of Vietnam Maritime  Hai Phong City  Office leasing services and
Corporation - in Hai Phong space leasing

2 Branch of Vietnam Maritime  Ho Chi Minh Office leasing services and
Corporation - in Ho Chi Minh ~ City apace leasing

3 VIMC Shipping Company Hanoi Shipping agents

4 VIMC Hai Phong Maritime Hai Phong City  Office leasing services, and
Service Company space leasing, maritime

services

5 VIMC Maritime Manpower Hanoi
Supply Company

& Marine specialized project Hanoi Praject manarement
management board

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FISCAL YEAR

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Separate Financial Statements are presented in Vietnamese Dong (VND), following the
historical cost principle and in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on the preparation
and presentation of Separate Financial Statements.

The Corporation’s Separate Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2024 are prepared on an accrual basis (except for cash fow-related information) and
consolidate the fimancial statements of the dependent accounting entities and the
Corporation's Head Office. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in the preparation of these Financial Statements,

FINAMCIAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation begins on 01 January and ends on 31 December. These
Separate Financial Statements have been prepared for financial year ended 31 December
20024,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company in the preparation of these
Separate Financial Statements are as follows:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Separate Financial Statements in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date. and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the financial year. Actual operating results may differ from these
estimates and assumptions.
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34

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at banks and shor-term investments
with an original maturity of no more than three months from the investment date, that are
highl liquid. readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and subject to an insignificant
risk of value fluctuation.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are converted into Viethamese Dong (VND) at the actual
exchange rate applicable on the transaction date. Exchange rate differences arising from
these transactions are recognized as revenue or expense during the financial year,

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the end of the financial vear are
translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the Statement of Financial Position date, as
Folkows:

- For assets: The buying rate of the Commercial Bank where the Corporation
regularly conducts transactions
For liabilities: The selling rate of the Commercial Bank where the Corporation
regularly conducts transactions.

Exchange rate differences arising from the revaluation of year-end balances, after offsetting
increases and decreases, are recognired as financial income or financial expenses in the
current year,

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Held to maturity investment

An investment is classified as held to maturity investment when the Company has both the
intention and ability to held it until maturity, Held-to-mamurity investments include term
deposits with banks, held-to-maturity loans for the purpose of earning periodic interest, and
other held to maturity investments.

Held-to-maturily investments are initially recorded at cost, which incluedes the purchase
price and any directly related transaction costs. After initial recognition, these investments
are recorded at the recoverable amount, Interest income from held-to-maturity investments
eamed after the acquisition date is recognized in the income statement on an accrual hasis,
Interest earned before acquisition is deducted from the initial investment cost at the time of
purchase,

Capital invesiments in other entities

Investments in other enfities include investments in subsidiaries, associated companies, and
other held to maturity investments.

Investmenis (v subsidicries, joint vemures, and assoclares are initially recorded in the
accounting books at cost, which includes the purchase price or capital contribution plus
costs any directly related investment cost. After initial recognition, these investments ar
measured at original cost minus provisions for investment devaluation. Dividends and
profits earned before the acquisition of an investment are deducted from the investment's
carrying value. Dividends and profits earned after the acquisition are recognized as revenue,

13

iS &



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B 09 - DN
Mo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi For the financial year ended

31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IN)
(These notes are an integral part of and skould be read In confunciion with the aecompanying financial siements)

a.

34

3.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)
FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

Dividends received in shares are only tracked by the number of additional shares received,
and their value is not recorded in the financial statements.

Egquity Investments in other entities inelude investments in equity instruments of other
entities where the Company does not have control, joint control, or significant influence on
the investes. The carrving value of these investments is recorded based on the valuation
results of the equitized enterprise of the Parent Company-Corporation, as approved and
announced by competent suthorities,

Provision for devaluation of investments is made at the end of the period as follows:

- For investments held to maturity: When there is solid evidence that part or all of the
investment may not be recoverable and the amount of loss can be reliably determined,
then the loss is recorded as financial expenses during the year and is directly deducted
from the investment value.

- For investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and sssociates; A provision for
devaluation of investments is made when the investee incurs losses, based on its
Separate Financial Statements or consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates ai the provision time. The provision amount is calculated as the
difference between the actual capital contributions of the parties in the subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and the sctual owner's equity, multiplied by the Company’s
capital contnbution ratio relative to the total actual capital contribution of the
subsidiaries, joinl ventures and associates. I the subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are included in the consolidated financial statements, the provisions is
determined based on the consolidated financial statements.

For long-term investments (not classified as a trading security) with ne significant influence
on the investee: If the investment consists of listed shares or its fair can be reliably
determined, the provision is made based on the market value of the shares: if the fair value
of the investment cannot be determined at the reporting date, the provision is made based on
the investee’s Financial Statements at the provision date.

RECEIVARLES

Receivables are presented at their carrying amount minus provisions for deubtful debts and
are tracked in detail according to original maturity, remaining term at the reporting date,
debtor, currency type, and other factors based on the Corporation’s management needs.

Provisions for doubtful debts are made for each doubtful receivable based on the estimated
potential loss. Specifically, provisions are allocated for receivables that are past due as
stated in economic contracts, contract commitments, or debt agreements, where the
company has made multiple collection attempts but has not vet recovered the debt, The
determination of the overdue period for receivables is based on the original payment
deadline in the initial sales contract, without considering any debt extensions between
parties. Provisions are also made for receivables that have not vet reached their due date but
where the debtor has gone bankrupt, is undergoing dissolution procedures, has gone
missing, or has fled. The provisions are reversed when the debt is recovered.

14

j— b

At o -,

o= T

i



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No, B 09 - DN
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi For the financial vear ended

11 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
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3.6

3.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value The origimal cost of
inventory includes purchasing costs, processing costs, and other directly related costs incurred
to bring the inventory to its current location and condition. Net realizable value is determined
by the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to sell them.

The cast of inventory is calculated using weighted average method. Inventory is recorded
using perpetual method. However, at VIMC Shipping Company — a dependent accounting
unit of the Parent Company, the value of inventories {mainly fuel on board) is recorded
according to the periodic inventory method.

A provision for devaluation of inventories is made at the end of the year for each inventory
item when its original cost exeeds its net realizable valuc. Increases or decreases in the
inventory balance that require a provision at the end of the fiscal year are recorded in the
enst of goods sold,

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost and sccumulated depreciation.

The cost of tangible fixed assets comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable
costs necessary to bring the assets to their working condition and location for their intended
use. Expenditures incurred after the initial recognition are only recorded as increase in
historical cost of fixed assets if they arecertain 1o enhance the future economic benefils
derived from their use. Casts incurred that do not meet these conditions are recorded as
operating expens2s during the year,

For fixed assets recorded as an increase before 31 December 2016, their historical cost is
determined based on the valuation of the Corporation's equitized enterprise, as approved by
the competent authority.

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Categories of fixed assets Useful life (Year)
Buildings, structures 20-135
Machinery, equipment 05-10
Muotor vehicles, transmission 06— 20
Office equipment and other fixed assets 03 —08
Land use rights 30
Computer sofware 03
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

38 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are initially recognised at historical cost. For investment properties
that were put into use and had an increase in historical cost on or before 31 December 2016
(the time of equitization valuation), the historical cost and accurmulated depreciation are
recognized based on the valuation resuits of the equitized parent company, as approved and
announced by the competent authorities.

Categories of fixed assets Useful life (Year)
Buildings, structures 33

i9 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress includes fixed assets that are being purchazed or constructed but
have mot vet been put into use, and capital construction projects that are stll under
construction and have not yet been completed or put into use at the time of closing the
books to prepare Separate Financial Statements. These assets are recorded at historical cost.
Attributable costs include the costs of goods and services payable to contractors and
suppliers, related interest costs incurred during the investment period, and other reasonable
costs directly associated with the formation of the property, Depreciation of these assets
shall commence when the assets are completed and put into use.

410  PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses comprise costs incurred during the year and related to multiple
accounting perinds. The corporation’s prepaid expenses include the following:

Prepaid land expenses

Prepaid land expenses include prepaid land rental, including cost related to leased land for
which the Company has received certificate of land use right but is not eligible for recording
a3 intangible fixed asset in accordance with the Circular No. 432013 TT-BTC dated 25
April 2013 issued by the Ministry of Finance which provides guidance on the management,
use and depreciation of fixed assets, and other expenses related to ensuring the use of leased
land. These expenses are recognized in the consalidated income statement on 4 straight-line
basis over the lease term specified in the contraet,

Tools and supplics

Tocls and supplies incurred one time: based on assessmen! of the actual situation, the cost of
tools and equipment costs are recognized in the income statement for the year

Fixed asset repair costs

One-time asset repair costs: based on an assessment of the actual situation, repair costs are
recognized in the mcome statement for the year.

Rental and insurance costs: Allocated based on the prepayment period,
311 PAYABLES

Payables shall be recorded in detail based on their original term, remaining term a1 the
reporting date, payvable entities, payahle currency and other factors in accordance with the

Corporation's management requirements.
The Corporation classifies pavables as cither long-term or short-term based on their

remaining term at the reporting date and re-evaluates monetary items demominated in
foreign currencies in sccordance with principles outlined in Mote 3.3.
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3.13

314

315

3,16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'I))
BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

Loans and finance lease lishilities include various tvpes of borrowings and lease obligations,

These liabilities are tracked in detail, based on each loan entity, each loan debtor, each loan
contract and each tvpe of loan asset, the repayment term,the original currency (if any).
Loans with the remaining repayment term of more than 12 months from the reporting date
are presented as long-term loans and financial lease liabilities. Loans due within the next 12
manths from the reporting date are classified as shor-term loans and finance lease
liabilities.

BORROWING COSTS

Bomowing costs are recognized as production and business expenses in the peried in which
they are incurred, except for borrowing costs that are directly attributable 1o the investment,
construction, or production of qualifying assets that require a substantial period of time
{over 12 months) to be ready for their intended use or sale. These costs are capitalized as
part of the asset's value when the conditions set out in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No.
16 — Borrowing Costs are met.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, all loan interest expenses are recorded in
the Separate Income Statmicnt,

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates of the amount payable for
goods and services used during the period when no invoices are available or when
accounting records and documents are insufficient, including lozn interest expenses and
other related costs.

OWNERS' EQUITY

Orwner's equity is stated at the actual capital contributed capital by the owoers. On the
official date of conversion to a joint stock company, the owner's investment capital is
accounted for and adjusted to reflect the correct charter capital of the joint stock company,
a5 approved by the competent authority, The difference between the value of equity on the
official date of conversion to a joint stock company and the charter capital of the joint stock
company is recorded in other short-term payables by the Corporation and is 1o be submitted
to the Enterprise Arrangement Support Fund in sccordance with regulations.

Undistributed profit after tax reflects business results {profit and loss) after corpoeate
income tax and the status of profit distribution or loss handling of the Corporation.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue is recognized when the outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably. For
services rendered over multiple years, services revenue is recognized using the percentage
of completion method as of the balance sheet date. Sale of services is recognized when all of
the following conditions are met:

= Revenue can be measured reliably;
- It is probeble that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company;
- The percentage of completion of services at the balance sheet date can be measured;
- Costs incurred in rendering the services and the estimated costs to complete the services
can be measured,
17
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3
L1G

3.17

318

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONT'D)

The completed portion of service rendering is determined using the completed work
evaluation method.

Financial income includes bank interest, loan receivahle interest, Dividends and profit

distribution, Exchange mte difference, divestment profits at joint stock companies,

specifically as follows:

- Deposit interest is determined on an acerual basis, caleulated based the deposits balance
and the applicable interest rate,

- Dividends and profits distributions are recorded based on notifications from the
distributing entity.

Other income includes eaming arising from events or transactions that are separate from the
Corporation's mormal business sctivities, in addition to the revenues mentionsd above.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax expense includes both cumrent corporate income tax and deferred
corporate income tax.

Corporate income fax

Current income tax is caloulated based on taxable profit. Corporate income tax is applied at
an effective tax rate of 20% of taxable income,

The determination of corporate income tax follows current tax regulations, However, these
regulations may change over time and the final determination of corporate income tax is
subject 1o the results of examination by the competent tax authoritics.

Deferred corporate income fax

Deferred corporate income tax refer to income tax that is pavable or refundable due to the
temporary difference between the camving value of assets and liabilities for of financial
reporting purposes and the their values tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recorded only when it is certain
that there will be sufficient taxable income in the fuiure to utilize these deductible temporary
differemces,

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Corporation if it has the ability to control the
Corporation or exercise significant influence over the Corporation in making financial and
operational decisions, Related parties include:

. Enterprises that have the right to control, are directly or indirectly controlled through
one or more intermediaries, or under the common control with the Corporation,
including subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint arrangement, and associates:

e  Individuals who have the right to directly or indirectly wvote in the reporting
enterprises, leading to significant influence over these enterprises, key management
personnel who have the authority and responsibility for planning, managing and
controlling the Corporation’s activities, including close family members of such
individuals:

" Enterprises owned by aforementioned individuals, where they hold direct or indirect
voting rights or have significant influence over the enterprise.

When assessing each relationship of related parties, the nature of the relationship is
considered, not merely its legal form.,
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319

SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (CONT'DY)

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that engages in manufaciuring or
providing an individual product, service or a group of related products or services (business-
based segment) that is subject o risks and returns that are different from those of other
husiness segments.

Segment information should be prepared in conforminy with the accounting policies adopted
for prepaning and presenting the financial statements of the Company in order to help users
of financial statements better understand and make more informed judgements about the
Company as a whole, Scgment reports are presented in the Consolidated Report of the
Corporation as guided in Yietnam Accounting Standards MNo. 28 — Segment Report.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

122024 01/01/2024

YND YD

Cash on hand 3,121,559,730 2,319,125,484
Cash at bank 269,307,148,202 398,556,847,454
Cash equivalents (*) 30,502,000,000 B0, 000, 000, 000

322,930,807,932  480,875,971,938

(*) Cash equivalents refer to commercial banks with maturities not exceeding three maonths.
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5. RECEIVARLES

122024 012024

Yaloe Provision Value Provision

VNI VD YND VNI

Related parties I2,1685,478,540 {793, 136,324 34,774,715,693 (TO2,902 581)
- Viet Nam Ocean Shippng Agency Corporation 39871 - T 4
- Hai Phong Port JSC 484,977,024 . 504,804,860 ;
- Can The Port Joint Stock Company AR, D00, 000 E 03,020,000 -
- VIMC Dinh Vu Fort JSC 221,735,430 - 134,890,470 -
- Vietnam Ocean Shipping Jomi Steck Company - - 2B,24B.778,197 -
- Vnakines Nha Trang JSC 60,585,295 - 24,089,654 -
- VIMC Logistics 15C 3,863,076,849 - 4,710,287.937 -
- Vietnam Hi-tech Tramsporiation 81,313,983 - 107,041,950 .
- International Shipping and Lasbour Cooperation JSC 09,932,011 - 562,351 -
= Vietnum = Japan Intenational Transport Co,, Lid 76,198 IZ8 . [,285,373 .
= Vinakines Hondn Logstics Yietnam Company Limited 3,074,531 - 66, 242, 320 -
= VINASHIMLIMNES 93,136,329 {793, 136,329) TU2.902 581 (792,903 581 )
« VIMC Container Lines I5C 15,836, 408,929 = = -
Other 200,803, 328,888 (26,148,906,834)  92,716,823,036  (24,194,871,B81)
= HE Investment Trading JISC 146, 268 6263 (K - - -
= HAPAG — LLOYD (WIETHNAM) LTD 61,257,567 - 9. 178,877,773 -
- Denmar Chartering & Trading GmbH |6,658,268,724  (16,658,268,724)  16,658,268,724  (16,658,268,724)
- Dcean Network Expross Pie Lid = . 12,766,067, 281 -
- Other chents 37,815,176,291 (9,490,638,110) 54,113,609, 258 (7,636,604, 158)

222971807428  (26,942,043,163) 127,491,538,729  (15,087.865.463)
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. PREPAYMENT

322024 1M 2024
Value Provision Value Frovision
YD YD YIND VNI
Bach Dang Shipbuilding Company Limited({® ) 40 739 258 319 (45,230 258,319) 45 239,258,319 (A0 F38 258 3 19)
Yict Mam T&T Construction and Trading 15C 6,026, 238 5332 - - -
Vietnam Waterway Construction Corporation &, 179,608,452 (6, 179,608,453) 6, 179,608,452 (6,179,608 452)
Others 11,646,175,737 (1,032,231,218) 5,987,025, 748 (1,032,231,218)

73,091,281,040  (56,451,007.989) 61, 405,892,519 (56,451,047, 9849}

{*} The advance payment exceeds the setthed value of Contract No. 01/WNL-BD dated 22 November 2010, signed between the Corporation and Bach
Dang Shipbuilding Company for the construction of the BV-11 ships.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEID)

(These nofes are an integeal pars of aod sionld be read e confancilon with fe accompaning Tuonciol sratemsenis)

p " LOAN RECEIVABLES

Short-term

- Can Tho Port Jomt Stock Company (i)

- Hau Giang Maritime Service Limited Liability Company {if)
Levng-term

- BP-PEA Intermnational Port (i)

- Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company (T}

= Cai Lan International Container Terminal Limited Liahility
= Winalines Mha Trang JSC

Related priies
- Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company ()

= Hau Gang Martime Service Limited Liability Company {ii)
- SP-PEA Intemational Port (§i)

= YWmalines Mha Trang JSC

= Cui Lan Intermations] Container Terminal Limited Linbility

AN272024 014012024
Yalue Frovision Yaloe Provision
VIND YN VNI VNI
13,2 L6, (040, 000 - 13,2 146, 00MD, D) -
i, 716, 000, 000 - 6,7 L&, D0, (R0 .
i, SO0, 000,000 - 6, 500,000, (130 -
d71, 1002658994 153,331,321,528 -
124,992 450,000 = LU, 196, 004, 00k -
26,860 321 528 = 33,5H5,321,528 -
318,089 497 466 - . .
550,000,000 - 550,000, 000
d84, 317,268,994 - 166,547,321,528 -
165,627,771.528 - 166.547.321,528 -
33,585,321,528 - 40,3001,321,528 -
iy, 500, 0N, 000 - i, SO0, B0, 00 -
124,992 430,000 104, 0 S, (0, 000 &
S50, 000, Q00 - 550,000, 000 .
J18, 680497 465

(1} The principal and interest balance of Can Tha Port Joint Stock Company at Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Treade is repaid
by the Corporation in accordance with the agreement signed on 30 September 2019, between the Corporation and Can Tho Port Joint Stock Com pany.

The loan repayment period extends until the end of 2027, The interest rate for the first calculation period is 4.5% per year, while the interest rate for
2024 is 3.4% por year. For subsequent periods, the interest rate will be adjusted as per the agreement but will not exceed the average deposit inlerest
rate of the following four banks: Vietcombank, Vietinbank, BIDV, and Agribank. The foan is secured by collateral assets and the right to claim debts
from economic contracts of Can Tho Port Joint Stoek Company, with o total estimated value of YND 65,726,937914.
{ii) The loan to Hau Giang Maritime Service Limited Liability Company, carries an interest rate of 6%/year and is intended for payment of land use fee
related to the éxtension land use progress in Song Hau Industrial Park - Phase 1. The loan term is until 31 December 2024, or immediately after Hau
Giang Company receives proceeds from the transler of 21 hectares of land. This is an unsecured loan, and the Company prioritizes using revenuc from
the land transfer to repay the financial support, As of the reporting date, Hau Giang Company is still in the process of completing the necessary

procedures for the land transfer.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(These mates ave an megral poet of amd should e repd in comfrnciton with the eecongmrying finaeeiol staiemenis)

7.

LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT'DY)

(iii} The loan to SP-PSA Intemational Port Co., Ltd. has a principal amount of USD 4,950,000, granted under the Sharcholder Loan Agreement dated
26 August 2008, corresponding to 15% of the Corporation”s equity contribution in SP-PSA International Port Co., Lid,
The loan bears interest at the Secured Overnight Financing Rate {SOFR) and is repayable upon request by PSA Vietnam Pre Lud. (the lender)

(iv) The receivables from Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Lid. (CICT) are based on a debt purchase agreement signed between VIMC,
S5A Holdings International, and the lenders as part of the financial restructuring plan for CICT, which was approved at the Extraordinary General

Meeting of Shareholders on 22 July 2024,
OTHER RECEIVARBLES

Shori-term

Advances receivable

Muarigages

Drivicliend receivables

Dieposit interest

Laan interest

Receivable from input Y AT of Construction Project Mo.2 - Ba Mgoi
Part (1)

[naurance indemnity

Vinalines Nha Trang JSC (2)

Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Limiied
Oihers

Long-term

Martgages

Loan interest

Receivable from fuel and materials for ships of Victnam Cheean
Shipping Joint Steck Company (3)

Dihers

32 M2 A s2024
Yalue Provision Walue Provision
VAND VMDD VMND YD
330,784,197 450 (198 338 418,174) 303,047, 109,705 (200, TIR A28, 180)
4872519, |0 - 5400 500,033 -
488,060,875 {162,556,875) 563,376,875 (162,556,875)
6R, 457,420,975 (68,457 420,975) TR, 275,906,975 (77,066,663 975)
| R,846,003 587 - 39,009.4635,756 -
75,350,962 000 57,156, 182.558 (7,733,305, 720

12,210,751 466

{7.713.305,72%)

12,810,751 466

7,769,322, 276 - 15,042,900,975 -
106,209,633 907  (104,164,735,511)  106230,769,573  (100,992,278,014)
15,682, 105,689 (5,622,600,320) 17,334,075,914 {5,601,848,023)
29,288,417 964 (12,217.699.764) 23070580 U7 BLTTE ST
59,969,555, 672 . 34,304,989,955 (36,567, 700)
3,483 461 658 2 3,328,702.424 .
9,570,264,854 : |0,884,963,779 =
41,316,129.360 & 20,054,756,052 -
5, 600,000,000 a 36,567,700 (36,567, 700
300, 754,053,722 (198,338, 418,174 397,352, 099,660 (209,774,995 889
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8. OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'IY)
IIE20E4 0 24
Value Provision Value Provision
WD WD WD YiND
Related partics 305, 560,690,895  (189,531,995,013)  290,273,135,151 (197,043,158,083)
= %ai Gon Port 15C - - DO G0, (00 -
- Cam Ranh Port JSC 12,810,751, 466 - 12,810,751 466 -
= Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company 240,000,000 B Bl (D CHCHC) -
= Yiet Mam Ooean Shipping Agency Corporation 143,952,000 - -
- Can The Port J5C 4,843,684,713 - 4,371,020,669 (2,211,389 083)
- ¥IMC Dinh Vu Port J5C 46, 000,000 = 48,000,000 :
- Cai Lan Port Investment 15C B23,841,637 - BZ1.841,637 -
= Vietnam Ocean Shipping Joint Stock Company 70,704,005, 549 {70,704,005,549) 70,726,548, 706 (70,704 005,549
= Quy Nhom Port J1SC 312, 0K, 000 - [ 74,000,000 -
- Winaship JSC 40, DK, 000 - 550, 000,000 {6,600 (dH), 000
- Vinalines Nha Trang JSC (2) LI0,800,633,907  (104,164,735511) 106,230,769,573 (101,992.278,014)
- Wietnam Maritirne Devel oprment 2,100,000 - - -
- ¥IMC Logistics JSC 7,975,530 - 2.418,486,000 =
- Han Giang Maritime Service One Member Company Limited 11,022,557,947 {4,74%,616,539) 7,364 868,635 -
= Mam Can Porl J5C 3,3 10,988,907 (3310,988,907) 3,310,988,907 (3,310,988907)
- Dongdo Marine Joint Stock Company 74,364,000 - - =
- Victnam Sea Tranaport and Chartering JSC - £ 6,004,000 :
- Oriental Shipping and Trading JSC (0STC) 6, 700,148,507 {6,602,648,507) 6,661,648,507 (6,622,648,507]
- Cai Mep Intemational Terminal Co.,Led 1655 210,725 - 1.500,141,64] -
= &P -PSA Infermational Port Company Limited 61 R2005,761 - 49,389,493 496
= Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Co,Lid 36,000,000 -
= YWIMC Container Lines ISC 215,700,000 . .
- Cai Lan International Container Terminal Lindted Lisbility 4 (6,554,557 - - -
Company
- Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Limited (4) 15,682, 105,689 - 17,334,975,914 (5,601,848,023]
- Ehuyen Luong Port J5C - - £, 0400, D00 -
Long-term 31,024,494,424 . 10,884,963,779 -
- YIMC Container Lines I5C (3) 71,454,229,570 . - a
- Can The Port J5C 0 570,264,854 - 10,884 963,779

0t SEm T o IR
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KOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(T potes oee an integral gaed of and slionld Be read e comfriection with the accompeeying finenciad siateomeniz)

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'DY)

{1} This is the deductible VAT input tax for the construction project of Berth Ne. 2 — Ba Ngoi Port (Phase 1), which Vietnam Maritime Corporation has
transferred as an asset (o Cam Ranh Porl Joint Stock Company,

(2] The receivable from Vinalines Wha Trang Joint Stock Company, for which the Corporation has made principal repayments on behalfl of loans from
Vietnem Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Indusiry and Trade, Vienam Bank for Agriculiure and Rural Development for the construction of the
Au Co 1 vessel; a loan from the Vietnam Development Bank — Hai Phong Branch for the construction of the Au Co | and Hoa Lu vessels,
including the cormesponding accrued interest.

(3) Receivables related to fucl, lubricants, and ship supplies represent the value of unused materials remaining on board as per the ship kease agreement
between WIMC Shipping Company — a subsidiary of the Corporation — and the charterers, These amounts will be settled upon contract termination.

(4) The receivable from Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Limited includes payments for social insurance, health insurance, and unemployment
insurance that the Corporation has paid on behalf of the company, as well as debt recognized by Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Limited from
the Central Enterprize Restructuring Support Fund, which has been converted into an inerease in state capital in the Corporation, The Corporation
will recover this receivable by offseiting it against the proceeds from the liguidation of vessels owned by Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company
Limited, currently recorded under the “Other Short-term Payables™ account,

25
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These noes ore o integral part of and shondd be reod in conjunction with the accompanying Srancial siatements)

| BAD DEBTS
i el dir ) ﬂln'ﬂlﬂi_fﬂ
Value Provision  Hecoverablo valie Value Provisien Recoverable value
YD VNI WD WM VNI VN
Short-tesm 207 A07,064,493  (284,780,328,729) 12,626,735,764  304,621,684,486  (292,705958,500) 11,915, 7258%
= Bach Dang Shipbuilding Comparny 40230258319 (49.239.258,119) C A0 SRIID (49,239.258,319) =
Wictnam
= Viemam Cleean Shipping 15C 70,704,005, 540 (70,704,005, 549) - 0L T04, 005 549 {70, 0,005, 54 =
- Vinalines Mha Trang JSC 106209633507  (104,164,735.511) 2,00, HUR 305 N0, 080 453,907 (100,992 278.014) 2,944 215,903
- Oesental Shipping and Tmding 15C 6,602 6dH_S0T (1,602 48, 50T . 6.622,648,507 {6,622 648,507 .
- Vinaship JSC - - . i 00, G, DR {6, 500, D00 00)
- Denmar Chartering & Trading I6,658 268,724 (16,658,268, 724) - 16,058,268,724 (16,658 268, 724) -
{inhh
= Wietnam Waleray Constnaction J5C 6,179, 08 452 16,179, 608,452 - i, 1 TO 608 452 {6, 1T 608 452 -
= I Fhang Trinspon Enginecdng o, T0R, B39, 533 {2,794 578 50 1074 36054 - - -
I8
- Liihers A5k, TO 1, 502 (2R 437,225, 0648) 0,047 2T6, 454 43,67 400,018 (34,709,891 025) &, S, S0 595
Long-term . - - 36,567, T4 {36,567,700) -
- Dxlers - - 16,567,700 (36, 567, 700Ny -
297 407064,493  (284,760,328,729) 12,626, 735,764 4,658,252 186 (292,742,526, 290) 11,915,728 8%
1. SHORTAGE OF ASSETS AWAITING RESOLUTION
12024 - Aan/anzd
Value Provision Value Provision
VD VNI YD VD
- 0il los from VML Trader Ship 534,955,789 (534,955,789) 534 955,789 (534,955,789)
- Oil los from VML Ovcean Ship 893,611,160 (893,611, 160) 293,611,160 (R93,611, 160)
1,428,566,949 (1,428,566,949) 1,428 566,940 (1,428,566,949)
26
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VIETMNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — J5C
Mo, 1 Das Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TOTHE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These smates are an fntegral part of and should be read In comfmociion sith the secompanying Snanclal stalements)

11.

12

Held o maturity investment

INVENTORIES

- Raw materials
- Toals, supplicd

- Work in propgress

= Goods (*)

Form No. B 09 - DN
For the financial year ended 31 December 20024

A122024 01002024
Yalue Provision Yalue Frovision
VIND VIND ViND VNI
126,234, 528,695 - 41,797, 196,285 -
259 794,286 - 321,366,323 -
3 9ER.2TR.ETT - 4, B50,530,301 -
211,237.976,639 (204,319,590 800) Z00,9%6,919.232 (204,453,892 650)
341, 720L580.497 (204,319,590, 8040) 357,936,002, 141 (104,453,892 ,651)

{*] The goods include two ship engines of 47500 DWT (HB-02/03) built st Ha Long Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company, valued at
VND 210,469,590,800, Thiz project was discontinued following Resolution No, 513/NQ-HBETV dated 6 March 2015, by the Corporation's Board of
Members. These two ship engines are currently being used by the Corporation as collateral for the Vietnam Development Bank — Northeast Regional
Development Bank Branch under the assel morigage contract Mo. 20019 HBTCTS-NHPT dated 29 August 2019, As of 31 December 2024, the
Corporation has made a provision for the impairment of these two ship engines in the amount of VD 204,319, 590,800,

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Shari-term
- Term deposis (*)

{*) Term deposits ranging from 03 to 12 months st commercial banks.

=

g e

- A T

Qis2n24

Yalue Fatr valae Provision Walue Fair value Frovision

WD WD YND YD YD VMY

1,324,907, 174,250 1,324,907, 174,250 - § oS30 A 00 (R, 00 1, 5304000, M0, D00 -
1,324,007 174,250 I, 324 907,174,250 - 1, 530 400, D 1,550,400 (M), 000 -
1,324,907, 174, 280 1,324, 007,174,250 - 1, 5340, 4000, (R, 1, S50, 000 (Wb, (00 e
27
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MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELDY
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Form No. B 00 - DN
For the finoncial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT 'Y

NN22024 01401/2024

Yalue (i} Provision Proportion of Yalwe (i} Provision Proportion of
voling righis vating righis
Wi VNI L VD VMD o

Investments in snbsillaries 10,501, 439,628, 364 {157, 161,214, 204) 5,681,323,395 2011 (192,877,790, 191}
- Vietnam Ocean Shipping Agency Corporation 166,306,435,800 X 51.05% 166,306,435,500 ; 51,05%
= Wictnam Marime Development JSC - - 51.00% 54,070, 000, Gl - A1,00%%
= Wietarm Ocean Shippang Joint Stock T5,684, (00, (00 - 51 % 75,684,000 Db - 51,0005
- VIMC Logstics J5C 47,563, 558,000 ; $6.72% 47,563,558 000 " 56.77%
- Cam Ranh Port 15C SHE, TG 6 Y - LR R L SEZ, T, 6 100 - R0, Qi
- Wimaship 15C L, 200 DD, 0 - S0 0, 20, 0000 Ol - 51.00%
= Hai Phong Port 180 4, TR1,TH3, 756,600 - 2. 56% 4 TR, TA3, 756,600 - 92, 56%
= Mghe Tinh Pot ISC 125, 100 000, B - 3100 % 125, 101,000, 800 - 51,005
= Sai Gon Port J5C 132509, 248, 0040 - 63.45% 1132510 248 000 - 05, 43%
= Da Mang Port 15C 1435, 500,000, () - T5.00% 1,435, 500,000,004 - T5.00%
= Wietmam Contamer Operation Co., Ltd 31,459,005, 992 (16, 3560, 530, 848) el (025 31,459,005 50 { B, 608,650,372) G 008
- VIMC Container Lines JRC{) 1,014, 550,000, 000 - Dl 56% - - (.00%%
- Wigtnam Hi-tech Transporiation Co, Ltd 35,073,259,493 {16, BR0,698,5TT) 6, (%% 5073, 259 493 (BT 00, 247, 45450 33 00%%
- Bien Dong Shipping Co., Lid . ; 100, 00% . 100.00%
- Vime Dvnh Vu Port 18C - . 124,763,766, 837 (59,506,%18.71%) S1.00%
= Cai Lan Port Investment JSC - - 56.58% - . 56, 58%
- Hiu Giang Maritime Service One Member 05,500,053 451 L3, T24078, 7T N0, (W 395,301,093 .431 (59, 722,073,605 1002 00

Company Limied

- Can Tho Port J5C 259 192.479, 128 - 0901 % 259 152,479, 128 5,015
- Vimalmes Nha Trang JSC - - oL - - 9179
= Dy Nhon Post J2C (i) 415,450 150,120 - T3.01% 415,45%, 150,120 - T30 ¥
28
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{Thewe motes are an imiegral peet of g stioald be read i confuiction with the gcecompanying franclal siafements)

12, FINANCIAL INVNESTMENTS (CONT 1))

Trvecimeents i foind vemtures ard acociaten

= Yietnam Sea Transport and Charterlng 150

= Vitnam - Japen Intenstional Transport Co.,

- SP-58A Internntional Condainer Services
Joint Vemtars Company

= Cal Mep International Term inal Co.lrd

= 5P -PSA International Port Company

= ¥inalines Dong Do Ship repair Company
Limied

= Mam Can Port 1500

= Khuyen Luang Port I5C

- Dxong Do Morine J5C

- Transportation and Trading Services 150

- Seagull Shapping Company

= Construction Corsuling for Maritime
Building JSC

- Internaticanl Shipping and Labour
Cosperation JSC

- Orriental Shipping and Trading 15C

AL/E22024 (100 /2024
Value (1) Frovision Pmpenion of Value (i) Provision FPropenion of
virting rghts vioting rights
VD VNI e VNI VHD o
403 854,081,788 (108,058,563, 466) - 403,834,081, TRR (117,535,195342) =
35, Ra5 600,000 [35, 05,600 000) 43.32% 35 EnS 600,000 (35, 865,600 (00) a6 1%
30,266, 563,460 . S0,00% 39,266, 565,460 - S0.KMG
55, 8R6,475,724 - 50.00% 55 8%6,479.724 - 50.00%
- - S0.00% - - 0,00
165 387, 300,004 (37,830,927 6d6) E0.00% &% 387, 500,000 (55,327,559 522) 50.00%
- - 45 14% - - 45.14%
3,131,513,820 {5 131,513 B30 44 35% 3,031,5135,530 {3, 131,513 8200 44,354,
20,846,179, 892 - A0 008 20 85, 179,802 - 40 0%
L0593, 146,000 (10,593, 146.000) 4E5.97% 11,993 145,000 [ L1093, 146, 0040) 45,97
25,344,000, 000 . 131.49% 25,344, (0,000 . 33.49%
- - - - - 26.45%
M0,E95, T2, E92 - 44, )% 30,805, TH0,802 - 40.MG
7.286,400,000 {7, 286,400, 0040) s, 0 TG, 400,000 {7, 286,400,00{0) 3600845
3,930,576,000 {3,930, 976, 000) 40, 0% 3,930,976 000 {3,530, 976,000) 40 (%0
20
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These metex are an inegral poet of s should be reod (n comfivrcrion with the accompanying fnanclol saotemenis)

12.  FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

I 0112024
Value (i) Pmvision  Proportion of Walue (i) Provision Proporion of
voting rights voting rights
YHI VD Yo VMR VD e
fdeieirr Invetinienis 17,175,300, T48 {3,440,624,457) - 17,179,300, 748 (1,104, 783,290) =
- B Gon Maritime 150 4,431 254,923 - 10.15% 4,431,254,923 10,1 5%
= Hai Phong Marine Investment and Trading 11643, 115,357 (2,335,841, 167) 12.52%, I1,643,1105,357 5 12.92%
I15C
- Petec Trading and Investment Company 147,178 . LLO0002%% 147,178 : 0. 00002 %
= Gemasa Corporalion Joint Venlure Company 1,104, TR 200 {1, 104,783,290} I, 104,783,210 (1,104,783 290}
10,932, 453,010, %0 {2160,660,502,127) - 10,102, 336,777, 737 (311,517,777.823) =

{1} For investments owned by the Corpomation before 31 December 2016 (the date of enterprise valuation for equitization), the investment value is recorded
based on the enterprise valuation results for equitization, as approved and announced by the competent authorities

{ii} The company was newly established during the year in accordance with the enterprise registration cenificate No. 0110710348, issued by the Hanoi
Drepartment of Planning and Investment on 10 May 2024, with a charter capital of 1,015,000,000,000 YND, of which the capital coniribution value of VIMC is

1014550 000 WVND, contributed in the lorm of assels and cash, including:

=

12,648,000 shares in VIMC Dinh Yu Port Joint Stock Company. On 19 July 2024, Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC completed the procedures
for transferring the ownership of all shares held in VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company to VIMC Container Transport Joint Stock Company
(VIMC Lines), mmounting to 12.648 million shares. After this transaction, the remaining number of shares held by the Corporation is 0 shares, Asa
result, the Corporation is no longer the direct parent company of VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company, and VIMC Lines has become the direct
parent company of VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company from 19 July 2024,

4,590,000 shares in Maritime Development Joint Stock Company (Stock Code: VMS) On @ August 2024, Vietnam Maritime Corporation — J8C
reported the completion of the ownership transfer of 4,59 million shares in Maritime Development Joint Stock Company (Stock Code: VMS). Afler
the transaction, the remaining number of shares held by the Corporation is 0 shares. Consequently, the Corporation 15 no longer the direct parent
company of Maritime Development Joinl Stock Company as of 5 August 2024, At the same time, on 5 August 2024, VIMC Container Transport
Jaint Stock Company (VIMC Lines) reported the completion of receiving the ownership transfer of 4.59 million shares in Maritime Development
Joint Stock Company (Stock Code: VMS) from Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC, making VIMC Lines the direct parent company of Maritime

Development Joint Stock Company Trom 5 August 2024,
500 umits of 20" DC containers and 500 units of 40° HC contmners, for which the transfer procedures have been compheted.

Capital contribution in cash: The remaining amount after deducting the value of contributed assets.

30



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B 09 - DN
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NOTES TD THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These notes are gn imtepral part of and should be read in confuncilan with the accompaming finarcial sialementi)

1. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT"DY)

{iii} In September 20135, the Corporation divested its shares in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company
{“CYNP™) under a share transfer agreement with Hop Thanh Investment and Mineral Joint Stock Company
(“Hop Thanh™). On 27 May 2019, following the conclusions of the Government Inspectorate regarding the
equitization of Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company (“ONP*), the directives of the Standing Deputy Prime
Minister, and guidance from relevant authorities, the Corporation signed Contract No. 01/2019/VNL-
HT/CGCP with Hop Thanh to receive the transfer of ownership of ONP shares. On 29 May 2019, the
transfer of 30,312,262 shares, equivalent to 75.01% of ONP"s charter capital, to the Corporation was
completed through the Vietnam Securities Depository Center. According to the contract, the total transfer
value includes the transfer price, and the legal benefits of the investor. Details:

- The transfer price (1) was VND 415,156,027,500. This amount was paid by the Corporation o

Hop Thanh on 27 May 2019, and was temporarily recorded as the investment value in QNP on
the date of ownership transfer.
The legal benefits of the investor (2) refer to the legal benefits that Hop Thanh is entitled to for
its invelvement in invesiment, management, and operation, Both parties agreed that Hop Thank
would propose a methodology for determining this value and submit it to the Corporation for
review and subsequent approval by the competent authorities.

As of 31 December 2024, the parties have not yet determined the legal benefits (2) that Hop Thanh i
entitled to for its period of investment, management, and operation, Consequently, the Corporation has not
vet made this payment to Hop Thanh and has not recorded this amount as part of the investment value in
the financial statements.
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{These wates are an imegral peet afaoed showld be read in confunction with the oocompanying Snaeeiol stolemenis)

Form No. B 09 - DN
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13, TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Buailding, Machinery, Vehicles, Management tooks, (Mher Total
Sirucinres equipment transportations coqulpments
VYD YD YD YD YD ¥YND
HISTORICAL COST
012024 246,258 954,717 39,000,536, 958 5,949, 104,791,065 11.308,592,908 240,055,000 6,245,913, 260,678
- Compl=ied capital - 384,447 428 4,301 203,817 475 929 048 - 5,165 580,203
construction mvestment

= Purchase in the period 12,762,0018,318 78, 707,500,000 - - o1 469 514,318
- Dispozal and transfior - - (318 253.306,524) - - [31E253,306.524)
- Capital contribution to - - (B2.953. 591,437} - - (BZ,953,591,437)
3024 246,258 954,717 52,147, M2, 734 5,630,906,596,92 | 11,786,521,956 240,055,000 5.941,341,461,328
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
014V1/ 2024 (138,005,147, 298) (22,302 365,139) (5,051,042,362.375) (9,727, 902,235} (210,936,772) (5,221,188,803,3010)
= Depreciation for the period (1308 616, 100) (5,247, 104,115) (AEE 6X6,211,310) {235,952 257 (29 008,228) (307,54 5,002,010)
- Dizposnl and transfer - - J1E 16T B35 0943 - - 118,167, 855,943
- Reclassification - 43, (N, 26 - (43,0000, 076D . .
= Capilal contributicn 1o - - 2,294,919 349 - - 2,294, 119,349
JI 2024 (151,403,763, 388) (27,506,469,214) (5,009, 215,798,303} (10,004,944, 518} (240,055,044}  (5,208,371,030,527)
MET CARRYING AMOUNT
0102024 108,253,837 429 16,698,471,549 BOH, 062,428,690 1,580,6040,673 29,118,228 1,024,624,456,569
SR04 04,855 221,32% 24,640,833, 504 611,600, TRR, 528 I, 7R3, 577,438 - THE D70, 430, 801

The historical cost of tangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use as of 31 December 2024, is VND 239.091,236,150
[compared to VMD 357.621,120,096 a5 of 31 December 20230,

The carrving amount of tangible fixed assets pledeged as collateral for borrowings as of 31 December 2024, 15 YN 237, 135,510,315 {com pared to

VND 275,082,500,001 as of 31 December 2023).

U 8 O & o B 1%

Rl

32



YIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — Form Mo, B 0% - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the financial year ended
Mo.| Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(There pofes ara an intzgral pari of gad should be rend in confunciion with the sccompanping Taoecial siotemeniz)

14. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Land Copyright, Compoter Total
use rights patcmt sofitware
VND VYND ¥YND YND
HISTORICAL COST
01/01/2024 307,725,529 351,898,800  27,432,134,29%  28,181,758,628
- Purchasze in the - - - -
period
31120024 307,718,520 351 808,800 27 452,134,299 28.181,758,628
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
L2024 (397,725,529) (351,598,800 (16,010,392,137) (16.760,016,466)
- Depreciation for - - (2 F25.809.279) (2,825, B09.270)
the period
J1AINE024 (397, 725,529) (351,898,800} (18,836,201.416) (19,.585,825,745)
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
01012024 - - 11,42 E,‘MI:[E! 11,421,742,162
311252024 - = B.595 932, 883 B,595,931,883

The cost of fully amortized intangible fixed assets that are still in use as at 31/12/2024 is
YHND 742739 442 {as s 3 1/12/2023, it was WND 7,204,664, 16%).

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

01A1/2024  Increase during  Decrease during 3122024
the period the period

YND ¥ND ¥YND YND

Imvestment real estate for renl
HISTORICAL COST  442,711,786,623 B6S, 062, (M0 - 443,576,848,623
- Building, structure  442,711,786,623 65,062, 000 - 443,576,848.623
ACCUMULATED (211,206,698,453) (29,822,108,214) < (241,028,806,667)
- Building, structure  {211,206,698,453) (29,822,108,214) - (241,028 806,667}
MET CARRYING IS[.SI]G.MIT[I- : {IE.!!'-T.NE,IM; IiE, 548,04 l,ﬂﬁﬁ-
» Building structure  231,505,088.170 - (2B,957,046,214)  202,548.041,956

Investment properties mainly include the value of the Hanoi International Maritime Trade

Information Center building at 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da, Hanoi and value of
Vimadeco Building at 163 Mguven Yan Trod, Phu Mhuan District, Ho Chi Mink City, which

are currently being leased.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dang Da District, Hanoi

Form No. B0 - DN

For the financial year ended

31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEFARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{These modes are an inegral part of and shald Be read in confraciion with the accompanying fnancial staements)

16. PREPAID EXPENSES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Shori-term S A76,143,841 7,463,577,609
- Insurance expenses 4,949.682,197 6,202,726,141
= Property repair cosis 06,545,847 0,128,788
- Took and supplies awaiting allocation 304,486,092 457,792,885
- Oithers 555,429,705 772,929,795
Long-term 212,039,538 445 18,886,042,008
- Prepaid bind rental 15,600,831,235 16.176,816,435
- Bepair cost awatmg allocation 3,046,220, 795 2,171,742, 7682
- Took and supplies awaiting allocation 2,366,575, 879 323,823,480
= Others 1.026,201,536 213.659.401

17,913.982.286 26,349.619,707
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Form Mo. B 09 - DN
For financial year ended 31 December 2024

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —.J5C
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TOTHE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEL)
(These mates are an fntegral part of and shovdd be read in confumcrion with the accompanying fuanciol siaremenss)

17. TRADE PAYABLES

31122024 (h1/01/2024
Vulue Amount can be Value Amount can e
paid paid
VND VND VND VND
Related parties o, 134,193, 609 4, 134, 193,609 25,913,420, 807 25,913, 429807
Sai Gon Port Joint Stock Company - 6,455,987,545 6, 455,087,545
Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company - &1,474,391 81,474,391
Danang Port Joint Stock Company - 1,820,343, 856 |, 820,343 856
Mghe Tinh Port Joint Stock Company - - 34,781,773 34,761,773
Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company - 420,829,870 420,829,870
Vime Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company - - 2,008 410,801 2,0009,510,801
Vietnam Ocean Shipping Jont Stock Company - - 13,600,000 13,6500, (00
Cuy Nhon Port Joint Siock Company - = 2,766,657 033 2, 766,657,933
Wosa Corporation - - 1,739 374,695 1,739,374 695
Vietnum Container Operation - . | 56,764, 850 156,764 859
RienDong Shipping Company 3,562,178,094 3,562,178,094 9,472,126,452 9,472,126,452
Vietnam Maritime Development 68,361,655 68,361,655 - -
Moag Do Marine J5C - = 529,416,000 529,416,000
Vosco Trading and Service Joint Stock Company 503,653 a0 03,653,860 - =
Cua Lo Port Tupboat and Maritime Service Joint Stock = BE, 128,000 88,128,000
Seizon Maritime Joint Stock Co,, Ltd s - 6, 561,000 &L 561,000
Cuynbon Port Logistic service Co,, Ltd - - 224 752 000 224,752,000
Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Lid - = 39,220,632 30,220,632
Onhers TA 280,641 304 TH 280,641,304 04, 744,092,411 94, 744,092,411
Halng Shipbuilding Ome Member of Responsibility Co., Lid 32,067,142,734 32.067,142,734 32.067,142,734 32.067,142,734
Others 41,213,498,570 41,213,498,570 62,676,049,677 62,676,040 677
Total T7,414 834 913 77.414,834,913 111],1557&113 12“,_55?&1& 18
35
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
No.| Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hano

Form No. B 0% - DN

For financial vear ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TOTHE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
[There potes ore or imegral port of and should be reod in confirction with the secompanyiag Saoamcial sianemenis)

18.

TAXES AND OTHER PAYABLES TO STATE BUDGET

Tax payables
Walwe-added {ax
Persomal income tax
Land tax and land tax
Crther toes

Tax receivahles

Value-added tax
Corporue income fax
Persomal incorme tax
Land tax and land rental

T e

01012024 Amounnt payables in Amounnt paid/offsel 322024
the period i the period
VND VND ¥ND ¥YND
T45,527 603 4. 332876, NE 4,391,651,937 ARG, 152 575
| 52,100,896 10,860, 146,575 10,776,468,521 235,TTH,950
|4,857,300,533 14,857,300,533 .
10,411,220 1, CHONER O 411,220
07,628,499 3),060,735,237 30,035,420,991 922,042,745
BLDL2024 Amount payables in Amount paidioffsed 3if1272024
the period in the period
YiND YD YD VD
65,980,504 - - 65,980,504
7,111,282 260 T.111,282.260
277, R83,571 - - 277.883.5M
= 1,477 831,000 200131 000 G335, 300,000
455,146,335 1. 477,851,000 ZITE, 0310 H,098,446,335
36
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — J5C
Mol Dao Doy Anh, Pheong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanod

Form MNo. B0O9- DN
For the financial year ended
31 December 20024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These potes are an integral pars of and shawld be read in conjusction with the accompanying finarcial stoements)

19. ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS

J1/022024 01/001/2024
YD YD
Short-term 12,164,650, 361 2.936,761,500
Longmarch Shipping Pre Lid B.353,736,725 .

MCL Trading Joint Stock Company 5. 155,288,031
Glory Shippmg Marine Co. Lud 4. 772,670,567 -
Lauritzen Bulkers A/S, Copenhagen . 058,346,602
Others 3,882,955 038 1.978,414,898
12,164,650,361 2,936,761,500
Related parties 28 00D, b0 hil1.251.518
- Hai Phong Port J5C . 383,654,800
- Da Mang Port JSC - 247626718
- Oy Nhon Port JSC 28,000,000 -

20, ACCRUED EXPENSES

317122024 LA /2024
VND VND
Shori-term 5845237358 23, Ta7 305,200
- Ships reparr cost - 6,506,366 832
- Ships accident payables 5.015,912,043 3.659,006,045
- Others B29 3253158 13,602,022.323
5,845,237,358 23,767.395,200
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No, B (09 - DN
For the financial year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

{These nores are an [ntegral part of and should be read v conjinction with the accompanyving Inancial siatemems)

1. OTHER PAYABLES
3111272024 018012024
WD WIND
Shori-term 20,640,200 249 1,000,976,213 604
Trade union fee and Insurances 2,315,064 8240 3624234 Bal
Dreposits received I88 780,000 1.320,730,375
Other penvables 618, 145,476,429 1.007,031,248,368
= Vinathin Qeear Shipping Company Limited (% 28.502,905,649 27,285,346,321
- Iriterest payables ST 41053, 788 JEQ EET 046, 555
- PIT payables 3,428,763,292 2.435,874,424
= Orhars {4571 831,704 422081, 068
Long-term 52,009,918,520 40,679,522 638
Deposits received 52009918 520 0,679,522 638
671.659.219,778 1,052,655,736,242
Other short-term payables are relnted porties 29,370,523, 100 17309 346,321
- BienDong Loglstics JSC 60,000,000 60,140,000
= Conatruction Consulting for Maritime Building = 12,000,000
1SC
- International Shipping and Labour Cooperation - 12,000,000
J5C
- VIMC Containgr Lines JSC BOS,617 451 -
- Winashin Ocean Shipping Company Limited 28, 302,505,649 27,285 346,321
Orther long-term payables are related parties 31,632 416,397 12,054,062,951
- Viemam Ocean Shipping Jeint Stock Company 21,285,058 806 21,285,058,806
- Viemam Ccean Shipping Agency Corporation - 357,798,600
= Wietmam Hi-tech Transportation - 58,416,540
- International Shipping and Labouwr Cooperation - 105,012,600
IsC
- VIMC Contminer Linas JSC 10,347,357, 591 -
- Vinalines Honda Logistics Vietnam Company = 73,888,200
Limined
- Vietnam - Japan Intenational Transport Co., Lid - 42 EB4,000
= Wietnam Martime Development - 131,024,205

(*) The proceeds from the sale and liquidation of ships owned by Vinashin Ocean Shipping
Co., Ltd, amounting to USD 1,074,714.26 have been transferred to the Corporation’s bank
accounts to settle debts previously paid by the Corporation on behalf of Vinashin. As partial
disbursements are made, the Corporation will offset the coresponding amounts against the
receivables from Vinashin Ocean Shipping Co. Lid, which are recorded under “Other

receivables™ (Note 8).
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VIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — J5C Form No. B 09 - DN
M1 Dao Duy Anh, Pheong Mal ward, Dong Da Districe, Hanol ~ For financial year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEL)
{Thene nodes ave av Inbegral pavs of amd slionld be vead tn confrrcilon with the accompanyping finaneial stefearets)

22 BORROWING AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

31/12/2024 During in the year 111/012024
Yalue Amount can Increase Decrease  Exchange rate Value Amount ean
b paid differences be paid
VD VNI VNI VMO WD VND VND
Short-term borrowings - - = X40L6TILS55973 = M@6TIS55.973 240671555973
Current porfion of fong=ferm defrs - - = MOETIII5STI - 20671555873 0671555973
- Vietmam Development Bank (1) = = = 240,671,555,973 - M0,6T1,555973  240,671,555,973
Long-term bormowings 126,477,450,000 126,477,450, 0K} - - 5508,450,000  110,879,000,000  120,879,000,000

- PSA Viet Nam Pte, Lad (2) 126,477.450,000 126,477,450, 4 -

()

(2

- 5,598,450,000  120,879,000,000  120,879,000,000
240,671,555,973  5.50K,450,000  361,550,555.973  361,55(0,555,973

126,477,450,000 126,477,450, 000 -

Loan from the Vietnam Development Bank under loan agreements for investment in shipbuilding projects. The losn collateral consists of assetls
formed from the loan funds. The loan interest rates are specified in each contract. All these loan agreements have been restructured for principal
repayment,

Loan from PSA Viemam Pre Lid., which was re-lent to the SP-PSA Joint Venture under a sharcholder loan agreement dated 26 August 2008,
The total value of the sharcholder loans to the SP-PSA Joint Yentore s USD 33,000,000, including phase A: USD 28,196,202.53 and phase B:
USD 4,803,797 47, The Corporation’s lending portion corresponds 1o its 15% equity stake, amounting to a principal loan of USD 4,930,000, The
purpose of the loan is restricted to project-related expenses. The applicable bormowing and lending interest rate was originally based on the
LIBOR rate but has been calculated based on the SOFR rate (Secured Owvernight Financing Rate) since 16 December 2023, According to the
supplemental agreement, all outstanding debts of the Joint Venture and any unpaid amounts not advanced by sharcholders must be repaid
immediately upon request by the shareholders or the advancing shareholders. Furthermore, as per the Shareholder Loan Agreement, all dividends
and other distributions (if any) under the Joint Venture Agreement or Articles of Association will be prioritized for repaying the principal loan
(and accrued interest) until the loan is fully settled.
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VIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
No.l Deo Duy Anh, Pheong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hamol

Form No. B 09 - DN
For financial year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These moies are an irlegral pard of and should be regd in confurction witl the accompernying firmncial Stolements)

23. OWNERS® EQUITY
231 CHANGES IN OWNERS® EQUITY
Contribited eapital Imvestment &  Hetained cammings Total
development fands
VND VD VD VD
L2023 12,005, K, i, a0 - (RITAEL223045) 10, THRR4T,TTE D8
= Profit fiw vear 357285, 200,651 337283, 200,651
3122023 20005, A, i), ) - l40.250.97R.606 _ 12.146,130,978.606
104 20 TL,002, A%, 100, (0 140.250.978,606 12,146, 13,978 6
- Investment fimd 42,075,290, 582 (93,9200, 408,582} {51249, 115,000
- Prafit for veir 1,353,536, 982,178 1,353,534.942, 178
- Prafit distribution . {46,326, 570,024} {46,326, 570,024)
312204 IE&MIW 75,290,582  1.353.536.982.178 I.ilﬂl &1‘-@?“
232  DETAILS OF OWNER'S CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
311273024 01 0z
YND Rate YND Rate
State contributed capital 11,542, 133,000,000 90.47% 10,042 133 000,000 99473
Contributed capital of 63, 747,000,000 0.53% 6.3, 747,000,000 0.53%
other sharsholders
12,005, 850,000,000 100.00%  12,005,880,000,000 100.M%
133 CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS
Year 2024 Year 2023
VNI YD

- Investment equity of owners
+ Equity & beginning of penod
+ Ingreased equity in period

+ Deluted equity in period =
+ Equity in the end of period 12,005 880,600,000
- Dividend distribution 46, 326,570,024

12,003, E80,000,000

12,005, 880,000,000

12,005, BE0, 000,000
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - .J5C

Mol Deo Duy Anh, Phuong Mal ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No. B 09 - XN

For financial year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{(These rotes are an fntegral part of and shonld be read in confuneiion with the accampanying fnoselal statemeris)

4. OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Doubtful debts written-off (YD)

Gilobal Petrol Transport Joint Stock Company
Ducng Hoang Thnh Transpert trading Co., Lid
MNhat An Commercial Service Private Enterprise

Bach Vit Phuong
(nher
Foreign curmencies

LISD

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
22,017,721,772 22,017,721,772
3. B46, 155,500 3,846,155 590
2,940,340 810 2040 349 810
1,393, 500,000 1,253 B0, 0]
2,548, 102,000 2,548 102,000

11,2803 14,372 11,289,314,372

E,B836,416,%6

15258, 16576

15, REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from sale of goods

Bevenue from rendering of services

= Tramspariation

- Mavitime port operafion services and
shippimr services

= (Mfice, warehowse leasing

“ {her services

16, COST OF GOODE SOLD

Cost of goods sold

Cost of zervices rendered

= Transporteation

= Mariiime port operation sérvices and
shipping services

= Oiffice, warehouse deasing

- Cther gervices

Reversal of Provision

Year 2024 Year 2023

YND VYND

401 444,293 648 42,231,372.024
1,239,475, 005,659 1,426,488, 006 827

1081 134,673,427
T35 B30 054

1,278,891,273,808
12,295 5883, 141

142210 168 814 125 451 121 373

FE L o810 818 506
—1,640.910208 307 1,468,719 468 851
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

391, 792,381,554
LO56.241,620,230
934,807 26a, 420
7008 816, Sl

107 574,814,653
o, 984, 24 Sh8
(134,301,850)

41,875,720,597
1,339,188,297,531
I 228 037,345,058
FLFTORIT 709

Q3 367 787,659
T AST. 5. 245
{1,445, 608 150)

1,448,034,001,824

1,381,064,01%,128
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VIETNANM MARITIME CORPORATION — J5C
Mo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form Mo. B 09 - DN

Faor financial year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEFARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(These woles ave an invegral part of and should be recd In confumciion with the accomparying finarchal siatemeris)

27. FINANCIAL INCOME

Year 2024 Year 2023
VI YD
Interest mcome T0.622, 467,503 23,489,969, 278
Dividends and profits received 323.544,055.150 417,093,336, 090
Foreign exchange difference gain in the period B0O,1352,674,924 20,835,410,024
Gram from sale of investments 20502, 900, (D0 14,655 408,244
Foreign exchange gain on year-cnd 27062 031 481 -
revalwation of monetary #ems
Ciher financial income 5T0,982 503 533,773,408 1
540,455,111,560 __ 546,507.597,046 -
4
13, FINANCIAL EXPENSES .
i
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND 3
Interest expenses 23,372,.539,160 21,168,826,720
Foreign exchange difference koss in period Td 344 316,869 21,134,257 031
Foreign exchange boss on year-end - 034,719,073
revaluation of monetary Bems
Prowvisioning and reversal of financial B.540 543 019 44,649, 106,058
investment reserves
Others Q43,079 564 26,697,350
107, 39,478,612 §8,513,606,302
9. SELLING EXPENSE
Year 2024 Year 2023
VMDD YD
Expenses of cutsourcing services 6,264, 717,851 16,251,521,655
Oither expenses in cash 2. 887,153,757 4,306, 159,272
9,851 871,608 20,757,680,917
3. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXFENSE
Year 2024 Year 2023
VNI YNNI
Raw materials 1,352,503, 185 1,269,059, %00
Labour expenses [ 39, (0 883,731 128,385,933, 005
Tools and supplics 619685 500 1,842, 368,046
Depreciation expenses 11,439,952 5949 12,4593, 690,400

Wases, tees and charpges

10,388,593, 181

8,471,009,330

Provisionfreversal of provision expenses (5.954,605,66T) 3,394,247.409
Expenzes of outsourcing services 21,332,548 937 16,972, 286,262
Other expenses in cash 43,523,955,803 35,835,142.028

222.772.517,269 20 736,470
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Form No, B 09 - DN
For financial year ended
31 December 2024

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Wl Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Tia Disirict, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These aotes are an fategral part of aod shoceld be resd in coiurdrion wirh the acoampanying Tnancial slaiemenis)

3L OTHER INCOME

Year 2024 Year 2023

VD VD

Income from fixed assets disposal 104,475,616, 802 305,503,840
Collected fines 535,294 594 758,154,546
Land rent reduction 1,992 264 Blb 2.421.851.700
Remuneration from the representative of T 178,255 524 T.226, 040,914
Collection of management fees, personnel 4, 933,610,307 5474248 812

training and market promotion
Income from Compensation

6,546,244, 879

3,313,610,457

Intersst meome written off 377 743,630,417 27,647,524,7128
Income froon revaluation of assets for 468,537,405, 7H) -
capital contribution
Chthers 3,585,584 210 4,791, 708,661
975,328,607 325 51,938,064 1,658
DOTHER EXFENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD WD
Remuneration for capital representatives B.815,529.810 T.338,601.429
Spending sponsormg, supporting 5,471, 000,000 2,610,000, 00k
Paymg for container shell compensation = 684,908,091
Admimistrative fines 109,662,769 165,530,940
Others 801,973,122 174,632,617
15, 198, 165.701 10,973, 764,077
CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VI YD
Total profit before tax 1353,556,982,178 3A57.2R3.701,651
Increase 6,864, 799,571 4,065.234,426
= Depreciation of fixed assets is cars exceeding 155,793.072 155,783,072
VHD 1.6 billion
- Forelgn exchange loss on year-end revaluation - 1,270,223, 187
of cash emd account receivables
= Fines and incligible expenses 6,709, 006,455 2,638,218, 147
Decrense 356,532,024,510 41°7,093,336,050
= Income from dividens, profit 323,544 055,150 417,053,336,090
= Foreign exchange gain on vear-end revaluation 31,778,726,660 -
of cash and account receivables
= Rewersal of provision for doubeful debis that 1209 243 000 -
wis excluded when caleulating tax in the
previous year
Taxahle income 1,003,569,756,939 (55,744,5900,013)
Last year's loss carried forward (1,003,869,756,959) -
Taxable incoms - -
Curment corpomts income tax rate 20% 2%

Corporate income fax
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = JSC

No.1 Deo Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hamol
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34 BUSINESS AND PRODUCTIONS COST BY NATURE

Eaw materiuk
Labuir expenses
Tools and supplics

Depreciation expenses
Taxes, fees and charges

Provisionreversal of provision expenses
Expenses of oulsourcing services

Other expenses in cash

A3, OTHER INFORMATIONS

351  RELATED PARTIES

Transactions with related parties

FParchase of goods and services
= Zai Goa Port J5C

- Part of Hai Plong keint Soock
= Do Mang Part JELC

= MWphe Tink Part JSC

= Can Tha Part 1SC

- Viene Dind Y Port 150

- Wietnam Ocean Shipping foing S1ock

- Quy Whon Pom JSC

- Cai Mep Internatienal Terminal
Ca, LTD

- BienDong Shipping Company
Limited

= Hmu Giang Maritime Service One
Member Compaey Limited

= Dinhwu Parnt Investment &

Development Jol Stock Company

= Vietnam Cantainer Operation

- Wiel Mam Ocezn Shipping Agsncy

Corpasaiion
= Dangda Marine
- Wietnam Marstzme Developrsent
= 5P-554 Intemational Terminal
= Yoseo Trading And Service 150

Cus La Part Tughoat and Maritime

service JSC

Year 2024 Year 2023
VD YND

221, 586,896,770 331,714,303 348

294,177,367,275 265, 3530,328.502

2,508 525,300 2771218237

340,192,919,503 344539099272

17, B0E, 902,721 8464 285,193

(6, 088.907.517) 1,937, 638,708

332,330,469,939 537,B32.066.329

____B5.TO5 135 507 B0, 200,356,746
— L2886, 311,309,588 __ 1,572,879,206,133

Year 2024 Year M213

Relation WD YAD
Bubsidinry company 20,043,705, 178 14,096,323 812
Subsidinry company P20, 254, | 88 2,300,838 408
Bubsidinry company B.523.566,914 10298, 804,60
Subsidinry company JIEATEITD 15,088,433
Subsidinry company 3332805170 I.5d0 210443
Subsidiary company 4,589 407,100 -
Subsiiary company 1020, 7 |4, e JR6,E46820
Subsidiary company T.%64 478,182 B, 740462, 856
Subgidiary company B16, 750,741 F70,667,803
Subgidiary company | 16,330,004 12110, 743, 7070
Bubsidinry compary 544,900, 116 544,903, 116
Associaied compay 118,490,058 £, T2 995,400
Suhsidinry company 53,477,439 273,855 933
Sabsdisry company 4 TEL 114657 4860375747
Aszockted company A95 B00,333 B.975.233,330
Asocisted company 63,297 520 -
Aszocialed company BI0.DRE, 520 31,500,000
Associated company 1,304 824,344 s
Assockated company S 400, 0K 27,200,040
66,012,0016,151 61,308,290 491

=T |
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Form MNo. B 09 - DN
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MNOTES TO THE SEPABATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{There moles are an iregral part of erd should be read in comiimnciion with ihe accompanying Araacial siatemekis)

OTHER INFORMATIONS

351  RELATED PARTIES (CONT DY)

Transaction with related parties (Cont'd)

Redation Year 2024 Year 2023
YD sl
Revenue from sale of goods
= Zai (oo Porl 130 Subsidiary company = 71,836,562
- Cam Ranh Fort J5C Subskliary campany - L), 545,455
- Part of Hai Phang 1SC Subsidiary company E.382, 734,312 13,123,431 662
= iz Mang Part I50 Subsidiary company 1.246,135.4800 1,434,574 382
- Can Tho Par ISC Subskliary campany 5.091,265,125 4,547, 359 080
= Wimc Dinph Vu Pori 150 Subsidiary company 309062211 L6T2, 700,04 1
- Wictnam Ocean Shippmg J5C Subsiliary company 173,528, 244,125 176,633,922, 946
- Oy Mhon Pert 150 Subsidiary company ca? 547741 L, 766,926,290
= Winalines Nhn Trang J5C Subsldiary company 46, 212 87T 45,890, 5%
- Wietnam Ocean Shipping J50 Subsidiary company 1.493,574,9582 1. 430,306,537
- Vietnam Maritime Development JSC  Subsidiary company 466,319,292 460,608,575
- VIMC Contaiser Transpon 180 Subsidiary compiny 24 465 1ER.62F -
- VIMC Logisties ISC Subsiliary company 9893, 280,251 717,733,382
- Wietnam Hi-tech Transpemation Subzidiary company 195 5] 7LD 140,627,102
- BienDong Shipping Conpany Subsidiary campany 11828 59493 68T 11.657,073, 166
Limived
= Hau Giang Masitime Service Cne Subsidiary compary 3.613,256987 143548571
Member Company Limived
= VOSCO Agency and Logisties J5C Associated compary G2 A0S, 0D -
= Biemdong Logistics., 150 Associated company 164,713,845 2a4.450,723
- Intermntional Shipping And Labeur Assacisled company |4, 624 460 | i, COE 948
Croopemtion 15
- Wictnam - Japan International Asmocimted company 412,117,363 496,215 4%
Transport Co, Ltd
- WHL Luogistics Co.,L1d Asmacisted company THIG18 442 1.320,193.522
- Sai Gon Maritione J5C Asmacesied company 2E3.01E, 5330 447 581830
- WIOSCO Ageney and Logistks IS0 Agsocased company 68,518,519 a
Cra Manp Port Lopistics 150 Assoceted company 3.620,371 .
L4, 712,305 5%5 L17.M12.526,034
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35, OTHER INFORMATIONS

35 RELATED PARTIES (CONT®IN)

Yoear 2024 YWenr 2023
Relatian YD VD
Oiiher incame
- Sal Gon Pon 15C Subsidiary campany 4.433,610307 ABRYEUT 8BTS
= Cai Lan Part Investment 150 Bubsidiary company = T4E 5I6,943
A4,033,610,307 SARE 4,818
Interest income
- Con Tho Port JSC Subsidiary conmpany 283287028 2320840360
- Han Giang Maraiime Service One Subsidiary company 396, 5m1,001 331,499,959
Member Coanpany Limited
- Cai Lam Intermational Container Associsted company 4046, 654 557 -
Terminad Limited Linhility Company
= 5P -P5A Intemnational Por Associsted company BT 724450 B.300,547,775
Company Limized
14.800,166,044 11152 588,14
Fividends received
= Cam Ranh Pori 15C Bubsidiary company B920,356,T50 F0L02.658,230
- Sai Gon Maritime J15C Subsidiry company - B4 935 547,600
- Port oof Hai Phong JSC Subsidiary company 121036, 350,500 121,036, 550,500
- Da Masg Por J8C Subudary company 103,950,000, 000 111,57 35,000,000
- Wigtnam Maritime Deselopment 1SC  Sobsidiary conpany 5233 600,000 A4 520,000,100
- Wghe Tinh Port 150 Subsid=ry company 6,584, 263,204 6.255,050,040
- YWOEA Corporation Subsideary company 13029 B81 600 17992092 004
- WIMLC Logistics IS Subsidiary company - -
- Oy Mhon Pag J8C Subsidiary company 36374, T4, 404 36,374, 714,400
« Construction Consultation JSC For Azsovisted company TRIE 0400 063 056, i)
bAaritime Bailding
« Wietsiam « Japan Internatinnal Assacisted compnny 4,000,000, 0 £, 000,000, 000
Trmnspor Co.,Lad
= Khuyen Luong Port 150 Assacivted company 3975 468,00 3,975 468,00
« Transportation And Trading Services  Associated company 2, 5970610, (1) 3,4 56,000,000
I5C
= Heagull Zhipping Company Associated company - 4 895, 100,00
- Sal Gon Maritime JSC (nher. Investmenst - el e
323 544055150 417,093 336,000
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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35, OTHER INFORMATIONS (CONT'D)
351  RELATED PARTIES (CONT'D)

Transaction with related parties (Coni*d)

In addition to the transactions mentioned in the Notes above, the Corporation also engaged

in the following transactions with related parties:

Helation Yeur 2024 Year 2023
YND YWD
Remuneration of key management personnel 13,659, 385,250 10,382, 624,131
Mr. Le Anh Son A hatirmen 1,636,113 506 305 463 2906
Bdr. Mguyen Canh Tinh hiember of the Board of 1,627 289.35] 1 435,076,670
Directors cum General
dr. Do Tien Due hMember of the Board 1,305,366 510 I, 000,282 923
br. Mgayea Dinh Chung Member of the Board 1303244 516 i.036,082 2491
Mr. [ Hung Duong Member of the Board 1,266,220 968 1,018 900419
Mr. Pham Anh Tuan Deputy Gemeral Manager 1,334,966 487 DET.087 356
Mir. Le Quang Trsng Deputy Ceperzl Mannger I 2E0 406, 257 1010, 387 356
Br. Mgayes Meoc Ach Depusy General Manager 1,.200,769.51% 72512320
{Appainted on
Q11 2023)
Br. Lansng Dinh Mink Superviory Boerd I, 195,033,753 a0 717.917
bds. Phan Thi Nhi Ha Member of the B43, 122,955 T45,057,792
Supervisory Board
Mr. Pham Cao Nhus Member of the RIS, 500,100 GR2,057, 792
Supervizory Board

352 OPERATIONG LEASED ASSETS

(1) The Corporation signed 2 land lease contract for the property located at No. | Bao Duy
Anh Street, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, for use as an office and
for office rental business from 15 June 1998 to 25 June 2048. The leased land area is
6,851.0 m*. Under this contract, the Corporation is required to pay annual land rent until
the contract's expiration date, in accordance with the prévailing regulations of the State

{2} The Corporation signed a land kase contract for the property located at 163 Nguyen
Van Troi Strect, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City, for use as an office
and for rental business from 19 June 2002 to 19 June 2052, The leased land arca is
330.0 m?®, Under this contract, the Corporation has made a one-time land rental payment
covering the entire lease temm, in accordance with the prevailing regulations of the State.
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A5 OTHER INFORMATIONS (CONT D)
352  OPERATIONG LEASED ASSETS (CONT'D)

{3) The Company has signed land lease contracts at a several locations in Hai Phong City,

a5 follows:

Address Acreage  Purpose Land lease Land lease
{m®) term

Dong Hai Ward, 1617450 Transhipment Land  lease 40 vears (from
Hai An distre, station with  annual 2400272004 o
Hai Phong City rent payment  24/01/2044)
282 Da Nang, Van §310.1 Hotels, Land  lease 50 vears (from
My Ward, Ngo Offices for with annual 25071994 to
Cuyen district, Hai lease rent payment  25/07/2044)
Phong City
111B Vo Thi Say, 112.0 Office Land  lease 350 wears (from
May To Ward, with a lump- 15710/1993 1w
Ngo Cuyen sum payment  15/10/2043)
district, Hai Phong for the entire
Clity lease term
Total 170,176.1

453  OTHER INFORMATIONS

According to the provisions of Decrec No. 1262017/ND-CP dated 16 November 2017,
issued by the Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and single-member
limited liability companies wholly owned by state enterprises into joint-stock companies, at
the time of officially conversion into a joint-stock company, the Corporation is required o
finalize taxes and other obligations fo the State budget with the Tax Authority seek approval
from the owner's representative agency for the State capital capital valuation, finalize
equitisation proceeds and pay allowances for redundant employees and equitization costs.
The Corporation has completed the tax finalization of taxes and other payables to the State
budget. For the remaining requirements, the Corporation has prepared the necessany
documentation and is submitting it for approval by the competent authorities. Therefore, the
figures presenied in the accompanying Scparate Financial Statements may be subject o
adjustments following official approval.

3. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures are those from the Separate Financial Statements for the fiscal year
ended 31 December 2023, which was audited.

Honod, 03 March 2025

Preparer Head of Finance and

F_“:}
I=]  ine Wl
".,*\. VIET N / 7/
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-1.-3 _g_ﬁgrl‘u{,lnh Tinh

General Director

Vu Thi Thanh Duyen Le Diuy Duong
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION - JSC Independence - Freedom — Happiness

No: /TTr-BPHDBCD Ha Noi, .../.../2025

DRAFT

SUBMISSION

On the Approval of the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC

Pursuant to Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/6/2020;

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/2019, No.
56/2024/QH15 dated 29/11/2024;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31/12/2020, detailing the
implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities ;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31/12/2020 of the
Ministry of Finance guiding corporate governance applicable to public
companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP ;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC ;

Pursuant to internal corporate governance regulations of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation - JSC;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 229/NQ-GMS dated April 16, 2024 of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2024 of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — JSC (VIMC);

Pursuant to The Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year 2024 of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC have been audited by UHY
Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.,

The Board of Directors of the Corporation respectfully submits to the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 for approval the 2024 Profit
Distribution Plan of VIMC as follows:

1. Assessment of Business Performance in 2024

Based on the audited Financial Statements 2024 of the Parent Company,
certain financial indicators and actual payroll figures of the Parent Company are
as follows :

Items Plan Actual Actual 2024/
2024 2024 Plan 2024
1. Revenue (VND billion) 2.415 3.157 131%
2. Total accounting profit before tax o
(VND billion) 935 1.353,5 145%




It Plan Actual Actual 2024/
ems 2024 2024 Plan 2024
3. Average employee salary fund 19.270
4. Average salary and remuneration fund
1.098,7
for Management Personnel

Accordingly, both the actual revenue and the actual profit before tax of the
Parent Company in 2024 recorded growth compared to the plan approved by the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024.

2. Profit Appropriation Plan for FY2024

Based on the business performance results for 2024, the applicable
regulations, and the current balances of the Corporation’s funds (including the
Development Investment Fund, Bonus and Welfare Fund, etc.), the Board of
Directors of the Corporation respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2025 for approval the plan for profit distribution and
appropriation to funds from the 2024 post-tax profit, as follows:

% of Profit
After Tax
Allocated

Profit Distribution

Plan for 2024 (VND) Notes

No Description

1 | Profit Before 1.353.536.982.178

Tax

Profit After
Corporate

Income Tax for
2024

1.353.536.982.178

Retained
Earnings
3 Accumulated up 0
to the End of the
Previous Year

Adjustment to
4 | Unallocated 873.343.067.688
Retained

Earnings (*):

Foreign as per the Notes

Exchange Gain
from Year-End
Revaluation of
Balances

27.062.031.481

to the Separate
Financial

Statements, page
42

Income from
Written-Off
Loan Interest

377.743.630.417

as per the Notes
to the Separate
Financial
Statements, page
43




% of Profit

No Description Pll):ﬁftl.(tnpzlzt;;b(l{:;);;) After Tax Notes
Allocated
Income from as per the Notes
Asset to the Separate
Revaluation for 468.537.405.790 Financial
Capital Statements, page
Contribution 43
Total Allocated
5 | ProfitAfter 480.193.914.490
Tax
3)=2)+3)-4d
gg 5;?5;?123? to equivalent to 30%
5.1 Investment 144.058.174.347 30,00% | of the profit after
Fund tax allocated
Appropriation to capped at the
52 | Bonusand 57.810.750.000 12,049 | Cuivalentof 3
Welfare Fund months of average
employee salary
50% of the
Bonus Fund 28.905.375.000 50,000 | @mount to be
allocated to the
Bonus Fund
50% of the
Welfare Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% a;‘l’:coa”t’;y;i;e
Welfare Fund
capped at the
Appropriation to equivalent of 2
53 | Management 2.197.400.000 0.46% | months of average
Bonus Fund salary apd
remuneration of
Management
Profit Allocated
for Cash 0 0,00%
s | Dividend
Distribution
Dividend o
Payout Ratio 0%
Remaining
5.5 | Profit After 276.127.590.143
Appropriation to
Funds
Undistributed
6 Retained 1.149.470.657.831

Earnings (6) =

3




0
No Description Profit Distribution {Zf(t)if ’ll:(:;t Notes
p Plan for 2024 (VND)
Allocated
@) + (5.5

The Board of Directors respectfully proposes that the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 2025 consider and approve the Profit Distribution
Plan for 2024 of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC.

Respectfully submitted./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As stated above; CHAIRMAN
- Supervisory Board;
- Members of the Board of Directors;
- Archives: Office, Finance &
Accounting Dept, General Secretary.
Le Anh Son



VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION - JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: /TTr-BPHDPCD

Hanoi, June 2025

DRAFT

STATEMENT
Business and investment plan in 2025 of Vietnam Maritime Corporation -
Joint Stock Company

To: Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025 of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/6/2020;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH11 dated 26/11/2019; Law No.
56/2024/QH15 dated 29/11/2024;

Pursuant to the Government's Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31/12/ 2020
detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31/12/2020 of the Ministry of
Finance guiding a number of articles on corporate governance applicable to public
companies in Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Internal Regulation on corporate governance of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation - Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCHD dated 16/4/2024 of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company,

The Board of Director of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company
("VIMC") respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders the 2025 Business
and Investment Plan of VIMC as follows:

I. BUSINESS AND INVESTMENT RESULTS IN 2024
1. Background in 2024

VIMC and subsidiaries operated in the context of complicated and unpredictable
situation of the world economy; fierce strategic competition; geopolitical tensions escalation
in many areas; the price of gasoline, basic goods, and freight fluctuated sharply; the economy
and trade have recovered slowly and unsteadily; total demand and global investment declined;
exchange rates and interest rates fluctuate unpredictably; natural disasters, climate change,
energy security, food, and cyber security are complicated.

The bulk freight market has been unstable throughout the year. The BDI indicator
declined sharply from the end of 2023 from 3,400 points to only about 1,300 points in January
2024 and then mainly fluctuated between 1,500 and 2,000 points. However, since mid-

1



November, the BDI index has continued to fall deeply to 1,150 points. The market is mainly
led by Capesize segment while smaller vessel segments such as Supramax and Handysize
remain stable due to increased demand in Asia and the Americas.

The container shipping market developed positively in the first half of the year, freight
rates increased compared to the same period last year, mainly due to the continued crisis in
the Red Sea, congestion at major ports in the world, and recovery in consumer demand in the
US and European markets. However, the average freight rate has decreased continuously
since mid-July due to the adaptation of shipping lines in rerouting their services, the reduction
of port congestion as well as the delivery of newly built ships handed over continue to be at a
high level.

For VIMC's port system, pressure of competition is increasing constantly. Private
players with very high flexibility in price policies, have absolute advantages in market and
customer development. In addition, amid the general difficult situation, shipping lines
themselves are also forced to cut costs, putting pressure on revenue at ports.

Logistics subsidiaries face many difficulties in terms of operation costs (gasoline prices,
electricity prices, etc.), and volume when many export enterprises lack orders, reducing the
flow of goods between factories and stations, ports, and border gates.

2. Results of business and investment activities in 2024
2.1 Results of business activities

2.1.1 Business results of the parent company
Unit: Billion VND)

Plan 2024/ 2024/Plan
Items 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024

Total Revenue 2,067 2,414 3,157 153% 131%

1. Net revenue from §ales of goods 1 468 1955 1,641 112% 131%
and rendering of services ’ ’ ’

2. Cost of goods sold 1,381 1,158 1,448 105% 125%

3. Gross p.roﬁt from .sales of goods 876 96.8 192 220% 199%
and rendering of services

4. Financial income 547 381 540 99% 142%

5. Financial expense 88.4 49.8 107 121% 215%

6. Selling expense 20.7 16.1 9.8 47% 61%

7. General and administrative 209 244 223 107% 91%
expenses

8. Net profit from operating 316 169 | 393 |  124% |  233%
activities

9. Other income 51.9 778 975 1878% 125%

10. Other expense 10.9 11.5 15.2 138% 132%

11. Other Profit (11=9-10) 40.9 766 960 2344% 125%




145%

Total net profit before tax ‘ 357 ‘ 935 ‘ 1,353 ‘ 379%

- Total revenue in 2024: VND 3,157 billion (131% of FY 2024), of which:

+ Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services: VND 1,641 billion, an
increase of VND 386 billion compared to the plan, mainly due to VIMC's expansion of
business activities, increase in revenue from commercial activities (an increase of VND 365
billion).

+ Financial income: VND 540 billion, 142% of the budget, equivalent to an increase
of VND 159 billion, mainly from deposit interest (an increase of VND 48 billion) and
exchange rate difference interest (an increase of VND 107 billion).

+ Other income: VND 975 billion, an increase of VND 197 billion compared to the
budget, mainly due: (i) income from the write-off of the interest on interest of VDB Bank
(VND 378 billion - an increase of VND 177 billion compared to the plan), (ii) revenue from
the revaluation of the assets contributed by shares of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint
Stock Company and VIMC Dinh Vu's into VIMC Lines (VND 468.5 billion - an increase
of VND 16 billion compared to the plan), (iii) revenue from asset liquidation was VND 104
billion (a decrease of VND 7.6 billion compared to the plan) and (iv) some other income
was VND 20.8 billion.

Total expense: VND 1,479 billion (122% of FY 2024), expenses increased compared
to the plan due to: expenses for commercial activities increased by VND 363.5 billion,
financial expenses increased by VND 57 billion (mainly due to an increase in losses on
exchange rate differences which be revaluated at the end of the period).

During the year, VIMC has synchronously implemented solutions to effectively
manage costs, followed by a decrease of VND 20.8 billion of business management
expenses in 2024 compared to the plan.

Profit before tax: VND 1,353 billion (145% of FY 2024).

Thus, the business results of the parent company in 2024 exceeded all the targets
including volume, revenue and profit which were assigned by the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders in 2024.

2.1.2 VIMC consolidated business results:

. Plan 2024/ 2024/plan
Items Unit 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024
Shipping volume Migrllon 20.8 15.8 19.4 94% 122%
Million
Port throughput ton 114.8 123.7 145.3 127% 117%
Billion 0 o
Revenue VND 13,964 | 13,447 | 19,375 139% 144%
Profit before tax &V%}]")n 2,126 | 2,736 3,153 149% 115%




(Note: Data according to VIMC's 2024 audited financial statements)

a. Port Sector

Cargo throughput: 145 million tons, increasing by 17% compared to the budget. In
which, containerized cargo was 6.2 million Teus, equivalent to 119% of the 2024 budget.
The results of the port sector grew significantly due to:

- Determined and synchronously implement solutions to maintain and develop the
business, customers and market share.

- Taking advantage of the opportunity from the congestion of ports in the region as
well as promoting market development, customer care, VIMC port system has developed
many new container services in 2024.

- Cargo throughput of almost port have raised up compared to FY 2023 and 2024
budget. In particular, the volume of strategic commodities such as containers, animal feed,
iron and steel, wood chips, and wood pellets grew well at ports such as Saigon, Da Nang,
Quy Nhon, and especially increased sharply in the joint venture ports with a growth rate of
38%.

Revenue: VND 7,938 billion, an increase of 18% compared to the budget, of which:
Hai Phong Port — increased by VND 770 billion (due to an increase in exploitation revenue,
in addition, Hai Phong Port recorded compensation for the relocation of Hoang Dieu
terminal of VND 202 billion); Saigon Port — increased by VND 392 billion from
exploitation revenue and financial revenue); Da Nang Port — increased by 113 billion VND.

In order to promote and improve labor productivity and service quality at ports, VIMC
has drastically directed the implementation of the information technology and digital
transformation in the management and administration of business activities; Many ports
have made efforts and determination to improve and complete towards building a smart and
modern port system, constantly improving the quality of customer service and operational
efficiency. In 2024, 10 new container services have been developed, especially there were
large services directly connect VIMC's port system with ports in Europe and the US.

b. Shipping Sector

Shipping volume: 19.4 million tons, up 22% compared to the plan. Although the volume
decreased compared to the same period in 2023 (due to the liquidation of 10/56 vessels, while
only 2 additional ships were invested. Besides, 14 vessels had to be on dock to periodically
repaired), it still exceeded the plan by 22%. VIMC has drastically directed the subsidiaries to
promote chartering activities to increase volume and revenue (volume from vessel
outsourcing activities reached 2.2 million tons).

Revenue: VND 9,732 billion, up 93% compared to the plan, of which: VIMC Shipping
—increased by VND 213 billion (from commercial revenue and finance restructuring); Vosco
—increased by VND 3,613 billion (from commercial revenue, exploitation revenue and ship
liquidation revenue); from July 2024, VIMC Lines' revenue will be recorded in the
consolidated results (VND 530 billion).

c. Maritime Services Sector

In 2024, the activities of the maritime service sector continue to face many difficulties
due to the decline in traditional business activities; there has been no breakthrough in the
development of new services. The warehouse system, transportation fleet, and logistics
system are still limited in many aspects in terms of capacity and quality of services provided



to customers. Core logistics services have not brought much revenue, relying heavily on
outsourcing. The customer structure is still relying heavily on traditional customers.

Revenue: VND 1,543 billion, up 10% compared to the plan, almost companies have
guaranteed revenue and exceed the budgeted revenue.

2.2 Investment results in 2024
2.2.1 Investment activities at the parent company:

The investment plan of the parent company in 2024 approved by the General Meeting
of Sharecholders in Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated 16/4/2024: VND 436.7 billion,
of which, transitional projects: VND 199.6 billion, new investment projects: VND 237.1
billion.

During the year, total value of investment was VND 151.4 billion (equivalent to 35%
of the plan) mainly due to: mechanisms and policies related to bidding, so the parent
company has not implemented the dry cargo ship investment project from 20,000 to 50,000
DWT (Plan: VND 177.8 billion).

Infrastructure investment projects:

- Hau Giang Maritime - Seaport service infrastructure investment project: Investment
preparation procedures have been completed and construction started on 12/1/2024. The
actual construction volume value reached 70% of the contract value. The project will be
transitioned and expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2025.

- Ninh Giang inland waterway port: The investment principle has been approved by
the People's Committee of Hai Duong province and the investor has been approved to
implement the project. VIMC worked with the People's Committee of Ninh Giang district -
Hai Duong to be guided on procedures related to measurement and tally for site clearance.
In 2024, VND 796 million has been disbursed for the cost of renting the construction
consultant, making a project proposal report and measuring and adjusting cadastral maps.
In 2025, VIMC will continue to implement investment preparation procedures: 1/500
planning, DTM report, preparing and approving FS report, compensation for land clearance,
etc. with an expected value of about VND 84 billion.

Equipment procurement project:

- Completed the purchase of 500 new 40HC containers and 500 new 20DC containers.
In May 2024, the project has been completed, handed over and put into operation;
acceptance and settlement of contracts; transfer assets to VIMC Shipping for management
and exploitation.

- Completed the purchase of two 7-seater cars and one 5-seater car for business
activities.

Investment project on information technology system:

In 2024, the parent company implemented information technology projects to upgrade
the information technology system for management and operation activities. However, the
implementation situation has not been achieved as planned, it is expected to continue to be
implemented in 2025 as follows:

+ IT infrastructure upgrade project: signed the contract to implement and disburse the
contract advance.

+ Portal and resource sharing project - Logistics Hub: has signed a contract to prepare
an economic and technical report. The project has not been approved since there was a
change in construction design, survey report based on the actual situation.

Building and warehouse repair:



VIMC has implemented building repair according to the approved plan. The total
disbursement value reached VND 17.3 billion (09 items). In which, the item of renovation
and installation of additional corridor smoke extraction system for Ocean Park Building is
being implemented and continuing to be conducted in 2025.

Development strategy of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company to
2030, vision to 2035: Developing and implementing solutions to carry out the vision.

In 2024, the strategic consulting project has been implemented. The project has been
accepted for the initial reporting period. Mid-Term reporting is currently implementing
which and continues to transition in 2025.

2.2.2 VIMC's key projects:

(1) Construction of container terminals No. 3 and No. 4 of Hai Phong international
gateway port (at Lach Huyen port, Hai Phong city):

By the time of reporting, the total cumulative disbursement value is VND 2,635
billion/total investment of VND 6,946 billion (37.9%). From the beginning of 2024, VIMC
and Hai Phong Port have focused on promoting the implementation. During the year, VIMC
has directed to accelerate the progress, urgently complete the bidding packages, install
equipment and prepare procedures for announcing the opening of the terminal, ensuring that
the project is put into operation as planned (putting the project into operation in the first
quarter of 2025), expected to complete the entire project in 2025.

(1) International transshipment port project in Can Gio district, Ho Chi Minh city:

In 2024, VIMC actively coordinated with Saigon Port, closely following ministries
and authorities to explain and supplement the dossier of the project. Up to now, the
procedures related to the approval of the project's principle have been resolved:

- Regarding the master plan of Vietnam's seaport system: On 22/5/2024, the Prime
Minister issued Decision No. 442/QD-TTg approving the adjustment of the master plan of
Vietnam's seaport system for the 2021-2030 period, with a vision to 2050.

- Regarding the principle of investment: On 16/1/2025, the Prime Minister approved
the investment principle of the project (Decision No. 148/QD-TTg).

In 2025, VIMC/Saigon Port will coordinate with partners to complete investment
preparation procedures and expected to be selected as the project investor.

(ii1) Lien Chieu Port, Da Nang:

VIMC has coordinated with Da Nang Port to implement investment proposal
procedures and promote cooperation with foreign partners to implement and develop
cooperation plans in line with the new investment orientation of Da Nang City People's
Committee.

In addition, VIMC is promoting the development of logistics infrastructure projects in
the regions: Investment principle of Ninh Giang inland waterway port project has been
approved; announced the opening of Dong Pho Moi inland port, Lao Cai province (ICD Lao
Cai).

2.3 Capital investment:

According to the capital investment plan for 2024 approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders, VIMC has implemented as follows:

- Completed the capital contribution to establish VIMC Container Shipping Joint
Stock Company (VIMC Lines): On 10/5/2024, VIMC Lines was granted an enterprise
registration certificate. At the same time, VIMC has completed the procedures for
contributing capital to VIMC Lines by money and assets (container boxes, value of



investment capital at VIMC Dinh Vu, Vimadeco) in line with regulations. Currently, VIMC
Lines has stably operated.

- Contributing capital to establish VIMC - Aries Joint Venture: VIMC has submit to
the proposal to competent authorities for approving the investment principle and decision
to contribute capital to establish VIMC - Aries Maritime Services Joint Venture Co., Ltd.
Up to now, the company has been granted an investment certificate, business registration
certificate and completed the capital contribution.

Capital increase for subsidiaries: VIMC has completed the increase in charter capital
of Vinaship Shipping Joint Stock Company; Vietnam Shipping and Chartering Joint Stock
Company and is implementing procedures to increase charter capital at Can Tho Port Joint
Stock Company.

2.4 Asset liquidation

In 2024, VIMC completed the liquidation of the VIMC Green vessel as planned, with
revenue of VND 103 billion. At the same time, it completed the liquidation of 10 old cars,
earning VND 1.08 billion.

I1. BUSINESS AND INVESTMENT PLAN IN 2025
1. Business plan in 2025:

In 2025, the global situation is forecasted to continue evolving rapidly, complexly and
unpredictably, with persistent risks of geopolitical conflicts and intensified great-power
competition. Trade tensions are expected to rise. Policy changes in major economies pose
risks to global growth.

The current maritime transport market is experiencing a severe downturn. The
transport indices (BDI, WCI) have fallen sharply to the lowest level since June 2020 due to
weakening demand, risks related to US trade policy and many shipping lines have begun to
resume their services through the Red Sea. It is forecasted that the transport market in 2025
will continue to face many difficulties and challenges because the demand for bulk cargo
transportation will only increase by about 1%, while the supply of the fleet will maintain a
growth of about 3%, leading to the risk of large oversupply and putting pressure on freight
rates. Currently, the BDI index only ranges from about 700-1,200 (much lower than the
assumption in the business plan of 2025- from 1,600 to 2,000).

In addition, VIMC continues to face numerous internal challenges regarding fleet
capacity & technical specification, aging vessels while compliance requirements under new
international conventions. VIMC logistics infrastructure is no longer located in optimal
areas, leading to competitiveness reduction. Major seaports have to relocate due to the
construction of public infrastructure in the provinces.

Despite facing a difficult and challenging context in 2025, with the determination and
aspirations of the leadership and employees, and under the direction of the Prime Minister
and the Ministry of Finance, in order to ensure that growth is not lower than 2024 and at
least 8% for 2025, VIMC will synchronously implement many comprehensive solutions to
overcome bottlenecks, difficulties as well as create breakthroughs and seek new growth
drivers to achieve the highest goals and targets of the 5-year business plan (2021-2025)
towards the 14th National Party Congress.



Pursuant to Document No. 1073/QD-BTC of the Ministry of Finance dated
25/3/2025 on the assignment of growth targets in 2025. VIMC has built a business plan in
2025 as follows:

1.1 Business plan of the parent company:
(Unit: Billion VND)

Plan 2025/
Items 2024 Plan 2025 2024
Total Revenue 3,157 3,849 122%
1. Net- revenue fr:om sales of goods and 1,641 3.176 1949
rendering of services
2. Cost of goods sold 1,448 3,139 217%
3. Gr(?ss profit from sales of goods and 193 36.2 19%
rendering of services
4. Financial income 540 326 60%
S. Financial expense 107 34.5 32%
6. Selling expense 9.8 15.2 154%
7. General and administrative expense 223 240 108%
8. Net profit from operating activities 393 72.5 18%
9. Other income 975 346 36%
10. Other expense 15.2 10.3 68%
11. Other Profit (11=9-10) 960 336 35%
Total net profit before tax 1,353 409 30%

- Total revenue: VND 3,849 billion, an increase of VND 692 billion (22% compared
to FY 2024). Revenue from shipping operations is expected to reach VND 3,006 billion, an
increase of VND 1,526 billion compared to 2024 due to VIMC'’s strong efforts to meet the
Government’s growth targets.

- Profit before tax in 2025: VIMC expects to reach VND 4009 billion. In 2024, VIMC
recorded several gains from financial restructuring, revaluation of capital-contributed
assets, and foreign exchange differences.

The above business targets are aligned with the growth indicators assigned by the
Ministry of Finance under Decision No. 1073/QD-BTC dated 25/3/2025.

VIMC's consolidated business plan:

. Plan 2025/
Items Unit 2024 Plan 2025 2024
Shipping volume Million ton 19.4 21.1 109%




. Plan 2025/
Items Unit 2024 Plan 2025 2024
Port throughput Million ton 145.3 158.3 109%
Revenue &V%h]")n 19,375 20,925 108%
Profit before t Billion 3,153 3,076 98%
rofit before tax VND , , 0

2. Investment plan in 2025

2.1 Investment plan of the parent company:

Total investment plan in 2025: VND 208.7 billion, of which:
- The transitional projects from 2024 to 2025: VND 162.7 billion.
- The new investment plan: VND 46.01 billion.

a. Transitional projects from 2024.

(1) Infrastructure investment projects:

- Ninh Giang inland waterway port: In 2025, preparatory investment procedures will
be conducted with an estimated value of VND 84 billion.

- Renovation and installation of additional corridor smoke extraction system at Ocean
Park building: expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2025.

- Hau Giang seaport maritime service area: being completed and put into operation in
the second quarter of 2025.

- Procurement project for additional audio and lighting equipment for the main
conference room on the 3rd floor of Ocean Park building: The total investment is adjusted
to VND 1.8 billion to upgrade the specialized audio system for conferences.

(11) Information technology project:
- Centralized customer care portal: (CRM + Hotline).

- IT infrastructure upgrade project to support the management and operations of
VIMC.

- Resource sharing portal project - Logistics hub.
- Human resource management software.

(ii1) Development strategy of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company
to 2030, vision to 2035: Develop and implement solutions to realize the strategic vision.

b. New projects in 2025:

(1) Infrastructure investment projects:
- Project 1: Installation of fine art lighting system outside Ocean Park building.
- Project 2: Mekong Delta project.

(i1) Equipment procurement projects:



- Project 1: purchase of 02 new 7-seater cars.
(i11) Information technology project:
- Integrated axis project - Bigdata VIMC.

In addition to the above investment projects, the parent company also implements

projects to repair and renovate infrastructure and equipment in 2025 with a total value of
VND 31.9 billion.

(Details in the Appendix No. 01 attached).

2.2 Plan for reducing ownership ratio, divestment, and capital reduction in
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the development strategy for the 2021-2030 period with a vision to 2035;
the 5-year business and investment plan for 2021-2025; the approved restructuring scheme
of VIMC for 2021-2025; the progress of divestment activities in 2024; and the market
situation, VIMC continues the plan of reducing ownership ratio and divesting contributed
capital in subsidiaries in 2025, specifically as follows:

+ Divestment plan: (1) Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Company; (i1) Transvina; (ii1) Hai
Phong Port Joint Stock Company; (iv) Transport and Trading Services Joint Stock
Company; (v) Cam Ranh Port Joint Stock Company; (vi) Dong Do Maritime Joint Stock
Company.

+ Increasing charter capital to reduce VIMC's ownership ratio in enterprises: (i) Can
Tho Port Joint Stock Company;(ii) VIMC Logistics Joint Stock Company;(iii) Vinabridge;
(iv) VIMC Lines. (Details in Appendix No. 02 attached).

2.3. The parent company’s capital increase and capital contribution plan:

In 2025, the parent company plans to contribute additional capital to several
enterprises including:

- An estimated payment of approximately VND 65 billion for the “Legal Benefit Value
of Investors” under the Quy Nhon Port transfer contract with Hop Thanh company.

- Contributing capital to establish VIMC - ARIES with ARIES Group, an estimated
value of VND 2.7 billion (equivalent to 51% of charter capital).

- Contributing capital to the joint venture who will implement the construction of Can
Gio international transshipment port project: VIMC, together with Saigon Port shall
establish a consortium with partners to join the bidding for being selected as the project
investor. Subsequently, the consortium members will establish a Joint Venture Company to
implement the project. The Vietnamese side holds 51% of the charter capital in the joint
venture.

- Contributing capital to the joint venture to implement the Lien Chieu Container Port
construction investment project: VIMC (or the consortium formed by VIMC, Da Nang Port
with partners) shall participate in the bidding for being selected as the investor of the Lien
Chieu project. The consortium will establish a Joint Venture Company to implement the
project. The Vietnamese side (VIMC and Da Nang Port) holds 51% of the charter capital.

In addition, in 2025 VIMC will not dissolve the VIMC Manpower Company to carry
out the seafarers training and supply according to VIMC’s centralized crew management
strategy.
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At the same time, along with continuing the restructuring of VIMC Hau Giang, VIMC
plans to increase the charter capital of VIMC Hau Giang from assets and receivables of
VIMC at VIMC Hau Giang, supporting VIMC Hau Giang to have resources to implement
investment projects improve operational capacity, and stabilize its financial situation before
transferring to the joint stock company.

(Details in Appendices 03, 04 attached)

2.4 Plan for sale/liquidation of old and unused assets of the parent company:
(Details in Appendix 05 attached)

2.5 Ship liquidation plan:

(Details in Appendix 06.07 attached)

2.6 Ship investment plan:

(Details in Appendix 08 attached)

3. Principle of increasing the parent company charter capital:

Implementing the strategy for sustainable development of Vietnam's Marine Economy
to 2030, with a vision to 2045 of the Central Executive Committee in Resolution No. 36-
NQ/TW dated 22/10/2018, Strategy for the development of Vietnam Maritime Corporation
for the period of 2021 - 2030, with a vision to 2035, The 5-year business and investment
plan for the period of 2021 - 2025, VIMC plans to synchronously invest in 03 main business
areas: deep-sea port system in Lach Huyen, Lien Chieu, Can Gio,... ; fleet expansion; and
logistics infrastructure, with a total investment capital of approximately VND 43,196
billion. The expected disbursement value for the 2021-2025 period is about VND 31,796
billion in which the equity capital is approximately VND 12,246 billion. Meanwhile,
VIMC’s current assets are primarily concentrated on fixed assets (fleet) and long-term
financial investments.

It is expected that during 2024-2025 VIMC and its members will synchronously
implement major projects including Lien Chieu Port, Can Gio Port, Lach Huyen ICD, Nam
Saigon ICD, and invest to expand its fleet. Therefore, VIMC has to increase its charter
capital to meet the investment demand, and to expand business activities (including
construction of large ports for big vessels, fleet expansion, as well as capital increases in
subsidiaries which have effective business results), in line with VIMC’s strategic
development orientation.

In order to ensure enough resources to implement investment projects, in 2025, VIMC
will prepare and submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders a plan to increase charter
capital by offering shares to strategic investors. The State’s ownership ratio in VIMC will
be reduced to 65%.

4. Implementation solution

4.1 Business Development:

- In an unpredictable and volatile market environment, VIMC will regularly meet and
engage with domestic and international partners, customers, cargo owners, and shipping
lines to exchange and update the market developments, capturing their production, export,
and import plans, as well as the service development plan of shipping lines as well as setting
up appropriate business scenarios.
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- Facing a significant risk of volume decline when the shipping lines may withdraw or
stop their services, leading to oversupply of berth subsidiaries will immediately activate
solutions to retain customers and services. Simultaneously, VIMC will seek opportunities
to attract more shipping lines and new services, optimizing berth utilization.

- Continue to concretize and vigorously promote the “Customer-Centric” culture.
Strengthening and fostering cooperative relationships with partners to ensure stable
throughput and develop new services to VIMC port system.

- Continue to restructure the business apparatus following the customer experience
journey. Innovating customer care by focusing on marketing programs and integrated
service packages. Accelerating digital transformation, applying information technology in
management and operations, increasingly professionalizing customer care, and enhancing
customer experience. Strongly develop new services beyond stevedoring, such as logistics
services, to increase revenue for port companies.

- Develop and supplement new solutions to timely respond to unpredictable changes
in U.S tariff policies. Focus on promoting business activities, seeking and expanding new
customers, cargo owners, shipping lines, and services in order to diversify markets, avoiding
dependence on traditional markets, and minimizing risks from new tariff and trade policies.

- Actively integrate internationally, strengthen bilateral and multilateral cooperation;
effectively mobilize and utilize capital and technical support from partners and international
organizations to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of governance, administration, and
operations.

4.2 Finance and investment:

- Basing on market forecasts and assessments, VIMC shall set up corresponding
business scenarios. Subsidiaries need to evaluate and select suitable investment projects,
prioritizing resources to expand and grow while ensuring cash flow balance.

- Implement centralized procurement programs, Shared Service Center model to
manage costs effectively and prevent waste.

- Deploy cost reduction solutions, effective cost management, centralized procurement
programs.

- Continue to negotiate with the Vietnam Development Bank (VDB) on debt
restructuring for the parent company and subsidiaries; continue supporting subsidiaries in
handling debts at commercial banks, SBIC, and VFC.

- Looking for capital sources for key projects of VIMC subsidiaries and the parent
company.

- Continue utilizing and improving operational efficiency of subsidiaries resources,
infrastructure and land.

- Investing in new vessels aligned with the fleet development strategy, prioritizing
new-generation ships.

- Liquidation of old vessels: Accelerate the liquidation of aging vessels with low
operational efficiency that do not meet IMO environmental requirements.

4.3 Human resources:

In 2025, VIMC will continue to focus on implementing “People Centric” by prioritizing
human resources development and training.

- Continue to restructure and build an effective, lean organization.
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- Strongly apply information technology and artificial intelligence (Al) in human
resource management.

- Innovating recruitment, training, and talent search processes, implementing the SSC
(Shared Service Center) model for recruitment and training services with VIMC’s
subsidiaries.

- Reforming the staff evaluation system: multi-dimensional (360-degree) assessments
based on criteria and outcomes, combined with software-based evaluation tools.

- Thoroughly innovate salary and remuneration mechanisms according to market
principles to motivate employees; establish mechanisms and policies to foster fair, healthy
competition and attract and retain talents.

- Implement the VIMC culture corporate culture strategy based on One Foundation —
Two Approaches — Three Priorities (establishing a unified cultural foundation applied across
all VIMC member companies).

4.4. Governance and administration:

- Focus on supplementing, perfecting, and removing institutional bottlenecks within
the system; addressing long-standing inadequacies, backlogs, and obstacles to best meet the
demands for innovation and breakthroughs in national development under the new
circumstances.

- Continue to improve and reorganize the organizational structure to be lean, effective,
and efficient; strengthen real and effective decentralization and delegation; tighten
discipline and order, emphasizing the responsibility of leaders.

- Continuously enhance the quality of governance and administration at VIMC and its
member enterprises through cooperation with leading global partners and shipping lines.

- Actively and proactively research and transfer new technologies to increase labor
productivity. Lead innovation, digital transformation, and the development and application
of science and technology in accordance with Politburo’s Resolution No. 57.

- VIMC-wide effective application of CRM systems; focus on deploying centralized
Big Data platforms as a foundation to connect resources, develop integrated services, and
increase revenue from new services.

- Apply cost management technology: implement digital and automation technologies
in operational management, especially in optimizing vessel scheduling and maintenance.

- Innovation work: Continue consolidating Kaizen practices within VIMC’s
knowledge system, striving to achieve increased value and benefits compared to 2024
through Kaizen application.

Sincerely./.

Recipient: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR
- Ditto; CHAIRMAN
- Supervisory Board;

- Members of the Board of Director;
- Save: VT, PTTT, TKTH, VP.

Le Anh Son
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APPENDIX 01.1
2025 INVESTMENT PLAN - PARENT COMPANY

Unit: VND million

. Project Total
No. Project Name Scale/De{scription Investment 2025 Plan
I | Ongoing Projects from Previous Years 1,630,010 162,735
1 | Capital Construction Investment Projects 1,576,514 130,555
1.1 | Infrastructure investment for the maritime | Group C 63,900 34,500
service area at Hau Giang Seaport
1.2 | Investment and construction of Ninh Giang | Group B 1,496,459 84,000
inland waterway port
1.3 | Renovation and installation of additional | Installation from 14,355 10,255
smoke extraction system in the corridor of | Ground floor to 19th
Ocean Park Building floor
1.4 | Procurement of additional audio and lighting | Specialized audio 1,800 1,800
equipment for the large meeting room on the | system for
3rd floor of Ocean Park Building conferences
2 | IT Projects 21,795 17,680
2.1 | Centralized Customer Service Portal Project | Implemented at 1,000 1,000
(CRM + Hotline) VIMC and
subsidiaries
2.2 |IT infrastructure upgrade project for | VIMC Headquarters 14,106 | 10,743
management and operations of VIMC
2.3 | Information portal and resource sharing | Implemented at 4,850 4,685
project — Logistics Hub VIMC and
subsidiaries
2.4 | Human resource management software | Implemented at 1,839 1,252
investment project VIMC and

subsidiaries




Project

Total

No. Project Name Scale/Description | Investment AL LT
3 | Development Strategy of VIMC to 2030, | 3-phase Report 31,701 14,500
Vision to 2035: Develop and implement
solutions to realize the vision
II | Projects Commencing in the Plan Year 3,439,010 46,510
1 Capital Construction Investment Projects 3,420,710 28,210
1.1 | Installation of decorative exterior lighting | From 4th to 19th floor 7,710 7,710
system for Ocean Park Building
1.2 | Mekong Delta Area Project 75,000 20,000
1.3 | Investment and construction of VIMC | Logistics center 3,338,000 500
logistics center at Lach Huyen terminal area, | construction on 46.7
Hai Phong City hectares of land
2 | Equipment Procurement Projects 4,500 4,500
2.1 | Procurement of new 7-seater cars for general 2 cars 4,500 4,500
office use
3 | IT Projects 13,800 13,800
3.1 | VIMC Big Data Integration Hub Project 13,800 13,800
Total 5,069,020 209,245




APPENDIX 01.2
2025 MAINTENANCE PLAN - PARENT COMPANY

Unit: VND million

. Project Total Repair
No. Project Name Scale/Description | Investment AL LU

I | INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE 21,050 21,050

1 Renovation of restrooms from Ground floor 16 WC rooms 3,700 3,700
to 3rd floor of Ocean Park Building

2 | Waterproofing for rooftop terrace on 4th 800 m? 1,500 1,500
floor and roof of Ocean Park Building

3 Renovation of the canteen on the 19th floor 575 m? 12,700 12,700
of Ocean Park Building

4 | Installation of 2 new company signboards 65 m? 300 300
in Ho Chi Minh City

5 | Installation of a new company signboard at 80 m? 1,000 1,000
Ocean Park Building

6 | Interior renovation of central elevator cabin 500 500

7 | Repair and renovation of the front exterior | Building front 1,000 1,000
of Ocean Park Building

8 | Renovation of pantries on floors 3, 5, 8, 11, 5 floors 350 350
and 15 of Ocean Park Building

II | EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 10,842 10,842

1 | Upgrade of camera system from 1st to 15th | Floors 1 to 15 1,000 1,000
floor and installation of additional cameras
in elevators

2 | Replacement of fire alarm equipment from | Basement 2 to 3,700 3,700
Loop 1 to Loop 7 (Basement 2 to 16th floor) 16th floor

3 | Installation of circuit breaker to isolate two 300 300
backup generators

4 | Group control connection for 2 rear 2 elevators 220 220

elevators in Ocean Park Building




Project

Total Repair

No. Project Name Scale/Description | Investment AL LU

5 | Upgrade and modernization of 4 central 4 elevators 4,712 4,712
elevators in Ocean Park Building

6 | Replacement of compact corridor lighting 12 floors 180 180
on floors 4 to 15 and 19 with LED lights

7 | Repair and upgrade of fire protection 9 floors 450 450
system at 163 Nguyen Van Troi Building,
HCMC

8 | Repair of air conditioning system at 163 280 280
Nguyen Van Troi Building, HCMC
Total 31,892 31,892




APPENDIX NO. 02.1
2025 PLAN FOR DIVESTMENT AND REDUCTION OF THE PARENT COMPANY'S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

IN INVESTED ENTERPRISES
Unit: VND million
No. Enterprise Name Charter VIMC's VIMC’s Ownership
Capital Investment N beE Ratio
Capital (at par
pvallfe) P Shares Held Ownership
by VIMC Present Ratio After
Divestment
| Carried forward from 2024
| | Saigon Maritime Joint Stock 43,096 4374 437400 | 10.15% 0%
Co.Ltd
) Vietnam H1-.Te?ch Transportation 39,854 i 1 56.00% 0%
Company Limited
3 | Hai Phong Port Joint Stock 3,269,600 3.026.414 | 302.641377| 92.56% 65%
Company
4 | Transportation and Trading 86,000 28,800 2,880,000 | 33.49% 0%
Services Joint Stock Company
II | 2025 Plan
; | Cam Ranh Port Joint Stock 245,018 198230 | 19,823,015 | 80.90% 65%
Company
, | Dong Do Marine Joint Stock 122,445 59,966 5,996,573 | 48.97% 0%
Company




APPENDIX NO. 02.2:
2025 PLAN FOR REDUCING THE PARENT COMPANY’S OWNERSHIP RATIO IN INVESTED ENTERPRISES

Unit: VND million

Current Status

Post-adjustment

Note
No. | Enterprise Number VIMC Estimated Number VIMC
Name Charter | of shares . of shares .
. Ownership | charter Ownership
Capital | heldby | b tio (%) | capital | "9PY | Ratio (%)
VIMC ° P VIMC °
I | Carried forward from 2024
Charter capital increase through
debt-to-equity  conversion  of
Can Tho VIMC'’s receivables (based on the
Port Joint 0 o parent company's books as of
1 Stock 275,281 | 27,256,618 | 99.01% 489,720 | 31,831,818 65% 31/12/2024), share  issuance,
Company resulting in a reduction of VIMC's
ownership in Can Tho Port JSC to
65% of charter capital.
Charter capital increase, with a
corresponding reduction of
XCI)Ni[sCtics VIMC’s ownership to 36% of
2 S 142,121 8,061,620 | 56.72% 223,934 | 8,061,620 36% charter capital in order to mobilize
Joint Stock o o1
resources, enhance flexibility,
Company
empower corporate autonomy, and
improve operational efficiency.
IT | 2025 Plan
Vietnam Capital rest.ruct.urmg and planned
Container charter capital increase to reduce
] : 0,
I | Operation | 16421 X 60.00% X dusi 51% | VIMC’s ownership to below 51%,
e 27,367 aiming to mobilize resources,
Limited s .
enhance flexibility, and improve
Company . i
business operations.




Current Status

Post-adjustment

Note
No. | Enterprise Number VIMC Estimated Number VIMC
Name Charter | of shares . of shares .
. Ownership | charter Ownership
Capital | heldby | b tio (%) | capital | "9PY | Ratio (%)
VIMC ° g VIMC °
VIMC. Charter capital increase, with
Container ownership reduced to 51% as part
2 | Lines Joint | 1,015,000 | 1,014,550 | 99.96% | 1,989,314 | 1,014,550 |  51% e ° 4P
Stock of the plan to restructure and
establish VIMC Lines
Company




APPENDIX NO. 02.3:
PLAN FOR CHARTER CAPITAL INCREASE AND REDUCTION OF VIMC'S
OWNERSHIP RATIO IN INVESTED ENTERPRISES IN 2025

I. VIMC LOGISTICS VIETNAM JOINT STOCK COMPANY ("VIMC
Logistics')

1. Implementation Status in Accordance with the VIMC Restructuring Scheme

According to the 2021-2025 VIMC Restructuring Scheme approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), VIMC Logistics is to be restructured through
capital divestment or a charter capital increase, thereby reducing VIMC’s ownership
ratio in VIMC Logistics to 36%. Under the 2024 Plan for Charter Capital Increase and
Ownership Reduction at Investee Companies approved by the VIMC Annual General
Meeting, VIMC Logistics is to be restructured by means of divestment or issuance of
shares to investors to reduce VIMC’s ownership in VIMC Logistics to 36% post-
restructuring.

According to the 2023-2028 Restructuring Scheme prepared by VIMC Logistics,
the capital increase plan is expected to be implemented in 2025.

2. Orientation and Plan for Business Operations and Investment
2.1. Business Orientation

- Development objectives for the period 2023 - 2025: Completely resolve
outstanding issues, underperforming assets, and loss-making business projects;
streamline the organizational structure; ensure effective and efficient corporate
governance. Maintain and stabilize business operations, focusing on high-quality
services for existing customer groups; expand market share and diversify new customer
sources.

- Development objectives for the period 2026 - 2028: Focus on investing in and
developing logistics infrastructure, deeply participating in the service chain within
VIMC's maritime transport - seaport - logistics services ecosystem.

- Vision to 2030: Establish a logistics infrastructure system, complete major, key
projects: a logistics center in key economic zones; an operations center for the North-
South refrigerated container chain and exports.

2.2. Investment Plan
a) Investment in developing cold storage facilities in Hai Phong

- Method: Lease regular warchouses, then convert and invest in equipment to
transform them into a cold storage system in Hai Phong to meet the increasing demand
for preserving goods such as food, pharmaceuticals, and chemicals. The cold storage is
planned with a scale of 2,000 m2, comprising 5 component warehouses, each with an
area of 400 m2, located near Port of Hai Phong, with convenient transportation and
infrastructure connectivity. The target market includes import-export enterprises in the
Hai Phong area, international logistics companies, and consumer goods manufacturers.

- Estimated investment period: 2025

- Estimated total investment: Approximately VND 14.8 billion.



- Investment capital source: Own capital.
b) Research and development of infrastructure investment at ICD Lao Cai

On December 16, 2024, the Ministry of Transport issued Decision No. 1549/QD-
BGTVT announcing the opening of Dong Pho Moi Inland Container Depot (ICD) (Lao
Cai). Dong Pho Moi ICD is located in Dong Pho Moi Industrial Zone, Lao Cai Ward,
Lao Cai City, Lao Cai Province, covering an area of 50,000 m2. The function of Dong
Pho Moi ICD (Lao Cai) is to receive and store goods for service business activities and
to carry out import-export procedures in accordance with Government Decree No.
38/2017/ND-CP dated April 4, 2017, and the Investment Certificate and Business
Registration Certificate issued by competent authorities.

Dong Pho Moi ICD in Lao Cai is an important cargo transit hub, connecting
Vietnam with international markets through the Lao Cai border gate. This area has
geographical and transportation advantages and is receiving significant infrastructure
investment, opening up many opportunities for the development of logistics,
transportation, and related industries. In the 2025-2030 period, the development goal is
to enhance its role as a modern logistics center to optimize domestic and international
cargo flows, develop high-tech services such as automated warehouse management and
IoT-based transport monitoring, while supporting import-export enterprises through fast
customs services and procedural consulting. Potential services also include a logistics
center, cargo management systems, as well as value-added services such as packaging,
labeling, and basic processing. In particular, this area has potential for developing
Vietnam-China cross-border e-commerce services, leveraging geographical advantages
and bilateral trade relations, while promoting the use of cold storage for efficient
preservation and transportation of agricultural products and foodstuffs.

- Estimated investment research period: 2025
- Estimated investment capital source: Own capital.
c¢) Investment in assets and equipment

To expand business operations, the Company will invest in a transport fleet of 20
container trucks equipped with generators and trailers.

Estimated total investment: Approximately VND 30 billion.
Estimated investment capital source: Company's own capital.

d) Further research on investment options in key economic zones (when
opportunities arise)

(i) Project: Investment in constructing a Honda goods distribution system in Lien
Chieu area - Da Nang

Establish a center for receiving, storing, and distributing Honda goods,
connecting Honda's factories as well as connecting factories to distribution agents,
thereby shortening transportation time, bringing high efficiency to the manufacturer, and
generating revenue for VIMC Logistics.

Reduce manufacturer costs, and decrease damage and theft of goods due to more
reliable and faster "door-to-door" transport services.

- Estimated location: Lien Chieu area - Da Nang.



- Estimated scale and total investment: The total project implementation area is
20,000 m2, including planned main items: an executive office building of about 200 m2,
a 10,000 m2 warehouse, a 5,000 m2 yard, and the remaining area for auxiliary facilities.
The estimated total investment is approximately VND 103.4 billion.

- Investment capital source: Company's own capital + contributed capital: 40%;
bank loans and other legally mobilized capital: 60%.

(ii) Dur dn Pau tu xdy dung trung tam logistics tai Can Gio

According to VIMC's development strategy for the 2021-2030 period, VIMC
collaborates with MSC to research investment in a large-scale international container
transshipment terminal in Can Gio District, Ho Chi Minh City. Phase 1 of the project
includes constructing 1,000m of main berths, 450m of barge berths, and 38.5 ha of
container yard. This is a key project aimed at developing international container
transshipment services, meeting the socio-economic development needs of the maritime
industry.

VIMC Logistics is researching investment in constructing a logistics center (cold
storage system) in Can Gio District with the following projected information:

- Purpose: To establish a cold storage system in Can Gio District to meet the
demand for storing and preserving marine products and other frozen goods.

- Estimated location: Can Gio District - Ho Chi Minh City.

- Estimated scale: Total project implementation area of 12,000m2, including
main items: an executive office building of about 200m2; a 10,000m2 warehouse; a
1,000m2 yard; the remaining area for auxiliary facilities.

- Investment capital source: Own capital 40%; loans and other mobilized capital
60%.

3. VIMC Logistics Restructuring Plan

To ensure capital for implementing development investment projects, mobilize
resources, create flexibility and proactivity for the enterprise, and improve business
operations, based on the VIMC Logistics restructuring plan in the VIMC Restructuring
Scheme (reducing VIMC's ownership stake from 56.72% to 36% of charter capital),
VIMC proposes a plan to increase charter capital to reduce VIMC's ownership stake to
36% of charter capital.

VIMC Logistics' Proposed Capital Increase Plan:

No. Item Value Ownership
(million (%)
VND)

1 | Current Charter Capital 142,121 100.0
1.1 | VIMC 80,616 56.72
1.2 | Other Shareholders 61,505 43.28

2 | New Charter Capital 223,934 100.0

(Projected)
2.1 | VIMC 80,616 36.0
2.2 | Other Shareholders 143,318 74.0




3 | Charter Capital Increase 81,813
(Projected) (3=2-1)

II. VIETNAM CONTAINER OPERATION LIMITED COMPANY
(Vinabridge)

1. Status of divestment implementation according to the VIMC Restructuring
Scheme

According to the VIMC Restructuring Scheme for the 2021 - 2025 period,
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), Vinabridge is slated for full
capital divestment.

Based on VIMC's 2024 Divestment Plan, approved by the Annual GMS, VIMC
has implemented divestment procedures at Vinabridge: (i) appraising and determining
the value of VIMC's capital contribution in Vinabridge; (ii) approving VIMC's
divestment plan for Vinabridge; (ii1) offering the sale to the remaining capital
contributing members of Vinabridge; however, the members declined to purchase; (iv)
conducting an auction sale of the capital stake in Vinabridge to external parties (held on
December 27, 2024). The divestment at Vinabridge was not completed in 2024 due to a
lack of investor interest.

2. Orientation and Plan for Business Operations and Investment
2.1. Business Orientation
- Enhance service quality to retain traditional customers and attract new ones.

- Increase revenue in the two main service segments: warehouse operation and
transportation.

- Seek cooperation opportunities with import-export companies and joint
ventures with logistics needs in Hai Phong.

- Closely collaborate with seaports and shipping lines within VIMC's ecosystem.

- Cooperate with logistics companies within the VIMC system as well as
transport companies in the Hai Phong Logistics Association to increase cargo sources
for transportation.

- Effectively reduce and manage costs.
- Seek transport customers to enable two-way (backhaul) transportation.

2.2. Business and Production Plan

No. Indicator Unit Actual Plan Comparison
2024 2025
1 Revenue VND million 55,600 62,800 113%
2 Costs VND million 55,470 61,750 111%
3 Profit Before Tax | VND million 130 1,050 807%
g4 | NetProfitEquity % 0.79 6.4 810%
Ratio
5 EBITDA VND million 1,850 2,375 128%

2.3. Investment Plan



In 2025, the Company plans to invest in the following assets to serve its business
operations:

- Investment in three 40-foot trailers, total investment: VND 1.08 billion.

- Investment in fire prevention and fighting systems at the Container Yard, total
investment: VND 0.2 billion.

- Investment in one 45-ton forklift, total investment: VND 10.5 billion.
- Total planned investment for 2025: VND 11.78 billion.
3. Enterprise Restructuring Plan

Currently, after a period of strong restructuring (2023 - 2024), Vinabridge's
business operations have markedly improved. After many consecutive years of losses
(since 2019), in 2024, the Company is projected to achieve a profit (VND 130 million).
In addition, Customs authorities have recognized Vinabridge Yard as a centralized
customs supervision and inspection site for export and import goods (since June 2024).
Therefore, it is anticipated that cargo volume will continue to grow, and Vinabridge's
operations will gradually stabilize. The plan for 2025 projects a profit of VND 1.05
billion. To enhance competitiveness and the quality of warehousing services to meet
business operation requirements, Vinabridge needs to raise additional capital to invest
in equipment procurement (the planned investment for 2025 is VND 11.78 billion).

Therefore, to mobilize resources, create flexibility and proactivity for the
enterprise, and improve business operations, VIMC proposes to adjust the restructuring
plan for Vinabridge from full divestment to implementing a capital increase, thereby
reducing VIMC's ownership stake in Vinabridge to below 51% of its charter capital in
2025.

III. VIMC CONTAINER LINES JOINT STOCK COMPANY (VIMC
Lines)

1. Charter Capital Plan according to the VIMC Lines Establishment Scheme

According to the Establishment Plan of Vimc Container Lines Joint Stock
Company, attached to Resolution No. 39/NQ-HHVN dated February 2, 2024, of the
VIMC Board of Directors, the charter capital plan of VIMC Lines is as follows:

1.1. Current Charter Capital at Establishment

The charter capital of VIMC Container Lines Joint Stock Company at the time
of establishment: VND 1,015,000 million, of which:

Shareholder Capital Ownership
Contribution (%)
Value at Par
(million VND)
VIMC 1,014,550 99.956
Other Shareholders 450 0.044
Total 1,015,000

1.2. Charter Capital Increase Plan:



After the establishment of VIMC Lines, VIMC and relevant parties will continue
to seek strategic investors to contribute capital to VIMC Lines. Then, the Company will
increase its charter capital, issue shares to strategic investors, and reduce VIMC's capital
ownership percentage in VIMC Lines. Procedures are expected to be carried out in 2024
- 2025, with the charter capital increase officially completed in 2026. The specific plan
is as follows:

Planned Charter Capital Increase
Item Amount Ratio
(million VND)
VIMC's Capital Contribution 1,014,550 51.00 %
Other Shareholders' Contribution 450 0.023 %
Strategic Investors' Contribution 974,314 48.977 %
Charter Capital 1,989,314 100 %

The additional charter capital is approximately VND 974.31 billion,
corresponding to 48.977% of the charter capital, to be issued to strategic shareholders.
This aims to mobilize capital for investing in the container fleet, infrastructure,
warehouses, vehicles, etc., for VIMC Lines and its member enterprises to expand
business operations.

2. Orientation and Plan for Business Operations and Investment
2.1. Business Orientation
2.1.1. Regarding Maritime Transport Business:

Focus on improving the service quality of the domestic container shipping market
share for key commodities such as: agricultural products, consumer goods, construction
materials, etc.

- Develop operational activities, cooperate with domestic and international
shipping lines in operations and ship agency, such as: Bien Dong Shipping Company
Limited; Hyundai Merchant Marine Co., Ltd; Gold Star Line Ltd; Zim, etc.
Additionally, will cooperate with Vosco if such cooperation proves effective.

- Develop container ship transport agency services: Operate domestic routes and
Intra-Asia routes: Cai Mep, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, India. In the long term,
upon establishing a stable operational structure and brand.

2.1.2. Regarding Seaport and Warehouse Operation Business

According to VIMC's capital contribution plan in VIMC Lines, VIMC Dinh Vu
Port Joint Stock Company and Maritime Development Joint Stock Company are
subsidiaries of VIMC Lines.

VIMC Lines will not directly manage port and warehouse operations but will
oversee strategy at ports and service enterprises where it has capital contributions, while
also supporting port and warehouse development and connecting service chains
according to VIMC's strategy. VIMC Lines will direct all its operating container ships
and partners' ships to call at VIMC ports under VIMC's umbrella to increase cargo
throughput at VIMC Ports. Concurrently, it will coordinate the operation of Vimadeco's



warehouse system in Hai Phong, Hanoi, and Ho Chi Minh City to help enterprises
improve operational efficiency, and increase revenue and profit.

2.1.3. Integrated Logistics Services Business

Leveraging the advantage of owning seaports, fleets of ships, vehicles, etc.,
VIMC Lines can provide a logistics service chain from goods reception, packaging
organization, warehousing, chartering transport means, customs procedures, etc., to
delivering goods to the final destination (usually warehouses, factories, or construction
sites) as specified by the cargo owner and chosen by customers.

VIMC Lines' logistics chain services include: Cargo handling; Customs
clearance; Full Container Load (FCL) freight forwarding; Inland transportation;
Tallying; Warehousing; Door-to-door delivery services.

2.2. Investment Plan

VIMC Lines' investment plan for the 2025-2030 period, as per the plan, is as
follows:

Total
Investment | Investment Total Investme
No. Type of Ship/Container VForm ‘l;erio d Investment nt
(USD) (million
VND)

I | Year 2025 1,499,454

1| 1,200-2,200 TEU No. 1 Second-hand | - ¢ 21,000,000 | 548,940
purchase

2| 1,700-2,200 TEU No. 1 Newbuilding | 2025 -2028 | 32,000,000 | 836,480

3| 500/20'MT and 500/40'MT 2025 93,825

4 Quay crane purchase project 2025 20,209

I | Period 2026-2030

1 |1,700-2,200 TEU No. 2 Second-hand | ) ) ¢ 19,000,000 | 496,660
purchase

2 | 500/20'MT and 500/40'MT 2026 86,880

3 | 1,700-2,200 TEU No. 2 Newbuilding | 2027 32,000,000 | 836,480

4 | 1,700-2,200 TEU No. 3 Newbuilding | 2027 32,000,000 | 836,480

5 | 1,700-2,200 TEU No. 3 Second-hand | -/ 19,000,000 | 496,660
purchase

Total Phase 2 2,753,160

Grand Total 4,252,614

10




According to the business and investment plan for 2025, VIMC is currently
carrying out procedures to invest in 02 container ships, a batch of container shells, and
quay cranes with a total investment of VND 1,499.5 billion.

3. VIMC Lines' Capital Increase Plan

To ensure capital for implementing the Company's development investment
projects, based on the VIMC Lines restructuring plan in the Establishment Plan of
VIMC Container Lines Joint Stock Company (reducing ownership from 99.956% to
51% of charter capital), VIMC proposes a plan to increase charter capital by issuing
shares to investors to reduce VIMC’s ownership stake to 51% of the charter capital, in
accordance with the approved VIMC Lines Establishment Scheme.

11



APPENDIX NO. 03:

2025 INVESTMENT PLAN FOR INCREASING THE PARENT COMPANY’S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION IN

INVESTED ENTERPRISES
Unit: VND million
Ag(;lt;(;llal Form of
No. Investment Project prta’l Capital Notes
Contribution o
Contribution
Value
I Carried forward from 2024
Provisional payment for the value
1 ?J\}:ﬁgiﬁitge?iﬁzfgi;fl\%eon Port 65.000 iﬁ?iﬁi%ﬁil Provisional estimate for budget allocation.
share transfer agreement
Capital contribution value is USD 102,000
Investment to contribute canital for (equivalent to 51% of the Joint Venture's charter
establishing VIMC - ARIEg Cash capital capital) according to Decision No. 228/QD-HHVN
2 Shinbine Service Compan 2.700 contribution dated September 10, 2024. The capital contribution
Li rrﬁl)ige dg pany amount in VND is provisional; the value in VND
will be converted at the exchange rate on the
contribution date.
11 Plan for 2025
Along with continuing the restructuring of VIMC
Hau Giang, VIMC will research and develop a plan
1 Hau Giang Maritime Service « By debts and | to increase charter capital for VIMC Hau Giang
Limited Liability Company assets from VIMC's assets and receivables currently being

leased back to VIMC Hau Giang... at an appropriate
time. This is to provide VIMC Hau Giang with




Additional

Capital DT O
No. Investment Project o Capital Notes
Contribution o
Contribution
Value
resources to implement investment projects,
enhance operational and business capacity, improve
its financial health, and prepare for conversion into
a Joint Stock Company.
Debt-to- Convert the debt owed by Yinaline§ Nh.a Tr'ang JSC
) Vinalines Nha Trang JSC < equity to VIMC into VIMC's equity stake in Vinalines Nha
. Trang JSC. Divestment will proceed after Vinalines
conversion )
Nha Trang's land issues are resolved.
Debi-to- Conver‘; the debt owed .by Can Tho Port JSC to
3 Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company X equity VIMC 1nj[0 VIMC.'S. equity s.take in Can Tho Port
conversion JSC, and issue additional capital to partners, thereby
reducing the Corporation's ownership stake to 65%.
VIMC, along with Saigon Port, will form a
consortium with partners to bid for and be selected
Joint Venture to implement the Can Cash capital as the investor for the : Can Gio pI‘O_]G(?t.
4 Gio Project X contribution Subsequently, the consortium members will
establish a Joint Venture Company to implement the
project. The Vietnamese side's (VIMC, Saigon Port)
ownership will be 51% of the charter capital.
VIMC will bid for and be selected as the investor for
the Lien Chieu Project. Alternatively, together with
5 Joint Venture to implement the < Cash capital | Da Nang Port, it will form a consortium with
Lien Chieu Project contribution | partners to bid for and be selected as the investor for

the Lien Chieu project. Subsequently, the
consortium members will establish a Joint Venture




No.

Investment Project

Additional
Capital
Contribution
Value

Form of
Capital
Contribution

Notes

Company to implement the project. The Vietnamese
side's (VIMC, Da Nang Port) ownership will be
51% of the charter capital.




APPENDIX NO. 04.1

2025 PLAN FOR THE RESTRUCTURING OF ENTERPRISES

VIMC's Divestment and Enterprise Restructuring Plan Notes
current VIMC's
No. Company Name capital ) ownership
ownership Form of Restructuring e e AT
percentage restructuring
Restructuring of Dependent
I .
Units
Retain the dependent accounting unit model
. Dependent | to carry out the tasks of training and Dissolution not
VIMC  Maritime  Manpower . . . .
1 Supplv Compan accounting | supplying crew members according to implemented as per
PPYY paty unit VIMC's centralized crew management the Scheme
strategy.
Implementation of
I Dissolution/Bankruptcy of
Enterprises
Vinalines - Dong Do Shiprepair o .
1 Company Limited 51% Bankruptcy Scheme adjusted
Hai Phong Marine Investment . . .
) And  Trading Joint Stock | 12.92% Dissolution of the enterprise due to land

Company

reclamation




APPENDIX 04.2
2025 PLAN FOR THE RESTRUCTURING OF VIMC’S SUBSIDIARY UNITS

I. VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company (MMYS)
1. Restructuring Plan for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company

According to the VIMC Restructuring Scheme, VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company was slated for termination of operations. To date, the unit has not yet ceased
operations as it is still addressing outstanding issues from previous periods.

However, VIMC currently intends to maintain MMS's operations as a dependent
accounting unit to perform the functions of training and developing crew members, and
supplying crew members to enterprises within the VIMC system and its partners.

Therefore, VIMC proposes to adjust the restructuring plan for VIMC Maritime
Manpower Supply Company as follows: Maintain its current operating model as a
dependent accounting unit of VIMC.

2. The necessity of maintaining the operations of VIMC Maritime Manpower
Supply Company

Currently, the number of crew personnel in the VIMC shipping subsidiary units is
as follows:

- Total crew members of VIMC Shipping Company as of November 30, 2024: 452
crew members, of which: Officers 172 (38.05% of total crew); Other Ranks 280 (61.95%
of total crew).

- Total crew members of Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited as of November
30, 2024: 103 crew members, of which: Officers 43 (41.7%); Other Ranks 60.

- Structure by position: Ratings (Able Seamen, Oilers) (77% have elementary or
intermediate qualifications; 23% have college or university qualifications). Operational
Officers (61% have college qualifications; 39% have university qualifications).
Management Officers (30% have college qualifications; 70% have university
qualifications).

Therefore, continuing the operations of VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company helps fulfill the functions of managing, training, and supplying crew members
with good professional qualifications, professionalism, strong foreign language skills, and
professional ethics to maritime transport enterprises under VIMC.

3. Business Orientation

Continue maintaining the operations of VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company to perform the functions of managing, training, and supplying crew members
with good professional qualifications, professionalism, strong foreign language skills, and
professional ethics to maritime transport enterprises under VIMC according to specific
phases, aiming towards association with a VIMC maritime transport enterprise that has the
function of supplying qualified crew members to foreign shipowners. The projected plan
is as follows:



Phase 1 (2025): Organize management and dispatch of crew members for VIMC
Shipping Company, VIMC Container Lines Joint Stock Company, and Bien Dong
Shipping Company Limited;

Phase 2 (from 2027): Expand crew supply to other VIMC maritime transport
enterprises in need;

Phase 3 (from 2028): Research and implement cooperation with a VIMC maritime
transport enterprise that has the function of supplying crew members to foreign
shipowners.

4. Implementation Plan
4.1. Personnel Plan

Recruit a Director for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company with sufficient
professional competence, and experience in crew management and training to develop and
implement the operational organization plan according to VIMC's objectives and
orientation;

Consider transferring the Crew Management Personnel Department of VIMC
Shipping Company to VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company, and recruit additional
management staff with sufficient professional competence and experience for centralized
crew management;

4.2. Operational Plan

Develop the business operation plan for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company; consolidate the functional structure, personnel for specialized departments,
regulations/rules, and operational procedures;

Finalize mechanisms, policies, cooperation agreements, contracts, and legal
procedures related to labor re-leasing (secondment);

Transfer crew members from VIMC Shipping Company, VIMC Container Lines
Joint Stock Company, and Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited to VIMC Maritime
Manpower Supply Company for centralized management, arrangement, and dispatch in
compliance with legal regulations and VIMC's rules.

3.2. Office Location

Based on the aforementioned operational orientation, organizational structure, and
labor plan, to facilitate crew management, dispatch, training, and coaching, the proposed
new office location for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company is in Hai Phong City
(at the current office space VIMC Shipping Company is leasing from the VIMC Hai Phong
Branch for crew management - No. 282 Da Nang Street, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong
City) or in the Hanoi area.



APPENDIX 05
ASSET LIQUIDATION PLAN OF THE PARENT COMPANY FOR 2025

Unit: Million dong

No

Asset Name

Original
Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation
/Provision

Net
book
value

Year of
Commissioning

Head office

Car 50Z-4425

966

966

2007

Car 297-7495

1.443

1.443

2007

Car 297-7827

1.292

1.292

2007

Car 29X-8479

1.443

1.443

2005

N | |W | N[~

S-seater Car 30V-
9010

1.292

1.292

S oo |Oo (O

2009

Trailer 29R-
502.85 — Semi-

trailer (Hai Phong
Office)

311

311

2016

Vehicle 15C-
030.28 — Container
tractor received
from VMSC

1.608

1.608

2011

Trailer 15R-
005.48 — Semi-
trailer received
from VMSC

265

265

2011

Vehicle 15C-
022.28 — Container
tractor received
from VMSC

1.608

1.608

2010

10

Trailer 15R-
005.45 — Semi-
trailer received
from VMSC

265

265

2011

11

Vehicle 15C-
022.36 — Container
tractor received
from VMSC

1.608

1.608

2010

12

Trailer 29R-
502.82 — Semi-
trailer (Ho Chi
Minh City Office)

311

311

2016

13

Vehicle 15C-
022.25 — Container
tractor received
from VMSC

1.608

1.608

2010

14

Trailer 29R-
500.40 — Semi-

trailer (old: Hai

314

314

2016




Phong Office /
new: HCMC)

Vehicle 15C-
15 022.29 — antalner 1.608 1.608 0
tractor received

from VMSC 2010

Trailer 29R-

500.72 — Semi-
16 trailer (Hai Phong 314 314 0

Office) 2016

Trailer 29R-
037.97 (former
number: 29R-
1164) —
Transferred to
HCMC under
Decision No. 37
dated 10/3/2016 2008

17 242 242 0

Trailer 29R-
034.57 (former
number: 0865) —
Transferred to

18 HCMC under 242 242 0

Decision No.

54/QD-VCSC

dated 14/5/2015 2008
19 | Container Shells 3.230 3.230 0 2010
20 | Liquidation of 02 211.386 204319

marine engines

Total 231.356 224.289

Note: The above asset liquidation plan does not include the plan for vessel liquidation.




APPENDIX NO. 06
VESSEL SALE PLAN OF THE PARENT COMPANY FOR 2025

No Company Vessel Year Vessel DWT/ Proposed Time of Reason for Sale
Name Name Built Type TEU Status Sale
A Bulk
1 Tay Son 2 2005 Carrier 13.310 Q4
A Bulk
2 VIMC Shipping Tay Son 3 | 2005 Carrier 13.285 Thanh Iy Q4 Old Vessel
3 Dai Phu 2006 Oil 50.530 Q4
: Tanker '
Pai An oil
4 (Sold 2007 Tanker 50.530 Q2
4/2025)




APPENDIX NO. 07
SEA TRANSPORT UNITS’ VESSEL SALE PLAN FOR 2025

Vessel Year . Time of | Reason for
No Company Name name Built Vessel type | DWT/TEU | Place Buit | Proposed Status Sale Sale
| Vosco Star 1999 Bulk 46.671 Japan Liquidation Q2
Carrier ' P d Aged
Fortune . .
2 Vosco Freighter 1997 Container 560 TEU Japan Liquidation Q3 Aged
Fortune . C
3 Navigator 1998 Container 560 TEU Japan Liquidation Q4 Aged
) . Vinaship Bulk P
4 Vinaship Pearl 1996 Carrier 24.241 Japan Liquidation Q4 Aged
Aged with
R low
N R Pon Bulk L
5 Dong Do Thin% 1994 Carrier 7.088 Japan Liquidation Q2 operational

efficiency




Vessel

Year

Time of

Reason for

No Company Name name Built Vessel type | DWT/TEU | Place Buit | Proposed Status Sale Sale
Aged with
A Bulk C IOV.V
6 Dong An 1995 Carricr 7.091 Japan Liquidation Q2 operational
efficiency
Aged with
. low
7 Dong Ho 1998 Container 561 Japan Liquidation Q4 operational
efficiency
. Bulk D
8 Vitranschart VTC Glory 1998 Carrier 23.620 Japan Liquidation Q4 Aged
Inlaco Bulk e C
9 Inlaco SG Bright 1999 Carrier 23.592 Philippines Liquidation Q4 Aged




Vessel Year . Time of | Reason for
No Company Name name Built Vessel type | DWT/TEU | Place Buit | Proposed Status Sale Sale
Aged with
. low
Oriental Bulk P
10 Glory 1995 Carrier 68.591 Japan Liquidation Q4 operational
efficiency
Aged with
3 0STC Phuong 1994 Bulk 23.724 Japan Liquidation Q2 o 1
Dong 05 Carrier ' operationa
efficiency
Aged with
low
Phuong Bulk P , ‘
12 Péng 06 1993 Carrier 22.201 Japan Liquidation Quy 2 operational

efficiency




APPENDIX NO. 08

VESSEL INVESTMENT PLAN OF THE PARENT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES IN 2025

e Vesselt Estimated Form of Investment Estimated Time
No Quantity | DWT/TEU Total (Purchase/Newbuild/Lease
Name Type of Investment
Investment Purchase/...)
The Parent USD 32-35 Newbuild Q2/2025
Company million
(VIMC
Shipping) or
the Joint Bulk
1 Stock Carrier 01 64.000 DWT
Company
converted
from VIMC
Shipping
Container 01 1200 - 2200
TEU
2 | VIMC Lines
‘ 1700 — 2200 Approximately Second-hand Purchase Q4/2025
Container 01 USD 21
TEU S
million
Bulk 30.000-
Carrier 01 35.000
3 Vinaship DWT




Bulk USD 32 Newbuild Q4/2025.
Carrier 30.000- million Expected
01 35.000 delivery: January
DWT 2028
-1 vessel:
Jan/2025
Bulk 03 56.000 - -1 vessel:
Carrier 58.000 DWT Q1/2025
- 1 vessel:
Q2/2025
VOSCO USD 13-15 Second-hand Purchase - 1 vessel:
million Q3/2025
) Approx. - 3 vessels:
Oil Tanker 04 SO.OI())g DWT According to
newbuild
contract schedule
62.000 — According to
C]E:;lil;r 04 66.000 newbuild
DWT contract schedule
. Aprrox. USD 13-15 Second-hand Purchase Q4/2025
Container 02 1.000 Teus million
Q4/2025
Inlaco Bulk 01 20.000-
Saigon Carrier 1 40.000 DWT




PLAN IMPLEMENTATION STATUS

. Elanf202 Ik (Implementation results 2021 - 2024 and plan 2025) Compare
Items Unit 2025 )@
Total | 2021-2024 Plan 2025
[} @ |

1. Business results

1. Shipping volume Thousand tons 15,366 24,708 21,508 3,200 161%
2. Revenue Billion VND 8,808 13,196 9,347 3,849 150%
3. Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services Billion VND 6,394 9,396 6,220 3,176 147%
4. Cost of goods sold Billion VND 5,056 8,250 5,111 3,139 163%
In which: Depreciation Billion VND 1,420 1,618 1,345 273 114%
5. Gross revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services Billion VND 1,338 1,145 1,109 36 86%
6. Financial income Billion VND 2,310 2,363 2,037 326 102%
7. Financial expense Billion VND 980 734 699 35 75%
In which: Interest expense Billion VND 875 370 356 14 42%
8. Selling expense Billion VND 100 76 61 15 76%
9. General and administrative expense Billion VND 930 1,060 820 240 114%
10. Net profit from operating activities Billion VND 1,638 1,638 1,565 73 100%
11. Other income Billion VND 100 1,436 1,089 347 B
12. Other expense Billion VND 90 67 57 10 74%
13. Other profit Billion VND 10 1,368 1,032 336 _
14. Total net profit before tax Billion VND 1,648 3,006 2,597 409 182%
15. Current corporate income tax expense Billion VND

16. Profit after corporate income tax Billion VND
In which: unplanned income

'+ Income from revaluation of assets for capital contribution 2024 Billion VND 469 100%

'+ Income from VDB interest write-off in 2023 and 2024 Billion VND 408 200%
11. Another Items
Total revenue Billion VND 13,274 14,452 109%
Liabilities Billion VND 737 1,962 266%
Owner's Equity Billion VND 12,537 12,580 100%
Profit before tax/Owner's Equity % 3% 5% 182%
Liabilities/Owner's Equity % 6% 16% 265%




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION- JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Number: /TT-DPHDCD Hanoi, June 2025
DRAFT
REPORT

On the Approval of the 2024 Wage and Remuneration Fund
and the Endorsement of the 2025 Wage and Remuneration Plan
for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors
of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November
26, 2019; and the Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on
Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of
the Ministry of Finance guiding certain provisions on corporate governance
applicable to public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to Decree No. 53/2016/ND-CP dated June 13, 2016 of the
Government on labor, wages, remuneration, and bonuses in enterprises with
dominant State capital contribution; and Circular No. 28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH
dated September 1, 2016 of the Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs
guiding the implementation of Decree No. 53/2016/ND-CP; and Decree No.
44/2025/ND-CP dated February 28, 2025 regulating the management of labor,
wages, remuneration, and bonuses in State-owned enterprises;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC;

Pursuant to the Internal Corporate Governance Regulations of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation — JSC;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024 of the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — JSC;



Pursuant to the 2024 business results and the 2025 business plan of the
Parent Company — Vietnam Maritime Corporation;

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC
(“VIMC”) respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
approval: the actual wage and remuneration fund for 2024; and the planned
wage and remuneration fund for 2025 for the Board of Directors (“BOD”) and
the Supervisory Board (“SB”) of the Corporation, as follows:

1. The 2024 Planned Salary and Remuneration Fund for the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board Approved by the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders

According to Article 6 of Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April
16, 2024, of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC, the
planned salary and remuneration fund for 2024 was approved as follows:

o The Board of Directors (BOD) consists of 4 full-time members and 1
part-time member (a BOD member concurrently holding the position of
General Director). The Supervisory Board (SB) consists of 3 full-time
members.

o Total salary fund for the BOD and SB: VND 8,640 million; average
monthly salary: VND 90 million/person.

« Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 216 million.

o The distribution is implemented in accordance with VIMC’s Regulation
on Salary, Remuneration, and Bonus for Managers and the Supervisory
Board.

2. Approval of the 2024 Actual Salary and Remuneration Fund for
the BOD and SB

The BOD of VIMC respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the actual salary and remuneration fund for 2024, as
follows:

o The BOD consists of 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (a
BOD member concurrently holding the position of General Director). The
SB consists of 3 full-time members.

o Total salary fund: VND 9,361.8 million; average monthly salary: VND
98.1 million/person.
Breakdown:

o Salary fund for the BOD: VND 6,609.7 million
o Salary fund for the SB: VND 2,752.0 million

o Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 235.44

million/year.



o The distribution is implemented in accordance with VIMC’s Regulation
on Salary, Remuneration, and Bonus for Managers and the Supervisory
Board.

3. Approval of the 2025 Planned Salary and Remuneration Fund for
the BOD and SB
In compliance with Decree No. 44/2025/ND-CP dated February 28, 2025,
on the management of labor, salaries, remuneration, and bonuses in State-owned
enterprises, and after deducting objective adjustment factors as prescribed when
determining salaries, the BOD of VIMC respectfully submits to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders for approval of the 2025 planned salary and
remuneration fund for the BOD and SB as follows:
o The BOD consists of 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (a
BOD member concurrently holding the position of General Director). The
SB consists of 3 full-time members.
o Total salary fund for the BOD and SB: VND 7,895.3 million; average
monthly salary: VND 94 million/person.
« Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 240.5 million.
o The distribution is implemented in accordance with VIMC’s Regulation
on Salary, Remuneration, and Bonus for Managers and the Supervisory
Board.

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC
respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval: the
2024 actual salary and remuneration fund, and the 2025 planned salary and
remuneration fund for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above; CHAIRMAN
- Supervisory Board;
- Member of BOD;
- Save: Office, HR, GS.
HTO02
Le Anh Son



VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION- JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Number: /TTr-bHDBCD Hanoi, June 2025
DRAFT
PROPOSAL

Regarding the Selection of the Auditing Firm for the 2025 Financial
Statementsof Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020
and its guiding documents;
Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC (VIMC);
In compliance with the provisions of law and the Charter of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — JSC, the Supervisory Board of VIMC respectfully submits to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the list of auditing firms proposed to
audit the 2025 financial statements of VIMC, as follows:

1. Principles for selecting an independent auditing firm:

a. A reputable and well-established independent auditing firm, trusted by many
public companies, with a highly qualified and experienced team of auditors;
b. A legally operating company in Vietnam, approved by the State Securities
Commission to audit public-interest entities, selected from the top auditing firms on
the list of qualified auditing companies annually announced by the Ministry of
Finance, to audit and review the 2025 financial statements of VIMC;
c. Offering reasonable audit fees that match the scope, quality, and timeline
requirements of VIMC’s audit;
d. Providing free training courses in finance and accounting for VIMC.

2. List of proposed auditing firms:

The Supervisory Board of VIMC concurs with the proposal of the VIMC
Finance and Accounting Department as stated in the report dated March 14, 2025,
regarding the selection of an auditing firm. The Supervisory Board has compiled a
ranking of independent auditing firms listed among the organizations approved by
the Ministry of Finance to audit public-interest entities in 2025, as per Decision No.
2730/QD-BTC dated November 15, 2024, ensuring the best capabilities to meet
VIMC’s audit requirements. The proposed firms are:

o AASC Auditing Firm Co., Ltd.;
o A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.;
« UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

However, to ensure the selection of the most suitable independent auditor

with reasonable costs based on the capability profiles of each firm, the Supervisory



Board will implement a bidding process in accordance with the Law on Bidding
No. 22/2023/QH15 and relevant VIMC regulations (if any). The following
selection criteria are proposed:
« High revenue from financial statement reviews and audits;
« A large, professional team of highly qualified and experienced auditors and
staff;
« A broad client base, with preference given to auditing firms that have audited
large-scale companies in industries similar to VIMC.

We respectfully submit this to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
approval of the content, selection criteria, and proposed list of auditing firms as
mentioned above, and to authorize the Board of Directors of the Corporation to
decide on the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC, ensuring quality, efficiency, and reasonable
cost in accordance with legal regulations.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
- As above; HEAD OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
- Member of BOD;

- Save: Office, FC, GS. HT02

Luong Dinh Minh



VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION-JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Number: /TTr-PHDCD Hanoi, June 2025
DRAFT

PROPOSAL

Regarding the Approval of the Legal Representative Registration
of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020; Law No. 03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022, and related guiding
documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November
26,2019; Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of
the Government detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Law
on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020
of the Ministry of Finance providing guidance on corporate governance
applicable to public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC;

Pursuant to the operational and corporate governance needs of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation — JSC;

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC (VIMC)
respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
approval the registration of a change in the legal representative of VIMC as
follows:

1. Legal representative(s) of VIMC after the change:

Number of legal representatives: 02 persons

Titles of the 02 legal representatives: Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

2. Authorization:

Authorize the Board of Directors to carry out procedures for registering
the change of the legal representative of VIMC with the Business Registration



Office and the Corporate Finance Department under the Hanoi Department of

Finance.
Recipients:
- As above: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Supervisory Board; CHAIRMAN
- Member of BOD;

- Save: Office, GS, F&A.

Le Anh Son



VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION-JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Number: /NQ-HHVN Hanoi, June 2025
DRAFT MINUTES

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC (VIMC)

At 08:30 AM on June 5, 2025, at the Headquarters of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation - JSC (VIMC), located at No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (the "Meeting") was
convened in person with electronic voting.

A. ATTENDEES

1. Shareholders as per the shareholder list of Vietnam Maritime Corporation
- JSC finalized on May 6, 2025.

2. Members of VIMC's Board of Directors (BOD); Members of VIMC's
Supervisory Board (SB); VIMC's Executive Board; Chairman of VIMC's
Labor Union.

3. Representatives of State Shareholders - Ministry of Finance.

4. Invited Guests of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC.

5. Representatives of News Agencies and Media.

B. OPENING OF THE MEETING, SHAREHOLDER
ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION REPORT, AND ADOPTION OF
MEETING REGULATIONS

1. Opening of the Meeting
Mr. Tran Tuan Hai— Chief of Office of VIMC declared the meeting’s
purpose, introduced the attendees, and officially opened the Meeting.

2. Report on Shareholder Eligibility Verification
Mr. Do Duc Duy — Acting Chief of Office of the Party Committee of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation, on behalf of the Shareholder Eligibility
Verification Committee, presented the verification results as of 08:30 AM
on June 5, 2025, with the following details:

o Total shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC as
of June 5, 2025:964 shareholders, representing 1,200,588,000

shares.
o Total attending shareholders (including shareholders and authorized
representatives):  shareholders, representing  voting shares,

accounting for % of the total voting shares.



Conclusion: In accordance with the Enterprise Law, the Meeting is
deemed valid and quorate to proceed with its agenda.

3. Adoption of Meeting Regulations
Mr. Tran Tuan Hai— Chief of Office of VIMC presented the draft
Meeting Regulations and provided guidance on the electronic voting
system.

Approval: % of  voting shareholders present at the

Meeting unanimously adopted the Meeting Regulations.

C. INTRODUCTION OF THE PRESIDIUM, SECRETARIAT, AND
APPROVAL OF THE VOTE COUNTING COMMITTEE & MEETING
AGENDA

1. Introduction of the Presidium
The Organizing Committee introduced the Presidium of the Meeting,
comprising:

o Mr. Le Anh Son- Chairman of VIMC’s Board of Directors
(BOD), Presiding Officer
o Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh— BOD Member, General Director of
VIMC
o Mr. Do Hung Duong — BOD Member of VIMC
o Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung — BOD Member of VIMC
o Mr. Do Tien Duc — BOD Member of VIMC
2. Introduction of the Secretariat
The Presiding Officer introduced the Secretariat, including:
o Ms. Nguyen Thi Ha Trang— Specialist, General Secretariat
Department, Head of Secretariat
o Ms. Bui Thu Trang — Specialist, Investment Department, Member
3. Approval of the Vote Counting Committee
The Meeting proposed a 3-member Vote Counting Committee. % of
voting shareholders present unanimously approved the committee,
consisting of:
o Mr. Do Duc Duy- Acting Chief of Office, VIMC Party
Committee, Head of Committee
o Ms. Kieu Viet Ha— Specialist, Planning & Quality Control
Department, Member
o Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Ngoc — Specialist, Legal & Compliance
Department, Member
4. Adoption of the Meeting Agenda
After reviewing the proposed agenda, % of voting shareholders
present approved the Meeting Agenda via ballot.



D. PROCEEDINGS OF THE GENERAL MEETING

1.

Report of the Board of Directors ("BOD") on 2024 Business Performance
(2020-2025 Term), Strategic Orientation for 2025-2030 Term, and 2025
Operating Plan
Mr. Do Hung Duong - BOD Member of VIMC presented the BOD's
Report on:

o Business performance results for 2024 (2020-2025 term)

o Strategic direction for 2025-2030 term

o Operating plan for 2025

. Report of the Supervisory Board ("SB") on Audited Financial Statements,

Business Results, and Performance of the BOD & General Director in
2024
Mr. Luong Dinh Minh - Head of VIMC's Supervisory Board presented the
SB's Report on:

o Supervision of VIMC's 2024 business operations

o Oversight of the BOD and General Director's performance

. Self-Assessment Report on SB's Performance in 2024 (2020-2025 Term),

Strategic Orientation for 2025-2030 Term, and 2025 Operating Plan
Mr. Luong Dinh Minh presented the SB's Self-Evaluation Report
covering:

o Performance results of SB members in 2024 (2020-2025 term)

o Operational direction for 2025-2030 term

o Work plan for 2025
Submission of Audited 2024 Financial Statements
Mr. Le Duy Duong - Head of VIMC's Finance & Accounting Department
presented the Audited 2024 Financial Statements.
Key Financial Indicators for 2024
Unit: Vietnamese Dong (VND)
[Financial data table to be inserted]

A | Balance Sheet As of 31/12/2024 As of 31/12/2023
Items

I | Total Assets 14.412.914.827.217 13.777.616.310.724

1 | Current Assets 2.222.671.378.674 2.511356.461.711

p | Non-current 12.190.243.448.543 11.266.259.849.013
Assets
TOTAL

I | EQUITY

[ | AND 14.412.914.827.217 13.777.616.310.724
LIABILITIES

1 | Liabilities 1.011.422.551.457 1.631.485332.118
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| 2 | Owner's Equity 13.401.492.275.760 12.146.130.978.606

p | Profitability Year 2024 Year 2023
Indicators

| | Gross profit from sales 192.885.296.483 87.655.450.723
and service pl’OVlSlOIl

, | Net profit from 393.406.540.554 316.318.324.070
business activities

4 | Totalaccounting 1.353.536.982.178 357.283.201.651
profit before tax

5 | Netprofitafter 1.353.536.982.178 357.283.201.651
corporate income tax

C | Cash flow Statement Year 2024 Year 2023

1 | Profit before tax 1.353.536.982.178 357.283.201.651

, | Cash flows from 205.778.519.391 2.929.683.033

operating activities

Net cash generated from
4 | operations from (97.957.522.738) 392.917.304.702
investing activities

Net cash used in
5 | investing activities rom (286.998.125.997) (66.812.514.027)
financing activities

Net cash from financing

6 | O (179.177.129.344) 329.034.473.708
activities

7 | Netcash from financing 480.875.972.938 149.475.735.653
activities

g | Cashand equivalents at 322.930.807.932 480.875.972.938

end of period

In the event that tax authorities or competent state agencies require
adjustments to indicators related to business performance or the 2024 Financial
Statements, VIMC's Board of Directors shall direct the Company to make
corresponding adjustments in compliance with legal regulations.

5. 2024 Profit Distribution Plan

Mr. Do Tien Duc - Member of VIMC's Board of Directors presented the
2024 Profit Distribution Plan to the General Meeting.

Basis for Distribution:

o 2024 business performance results
o Current legal provisions



« Existing fund balances of the Corporation

Proposed Allocation of 2024 After-Tax Profit:
[Detailed allocation plan to be inserted here]
2024 Profit % of
No Item Distribution Plan Distributable Notes
(VND) Net Profit
| FProfitbefore 1.353.536.982.178
tax
2024 Net profit
2 after CIT 1.353.536.982.178
Accumulated
undistributed
3 . 0
profit from prior
years
Adjustments to
4 non-distributable 873.343.067.688
profit (*)
Exchange rate
differences from 27.062.031.481 Per separate F'S
year-end p.42
revaluation
Walved interest 377 743.630.417 Per separate F'S
income p.-43
evaluation
zncqmeﬁfom 468.537 405.790 Per separate FS
capital p.43
contributions
Total
5 | distributable 480.193.914.490
net profit
(3)=2)*+(3)-4)
Development 30% of
5.1 p 144.058.174.347 30,00% | distributable net
Investment Fund
profit
50 |Rewardand 57.810.750.000 12,049 | Max. 3 months
Welfare Fund average salary
Reward Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% | 50% allocation




2024 Profit % of
No Item Distribution Plan Distributable Notes
(VND) Net Profit
Welfare Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% | 50% allocation
Manaeement Max. 2 months'
5.3 g 2.197.400.000 0,46% average
Bonus Fund .
compensation
Cash dividend 0 0,00%
5.4 —
D1Y1dend payout 0%
ratio
Remaining
distributable
5.5 profit after fund 276.127.590.143
allocations
Retained
¢ |undistributed 1.149.470.657.831
profit
(6)=(4)+(5.5)

6. PRESENTATION OF 2025 BUSINESS PRODUCTION AND
INVESTMENT PLAN
Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh - Board Member and General Director of VIMC
presented the 2025 Business Production and Investment Plan.
2024 Business Performance Results:
Consolidated Results:
« Port cargo throughput: 145.3 million tons (127% of 2023, 117% of 2024
plan)
o Maritime transport volume: 19.4 million tons (94% of 2023, 122% of
2024 plan)
« Consolidated revenue: VND 19,375 billion (139% of 2023, 144% of 2024
plan)
« Consolidated pre-tax profit: VND 3,153 billion (149% of 2023, 115% of
2024 plan)
Parent Company Results:
o Maritime transport volume: 3.8 million tons (55% of 2023, 100% of 2024
plan)
« Revenue: VND 3,157 billion (153% of 2023, 131% of 2024 plan)
o Pre-tax profit: VND 1,353 billion (379% of 2023, 145% of 2024 plan)




2025 Business Production and Investment Plan:
Consolidated Targets:
« Port cargo throughput: 158.3 million tons
o Maritime transport volume: 21.1 million tons
« Revenue: VND 20,925 billion
o Pre-tax profit: VND 3,076 billion
Parent Company Targets:
« Revenue: VND 3,849 billion
o Pre-tax profit: VND 4009 billion
2025 Investment Plan (Parent Company): VND 208.7 billion
« Carry-over investments from 2024: VND 162.7 billion
« New investments in 2025: VND 46.01 billion
o 1 bulk carrier (64,000 DWT), total investment: USD 35 million
o Increase charter capital in joint ventures, reduce VIMC ownership
in 4 enterprises
o Divest/reduce capital in 6 joint ventures (4 carry-over, 2 new in
2025)
7. REMUNERATION FUNDS FOR BOD AND SB
Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung - Board Member presented the 2024 actual and 2025
planned remuneration funds.
2024 Remuneration Funds:
o BOD: 4 full-time members, 1 part-time member (concurrently General
Director)
o SB: 3 full-time members
o Total salary fund: VND 9,361.8 million (avg. VND 98.1
million/person/month)
« BOD: VND 6,609.7 million
SB: VND 2,752.0 million
o Part-time BOD member remuneration: VND 235.44 million/year
2025 Planned Remuneration Funds:
o Total salary fund: VND 7,895.3 million (avg. VND 94
million/person/month)
« Part-time BOD member remuneration: VND 240.5 million
All allocations follow VIMC's Regulations on Salaries, Remuneration and
Bonuses for Management and Supervisory Board Members.
8. SELECTION OF AUDIT FIRM FOR 2025 FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha - Member of VIMC's Supervisory Board presented the
proposal for selecting the audit firm for Vietnam Maritime Corporation's 2025
Financial Statements.



Selection Criteria for Independent Audit Firm:

1. Reputable independent audit firm with strong brand recognition, trusted
by public companies, and staffed by highly qualified, experienced
auditors

2. Legally operating in Vietnam and approved by the State Securities
Commission for auditing public-interest entities

3. Must be among the top qualified audit firms annually published by the
Ministry of Finance

4. Reasonable audit fees aligned with scope, quality and timeline
requirements

5. Provision of free accounting/finance training courses for Vietnam
Maritime Corporation

Proposed Audit Firms:
1. AASC Auditing Firm Co., Ltd.
2. A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.
3. UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.
The General Meeting authorized the Board of Directors to select the 2025 audit
firm ensuring quality, efficiency and cost-effectiveness in compliance with
regulations.
9. APPROVAL OF CHANGES TO VIMC'S LEGAL
REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Dong Xuan Khanh - Deputy Head of HR Department presented the proposal
for changes to VIMC's legal representatives.
New Legal Representatives:

o Number: 02 persons

« Positions: Chairman of the Board of Directors and General Director
10. ELECTION OF BOD AND SB MEMBERS
10.1 Approval of Election Procedures
Mr. Do Duc Duy, on behalf of the Vote Counting Committee, presented the
draft Election Procedures for BOD and SB members. The Meeting voted with
% approval.

10.2 Candidate Introduction
The Presidium conducted elections and introduced candidates for BOD and SB
positions.

10.3 Voting Guidance
The Vote Counting Committee guided shareholders on voting procedures.

11. DISCUSSION OF PRESENTED REPORTS

Mr. Le Anh Son - Chairman requested shareholders to discuss and provide
feedback on all presented reports including:
o 2024 performance results (2020-2025 term)
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o 2025-2030 strategic direction and 2025 operating plan

o 2024 financial statements
o 2024 profit distribution plan

« 2025 business production and investment plan
o 2024-2025 remuneration funds for BOD/SB

e Selection of 2025 audit firm

« Changes to legal representatives of VIMC

Shareholders' Opinions & Voting Results

Mr. Le Anh Son - Chairman of VIMC's

Board

shareholders to vote on all presented agenda items.

Voting Results:

(i) BOD Report on 2024 Performance
(2020-2025 term), 2025-2030 Strategy &
2025 Plan

(ii) SB Report on Supervision of 2024
Operations, BOD & General Director
Performance

(iii) SB Self-Assessment Report (2020-2025
term), 2025-2030 Strategy & 2025 Plan

(iv) Audited 2024 Financial Statements

(v) 2024 Profit Distribution Plan

(vi) 2025 Business Production & Investment
Plan

(vii) 2024  Actual & 2025 Planned
Remuneration Funds for BOD/SB

(viii) Selection of Audit Firm for 2025
Financial Statements

(ix) Changes to VIMC's Legal
Representatives

of Directors

/ /
%%
/ /
%%
/ /
%%
/ /
%%
/ /
%%
/ /
%%
/ /
%%
/ /
%%
/ /
% %

13. Election Results for BOD & SB Members (2025-2030 Term)
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13.1 BOD Election
« Total ballots issued: (__ % of voting shares)
« Total ballots received:
o Valid ballots:
o Invalid ballots:
Elected BOD Members:
[Names to be inserted upon completion of voting]

No Full name Total voting shares

DN AW N

The General Meeting unanimously approved the election results as
certified by the Vote Counting Committee.
13.1 Board of Directors Election (2025-2030 Term)
Pursuant to the election results and the Election Regulations, the following
candidates are officially elected as members of Vietnam Maritime Corporation -
JSC's Board of Directors for the 2025-2030 term:
[List of elected BOD members to be inserted]
13.2 Supervisory Board Election (2025-2030 Term)
o Total ballots issued: (representing % of voting shares)
o Total ballots received:
o Valid ballots:
o Invalid ballots:
Elected Supervisory Board Members:
[List of elected SB members to be inserted]

No Full name Total of voting

1

2

3

The General Meeting unanimously approved the election results as
announced by the Vote Counting Board.
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Based on the election results and the provisions of the Election Regulations, the
individuals listed above have been duly elected as members of the Board of
Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company for the
2025-2030 term.

E. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES, RESOLUTIONS, AND
ADJOURNMENT OF THE GENERAL MEETING

The Minutes and Resolutions of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders were presented to the entire Meeting and approved by voting as
follows:

o (i) __ % ofthe total votes cast by attending shareholders agreed to
approve the Meeting Minutes;

o (i) % of the total votes cast by attending shareholders agreed to
approve the Meeting Resolutions.

The Meeting adjourned at : on the same day.

ON BEHALF OF THE ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL

SECRETARIAT MEETING SHAREHODERS
HEAD CHAIROERSON

Nguyen Thi Ha Trang Le Anh Son
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION-ISC Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: /NQ-HHVN Hanoi, June 2025

DRAFT

RESOLUTION

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC (VIMC)

o Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

« Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26,
2019, and Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

o Pursuant to the Charter of Vietham Maritime Corporation - JSC;

o Pursuant to the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation - JSC;

o Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC) dated June
5,2024;

RESOLVED:

Article 1.

To approve the Report of the Board of Directors (“BOD”) on the Business
Performance in 2024 (2020-2025 term), Orientation for the 2025-2030 term,
and Operating Plan for 2025 (as per Report No. /BC-DHDCD dated June
5,2025, of VIMC’s BOD).

Article 2.

To approve the Report of the Supervisory Board (“SB”) on the audited Financial
Statements, business results, and performance of the BOD and General Director
of VIMC in 2024 (as per Report No. /BC-DHDCD dated June 5, 2025,
of VIMC’s SB).

Article 3.

To approve the Self-Assessment Report on the Performance of the SB and
Supervisors in 2024 (2020-2025 term), Orientation for the 2025-2030 term,

and Operating Plan for 2025 (as per Report No. /BC-DHDCD dated June
5,2025, of VIMC’s SB).

Article 4.

To approve the Consolidated Financial Statements and Separate Financial
Statements of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC for 2024, as audited (as per
Submission No. /TTr-DHDCD dated June 5, 2025, of VIMC’s BOD).

In case tax authorities or competent state agencies adjust indicators related to
1



business performance or the 2024 Financial Statements, VIMC’s BOD shall
direct VIMC to make necessary adjustments in compliance with legal
regulations.

Article 5.
To approve the Profit Distribution Plan for 2024 of VIMC (as per Submission

No. /TTr-DHDCD dated June 5, 2025, of VIMC’s BOD).

The allocation and allocation of funds from VIMC’s 2024 after-tax profit shall
be as follows:

No

Item

2024 Profit
Distribution Plan
(VND)

o/o Of
Distributable
Net Profit

Notes

Profit before
tax

1.353.536.982.178

2024 Net
profit after
CIT

1.353.536.982.178

Accumulated
undistributed
profit from
prior years

Adjustments
to non-
distributable
profit (*)

873.343.067.688

Exchange rate
differences
from year-end
revaluation

27.062.031.481

Per separate
FSp.42

Waived
interest
income

377.743.630.417

Per separate
FSp.43

evaluation
income from
capital
contributions

468.537.405.790

Per separate
FSp.43

Total
distributable

480.193.914.490
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(6)=(4)+(5.5)

2024 Profit % of
No Item Distribution Plan Distributable Notes
(VND) Net Profit
net profit
(3)=(2)*+(3)-
4)
Development 30% of
5.1 | Investment 144.058.174.347 30,00% | distributable
Fund net profit
Max. 3
Reward and months'
5.2 Welfare Fund 57.810.750.000 12,04% average
salary
Reward Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% 50%.
allocation
50%
Welfare Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% .
allocation
Max. 2
Management months'
5.3 2.197.400.000 0,46%
Bonus Fund average
compensation
Cash dividend 0 0,00%
54 —
Dividend . 0%
payout ratio
Remaining
distributable
5.5 | profit after 276.127.590.143
fund
allocations
Retained
¢ | undistributed 1.149.470.657.831
profit

Article 6.
To approve the 2025 Business Production and Investment Plan of VIMC:

Business Production Plan of the Parent Company:
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o Maritime transport output: 3.8 million tons.
« Revenue: VND 3,849 billion.
o Pre-tax profit: VND 4009 billion.

Investment Plan of the Parent Company:
The 2025 investment plan of the parent company is VND 208.7 billion,
including:

« Carry-over investments from 2024 to 2025: VND 162.7 billion.
« New investments in 2025: VND 46.01 billion.

o Investment in one bulk carrier (64,000 DWT), total
investment: USD 35 million.

o Increase charter capital of joint-venture enterprises and reduce
VIMC’s ownership ratio in 4 enterprises.

o Divest/reduce capital of VIMC in 6 joint-venture enterprises (4
carry-over enterprises, 2 as per the 2025 plan).

Article 7.

To approve the 2024 Actual Salary and Remuneration Fund and the 2025
Planned Salary and Remuneration Fund for the Board of Directors (BOD) and
Supervisory Board (SB) (as per Submission No. /TTr-DHDCD dated
June 5, 2025, of VIMC’s BOD).

2024 Salary and Remuneration Fund for BOD and SB:

« BOD: 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (BOD member
concurrently serving as General Director).
« SB: 3 full-time members.

o Total salary fund: VND 9,361.8 million; average salary: VND 98.1
million/person/month.

BOD salary fund: VND 6,609.7 million.
SB salary fund: VND 2,752.0 million.
o Remuneration for part-time BOD member: VND 235.44
million/year.
o Distribution follows VIMC’s Regulations on Salaries,

Remuneration, and Bonuses for Management and Supervisory
Board Members.

2025 Planned Salary and Remuneration Fund for BOD and SB:

« BOD: 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (BOD member
concurrently serving as General Director).
« SB: 3 full-time members.



o Total salary fund: VND 7,895.3 million; average salary: VND 94
million/person/month.

o Remuneration for part-time BOD member: VND 240.5 million.

o Distribution follows VIMC’s Regulations on Salaries,
Remuneration, and Bonuses for Management and Supervisory

Board Members.
Article 8.
To approve the Selection of an Audit Firm for the Audit of VIMC’s 2025
Financial Statements (as per Submission No. /TTr-DHDCD dated June

5,2025, of VIMC’s BOD).
List of Proposed Audit Firms:

1. AASC Auditing Firm Co., Ltd.
2. A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.
3. UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the BOD to select the audit
firm based on the following criteria:

« (a) An independent, reputable audit firm with a strong brand, trusted by
public companies, and staffed by highly qualified and experienced
auditors.

o (b) A legally operating firm in Vietnam, approved by the State Securities
Commission for auditing public-interest entities, and listed
among qualified audit firms annually published by the Ministry of
Finance.

+ (c) Reasonable audit fees, aligned with the scope, quality, and timeline of
VIMC’s audit requirements.

« (d) Provision of free training courses on finance and accounting for
VIMC.

The selection of the audit firm for VIMC’s 2025 Financial Statements must
ensure quality, efficiency, and cost-effectiveness in compliance with legal
regulations.

Article 9.

To approve the registration of changes to VIMC's legal representatives (as
per Submission No. /TTr-DHDCD dated June 5, 2025, of VIMC's Board
of Directors).

Legal representatives of VIMC after the change:
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« Number of legal representatives: 02 persons

« Positions of legal representatives: Chairman of the Board of Directors and
General Director.

Article 10.

To approve the election results for members of the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC for the 2025-2030
term, specifically as follows:

1. Board of Directors members include the following individuals:

o Mr./Ms.
o Mr./Ms.
o Mr./Ms.
o Mr./Ms.
o Mr./Ms.
2. Supervisory Board members include the following individuals:

o Mr./Ms.
o Mr./Ms.
o Mr./Ms.

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation - JSC assigns the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board to
implement this Resolution.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- VIMC shareholders (via website); MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- HNX (for PD); CHAIRPERSON

VIMC’s BOD, Supervisory Board (for

implementation);

- Save: Admin, General Secreatariat,

Office. Le Anh Son
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